Health and Wellbeing Board

Date: Wednesday 3 March 2021
Time: 1.30 pm
Venue: Microsoft Teams

Membership

Councillor Les Caborn (Chair)
Councillor Jeff Morgan

Councillor Dave Parsons
Councillor Isobel Seccombe OBE
Councillor Marian Humphreys
Councillor John Beaumont
Councillor Sally Bragg

Councillor Jo Barker

Councillor Judy Falp

Warwickshire County Council Officers:
Shade Agboola and Nigel Minns

Clinical Commissioning Groups:

Sarah Raistrick (Coventry and Rugby and Warwickshire North) and David Spraggett (South
Warwickshire)

Provider Representatives:

Russell Hardy (South Warwickshire NHS Foundation Trust and George Eliot Hospital NHS
Trust), Dame Stella Manzie (University Hospitals Coventry & Warwickshire), Dianne
Whitfield (Coventry and Warwickshire Partnership Trust)

Healthwatch Warwickshire: Elizabeth Hancock

NHS England: Julie Grant

Police and Crime Commissioner: Richard Long (Office of the PCC)

Items on the agenda: -
1. General
(1) Apologies

(2) Members' Disclosures of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary
Interests



(3) Minutes of the Meeting of the Warwickshire Health and
Wellbeing Board on 6 January and Matters Arising
Draft minutes of the previous meeting are attached for approval.

(4) Chair's Announcements

Discussion items

Wednesday 3 March 2021

2. Director of Public Health's Annual Report 17-20
Dr Shade Agboola, Director of Public Health will provide a
presentation on her statutory annual report.
3. Health and Wellbeing Strategy 21-132
The Health and Wellbeing Strategy is submitted for the Board’s
approval — Nigel Minns / Gemma McKinnon
4. Homelessness Strategy 133 -214
The Homelessness Strategy is submitted for the Board’s
consideration and approval — Emily Fernandez
5. Health and Wellbeing Board Sub-Committee 215 - 220
To receive the minutes of the Health and Wellbeing Board Sub-
Committee meeting.
Monica Fogarty
Chief Executive
Warwickshire County Council
Shire Hall, Warwick
Health and Wellbeing Board Page 2 ﬁwdrwickshire
County Council



To download papers for this meeting scan here with your camera

Disclaimers

Webcasting and permission to be filmed

Please note that this meeting will be filmed for live broadcast on the internet and can be
viewed on line at warwickshire.public-i.tv. Generally, the public gallery is not filmed, but by
entering the meeting room and using the public seating area you are consenting to being
filmed. All recording will be undertaken in accordance with the Council's Standing Orders.

Disclosures of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests

Members are required to register their disclosable pecuniary interests within 28 days of
their election of appointment to the Council. A member attending a meeting where a matter
arises in which s/he has a disclosable pecuniary interest must (unless s/he has a
dispensation):

* Declare the interest if s/he has not already registered it

* Not participate in any discussion or vote

* Must leave the meeting room until the matter has been dealt with

* Give written notice of any unregistered interest to the Monitoring Officer within 28 days of
the meeting

Non-pecuniary interests must still be declared in accordance with the Code of Conduct.
These should be declared at the commencement of the meeting

The public reports referred to are available on the Warwickshire Web
https://democracy.warwickshire.gov.uk/uuCoverPage.aspx?bcr=1

Public Speaking

Any member of the public who is resident or working in Warwickshire, or who is in receipt of
services from the Council, may speak at the meeting for up to three minutes on any matter
within the remit of the Committee. This can be in the form of a statement or a question. If
you wish to speak please notify Democratic Services in writing at least two working days
before the meeting. You should give your name and address and the subject upon which
you wish to speak. Full details of the public speaking scheme are set out in the Council’s
Standing Orders.

Health and Wellbeing Board Page 3 ﬁWdrwiCkshire
Wednesday 3 March 2021 County Council


https://democracy.warwickshire.gov.uk/uuCoverPage.aspx?bcr=1

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 11 Agenda Item 1(3)

Health and Wellbeing Board

Wednesday 6 January 2021

Minutes

Attendance

Committee Members

Warwickshire County Council (WCC)

Councillor Les Caborn (Chair)

Councillor Jeff Morgan

Councillor Dave Parsons

Nigel Minns, Strategic Director for People Directorate

Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCGSs)
Sarah Raistrick, Coventry and Rugby CCG
David Spraggett, South Warwickshire CCG

Provider Trusts

Russell Hardy South Warwickshire Foundation Trust (SWFT) and George Eliot Hospital (GEH)
Trust

Dame Stella Manzie DBE, University Hospitals Coventry and Warwickshire (UHCW)

Jagtar Singh and Dianne Whitfield, Coventry and Warwickshire Partnership Trust (CWPT)

NHS England
Julie Grant

Police and Crime Commissioner
Richard Long (Office of the PCC)

Healthwatch Warwickshire (HWW)
Elizabeth Hancock

Borough/District Councillors

Councillor Jo Barker, Stratford-on-Avon District Council

Councillor John Beaumont, Nuneaton and Bedworth Borough Council (NBBC)
Councillor Sally Bragg, Rugby Borough Council

Councillor Judy Falp, Warwick District Council

Councillor Marian Humphreys, North Warwickshire Borough Council

Other Attendees

Chris Bain (HWW), Councillor Margaret Bell (WCC), Simon Gilby (CWPT),

Sir Chris Ham (Coventry and Warwickshire Health and Care Partnership), Phillip Johns and Rose
Uwins (CCG officers)

Jagdeep Birring, Liann Brookes-Smith, Becky Hale, Gemma Mckinnon, Kate Sahota,

Warwickshire
Pag e>s ﬁ] County Council



Page 2 of 11

Pete Sidgwick, Ashley Simpson, Paul Spencer, Emily van de Venter and Duncan Vernon (WCC
Officers).

Nayyab Butt and Robert Stroud (Public Health junior doctor placements)
1. General
(1) Apologies
None.
(2) Members' Disclosures of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests
None.

(3) Minutes of the Meeting of the Warwickshire Health and Wellbeing Board on 15
September and Matters Arising

The Minutes of the Health and Wellbeing Board held on 15 September 2020 were approved.
(4) Chair's Announcements

The Chair gave an introduction, welcoming everyone to the meeting. In particular, he
welcomed Phil Johns, the new Chief Operating Officer for the combined CCG and Sarah
Raistrick in her new role as Chair designate of the combined CCG. The Chair welcomed Mel
Coombes the new Chief Executive Officer of CWPT. He thanked Simon Gilby of CWPT and
Gillian Entwistle of South Warwickshire CCG for their service to the area. Similarly, he
thanked Councillor Neil Phillips and welcomed Councillor John Beaumont as the
representative for NBBC. Finally, he welcomed two junior doctors, Robert Stroud and Nayyab
Butt who were currently doing their placements in Public Health and are observing today’s
meeting.

2. Health and Wellbeing Partnerships

The Chair introduced this item, acknowledging the tremendous amount of work undertaken in the
three place partnerships. Emily van de Venter, public health consultant presented written updates
from the health and wellbeing partnerships (HWP) in the three places of Warwickshire North,
Rugby and South Warwickshire. These partnerships were critical to the successful delivery of the
Health and Wellbeing Strategy (HWS), the Coventry and Warwickshire Health and Care
Partnership and the place-based Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA). A coordination group
had been established to share information across the HWPs. Each was at a different stage in
developing JSNA action plans, with delays being experienced due to Covid-19. Detailed reports
were provided by each of the HWPs, with an outline given of planned activities over the coming
months and areas where the Board members would be asked to support and contribute.
Appreciation was recorded for the targeted approach to track and trace work and the use of JSNA
to drive actions and strategy to reducing the impact of Covid-19. Similarly, the contribution of the
voluntary and community sector was acknowledged.

Page 2
Health and Wellbeing Board

06.01.21
Page 6



Page 3 0of 11

Resolved

That the Health and Wellbeing Board notes and supports the progress made by the three Health
and Wellbeing Partnerships in Warwickshire.

3. Children 0-14 Unintentional Injuries

An update was provided on child accident prevention by Liann Brookes-Smith, public health
consultant. The rate of hospital admissions for unintentional and deliberate injuries in children was
higher than national and regional averages and the majority of Warwickshire’s statistical
neighbours. This data had been interrogated and a link was provided to the latest data analysis.
https://www.warwickshire.gov.uk/directory-record/2164/injuries-leading-to-a-hospital-admission-in-
0-to-14-year-olds-in-warwickshire-2018-

An update was provided on accident prevention activity during Covid-19, with a focus on
messaging and signposting support services and the plans for a full review post pandemic. It also
outlined the workstreams of the Child Accident Prevention (CAP) steering group suspended due to
the pandemic around data insight work. In summary, once the pandemic work reduced, the focus
would be on reviewing child accident prevention, to seek an understanding of causes for the
county’s high numbers of accidents.

Discussion took place on the following areas:

e Unintentional accidents during Covid and links to more people being in the home.

e Discussion about the different data in terms of hospital admission of children, it being noted
that GEH did not have a children’s ward and patients were redirected to UHCW for scans
which may require sedation and admission. Messaging to direct young patients straight to
UHCW may help. Post Covid a detailed audit should assist understanding of this area.

e The concerns around ‘button’ batteries which could be swallowed by young children causing
significant issues. Related points on the increase in internet shopping during lockdown, the
quality of some products and potential for trading standards support.

e Makeshift arrangements for childcare during periods of lockdown and issues associated
with alcohol and substance misuse were referenced. There was ongoing messaging to warn
about risks.

e A suggestion for feedback from the CAP steering group, with an analysis of the final data.

e Publicity of the findings via ask Warwickshire would be helpful. Also, ensuring that residents
were made aware of this information source, to encourage survey responses. The points
would be taken on board.

e Further contributions were made via the meeting chat dialogue regarding batteries for
smoke detectors, falls prevention work and healthy ageing, with reference to the following
web page: https://www.warwickshire.gov.uk/healthy-ageing

Resolved
That the Health and Wellbeing Board notes the progression of work since the last update and
future planned work.

Page 3
Health and Wellbeing Board

06.01.21
Page 7


https://www.warwickshire.gov.uk/directory-record/2164/injuries-leading-to-a-hospital-admission-in-0-to-14-year-olds-in-warwickshire-2018-
https://www.warwickshire.gov.uk/directory-record/2164/injuries-leading-to-a-hospital-admission-in-0-to-14-year-olds-in-warwickshire-2018-
https://www.warwickshire.gov.uk/healthy-ageing

Page 4 of 11

4. Covid-19 Residents Survey Findings

A Covid-19 recovery survey was undertaken between August and September 2020, to explore the
impacts of the pandemic on people living and working in Warwickshire and their thoughts about
recovery. The survey received 2,510 responses. The report was supplemented by a presentation
from Emily van de Venter, to draw out the key findings. The presentation slides covered the
following areas:

Summary findings and key messages
Information about Coronavirus

Test and trace

Employment.

Out and about

Transport

Methods of accessing health appointments
Volunteering and community action
Positive and negative health behaviours
Stressors related to the pandemic
Loneliness and mental wellbeing
Interaction between health behaviours and wellbeing
Future priorities

Questions and comments were submitted, with responses provided as indicated:

There was praise for the work undertaken in conjunction with Coventry University.
Reference to the longer-term impacts of Covid both for the elderly and younger people, the
likely outcomes and changed behaviours. A suggestion to reflect on what this would mean
for the future Health and Wellbeing Strategy (HWS) and its priorities. This point was
reiterated later in the discussion, with a suggestion to revisit the priorities in three to six
months.

Links should be made to the Coventry and Warwickshire work on mental health strategies.
Additionally, a statistical analysis had been undertaken across the West Midlands to look at
mental health needs and pressures, which would fit well with the survey data. It was
confirmed that the survey findings would feed into a mental health needs assessment and
that data from CWPT had been requested too.

An observation on the value of parish councils in connecting with communities and the
additional arrangements needed for areas such as Nuneaton and Bedworth, which did not
have parish councils.

A suggestion to compare feedback to the survey undertaken by Healthwatch Warwickshire
in May and June 2020, to see if there had been any significant shifts in sentiment in the
areas included within that survey.

Addressing behavioural changes on alcohol consumption, smoking and eating foods that
were unhealthy.

There would be value in revisiting this survey to provide a comparison after the current
lockdown. This view was supported and would give the opportunity to publicise the survey
to those who hadn’t responded previously.

Page 4

Health and Wellbeing Board

06.01.21

Page 8



Page 5 of 11

Resolved

That the Board notes the initial findings from the Covid-19 residents survey and utilises the
findings within recovery planning and service restoration.

9. Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) Update

Duncan Vernon, public health consultant provided an update on the delivery of the JSNA
programme since September 2020. The report included updates on:
e Place-based needs assessments, detailing how the reports had been utilised.
e Action plans developed using the recommendations from the place-based JSNA reports.
These would drive the work of each health and wellbeing partnership. The next phase of the
JSNA programme would be thematic, with a pilot needs assessment focused on mental
health. A prioritised work programme of needs assessments would be established for the
next two to three years.
e Details of the ‘long list’ of topics for needs assessments.
e Updates on the mental health needs assessment pilot, grapevine project and the covid-19
health impact assessment.

The move to a thematic approach was supported but it should also reference each of the places to
provide granular data. This was the intention, whilst noting the differences between the physical
geographies and boundaries of health services. Whilst moving to a thematic approach, the
intention was still to identify at both the place and neighbourhood levels.

Resolved
That the Health and Wellbeing Board:

1. Notes the progress of the JSNA programme to date;

2. Uses the JSNA evidence base to ensure partners are working to a consistent understanding
of local need, enabling joined up service provision targeted to the right areas and driving
commissioning intentions;

Supports the development of the mental health needs assessment through promoting the survey
and supporting requests for resource to support the analysis and development of the needs’
assessment.

9(a) Vaccination Update (Item of Urgent Business)

The Chair had agreed to take an urgent item on progress with Covid-19 vaccinations and he
invited Phil Johns, the new accountable officer for the CCGs to give a verbal update. Mr Johns
advised that the hospital hubs at GEH, SWFT and UHCW were all operational, with CWPT due to
be operational later in the week. By next week there would be full coverage across all primary care
networks for vaccinations too. It was expected that local services could achieve the initial
vaccinations to priority groups. Both vaccine types were being utilised. A list of the vaccination
sites would be shared for publication.

Page 5
Health and Wellbeing Board

06.01.21
Page 9



Page 6 of 11

Questions and comments were invited, with responses provided:

e |t was noted that the national target was for 2 million vaccinations per week and asked if
there was confidence that local services could deliver their share of the vaccinations. This
was confirmed with the estimate being in excess of 20,000 vaccinations per week.

e Key factors were vaccine supply and government priority lists, but there was confidence that
services were well on the way with the planning aspects.

e Discussion about where vaccinations would be provided for the general public on the
priority list. These would be coordinated by primary care through their local network (PCN).
Health and social care staff were being vaccinated at hospital sites. Public vaccinations at
hospitals were limited to those in the priority group who were inpatients or attending for
another hospital appointment and were well enough to receive the vaccine. A system
approach was being taken.

e The location of the mass vaccination site was confirmed as Stoneleigh Agricultural Centre.

e Discussion about the support being provided to GP practices delivering vaccinations, via the
CCGs, CWPT and NHS England. There was a ‘bank’ for staff and volunteers to assist with
the effort. Active promotion of the uptake of vaccinations was urged.

e It was questioned why teachers were not included in the priority groups.

e Discussion about the capacity to deliver vaccinations and the registration process. There
were some concerns over bureaucracy regarding the training requirements, which were
being escalated. Vaccination centres were currently operating well with existing staff. There
was a lot of good will and offers from volunteers, who would be needed when the
vaccination rates increased. Retired health colleagues could add capacity but would need
refresher training to ensure vaccinations were provided safely. It may prove necessary to
suspend some GP services to deliver the vaccination programme.

¢ |t was clarified that the vaccine wasn'’t licensed for younger children.

e Discussion about people taking an ‘anti vaccine’ stance and the collection of data to assist
targeted communications. Currently the aim was to roll out the vaccinations on a prioritised
approach. Reference to the Covid community champions, providing local messaging and a
recent survey had shown a reduction in the number of people adopting the ‘anti vaccine’
stance. Further comments on the need to not over or under estimate this viewpoint and the
approach undertaken in Wye Valley using front line clinicians to give factual messaging.

e The potential to use pharmacists or community phlebotomists to increase vaccination
capacity. The Pfizer vaccine could not be transported and roll out of the AstraZeneca
vaccine would initially be focussed on vaccinating people in care homes. Currently,
pharmacists were playing a key role in diluting the Pfizer vaccine. Another point was the
capacity of pharmacists to use each complete batch of vaccine (975 doses) within its limited
shelf life.

e It was noted that people having the Pfizer vaccination required supervision for 15 minutes
afterwards. This was not the case for the AstraZeneca vaccine.

¢ A number of contributions via the meeting chat function regarding the clinical supervision of
people delivering vaccinations and the plans to include pharmacists as part of the larger
national roll out, subject to appropriate criteria and national approvals. Publication of the
mass vaccination sites would follow.

Resolved
That the Health and Wellbeing Board notes the update.

Page 6
Health and Wellbeing Board

06.01.21
Page 10



Page 7 of 11

10.Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment

An update was provided on the Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment (PNA). The Health and
Wellbeing Board had a legal responsibility to maintain a statement around the needs for services
from community pharmacies. The

PNA assessed local needs, to identify gaps in service or unmet needs and to highlight any
services that community pharmacies could provide to address those needs.

The PNA was due to be refreshed in March 2021, but in light of the Covid-19 pandemic, the
deadline for publication had been extended to March 2022. In the interim, a supplementary
statement would be submitted to NHS England and NHS Improvement, to provide an update and
review of findings from the 2018 PNA. This statement would be published by April 2021.

Context was provided on the findings from the last PNA, notably the need to consider additional
pharmacy provision in areas where significant housing development took place. To maximise the
resources available and align with local planning footprints, it was again proposed to work with
Coventry City Council on the PNA. This aligned with the Coventry and Warwickshire Concordat
and agreements to work together on areas that would

improve outcomes for the public. The key milestones for the proposed

consultation and production of the new PNA were reported. These might be subject to change if
there were further impacts of Covid-19.

Resolved
That the Board

1. Notes the update on the Pharmaceutical Needs Assessment for Warwickshire.

2. Agrees the process for Warwickshire to conduct its revised PNA in partnership with
Coventry City Council, noting the potential impact of the COVID-19 response on timescales.

6. Social Inequalities Action Plan

Kate Sahota, WCC lead commissioner (family wellbeing) provided a presentation to the Board on
developing a new approach to tackling social inequalities, which covered the following areas:

¢ An introduction and outline of social inequality, showing differences between groups in
society against a range of indicators

Changes in social inequality

Warwickshire data

Social inequality between ethnic groups

Health inequalities

Educational attainment gap

Foodbank access

Covid-19 impact

Developing the strategy and links to other strategies/plans
Initial themes for discussion

Practitioner engagement

Provider and resident case studies

Page 7
Health and Wellbeing Board

06.01.21
Page 11



Page 8 of 11

e Tackling inequalities
e Vision statements
e Next steps, including sign-off of the strategy.

Discussion took place on the following areas:

e The Chair noted that the final strategy would need to be submitted to the additional meeting
of the Board scheduled for March 2021.

e Discussion about links to the new Health and Wellbeing Strategy (HWS), which also
referenced inequalities as a key priority area. A complementary approach was being taken
to integrate, align and cross reference to all strategies, under the ‘umbrella’ of the HWS,
with detailed mapping taking place.

e Automatic enrolment for school meal entittement was a key area.

e Reference to the practitioner engagement and the need for close working and cross referral
between practitioners across agencies. The approach outlined was welcomed and the key
was how it worked at the ground level with children and families. An outline was given of the
open invites to the practitioner training, the broad range of agencies involved, mutual
learning and plans for an ongoing forum. Subject to the formal approvals, one aim would be
for a comprehensive training package to identify indicators of poverty and how to address it
locally. There was current work between WCC social care and the family information
service to provide additional support through brokers. This could provide a model to expand
further.

¢ Research indicated that in work poverty was a key issue. Contributing factors included the
costs of private rented homes, universal credit and having access to internet/technology.
There were fundamental areas beyond the remit of the county council, which required a
national approach and lobbying.

e Via the chat dialogue a comment on the free data offer from mobile telephone companies
when people were referred by schools. Endeavours were being made to source funding for
additional IT equipment. A comment that there may be a causal link between the cultural
dimensions of this strategy and effective engagement and involvement with the public.

Resolved

That the presentation is noted and that the final strategy is submitted to the additional meeting of
the Board scheduled for March 2021.

7. Better Together Programme Progress Update

Becky Hale provided an update on the Better Together Programme. Due to ongoing pressures
from the Covid-19 pandemic, formal Better Care Fund (BCF) plans for 2020/21 would not have to
be submitted for approval. Instead local areas had to ensure that use of the mandatory funding
contributions were agreed in writing, and that the national conditions were met. This was currently
in progress and due to the short timescales involved, an additional meeting of the Health and
Wellbeing Board Sub-Committee may be required to give formal approval.

In addition, the HWBB would be required to provide an end of year reconciliation, confirming that
the national conditions had been met, the total spending from the mandatory funding and a
breakdown of agreed spending. In the meantime, the schemes and priorities to be delivered had
been agreed locally through the Better Together Programme and continued to be commissioned

Page 8
Health and Wellbeing Board

06.01.21
Page 12



Page 9 of 11

and delivered, where it was possible to do so. Updates were provided for each of the following

areas:

The revised discharge policy requirements effective from August 2020. The Better Together
Programme continued to support commissioners and delivery leads to implement these
requirements and in doing so support the acute hospitals to discharge patients requiring
care and support safely.

The continuation of the Better Care Fund (BCF) Policy Framework for a further year in
2021/22, supported by a one-year funding settlement and the IBCF grant would be
maintained at its current level.

An update on the project activity which had been able to continue, specifically the falls
prevention project and commencing a public campaign on healthy aging.

A performance update on the four key areas of reducing delayed transfers of care, reducing
non-elective hospital admissions, admissions to residential and care homes and increasing
effectiveness of reablement.

A financial update.

The Chair confirmed that the final documents would be circulated to the Board, ahead of a meeting
of the Sub-Committee to give final approvals due to the time constraints for submission.

Resolved
That the Board:

1.

2.

3.

Notes the update on the Better Care Fund Policy Framework and Guidance for 2020/21.
Notes the update on the Better Care Fund Policy Framework and Guidance for 2021/22.

Notes the progress of the Better Together Programme in 2020/21 to improve performance
against the four national Better Care Fund areas of focus.

Approves the sign-off arrangements by a meeting of the Sub-Committee on a date to be
confirmed.

8. Feedback from the Joint Place Forum and Health & Care Partnership

Sir Chris Ham referred the Board to the circulated update and gave a verbal report covering the
following areas:

The collective response to Covid-19 had demonstrated the necessity and benefits of
partnership working. Examples were quoted on the delivery of health and care services and
hospital discharge.

Cooperation between hospitals on critical care, with the mutual aid arrangements extending
to neighbouring systems.

Partnership working would focus in the future on recovery from Covid.

The anchor alliance, providing for collaboration between councils, the NHS and universities
to create job opportunities, training and procurement to support local businesses.

In terms of next steps, key aspects were reasserting the role as a system to tackle health
inequalities, championing the call to action and ensuring a joint approach. The second

Page 9

Health and Wellbeing Board

06.01.21

Page 13



Page 10 of 11

aspect was progressing the year of wellbeing pledges, seeking support from system leaders
and particularly in view of the challenges for staff health and wellbeing due to the pandemic.

A report back was provided on the joint meeting of the Coventry and Warwickshire Place Forum
and the Health and Care Partnership Board held virtually on 3 November 2020. This continued the
discussion on health inequalities & Covid-19 and the potential for collaborative work. The report
summarised the key themes from the meeting. Several presentations and discussion items were
covered:

e Tackling health inequalities in our Covid-19 response.
e Addressing the economic impact of Covid-19.

e Partnership with the voluntary and community sector.
¢ Improving workforce mental wellbeing.

e Developing the role of anchor institutions.

The report detailed key next steps and actions. It provided the results from a pre-event survey to
explore what was most important to partners in terms of the pandemic response and future
opportunities. The survey results could inform the theme of the next meeting on 2 March.

Resolved
That the Board:

1. Notes the report and the next steps and actions resulting from the Joint Place Forum and
Health & Care Partnership held on 3 November 2020.

2. Endorses the proposed thematic approach to future meetings.
5. Health and Wellbeing Strategy Update

Gemma McKinnon, WCC Health and Wellbeing Delivery Manager introduced this item. It was
reported that the Health and Wellbeing Strategy (HWS) provided the high-level plan for reducing
health inequalities and improving the health and wellbeing of Warwickshire residents. The draft
HWS set out three priorities for the next two years to help achieve the strategic ambitions:

e Helping our children and young people have the best start in life.

e Helping people to improve their mental health and wellbeing, particularly around prevention
and early intervention.

e Reducing inequalities in health outcomes and the wider determinants of health.

A five-week consultation period on the draft HWS had concluded on 5 January. Due to the impact
of Covid-19 restrictions, most of the engagement had been online, via virtual meetings with a
range of partners and presentations at the place-based HWPs and other forums. The consultation
asked residents and people working within Warwickshire whether they agreed with the proposed
priorities and ways of measuring against the strategic ambitions within the HWS. The responses
would now be analysed to inform the final version of the strategy, which would be presented to the
additional Board meeting on 3 March.

Page 10
Health and Wellbeing Board

06.01.21
Page 14



Page 11 of 11

It was questioned how organisations would work together to deliver the priorities, with a plea to
ensure that the voluntary and community sector was involved as much as possible and that this
was referenced in the final strategy. A comment on the need for clarity about how to make the
strategy meaningful to local communities eg through use of appropriate language and cultural
references.

The Chair suggested that the draft HWS be circulated ahead of the agenda for the March Board, to
give adequate time for partners to consider it.

Resolved

That the Board notes the update on the Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2020-2025 consultation.
11.Forward Plan

The Board reviewed its forward plan. The March meeting would now include the Social Inequalities
Action Plan and the annual report from the Director of Public Health.

Resolved
That the forward plan is noted.

12.Any Other Business (considered urgent by the Chair)

See item 9(a) above.

Councillor Les Caborn, Chair

The meeting closed at 3.50pm

Page 11
Health and Wellbeing Board

06.01.21
Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 4 Agenda Item 2

Health & Wellbeing Board
3'd March 2021

Director of Public Health Annual Report 2020

Recommendations

1. To note and support the DRAFT Director of Public Health Annual Report 2020
2. To agree to endorse the recommendations stated in the report.

1. Background

1.1 Directors of Public Health have a statutory requirement to write an annual
report on the health and wellbeing of their population, and the local authority is
required to publish it.

1.2  The Director of Public Health Annual Report is a vehicle for informing local
people about the health of their community, as well as providing necessary
information for decision makers in local health services and authorities on health
gaps and priorities that need to be addressed.

2. Purpose

2.1  The theme of this year’s report is the impact of Covid-19 on health inequalities
in Warwickshire. It will also include an overview of the health and wellbeing of the
Warwickshire population and information on progress with the 2019
recommendations.

2.2  The report will make a series of recommendations which require a concerted
joint effort across the health and care system if they are to be achieved.

3. Key Headlines

3.1 Update on health and wellbeing of the Warwickshire population

o Warwickshire continues to face a number of public health challenges.
The impact of Covid-19 on these indicators is not yet reflected, given
the time lag associated with these predominantly annual measures.
The impact of Covid-19 however, is further explored in the wider report
and the measures below will continue to be monitored closely. A
dashboard will be created to signpost to the latest data which will be
updated as new data is published.

Page 17



Page 2 of 4

3.2

o 63.7% of adults classified as overweight or obese (2018/19) (England

62.3%)

o Hospital admission for unintentional and deliberate injuries in children
aged 0-14 - 124.9 per 10,000 (England 96.1 per 10,000)

o Statutory homelessness rate — 1.2 per 1,000 eligible homeless people
not in priority need compared to 0.8 per 1,000 for England

o Cancer screening coverage (2019)

- breast cancer 76.3% (England 74.5%)
- bowel cancer 61.9% (England 60.1%)
- cervical (ages 25 to 49) 72.8% (England 69.8%)
- cervical (ages 50 to 64) 76.6% (England 76.2%)
o Admission episodes for alcohol-specific conditions - under 18 — 50.9
per 100,000 (2016/17-2018/19) (England 31.6)
o Estimated dementia diagnosis rate — 59.1% (England — 67.4%) (2020)
o Depression: recorded prevalence (18+) 12.1% (England 11.6%)

Impact of Covid-19 on health inequalities

o Covid-19 has impacted on everyone's health and wellbeing. It has
highlighted the health inequalities which exist nationally and locally. For
example, nationally the most deprived areas are more than twice as
likely to have higher rates of mortality from Covid-19 compared to the
least deprived areas. People who are in lower paid occupations are
also twice as likely to die compared to those in higher occupations and
people from BAME communities are at more risk of having more severe
symptoms of Covid-19.

o The aim of this report is to highlight the impact of Covid-19 on health
inequalities in Warwickshire. Case studies have been used to illustrate
the impact locally from both Covid-19 survivors and wider impact of
lockdown on our residents. These case studies show the benefits from
accessing services and support to improve their health and wellbeing. It
has also demonstrated the need for services to understand the lives of
the people they are working with and be able to engage in holistic
conversations to understand the underlying or hidden problems that
people face, making sure they are able to get access to the support

they need.

o The recommendations in the report will aim to improve the health and
wellbeing of Warwickshire population and reduce the health inequalities
which exist.

Page 18



Page 3 0of 4

3.3 Progress on 2019 recommendations

The 2019 annual report entitled, ‘Working for Wellbeing in Warwickshire’ focused on
the impact of work on health and wellbeing. Some great progress has been made
despite some delays due to staff working on the current Covid-19 pandemic. Itis
expected that further progress will be made throughout 2021/22 as partners continue
to work together to recover from the pandemic.

. All Health and Wellbeing Board Organisations have signed up to
“Thrive at Work”. 50 businesses across the county are working towards
bronze status.

. Warwickshire County Council have launched the Warwickshire Skills
Hub website which is due to develop further and offer a digital platform
for businesses to engage in the wellbeing support

. New Wellbeing Manager role has been created to support business
with “Thrive at Work” and their wider wellbeing agenda.

4, Timescales associated with the decision and next steps
4.1 Dissemination

A draft report will be taken to Corporate Board on 25" February.

A detailed marketing and communications plan will be prepared to ensure the
report is communicated widely with partners across the health and care
system and Warwickshire residents.

4.2  Audit

The report will be subjected to an audit process and will be subject to peer
review by external public health colleagues. Progress against the
recommendations will also be monitored and reported. We welcome any
feedback on the content of the report. Comments can be addressed to the
editorial team.

5. Financial Implications
None

6. Environmental Implication
None

Supporting Papers
None

Page 19



Page 4 of 4

Marina Davidson
Michael Jackson

Name Contact Information

Editorial team Shade Agboola Shadeagboola@warwickshire.gov.uk
Duncan Vernon katiewilson@warwickshire.gov.uk
Katie Wilson
Catherine Shuttleworth
Kate Rushall

Assistant Shade Agboola shadeagboola@warwickshire.gov.uk
Director
Strategic Director | Nigel Minns Nigelminns@warwickshire.gov.uk

Portfolio Holder

Clir Les Caborn

lescaborn@warwickshire.gov.uk

The report was circulated to the following members prior to publication:

Local Member(s): None

Other Members: Councillors Adkins, Bell, Kondakor, Redford and Roodhouse

Page 20



mailto:Shadeagboola@warwickshire.gov.uk
mailto:katiewilson@warwickshire.gov.uk
mailto:shadeagboola@warwickshire.gov.uk
mailto:Nigelminns@warwickshire.gov.uk
mailto:lescaborn@warwickshire.gov.uk

Page 1 of 4 Agenda Item 3

Health and Wellbeing Board
Health and Wellbeing Strategy

3 March 2021

Recommendation(s)

1. To note the outcomes from the five-week public consultation (Appendix 1).

2. To approve the final Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2021-2026 and the three
priority areas (Appendix 2).

3. To support the mechanism for annual reviews of the Health and Wellbeing
Strategy to the Board.

4. To support the development of local place-based implementation plans
(through the Health and Wellbeing Partnerships).

1. Executive Summary

1.1 The Health and Wellbeing Strategy sets out the Board’s ambitions and
approach to ensure support is effective and available where it is most needed.
The Health and Wellbeing Strategy for 2021-2026 was drafted using findings
from the most recent Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA), a Covid-19
recovery survey and a health impact assessment (HIA). A survey was carried
out to consult with Warwickshire residents on the draft Strategy.

1.2  Consultation took place between 23 November 2020 and 5" January 2021
through Ask Warwickshire. An easy-read version, created by Grapevine, was
live between 16" December 2020 and 5" January 2021. Appendix 1 details
the outcomes from the survey. There was a total of 562 responses to both
surveys, the majority from Warwick District (31%). The second highest areas
for responses were Stratford-on-Avon district for the Ask Warwickshire survey
(n =48; 17.14%) and North Warwickshire borough for the easy-read survey (n
= 38; 18.35%). Responses from Focus Groups are detailed in section 5 of
Appendix 1.

1.3  The majority of respondents were female (60%); while 66 % were aged 45 or
over. Respondents were broadly representative of Warwickshire with regards
to religion and ethnicity, although it should be noted that a high proportion of
people did not give their religion (36.12%) or ethnicity (21.35%). Most people
(62.8 %, n = 353) did not consider themselves to have a disability (272 Ask
Warwickshire respondents; 81 easy-read respondents), whilst 77 (13.7%) did
consider themselves to have a disability (52 Ask Warwickshire respondents;

Page 21 1



Page 2 of 4

1.4

15

1.6

1.7

25 easy-read respondents), and 40 (7.1%) preferred not to say (31 Ask
Warwickshire respondents; 9 easy-read respondents).

Consultees were specifically invited to respond to the following ambitions set
out in the draft Strategy:
e Ambition 1: People will lead a healthy and independent life.
o The majority of respondents (93%) agreed.
o The outcome ‘Encourage people to adopt healthy lifestyles and
behaviours’ was ranked the most important.

e Ambition 2: People will be part of a strong community.
o The majority of respondents (87%) agreed.
o The outcome ‘Help build strong communities recognising the
importance of education, employment, quality housing and leisure
to provide good quality of life’ was ranked the most important.

e Ambition 3: People will have access to effective and sustainable
services
o The majority of respondents (90%) agreed.
o The outcome ‘Seek to develop accessible, responsive and high-
quality services’ was ranked most important.

11% of respondents disagreed with these ambitions; a number of other
outcomes and indicators were also proposed (more detail is provided in
Tables 8, 9, 10 and 11 of Appendix 1). There were also concerns expressed
that the draft Strategy did not necessarily reflect strongly enough that it was a
partnership document and that the wording did not strongly enough reflect the
partnership approach to delivery; a specific request was made to ensure that
the voluntary and community sector were involved fully. Working
collaboratively with a wide range of diverse communities was recognised as a
key to success and therefore we need to look at how we engage and co-
produce services to reflect the individual needs of these communities.

Consultees were further asked as to what the Health and Wellbeing Board
should concentrate on specifically: 387 respondents (69%) supported the
priority helping people improve their mental health and wellbeing; 354 (63%)
supported the priority helping children and young people have the best start in
life and 294 (52%) supported the priority health inequalities (particularly in
respect to Covid-19). Respondents also identified a number of other priority
areas the Board should focus on which are detailed in Table 12 of Appendix
1).

The draft Strategy was reviewed in light of the consultation findings and has
been strengthened throughout to ensure a strong partnership presence that
includes the voluntary and community sector (VCS). For example, within
Section 3 (where do we want to get to?) of the draft Strategy all three
ambitions have been amended and in particular ambition 2 has been rewritten
to emphasis the role of the VCS. We have also included a wider set of
indicators to reflect how we will monitor the direction of travel of each of our

Page 22 2



Page 3 0of 4

ambitions following feedback that these needed to reflect wider services and
‘soft’ outcomes.

1.8 Inrelation to section 5 of the draft Strategy on implementation and monitoring,
we have made it clearer that implementation plans will now be developed and
that although our plan is to review our three priorities after a two-year period,
we recognise that we are still yet to understand the full impact on covid-19
across all areas of health and wellbeing. With this in mind, we will be
monitoring progress against our priority areas routinely on a quarterly basis
and within our annual reports to the Board.

1.9 The draft Strategy has also been updated to reflect the ambition to work with
communities, to ensure cultural competence in what we do, and the ambition
to seek to develop accessible, responsive, and high-quality services that are
designed in a way that seeks to reduce inequalities in health.

2.  Financial Implications
None.

3. Environmental Implications

None.

4. Timescales associated with the decision and next steps

4.1  Providing feedback to respondents is a vital element of the consultation
process and this will be undertaken by ensuring the final consultation report is made
publicly available on Ask Warwickshire and widely shared with all partners and
stakeholders. Links to final strategy document will be provided and well as an update
on the dedicated Ask Warwickshire “You Said, We Did’ section.

4.2  Following adoption of the draft Strategy, a delivery plan will be developed at
the Health and Wellbeing Executive. In addition to this, each place-based Health and
Wellbeing Partnership develop local implementation plans that meet the population
health needs of that place (North, Rugby, South). Alongside this we will be
developing an outcomes framework to monitor our progress. Suggested indicators
from consultation feedback will used to inform the development of this framework
and it will be aligned with the Health and Care Partnership’s system outcomes
framework.

4.3  An easy read version of the strategy is being produced and will be ready by
the end of March 2021.

Page 23 3



Page 4 of 4

5. Supporting Information

Appendix 1: Consultation findings
Appendix 2: Health and Wellbeing Strategy
Appendix 3: Equality Impact Assessment

Name

Contact Information

Report Author

Gemma Mckinnon
Ashley Simpson

gemmamckinnon@warwickshire.gov.uk
ashleysimpson@warwickshire.gov.uk

Assistant Director

Shade Agboola

shadeagboola@warwickshire.gov.uk

Lead Director

Nigel Minns

Nigelminns@warwickshire.gov.uk

Lead Member

Cllr Les Caborn

lescaborn@warwickshire.gov.uk

The report was circulated to the following members prior to publication:

Local Member(s): N/A

Other members: Councillors Redford, Bell, Adkins, Kondakor and Roodhouse

Page 24 4



mailto:ashleysimpson@warwickshire.gov.uk
mailto:shadeagboola@warwickshire.gov.uk
mailto:Nigelminns@warwickshire.gov.uk

Page 1 of 75

Business Iutelligence

Living Well in Warwickshire - Health and Wellbeing
Strategy 2020-25 Consultation Survey

Report of results

produced by Business Intelligence

January 2021

Page 25




Page 2 of 75

=T oL o =S SRR 1
1. = 7= T3 (o [ {011 Lo PPN 3
2. AV =1 o o 3
3. KBY IMBSSAGES . eetiiiiii ettt ettt et et e et e e e e e e e e e 4

Ambition 1: People will lead a healthy and independent life. ...........cccccoviiiiiiiiiiiiiennn, 4
Ambition 2: People will be part of a strong community. ..........cccoooviieiiiiiiiiiii e, 4
Ambition 3: People will have access to effective and sustainable services .................. 4
What should we concentrate on specifically? ...........ccoovviiiiiiiiii e, 4
4, QUESHIONNAINE FESUILS .....evviiiiieii e e e e e e aaa s 5
4.1 ReSPONAENt Profile .........oii i e 6
4.2 Results: LOOKING FOMWAIG ..........ccoviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt 9

4.3 How we will measure Ambition 1 (People will lead a healthy and independent life)
.................................................................................................................................... 19
4.3 How we will measure Ambition 2 (People will be part of a strong community) .....24
4.4 How we will measure Ambition 3 (People will experience effective and sustainable
RS Y7 (0 =S 28
4.5 What should we concentrate on specifically? ............coooiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiicii e, 31
5. RESPONSES frOM fOCUS QIOUPS ....vvuviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii bbb 41
Appendix 1: Warwick District Council COMMENTS ..........ccoovviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeeeee 44

Appendix 2: Any other outcomes that should be considered for the three ambitions
proposed in the coNSUtAtION SUIVEY........c.oiiiiii e 69
|
| | i

| | | |
2 | ] | | |

Page 26



Page 3 of 75

1. Background

The Warwickshire Health and Wellbeing Board is committed to helping people be as well as possible.
The Board (comprised of public and voluntary sector representatives from health and care, councils,
the NHS and wider partners) helps to ensure people have access to information and services to
enable them to make positive choices about their health. The Health and Wellbeing Strategy sets
out the Board’s ambitions and approach to make sure support is effective and available where it is
most needed.

The Warwickshire Health and Wellbeing Board drafted a Health and Wellbeing Strategy for 2020-
2025, using findings from the most recent Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA), a Covid-19
recovery survey and a health impact assessment (HIA). A survey was carried out to consult with
Warwickshire residents’ on the draft strategy.

The survey was live on Ask Warwickshire between 23 November 2020 and 5™ January 2021. An
easy-read version, created by Grapevine, was live between 16™ December 2020 and 5™ January
2021. Paper copies were also available, although none were requested.

Page 27



Page 4 of 75

3. Key Messages

There were 355 responses to the survey on Ask Warwickshire and 207 responses to the easy-
read survey.

The majority of respondents were members of the general public. Of these, the highest
proportion of respondents to both surveys lived in Warwick District (Ask Warwickshire =116
(41.42%); easy-read = 59 (28.50%)). The second highest areas for responses were Stratford-
on-Avon district for the Ask Warwickshire survey (n = 48; 17.14%) and North Warwickshire
borough for the easy-read survey (n = 38; 18.35%).

The majority of respondents (91.50% of Ask Warwickshire respondents (n = 323 out of 353
responses) and 94.59% of easy-read respondents (n = 175 out of 185 responses) agreed with
Ambition 1.

Respondents ranked the outcome Encourage people to adopt healthy lifestyles and
behaviours as most important for this ambition.

The majority of respondents (84.90% of Ask Warwickshire respondents (n = 298 out of 351
responses) and 89.84% of easy-read respondents (n = 168 out of 187 responses) agreed with
Ambition 2.

The outcome Help build strong communities, recognising the importance of education,
employment, quality housing and leisure to provide good quality of life was ranked most
important out of the four options.

The majority of respondents (89.20% of Ask Warwickshire respondents (n = 314 out of 352)
and 91.26% of easy-read respondents (n = 167 out of 183) agreed with Ambition 3.

The outcome Seek to develop accessible, responsive and high-quality services was ranked
most important out of the three options.

387 respondents (68.86%) said that the Health and Wellbeing Board should prioritise
helping people improve their mental health and wellbeing in 2020-2025, whilst 354
(62.99%) agreed with the priority helping children and young people have the best start in
life and 294 (52.31%) agreed with the priority health inequalities (particularly in respect to
Covid-19).

Page 28



Page 5 of 75

4. Questionnaire results

There were 355 responses to the survey on Ask Warwickshire and 207 responses to the easy-read
survey.

Respondents on the Ask Warwickshire site were asked in which capacity they were answering the
survey. Figure 1 shows that the majority of responses came from the general public (n = 280;
78.87%).

2.54% ,-0.56%
2.82% . 2.82%

N2 A

5.35%
6.76%

0.28% = A member of the general public

An employee of another public sector
organisation
= A Warwickshire County Council employee

= A representative from a community or
voluntary sector organisation
= An NHS employee

m On behalf of an organisation*

A District Council elected member

78.87% ) ) )
A Warwickshire County Council elected

member
Figure 1. Respondents who answered the Ask Warwickshire questionnaire (n = 355).

* Organisations included: St. Michael's Children and Family Centre, Dunchurch Parish Council, Citizens Advice

South Warwickshire, Warwickshire College Group, South Warwickshire Healthy Citizens Forum, Healthwatch
Warwickshire & Think Active.

If respondents to the Ask Warwickshire survey selected that they were a member of the general
public (n = 280), they were asked where they lived. All respondents to the easy-read survey were
asked where they lived, and 207 people responded to this question. Figure 2 shows that most
respondents to both surveys lived in Warwick District (Ask Warwickshire = 116 (41.42%); easy-read
= 59 (28.5%)). The second highest districts for responses were Stratford-on-Avon for the Ask

Warwickshire survey (n = 48; 17.14%) and North Warwickshire for the easy-read survey (n = 38;
18.35%).

Page 29



Page 6 of 75

Warwick District

Stratford on Avon District
Easy-read (n=207)
Rugby Borough

Ask Warwickshire
Nuneaton & Bedworth Borough (n=280)

North Warwickshire Borough
Outside of Warwickshire

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50%

Figure 2. Where respondents live.

If respondents to the Ask Warwickshire survey selected any other option than a member of the
general public (n = 280), they were asked in which district/borough they worked. Eighteen
respondents worked county-wide; two worked in North Warwickshire; seven worked in Nuneaton
& Bedworth; ten worked in Rugby; seven worked in Stratford-upon-Avon and 26 worked in Warwick.
Five respondents worked across two or more boroughs. No respondents to the easy-read survey
were asked this question.

Tables 1 — 6 below show demographic information around respondents’: gender identity (Table 1);
age (Table 2); sexual orientation (Table 3); religion/beliefs (Table 4), ethnicity (Table 5) and
employment status (Table 6). Men are underrepresented in both surveys (23.66% of Ask
Warwickshire responses; 13.53% of easy-read responses), although it should be noted that 44.44%
of easy-read respondents did not give their gender identity. The age group 45-59 years is slightly
overrepresented (21% of Warwickshire residents are in this age bracket, and 26.51% of survey
responses were from people aged in this bracket), whilst those aged 75+ were underrepresented
(9.8% of Warwickshire residents, but only 2.14% of survey respondents, are in this age bracket).
Respondents were broadly representative of Warwickshire with regards to religion and ethnicity,
although it should be noted that a high proportion of people did not give their religion (36.12%) or
ethnicity (21.35%).

Most people (62.8 %, n =353) did not consider themselves to have a disability (272 Ask Warwickshire
respondents; 81 easy-read respondents), whilst 77 (13.7%) did consider themselves to have a
disability (52 Ask Warwickshire respondents; 25 easy-read respondents), and 40 (7.1%) preferred

Page 30



Page 7 of 75

not to say (31 Ask Warwickshire respondents; 9 easy-read respondents). Ninety-two easy-read

respondents did not answer.

Four respondents stated that their gender identity had changed, all of whom answered the Ask

Warwickshire survey. Most people identified as the gender assigned to them at birth (79%, n = 444;

331 Ask Warwickshire respondents, 113 easy-read respondents) whilst 18 respondents preferred

not to say (16 Ask Warwickshire respondents, 2 easy-read respondents). Ninety-two easy-read

respondents did not answer.

Table 1. Gender identity of respondents.

Gender Identity

Ask Warwickshire

Easy-read

Total

Female 249 (70.14%) 85 (41.06%) 334 (59.43%)
Male 84 (23.66%) 28 (13.53%) 112 (19.92%)
Prefer not to say 16 (4.51%) 2 (0.97%) 18 (3.20%)
Prefer to self-describe 2 (0.56%) 0 2 (0.36%)
Not Answered 4 (1.13%) 92 (44.44%) 96 (17.08%)
Grand Total 355 207 562
Table 2. Age of respondents.
Age Ask Warwickshire Easy-read Total
Under 18 13 (3.66%) 8 (3.86%) 21 (3.74%)
18-29 40 (11.27%) 14 (6.76%) 54 (9.61%)
30-44 83 (23.38%) 33 (15.94%) 116 (20.64%)
45— 59 118 (33.24%) 31 (14.98%) 149 (26.51%)
60-74 78 (21.97%) 23 (11.11%) 101 (17.97%)
75+ 8 (2.25%) 4 (1.93%) 12 (2.14%)
Prefer not to say 15 (4.23%) 94 (45.41%) 109 (19.4%)
Grand Total 355 207 562
Table 3. Sexual orientation of respondents.
Sexual orientation Ask Warwickshire  Easy-read Total
Heterosexual / straight 274 (77.18%) 98 (47.34%) 372 (66.19%)
Bi / bisexual 16 (4.51%) 5 (2.42%) 21 (3.74%)
Gay man 7 (1.97%) 3 (1.45%) 10 (1.78%)
Gay woman / lesbian 4 (1.13%) 1(0.48%) 5 (0.89%)
Other 2 (0.56%) 2 (0.97%) 4 (0.71%)
Prefer not to say 43 (12.11%) 6 (2.90%) 49 (8.72%)
Blank 9 (2.54%) 92 (44.44%) 101 (17.97%)
Grand Total 355 207 562
a
]| i
]| | |
7 | | |

Page 31



Page 8 of 75

Table 4. Religion/belief of respondents.

Religion/belief Ask Warwickshire Easy-read Total
Buddhist 0 2 (0.97%) 2 (0.36%)
Christian 138 (38.87%) 51(24.64%) 189 (33.63%)
Hindu 2 (0.56%) 0 2 (0.36%)
Muslim 1(0.28%) 0 1(0.18%)
Sikh 2 (0.56%) 3 (1.45%) 5 (0.89%)
Spiritual 17 (4.79%) 0 17 (3.02%)
Any other religion or belief 5(1.41%) 5(2.42%) 10 (1.78%)
No religion 149 (41.97%) 54 (26.09%) 203 (36.12%)
Prefer not to say 34 (9.58%) 0 34 (6.05%)
Not Answered 7 (1.97%) 92 (44.44%) 99 (17.62%)
Grand Total 355 207 562

Table 5. Ethnicity of respondents.
Ethnicity Ask Warwickshire  Easy-read Total
White British 301 (84.79%) 98 (47.34%) 399 (71.0%)
White Irish 3 (0.85%) 2 (0.97%) 5 (0.89%)
Other White background 17 (4.79%) 5(2.42%) 22 (3.91%)
Asian or Asian British - Indian 4 (1.13%) 3 (1.45%) 7 (1.25%)
Asian or Asian British — Pakistani 1(0.28%) 0 1(0.18%)
Black or Black British - African 1(0.28%) 0 1(0.18%)
Black or Black British - Caribbean 1(0.28%) 0 1(0.18%)
Mixed - White and Black Caribbean 0 1(0.48%) 1(0.18%)
Chinese 2 (0.56%) 0 2 (0.36%)
Other Mixed Background 2 (0.56%) 0 2 (0.36%)
Other ethnic background 0 1(0.48%) 1(0.18%)
Prefer not to say 20 (5.63%) 5(2.42%) 25 (4.45%)
Not Answered 3 (0.85%) 92 (44.44%) 95 (16.9%)
Grand Total 355 207 562

Table 6. Employment status of respondents.

Employment status

Ask Warwickshire

Easy-read

Total

Employee in full-time job
Employee in part-time job
Self employed

Full-time education at school, college or university

Wholly retired from work

141 (39.72%)
61 (17.18%)
28 (7.89%)
31 (8.73%)
53 (14.93%)

Page 32

40 (19.32%)
19 (9.18%)
6 (2.9%)

13 (6.28%)
20 (9.66%)

181 (32.21%)
80 (14.23%)
34 (6.05%)
44 (7.83%)
73 (12.99%)



Page 9 of 75

I am unemployed and open to work
Looking after home or family

Not working due to illness or disability
Other

Prefer not to say

Something else (please specify)*
Grand Total

2 (0.56%)
7 (1.97%)
13 (3.66%)
4 (1.13%)
12 (3.38%)
3 (0.85%)
355

1(0.48%)
4 (1.93%)

8 (3.86%)

1 (0.48%)
95 (45.89%)
0

207

3 (0.53%)

11 (1.96%)
21 (3.74%)

5 (0.89%)
107 (19.04%)
3 (0.53%)
562

*Apprenticeships and voluntary work.

Ambition 1 includes the following aims:

e We will encourage people to adopt healthy lifestyles and behaviours.

e We want to prevent existing health conditions from worsening to a point where significant,

complex and specialist health and care interventions are required.

e We want people to be able to age well and be able to stay in their own homes for as long as

possible.

e We will provide effective, timely support to empower people to take action to improve their

health.

Respondents were asked whether this was the correct ambition to focus on. There were 353

responses from the Ask Warwickshire survey and 185 from the easy-read survey. Figure 3 shows
that the majority of respondents (91.50% of Ask Warwickshire respondents (n = 323) and 94.59% of
easy-read respondents (n = 175) agreed with Ambition 1: People will lead a healthy and independent

life. Two respondents in the Ask Warwickshire survey and 22 from the easy read survey did not

respond to this question.

Page 33



Page 10 of 75

H Agree

Don't have an
opinion

m Disagree
Easy-read (n = 185)

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Figure 3. Percentage of respondents to both Ask Warwickshire (n = 353) and easy-read survey (n = 175)

who agreed with Ambition 1: People will lead a healthy and independent life.

Ambition 2 includes the following aims:

e We will help build strong communities, recognising the importance of education,

employment, quality housing and leisure to provide good quality of life.

e We will work together to create communities with healthy environments, economic

prosperity and where the social needs of people are met.

e We will support the development of community networks connecting people
opportunities and each other.

e We will do more to support the health and wellbeing of carers and those they look after.

Respondents were asked whether they thought that this was the correct ambition to focus on. There
were 351 responses from the Ask Warwickshire survey and 187 from the easy-read survey. Figure 4
shows that the majority of respondents (84.90% of Ask Warwickshire respondents (n = 298) and
89.84% of easy-read respondents (n = 168) agreed with Ambition 2: People will be part of a strong
community. Four respondents in the Ask Warwickshire survey and 20 from the easy read survey did

not respond to this question.

10 |

Page 34

to



Page 11 of 75

H Agree

Don't have an
opinion

B Disagree
Easy-read

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Figure 4. Percentage of respondents to both Ask Warwickshire (n =351) and easy-read survey (n = 187) who
agreed with Ambition 2: People will be part of a strong community.

Ambition 3 includes the following aims:
e We will share information to help people stay well.
e We will seek to develop accessible, responsive and high-quality services.
e We will focus on ensuring services deliver the right standard of care in consistent ways.

Respondents were asked whether they thought that this was the correct ambition to focus on. There
were 352 responses from the Ask Warwickshire survey and 183 from the easy-read survey. Figure 5
shows that the majority of respondents (89.20% of Ask Warwickshire respondents (n = 314) and
91.26% of easy-read respondents (n = 167) agreed with Ambition 3: People will have access to
effective and sustainable services. Three respondents in the Ask Warwickshire survey and 24 from
the easy read survey did not respond to this question.

11 |

Page 35



Page 12 of 75

Ask Warwickshire
H Agree

Don't have an
opinion

-

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Figure 5. Percentage of respondents to both Ask Warwickshire (n = 314) and easy-read survey (n = 167)
who agreed with Ambition 2: People will have access to effective and sustainable services.

Respondents from the Ask Warwickshire survey only were asked if they disagreed with any of the
ambitions, and if so, why. Thirty-nine (11%) respondents said that they disagreed with the

ambitions. Reasons are outlined in Table 7 below.

Table 7. Why respondents disagreed with the three ambitions (n = 39).

Theme / description Count Example Quotes

(%)

“Without the infrastructure and support network
encouragement doesn't go very far - it has to be a sustainable
health and wellbeing (30.77%) | solution that is accessible to all without hidden costs or

implications.”

Infrastructure  for  improving | 12

Respondents were concerned that

the existing infrastructure would “I disagree with the third outcome because | just feel that there
not support the proposed are not enough services out there that people can access for
their health and wellbeing. Secondly, | for one feel that more of

ambitions. . o ”
these services need putting into place.

Practicality of achieving ambitions | 11 I agree with these but have questions about HOW they will be

achieved.”
28.219
Respondents were concerned that ( %)
th f h ; hi “The aims are ok | would like to know the processes proposed to
€ processes of how to achieve achieve them. The support structures and systems are crucial
the ambitions were not laid out. rather than a focus on changing individual behaviour.”

“I dont think any single organsiation can make people part of a
community, strong or otherwise. think this aim is ambiguous
and needs clarification if it is to achieve any measurable aims.”

12 |

Page 36



Page 13 of 75

“Your ambitions SOUND nice, but they're hardly SMART targets.
You've not detailed how you will do any of them, what the
investments into them will be, or what the measurements (or
timelines) will be."

Inequalities within Warwickshire

Some respondents felt

geographical inequality across
Warwickshire should be explicitly

addressed.

6
(15.38%)

“Need to acknowledge explicitly inequalities: Would be good to
acknowledge the need to proactively address equity of health
and wellbeing outcomes across the county, and proportionate
universalism linked to service provision. Would be good to
explicitly acknowledge the need to tackle poverty and aim for
equitable community economies across Warks. Reaching those
communities less well served (with inequities - eg BAME).”

“No support is given to those with Mental Health Issues,
Disability or Geriatric issues, (and has not been for the last 20
years), in the many Rural communities. | do not expect this to
change.”

Contribution of and access to

health services

6
(15.38%)

“There are not enough community support services to help
people suffering during this difficult time. Particularly young
people.”

“And while we're at it... Nuneaton and Bedworth are building
lots of new houses within Bulkington borders (and making a
FORTUNE btw), but there's no plans for anything like new GP
surgeries - so how will that improve the health of the village?”

Contribution of individual choices
and preferences to health &

wellbeing

5
(12.82%)

“There will be little or no integration from certain ethnic groups
as they have no interest in assimilating into the British Way of
Life.”

“Even if the facilities are there people won't always use them.”

“People need to feel free and welcome to join or be a part of a
community. Individuals must not be put under any social
pressure to join or conform to groups. Authentic social cohesion
will only occur organically, not controlled.”

Independence amongst elderly
Some respondents were concerned
that independence at all costs is

not right for all elderly people.

2
(5.13%)

“I don't agree with elderly people staying in their own homes for
as long as possible. | believe there is too much strain on the core
in the community team and it costs too much money. | believe
elderly people suffer isolation, poor nutrition, poor hygiene etc
and the care team don't get to stay long enough, travel time
between homes is wasted time that could be spent caring for
more people etc. | believe the elderly who need daily support
should live in sheltered housing where care can be concentrated
and thus more effective and save costs.”

Consider broader determinants of

public health and inequalities

2
(5.13%)

“I do not disagree with 'People will lead a healthy and
independent life, but it stresses personal responsibility and
misses the importance of tackling upstream public health
determinants of health and wellbeing and local inequalities
(geographical poverty, inequality of health outcomes etc) that

13 |

Page 37



Page 14 of 75

Respondents felt that upstream will not be fully addressed by 'stronger communities' and

determinants of health and 'sustainable services' (income, education, housing etc). “

wellbeing also needing addressing.

“The term 'healthy' should be defined to enable a full response

Definiti health 1
efinitions around health and eg does it include mental health?”

wellbeing (2.56%)

“You handling of this Covid PLANDEMIC has been
EMBARESSING! You just say what we want to hear, then follow
(5.13%) | whatever the elite tell you to do. | want a 100% admission of any
freemasonry or secret societies in all public sector/public servant
work top to bottom before we move forward.”

Other 2

Other comments were not related

to the strategy

Respondents to both surveys were then asked to rank the following proposed outcomes for each
ambition from most important (1) to least important (4). Just over 10% of respondents didn’t rank
the outcomes or only ranked some of the outcomes, this is shown in the varying number of
respondents for each outcome in Figures 6-8.

Ambition 1: People will lead a healthy and independent life.

Figure 6 shows the number of respondents that ranked each outcome as either 1,2,3 or 4. The
outcome Encourage people to adopt healthy lifestyles and behaviours was ranked as most important
by the highest number of people. In addition, the outcome Prevent existing health conditions from
worsening to a point where significant, complex and specialist health and care interventions are
required was ranked as least important by the fewest respondents.

14 |

Page 38



Page 15 of 75

Encourage people to adopt healthy
lifestyles and behaviours.

Prevent existing health conditions from

worsening to a point where significant,

complex and specialist health and care
interventions are required.

Provide effective, timely support to
empower people to take action to
improve their health

Help people to age well and be able to
stay in their own homes for as long as
possible

o

100

Number of respondents

200

300

400

Figure 6. Respondents rated four outcomes from most important to least important.

Ambition 2: People will be part of a strong community

500

=1 (most
important)

m2

M 4 (least
important)

Figure 7 shows the number of respondents that ranked each outcome as either 1,2,3 or 4. The
outcome Help build strong communities, recognising the importance of education, employment,
quality housing and leisure to provide good quality of life was ranked as most important by the
highest number of people. In addition, the outcome Work together to create communities with
healthy environments, economic prosperity and where the social needs of people are met was

ranked as least important by the fewest respondents.

15

Page 39



Page 16 of 75

Help build strong communities, recognising

the importance of education, employment, _- -
quality housing and leisure to provide good

quality of life.
Work together to create communities with = 1 (most
healthy environments, economic prosperity _ - important)
and where the social needs of people are
met. m2
Do more to support the health and
wellbeing of carers and those they look -- - 3
after.

M 4 (least

Support the development of community
networks connecting people to .- _ important)

opportunities and each other.

0 100 200 300 400 500
Number of respondents

Figure 7. Respondents rated four outcomes from most important to least important.

Ambition 3: People will experience effective and sustainable services

Figure 8 shows the number of respondents that ranked each outcome as either 1,2,3 or 4. The
outcome Seek to develop accessible, responsive and high-quality services was ranked as most
important by the highest number of people. This outcome was also ranked as least important by the
fewest respondents.

M1 (most

Seek to develop accessible, responsive and _—
high-quality services.
important)
Focus on ensuring services deliver the right _
standard of care in consistent ways. m2
) ) 3 (least
Share information to help people stay well. -- important)

0 100 200 300 400 500
Number of respondents

Figure 8. Respondents rated three outcomes from most important to least important.

16 |

Page 40



Page 17 of 75

Respondents to the Ask Warwickshire survey only were then asked whether there were any other
outcomes that should be considered. Whilst respondents placed comments under the ambitions,
the comments did not always necessarily relate to that particular ambition. Themes and example
comments from this question can be seen in Table 8. There were 65 responses, of which 17 related
to Ambition 1, eight related to Ambition 2, three related to Ambitions 1 & 2, 18 related to Ambition
3, and 19 related to all three ambitions. We have considered all the responses and themed them.
Where the respondent linked their comment to an ambition, we have linked the ambition in
brackets. All the comments can be found in Appendix 2.

Table 8. Other outcomes that should be considered (n = 65).

Theme / description Count (%) Example Quotes

“Mental health and well being should be on par with physical

Mental Health & Wellbeing | 11 health.” (Ambition 1)

(comments referenced Ambition 1 | (16.92%)

& 3) “Developing capacity for person-to-person Mental Health
support, not just online resources for self-help” (Ambition 3)

"More of a focus on positive mental wellbeing, rather than
physical health (as one impacts on the other) and the significant
impact of the current climate even more so than usual. Eg:
Employers actively supporting employers to maintain positive
mental wellbeing. Employers to walk the walk, not just talk the
talk. WCC to be a key lead organisation and employer in leading
by example in this respect. WCC are good at talking the talk,
not so much as walking the walk." (Ambition 1)

“Services need to be linked and share information on people
N they deal with-so people/carers do not have to repeatedly
referenced all three ambitions) (16.92%) | explain their situation/needs.” (Ambition 1)

Joined-up services (comments | 11

“Clear and effective communications between services to
support those with dual diagnosis and co-morbidity.” (Ambition
3)

"I think there should be something about connecting
organisations offering support with each other and with the
health care sector to enable people to be signposted to
organisations quickly and receive more holistic support."
(Ambition 2)

“Greater support should be available for the most
disadvantaged with additional incentives to encourage healthy
(comments referenced Ambition 1 | (13.85%) | jifestyles.” (Ambition 1)

&3)

Encouraging healthy lifestyles | 9

“Ensuring that infrastructure allows people to make healthy
choices particularly with regard to encouraging active travel
which has been shown to improve people's physical and mental

[ ||
17 | |

Page 41



Page 18 of 75

health as well ensuring more interaction which will help build
communities.” (Ambition 1)

Environmental concerns

(comments referenced all three

ambitions)

8
(12.31%)

“"More emphasis on the environment! Low pollution, plenty of
green spaces that are car-free and safe (possibly lit at night) so
that people can enjoy exercising. Encourage active travel to
work and make it easy for people not to use their cars”
(Ambition 2)

“I believe the strategy should more explicitly consider the role of
the council in providing the infrastructure to support active
travel - cycling and walking. This is eluded to in the Draft Health
and Wellbeing strategy, but still remains relatively vague.
Active travel has a major impact on people’s health and
wellbeing. By prioritising linked-up cycle paths as well as safe
and accessible options for walking, the council would address
all priorities in the plan. Furthermore, given the reluctance of
people to use public transport due to Covid-19, it is essential
that active travel is urgently supported to avoid a further
escalation of motor-traffic and its accompanying pollution,
which directly and negatively impact on people's health.”
(Ambition 2)

Funding, monitoring & improving

services

(comments referenced all three

ambitions)

“Reducing length of waiting times of treatable medical
conditions (at the moment, no organisation take responsibility
for this issue ie GPs and hospitals need to be jointly measured
on these outcomes).” (All ambitions)

“People with long term conditions that will not improve/ be
cured or even get worse should not have to reapply for funding
for various areas of their support-this is time consuming, and
stressful.” (Ambition 3)

Housing

(comments referenced all three

ambitions)

5 (7.69%)

“Provide practical support, not directly linked to health, that
enable people in older age to maintain their homes.” (Ambition
1)

Good quality housing that will result in a healthier lifestyle and
reduce fuel poverty. This will lead to people having more money
for decent food enabling children to perform better at school.”
(Ambition 2)

Engagement

(comments referenced all three

ambitions)

4 (6.15%)

“Engaging participation in the community from a young age
could be important. There are a lot of students in Leamington
and many young people who move here for the engineering and
tech businesses - engaging at this level will help to build a
stronger community for generations to come.” (Ambition 2)

“Any decisions and actions taken need to be open and shared
with the community being served.” (All ambitions)

“Whether people feel involved in decisions about their own
care, the support that their cares get, what happens in their
communities etc.” (All ambitions)

18 |

Page 42



Page 19 of 75

Covid-19

(comments referenced all three

ambitions)

3 (4.62%)

“Consider specific community needs likely to arise following
COVID-19 pandemic - such as additional mental health and
drug and alcohol support.” (Ambition 3)

“Voluntary and faith organisations are key means to carry
messages and services and are uniquely accepted and
chredished by people. They are depleted after Covid. Please
replenish and support them.” (All ambitions)

Inequalities within Warwickshire
(comments referenced all three

ambitions)

3 (4.62%)

“Make sure you are meeting the needs of the BAME Community
when it comes to care.” (All ambitions)

“With the increase of house building in my area (Weddington,
Nuneaton), my local area has almost doubled. No provision has
been made for additional GP and Dentists. It is extremely
difficult to get in touch with the practice, i am often on the
telephone in the queuing system for a minimum of 20 munites.
The surgery now has patient in excess of 10 thousand. This is
unacceptable for the residents and for the practice. | do not
understand why this has not been addressed.” (All ambitions)

“Ensuring equality of services- so that people with learning
disabilities can be supported to understand information and
access services as well as receiving ongoing support.” (All
ambitions)

Employment

(comments referenced Ambitions
1and2)

2 (3.08%)

“Ensure young people are able to access employment
opportunities.” (Ambition 2)

“Education and job finding help especially with young adults.”
(Ambition 1)

Other

2 (3.08%)

“Yes leave us to make our own decisions. Let us go to gyms &
pools. Stop scaremongering & maybe read about the globalists
plan & stop it right now” (all ambitions)

Respondents to the Ask Warwickshire survey only were then asked whether they thought the
indicators listed in Figure 9 should be used to measure Ambition 1. Most people (n = 348) answered
this question. The highest level of agreement was for suicide rate as an indicator; three quarters of
respondents (75.87%) fully agreed with this and 18.31% partly agreed, whilst 3.20% disagreed. The
lowest level of agreement was for number of children admitted to hospital for injuries; 31.61% fully
agreed, 43.39% partly agreed, and 19.54% disagreed.

19 |

Page 43




Page 20 of 75

m Don't agree Don't know ® Partly agree ® Fully agree

suicide rare [}/
Performance of the Child and Adolescent Mental . _
Health Service

Number of children and young people who self-harm l _

Number of overweight and obese acults 1 I

Number of under 18s admitted to hospital for alcohol l _

misuse
Rate of hospital admissions for alcohol-related . _
conditions
Healthy Ife expectancy of s [
Social isolation: % of adults who have as much . _
contact as they would like

% of children in absolute low-income families - _

% of physically active aduies [ I

Number of older adults diagnosed with dementia . _

Number of older adults admitted to hospital for falls . _

% of children overweight orvery overweight in - _

Reception and Year 6

% of children with free school meal status achieving a - _
good level of development at the end of their first...

% of children achieving good level of development at - _

the end of their first year of school
% of older adults who get their flu vaccination - _
Number of children admitted to hospital for injuries - _

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Figure 9. Respondents to the Ask Warwickshire survey (n= 348) answered whether they thought that the
above indicators should be used to measure Ambition 1.

20 |

Page 44



Page 21 of 75

The surveys then asked whether respondents had ideas for any other indicators the Health and Wellbeing
Board should consider for Ambition 1. There were 88 responses from the Ask Warwickshire survey, and 115
from the easy-read survey, totalling 203 comments. Responses have been collated into themes, which can
be found in Table 9 below. Some comments addressed more than one theme.

Table 9. Other indicators the Health and Wellbeing Board should consider for Ambition 1 (n = 203).

Theme / description Count Example quotation(s) for illustration

(%)

“By seeing which communities are actively engaged in wellness,
paying particular attention to seldom heard communities,
Respondents commented  on (30.05%) ethnically diverse communities and make sure we are reaching
out to all pockets of communities to engage and then measure by
being inclusive.”

Healthy living, exercise and diet 61

sports facilities, health and diet

education, and community Y ) Lo )
Look at how active people’s lifestyles are. Ensure more children

initiatives to boost fitness. have access to fitness and health clubs.”

“Sport for disabled and wheelchair patients.”

“Percentage of children active for 60 minutes a day”

Mental Health 45 Number of adults attending A&E for mental health issues.

(22.12%) | “children and young adults that have been referred to CAMHS or
any mental health team even if they are not taken on.”

People suggested measuring the

number of people accessing formal

mental health  services and “Waiting times for adult mental health services.”

associated wait times as well as
“How happy people feel (suggest you look at Outcome Stars -
they enable good measurement of 'soft' outcomes). You're
isolation and lasting anxiety around missing the soft outcomes here.”

Covid-19.

‘soft’ measures such as happiness,

“No of calls to mental health services like iapt and possibly to
voluntary sector in region such as Samaritans.”

“Happiness and life satisfaction; lack of anxiety - the latter two
can be measured through surveys run regularly.”

“You're looking to measure eg performance of C& A Mental
Health services surely application for such services is as/more
relevant that performance as an indicator.”

“Number of people with disabilities or long term illness suffering
from isolation.”

Health services 39 “Number of Contacts with a doctor/ health professional.”
People thought it was important to (19.21%) “Average referrals to specialists from health care providers such

as GPs and social services.”
conduct regular health checks,

measure GP attendance, and “Health check every year.”
use/misuse of A&E. “% of adults with learning disability getting annual health checks
with GP.”

21 |

Page 45



Page 22 of 75

“Epidemiological maps of health conditions .”

Physical health 38
] (18.71%)
Respondents suggested measuring “Don’t discourage children for their weight it can lead to serious
asthma rates, obesity levels, levels mental health issues in the generations”
of type 2 diabetes, cancer rates, . )
“How many adults are overweight? Overweight adults are more
falls at home. likely to have overweight children. Do survey on eating &
exercise amongst households.”
“Asthma rates”
Older adults 14 “Life span of older adults supported to remain living
independently vs care home residents.”
. (6.90%)
Respondents had varied “Number of older adults with addictions & number of older people
suggestions including measuring on low income & poor diets.”
the number of older adults “Number of older people unable to be discharged from hospital
requiring care, how many live when medically able.”
independently, how many are “Number of isolated older people.”
isolated, and how many have poor “Monitor average age of death and check against best area of
diets/lack of exercise. UK, Europe and World ask yourself why Warwickshire is lower.”
Housing, employment & finance 12 “Number of adults saying they have trouble with debts.”
(5.91%) “Number of adults who consider they are in the most suitable
Respondents  considered  that accommodation for their needs (as a measure of whether there
measures including debt, housing are enough affordable care places available, not just for elderly
and employment were relevant to but for young disabled and supported adults).”
a person’s overall health and “Number of homeless people”
llbeing. . . . .
wellbeing “Those with a job and those without and what the reason is for
them not having a job.”
Environment / Active transport 11 “Availability of safe, attractive & continuous routes for active
P travel to local facilities such as schools, shops, social centres..”
(5.41%)
People wanted more green spaces
locall q i 4 walking t “Number or proportion of trips made by active travel modes”
ocally and cycling and walking to
be encouraged. “How many children have access to a park that doesn’t result in
a mile long walk down a narrow path next to a high speed road
with no crossing!!”
"Reduced level of air quality. There is a daily report on this from
the 2 monitoring stations in the area. There could be an
ambition to improve this.”
Substance use/misuse 11 “You also need something around substance misuse - not just
alcoholism.”
(5.41%)

Respondents pointed out that
other substances, such as illicit

drugs and cigarettes, should also

“Number of children under 18 admitted to hospital due to drug
misuse.”

"Percentage of adults and young people smoking.”

22 |

Page 46



Page 23 of 75

be measured as well as alcohol

misuse.
Poverty 7 Use of food banks.
People thought that measures (3.45%) "Should measure the gap in life expectancy by deprivation.”
should include foodbank use and “People on UC"
gap in life expectancy by index of
multiple deprivation.
. “Number of people accessing clubs (eg Tai chi) and services (eg
C t d t|6
ommunity groups and suppor SYDNI Centre) - if low numbers then what are the accessibility
Respondents suggested measuring | (2.96%) | jssues? Financial? Transportation? Times of classes?”
useage of local
facilities/clubs/community groups. “Look at the take up of people in clubs - mother and baby
groups, social groups, walking groups etc.”
Pregnancy/post-partum 6 Number ofpregngnt women who smoke at the beginning and
end of pregnancy.
[s)
Respondents were keen to see (2.96%)
. “Number of pregnant women with a BMI over 30.”
measures around breastfeeding
rates, interventions with children
under 2 years, and contraception.
Children and young people 5 Numbers of ch'//dren needing add/t/cz,na/ learning support in
schools both primary and secondary.
(2.46%)
Respondents  suggested  that
¢ hild “Measure outcomes of young people post education - including
outcomes 0 children  post those with SEND.”
education should be measured.
“Number of children of school age who have a social worker (on
a child in need/child protection plan). These families typically do
not lead ‘healthy’ lifestyles in my professional experience.”
Other 12 “All of these indicators are important in different ways. A few of
the listed indicators are long-term outcome indicators (e.g. the
(5.91%) healthy life expectancy of adults, or the number of older adults

diagnosed with dementia, which presumably in part reflect trends
in health behaviours and opportunities across the life-course,
such as smoking, overweight/obesity, nutrition, physical activity
etc.), but most are shorter-term 'process' indicators (e.g. the
percentage of older adults who get their flu vaccination, or the
percentage of children overweight in R & Y6 - which is something
that may impact on health in adulthood many years ahead).”

“Mindful not to over-rely on indicators. It's important to take
into account qualitative responses from our communities and
triangulate the findings to present a fuller picture.”

“Adults who suffer domestic abuse.”

23 |

Page 47



Page 24 of 75

Respondents to the Ask Warwickshire survey only were then asked whether they thought the
indicators listed in Figure 10 should be used to measure Ambition 2. Most people (n =350) answered
this question. The highest level of agreement was for measuring the rate of households in temporary
accommodation; two-thirds of respondents (66.76%) fully agreed with this and 24.36% partly
agreed, whilst 5.44% disagreed. Similarly, measuring the number of 16-17 year olds not in
education, employment or training was fully agreed with by 66.47% of respondents, partly agreed
with by 26.53% of respondents and only 5.25% of respondents disagreed. The lowest level of
agreement was for the number of people killed or seriously injured on roads in Warwickshire;
40.86% fully agreed, 36.0% partly agreed, and 18.29% disagreed.

24 |

Page 48



Page 25 of 75

m Don't agree Don't know ® Partly agree ® Fully agree

Households in temporary accommodation (rate per . _
1,000)
et ot or i 1 N
employment or training
People who are eligible for homeless registrations, I _
but aren’t in priority need (rate per 1,000)
Social isolation: % of adult carers who have as . _
much social contact as they would like

Social isolation: % of adult social care users who . _

have as much social contact as they would like

Employment rate of those with a learning disability,

a mental health difficulty, and/or a long term . _

condition

Killed and seriously injured (KSI) casualties on - _
Warwickshire’s roads

0% 20% 40% 60% 80% 100%

Figure 10. Respondents to the Ask Warwickshire survey (n= 350) answered whether they thought that the
above indicators should be used to measure Ambition 2.

The surveys then asked whether respondents had ideas for any other indicators the Health and
Wellbeing Board should consider for Ambition 2. There were 59 responses from the Ask
Warwickshire survey, and 98 from the easy-read survey, totalling 157 comments. Responses have
been collated into themes, which can be found in Table 10 below.

25 |

Page 49



Page 26 of 75

Theme / description

Count
(%)

Table 10. Other indicators the Health and Wellbeing Board should consider for Ambition 2 (n = 157).

Example quotation(s) for illustration

“Ability to arrange travel and complete day to day requirements,

Independence at home 22 . . . . ”
i.e. self cooking, cleaning, shopping, travel...
. (14.01%)
Respondents considered that how “Ask people if their independence has reduced or increased over
much people who live specific periods. Identify what people think makes them
independently with support from mdependent (pandemlc mlght.be us.efulfor this - e.g’; when people
d do without hel self-isolated, what did they miss being able to do?)
carers could do without help.
“Are they are a carer or cared for, officially or by family doesnt
matter. How many times a week or day does they have carers.
What about a list of tasks carers can do for them and count how
many tasks they need help with.”
. “Measure of civic engagement - eg % voter registration/turnout;
Community engagement 20 . . . .
y engag number of registered/active volunteers signed up with WCAVA
. 12.74% ictrict?”
Respondents suggested measuring ( %) | from each district?
the number of people who
volunteer, local club membership Tf.re concept of comrfu'm/ty is comp/.ex. Are we ta/k/n.g' about
N ) neighbourly communities, common interest communities,
and  opportunities  for  social welfare/support communities? Encouraging people to become
projects. part of a community will lead to a decrease in those who feel
isolated.”
“Unsure if any of these KPI's actually measure this Ambition.
What about membership levels of clubs and societies?"
Social contact 18 “Independence is often linked to loneliness. It is not all it is
cracked up to be. Look at Age, infirmity single households where
People thought it was important to (11.46%) depression is a factor driven by independence assumptions as a
- tact g panacea. Health provides independence and socialising options
measure  social - contac an but doesn’t translate into happiness. We should be encouraging
loneliness in the wider population. living interdependently with others to form Social bubbles.”
“It's all very well measuring the amount of social contact carers
and social care users have - but what about everyone else?”
Council services and social care | 17 “Compare nos of people by age against how many are accessing
a support service eg home help etc. Also support given from
services (10.83%) | voluntary sector.  Consider the amount of young people being
R dent had e supported at home by working parents. They can be off the radar
espondents a varie

suggestions including measuring
the number of older adults in care
homes, number of people living
alone who have carers, and how
many people know of services that

could help them.

if they’re not drawing a benefit. Can be at home years but not
independent”

“Look at how many people access or use services that provide
support in comparison to Warwickshire’s population and national
average”

“How many people are in homes”

26 |

Page 50



Page 27 of 75

“Measure the percentage of people seeing their GPs with mental

Health indicators 13 s . .
health conditions related to money worries, housing concerns,

Respondents commented on GP (8.28%) employment worries and other social indicators you've

visits in relation to social indicators identified.

mental health and suicide rates. “That’s the worst thing about this plan. What do you mean
saying independent here? Staying independent often leads to
feeling lonely and having mental health issues. We need to be
careful about this.”

Transport and  proximity to | 10 “Number of households who complete most of their journeys by
foot bike or public transport.”

services (6.37%)
“Number of parks, open places, community hall, church, pub,

People wanted to measure car vs shop etc in walkable distance of the community.”

bus vs bike use, and how accessible

services are by active transport. “Percentage of people who cycle or walk or get public transport
to work or school/higher education and look at how far they
travel.”

Unemployment, benefits and food | 9 “Look at use of food banks, numbers of children going hungry,

! working parents who are not paid enough by their employers

banks (5.73%) | and so have to claim benefits in order to survive.”

Respondents suggested measuring

disability benefit claims, “Ask for peoples own opinions based on pre-defined
considerations. For e.g | am mobile (I have a car) which gives me

employment figures and food bank independence but | have no financial independence currently as

use. out of work. Again independence is subjective and context is
important.”
“By looking at the number of disability benefits claims.”

Environment 5 “Pleased to see air quality mentioned. Improvement in air
quality should be strived for. Number of cycle lanes (connected,

People suggested measuring active (3.18%) not just piecemeal). Number of cases of people admitted to

. hospital due to low air quality.”

transport and distance to green

spaces. “Easy access to green spaces where people can go for a walk,
children can play etc.”

Crime 5 “Crime levels. Number of racially motivated incidents. Number of
neighbour disputes.”

Respondents suggested measuring (3.18%)

. . . “Levels and Percentages of crime in that area and ages of those
crime rates and racially motivated doing the crime like knife crime, graffiti, stealing etc.”
incidents.

Technology 5 "Number of people unable to make use of reliable WiFi Internet
connection, for whatever reason, skills, money or signal”
(3.18%)

People thought that measures

should include internet poverty.

"Able to seek help independently and use technology to source
help"

27 |

Page 51



Page 28 of 75

“My question is whether these measures will be distorted by the
current circumstances, and what longer term lessons can safely
(21.02%) | pe drawn. How people are feeling during a national lockdown
may be very different to how they feel in the new normal,
whatever that looks like.”

Other 33

“All these suggestions are great as long as you do actually find
out the real numbers and not just those who want to take part.
Those who isolate are not likely to come forward and be
counted. How will you know about those people?”

“Ask them through surveys and making sure we are using
different channels of communication and breaking down any
language and cultural barriers.”

Respondents to the Ask Warwickshire survey only were then asked whether they thought the
indicators listed in Figure 11 should be used to measure Ambition 3. Most people (n =347) answered
this question. The highest level of agreement was for measuring number of people who die from
preventable causes; over three quarters of respondents (79.07%) fully agreed with this and 18.02%
partly agreed, whilst 1.74% disagreed. The lowest level of agreement was for the Estimated
dementia diagnosis rate for people aged over 65; 55.20% fully agreed, 34.10% partly agreed, and
5.20% disagreed.

Page 52



Page 29 of 75

m Don't agree Don't know ® Partly agree ® Fully agree

ahiansdiinntitiatnnnl |
causes

Excess under 75 mortality rate in adults with I _
serious mental illness

Rate of emergency hospital readmissions within 30 . _

days of discharge
Proportion of adults in the population in contact I —
with secondary mental health services

% of people who are satisfied with how soon they - _
can get a GP appointment

Number of excess winter deaths [

Estimated dementia diagnosis rate for people aged . _

over 65

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%

Figure 11. Respondents to the Ask Warwickshire survey (n= 347) answered whether they thought that the
above indicators should be used to measure Ambition 3.

The surveys then asked whether respondents had ideas for any other indicators the Health and
Wellbeing Board should consider for Ambition 3. There were 73 responses from the Ask
Warwickshire survey, and 112 from the easy-read survey, totalling 185 comments. Responses have
been collated into themes, which can be found in Table 11 below. Some comments addressed more
than one theme.

Table 11. Other indicators the Health and Wellbeing Board should consider for Ambition 3 (n = 185).

Theme / description Count Example quotation(s) for illustration

(%)

“By the number of repeat users. The aim of any health service
should be to offer service but that it is not needed frequently or
(22.16%) repeatedly due to good community health. (with the exception of
mental health, disability and life long illness)”

Health services 41

Respondents considered more

indicators around repeat GP visits,
“If we are to see the benefits of social prescribing and working

with the community at local level then surely admissions to
healthcare visits. ; ; P,

hospitals and doctors is an excellent indicator. We are already
seeing millions of GP appointments per year meaning that (apart
from the reduction in the number of visits due to Covid) that
people are not shy from seeing their GP. Therefore a reduction

A&E visits and surveys after

] | [
SEEESE EE
29 ECENEETENEE

Page 53



Page 30 of 75

here will be a good robust indicator of the underlying health of
the community.”

“Percentage of people registered with a GP within 2 miles of
their home. (or similar measure)”

“Quick, automatic text surveys like at a&e.”

Customer satisfaction levels 39
(21.08%)

Respondents suggested surveys “Greater consultation with users of services- give them a bigger

after people had used health/social voice.”

services.
“Offer a review service like trust pilot style that is monitored on
a monthly basis"

Waiting times 25 “Look at the waiting list for how long it takes people to get access

& to help that they need whether that me for mental health, time
. . 13.51% : ”

People thought it was important to ( %) | for an operation etc.

measure how long people had to “How often someone is re-admitted due to complications or

wait to access services unsuccessful  attempts//waiting  times on  productive
appointments, both days from phoning for appointment and time
lost in the waiting room(outside of expected time).”
"Measure how long it takes to see a consultant after referral form
a GP. Measure how long it takes to get a diagnosis after referral
from a GP, patients can lose a lot of time being referred for one
test, waiting to see consultant who refers for another test and
then wait to see consultant again, this process can take so long
that a patient could die before getting diagnosis or treatment."

Mental health services 13 "Excess over 75 mortality rate in adults with serious mental

People thought it was important to

measure waiting times and service

(7.03%%)

illness. Number of dementia suffers receiving support"

“Percentage of people who have access to mental health
services within six months of applying”

provision for mental health
services. “Measure also the number of people with any mental health
issues getting declined support from child or Adult mental health
services, and the number of people being closed and re-referred
into mental health services within 6 months of being 'closed".”
Disability 7 “whether buildings and information are accessible to all”
. (10.83%) “Measure and monitor the number of disabled children unable to
Respondents had  suggestions get suitable overnight respite which reduces the negative impact
around specific measures for on family carers and the wider family network.”

disabled people.

“Measure and monitor the number of deaths of disabled adults
whose life expectancy is generally lower than the rest of the
population”

Social services

5 (3.78%)

“Number of support services offered and uptake of these - not
virtual ones.”

30 |

Page 54



Page 31 of 75

Respondents commented on ease

of access for social services.

“Social care in this area is very hard to access and needs
monitoring. Not enough social workers per head of population.”

Children and young people

People wanted to measure CAMHS
referrals and performance in

particular.

5 (2.70%)

“Mental Health in teenagers secondary school age also an issue,
yet support takes years with most pupils having left with failing
grades before a diagnosis or support comes. CAMHS give one bit
of support, then chuck you on a waiting list for neuro whilst in
the meantime, your child is threatening suicide, self harming
and messing up at school. Schools are also bad at reporting
mental health issues, preferring to pretend to help then actually
do nothing and fail to report to CAMHS. Doctors refuse to refer
as they claim its schools responsibility. It’s a joke.”

“Measure health, education and place in community/work for
those under CAMHS from initial referral to adulthood to ensure
none are lost in the system.”

Other

50
(27.03%)

“I think an outcome is needed of how to engage the disengaged.
You can put support in place, but this will be ineffective for a small
proportion of residents. Usually our most vulnerable people.”

"There is no mention of school/education. Is this not considered
a service? Services other than hospital/health care i.e. more
leisure and recreational facilities."

“Compare stats with other areas.”

Respondents to both surveys were asked to consider a number of priority areas identified from the

Health and Wellbeing Board’s Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA). These areas are:

e Helping children and young people have the best start in life

e Helping people improve their mental health and wellbeing, particularly around prevention

and early intervention

e Health inequalities (particularly in respect to Covid-19)

All 562 respondents (Ask Warwickshire = 355, easy-read = 207) were asked to select as many
priorities as they thought that the strategy should focus on. Figure 12 shows that 387 (68.86%)
respondents selected the priority helping people improve their mental health and wellbeing,

whilst 354 (62.99%) selected the priority helping children and young people have the best start
in life and 294 (52.31%) selected the priority health inequalities.

31 |

Page 55



Page 32 of 75

Prioritise helping people improve their mental health

and wellbeing

Prioritise helping children and young people have the

best start in life

Prioritise health inequalities

0% 20% 40% 60%

Figure 12. Which priorities should the Health and Wellbeing Board focus on specifically? Data labels
indicate number of respondents who chose this option.

Respondents were then asked if there was anything else that they think should be prioritised. There
were 179 responses (87 from the Ask Warwickshire questionnaire and 92 from the easy-read

guestionnaire). These have been collated into themes in Table 12 below.

Table 12. Other priorities the Health and Wellbeing Board should focus on (n = 179).

Theme / description

Count
(%)

Quotes

Older adults

Respondents were keen to see
older adults supported to live more
years in good physical and mental
health and improve care for people
in their own homes/ residential
homes.

28
(15.64%)

“Prioritise helping older people live longer better. The issue of a
growing older population with people having 'more later years in
ill health' requires more explicit support for older people in your
priorities (2) and (3). Isolation, loneliness and complex health
needs in older people needs support.”

“Support for the growing number of people with dementia and
their carers.”

“Supporting elderly with services to make their lives more
fulfilling and less lonely and supporting those with disabilities to
have access to all areas and buildings and events in Stratford.”

“Healthy ageing - helping older adults maintain their ability to
walk and be independent but also targeting middle age people
to focus on physical activity/exercise.”

32 |

Page 56

80%



Page 33 of 75

“Impact of coronavirus both in terms of physical health with long

Health i 25
calth services covid and huge mental health impact.”
[s)
People thought it was important to (13.97%)
ioriti th d at which “How quickly transgender treatments (i.e. hormones, gender
prioritise € speed at whic alignment) are received and the quality.”
patients could be seen by GPs,
holistic ~care, staffing levels “Increased support/treatment for cancer patients - pre, during &
. . . post treatment as cancer is everywhere! Increased emphasis on
articularly in respect to Covid-19
(particu ._y_l P Vi _ ) healthy diet/exercise/sleep is fundamental to general health &
and facilities for those with wellbeing anyway so can help in both areas.”
learning disabilities.
“Issues suffered by women - endometriosis, adenomyosis,
menopause.”
Mental Health 23 “Prioritise making mental health services easily accessible.”
. (12.85%) | « king d Covid. i
Respondents said that mental Impact of new ways of working due to Covid, impact of zero
hours contracts etc etc.”
health support should be easily
accessible and available outside of “It is almost impossible to get emergency support for a loved one
normal working hours, so that who is threatening suicide without being passed from one place
coole can be supported when to another. Appointments for help take weeks or months. The
peop ' PP ) . only option is a 999 call which only helps briefly and hospitals
they begin to struggle with their are unable to give the appropriate level of supervision for such
mental health. cases. It is a desperate situation to be in and immediate
professional help should be available to keep the person are and
provide the support they need.”
“Prioritise the mental health of working people so that gave
access to support outside of normal working hours.”
Children and young people 21 “Supporting children with learning difficulties in school.”
Respondents commented that (11.73%) | “childbirth outcomes and perinatal deaths, breastfeeding rates
at 6months”
young people should be more
supported with any mental health “Prioritise support for young members of the LGBT+ community
needs/diagnoses, as well as especially those who are transgender/non-binary.”
support for vulnerable children and
PP “More services for those 16-24 year olds who have mental
care leavers. health needs.”
“Help schools help teenage girls with Autism/Aspergers - early
diagnosis as symptoms are often masked by girls and more
support needed on how teachers can help reduce anxiety and
not treat all students the same, train teachers on how to use
different strategies. All primary and secondary teachers need to
be trained in how to react to situations and to ease the anxiety
for the child.”
- . . “Schools should prioritise cookery and yoga - two areas that will
Healthy living, exercise and diet 20 . .
Y fIving, exercl : support physical and mental health and well-being. These need to
(11.17%) | be core foundation blocks throughout education not just early

Respondents commented on

sports facilities, health and diet

years. Habits must be created and the importance given to
health.”

33 |

Page 57



Page 34 of 75

education, and community

initiatives to boost fitness.

“Making sure local communities have accessible sports facilities.
What about Henley. They have lost everything.”

“Loneliness and inactivity in all age groups.”

Inequality / Disability

Respondents commented on

economic  inequalities, racial

inequalities, housing issues,

accessibility of services and
supporting disabled people to live a

normal life.

14
(7.82%)

“Equality is of utmost importance. Everyone should feel able to
access the same services and receive the same priority and
treatment.”

“Address digital exclusion”

“Helping people with long term illness or disability lead a more
fulfilling life whether that be training to get a job or volunteering
or clubs without fear of losing benefits”

“Economic inequalities that lead to poorer health outcomes -
such as employment and skills training.”

Environment / Active transport

People wanted more green spaces
locally and cycling and walking to

be encouraged.

13
(7.26%)

“Improve under-developed areas in the towns which could be
used to encourage healthier and fitter lifestyles. E.g. south
Leamington / old town to be improved.”

“Air quality. The air we breathe has been overlooked in this.”

“Improving facilities and having more green spaces that you can
actually walk in (not private farmland). Currently seems like 90%
of Nuneaton is residential with another 5% being built on.
There’s more green spaces in city centres, even London which is
saying something...”

“I think all three priorities are very important and | would like to
see explicit recognition of active transport infrastructure across
all three - providing safe and connected infrastructure for cycling
and walking would enable children and young people be more
physically active and have a better start in life, it would improve
people's mental health and wellbeing, and it would reduce
health inequalities, as it would help people, regardless of where
they live, to increase everyday active travel and prevent social
isolation of those that can't afford a car.”

Community groups and support
Respondents were keen to see

local community connections to

assuage loneliness and build
mental health resilience, without
being dependent on health

services.

8
(4.47%)

“More community projects and building relationships so when
people don’t need services they don’t go backwards, there needs
to be a focus on the austerity faced and the fact that
Warwickshire ends up averaging on the index of multiple
deprivation because that is a big gap between high and low
income families. Socio economic factors have a massive impact
on health.”

“Encouraging socialising to share responsibility. Empowerment
and establishment of groups of individuals that are independent
but lonely. Hard as they are often apathetic and reliant.”

34 |

Page 58



Page 35 of 75

“Supporting unpaid carers.”

Social care 7
People wanted unpaid carers to be (3.91%) | “Support for elderly carers who are trying to support their needy
L D loved ones.”
recognised in the priorities.
“Reducing abuse of local resources e.g. misuse of social
housing.”
Workine together 5 “Prioritising a joined-up approach which ensures that agencies
g tog work together to support the above priorities. EG Midwifery does
It is important to respondents that (2.79%) | not work in partnership with health visiting to support priority 1”
healthcare professionals offer a “Ability of GPs to work with hospitals and other providers.”
joined-up approach to health and “integration of services to provide better information to all.”
social care.
Other 33 “Supporting economic fall out of C19”
(18.43%) “Crime prevention”

“Suicide rates and homelessness.”

“Smoking in public areas. Ban all smoking in hospital car parks
etc.”

“I think there are too many busy high traffic spots in rugby. I'd
like to see more being done to alleviate this as it does have an
effect on health and wellbeing. For example it can take up to 45
mins to travel from Clifton rd to Bawnmore rd in Bilton because
of heavy traffic.”

Finally, respondents to both surveys were asked to consider whether anything else needs to change
or improve over the next five years with respect to health and wellbeing for everyone who lives in
Warwickshire. Results can be seen in Table 13 below. There were 295 responses to this question
(191 from the Ask Warwickshire survey and 104 from the easy-read survey). Some comments
covered more than one theme.

Table 13. What else needs to change or improve with respect to health and wellbeing over the next five
years (n = 295).

Count Quotes

(%)

Theme / description

"Access to mental health services. A wait of18 months plus for
an autism diagnosis is not acceptable. Increased attention on
mental health services."

healthcare | 72
(24.40%)

Access to formal

(physical and mental health)

Respondents said that mental

“Better access to services remotely would also be great. Village

health support in particular should internet speeds and connectivity are poor compared to cities and

be easily accessible and available

35 |

Page 59



Page 36 of 75

outside of normal working hours,
so that people can be supported
when they begin to struggle with

their mental health.

towns. Improved services and improved networking would be
great, for example contacting your doctor for a video call.”

“Improved access to alcohol detox facilities - no local service
dedicated to this so pressure lands on acute Trusts.”

“I think Rugby Hospital should take more patients and provide
full treatment of all ailments | was taken to Coventry Hospital
last Jan where i spent 7 hours on a trolley with no food or drink
my husband wasnt allowed to visit and we have no car so when
he could visit we spent a vast amount of money on taxis This is
wrong when i have a hospital here..”

“Quicker access to CAMHS. A 24 month + waiting list is
unacceptable.”

“No mental health support for carers of individuals with mental
health conditions. Carers are burnt out and no end in sight.”

“Less pre packed processed food available. More back to basics

Local health/exercise 40 . . . o
/ cookery lessons for kids. Swapping of skills....I can sit with elderly
opportunities (13.56%) | person so carer can go out for a walk, the carer might knit me a
hat etc.”
Respondents commented on local
social activities geared towards "Provision (re-introduction) of leisure classes which are easily
healthy eating/exercise, cheap physically and financially accessible. More organised social
access to gyms and sports facilities, activities Whlt..‘h' don't segregate people into group_'s - M{hICh
. ' encourage mixing of people who normally wouldn't mix
and encouraging children to be together. (young/older; different economic backgrounds,
active professions)"
“More promotion of classes like pilates and yoga”
“Create allotment areas where communities can congregate
together and grow their own fruit and veg. Schools and
children’s clubs should be included.”
Environment and Green travel 33 Work Wl.th transport team to. enable active trave.l via walking
and cycling. Numerous studies by health bodies show by
(12.88%) providing proper infrastructure and programmes to get more

Respondents commented on air

quality, building cycle lanes,

developing safe green spaces,
encouraging parents to walk their
children to school and reducing the

need for cars.

people cycling will help with the majority of your objectives. For
eg. everyday walking and cycling help with obesity, mental
health, wellbeing, reduces air pollution and if done correctly will
reduce KSIs.”

“Active travel needs to be prioritised and recognised as a means
to complete everyday journeys, not just as a leisure activity. Lead
can be taken from Scandinavian countries that have much more
active lifestyles and much better health outcomes.”

“Traffic levels! These clearly reflect that the majority of residents
do not feel able to use either active travel or public transport.
Given the effect of air pollution (including from electric cars) on
overall health, and the negative effects on wellbeing of towns
dominated by cars not people, this should be a priority. People

36 |

Page 60



Page 37 of 75

need access to healthy green spaces without having to drive their
first.”

"Air quality. Improved transport links with a focus on cycling and
pedestrians. We need a paradime shift in focus to prioritise
these. The current focus is not on the correct priorities."

Funding

Respondents were keen to see an
increase in funding in order to

support more services.

25
(8.47%)

“The infrastructure. Our doctors desperately needs expanding.”

“More investment , compare it to Switzerland you’ll find that
your running health care on thin air, that’s why it’s poor.”

"More funding for children with Special Educational Needs and
Disabilities in education.”

“CAMHS are in urgent need of additional resources and
funding.”

Communication

Respondents were keen to see
people made more aware of
services and understand what they

can do.

23
(7.80%)

“Engaging with people who's voices are not often heard. Finding
better ways of doing so, talking to those people about what their
communication needs are, as well as what their service needs

”

are.

“More collaboration and less duplication. People get confused
as to who they should contact and words like Health and
Wellbeing, Social Prescribing etc sometimes blur the lines. GPs
need to be more proactive in signposting people. | understand
that my own GPs has 3 social prescribers but | do not know how
to access them.”

“The Macmillan Information centre at the George Eliot hospital
is one of the few places offering generic information. Doctors are
busy and people are concerned about covid in pharmacies. There
needs to be a wellbeing hub, whether that means extending the
service at George Eliot or a new area somewhere else.”

Education

People commented on education
about healthy living and mental
health would help to catch

problems before they get worse.

21
(7.12%)

“Improved access to parenting classes and advice for those
parents who struggle with aspects of bringing up their children.”

“Ensure lots of learning about mental as well as physical health
from an early age in schools. Improve levels of mental health
support for young people - it's very hard to access support for
young people, for example, CAMHS, unless there are extreme
behaviours/conditions, or you are an able and pushy
guardian/parent. Feels like a bit of a lottery. Prevention must be
less expensive in the long run than treatment.”

“Employment stimulation to benefit young people in particular,
to get as many into work if not continuing in education. This will
be necessary to avoid a surge in NEET young people and all the
health implications that come as a result of this.”

Attitudes towards health &

wellbeing

18
(6.10%)

“Change of lifestyle and mentality. Get away from relying on
cars to go around, especially for short trips. Think long-term.
Prioritise staying healthy: physical exercise, meditation, life

coaching, healthy eating (more veg and fruit, less processed).

h

il i

il 1

37 | | ]

Page 61



Page 38 of 75

Respondents commented that
people should take ownership of
their  health

prioritising good food, exercise and

and  wellbeing,

community support.

Focus on mental health and happiness, as happier people tend to
look after themselves better.”

“Empowerment and creating ownership of ones health.”

“Improve awareness of what services available and make them
easy to access. Encourage a more supportive community,
helping each other. We’ve seen this blossom throughout the
pandemic but it’s not encouraged by the health system, councils,
government etc. When | think it should be! This community spirit
needs to be harnessed, encouraged, supported.”

“New NHS services need to be provided and properly funded

Social services and housing 12 . . ”
with every new housing development or new Care Home.
People thought it was important to (4.07%)
. “More social housing for families that are paying their bills and
support social workers, offer more working normal jobs but can't afford to buy a house in the ever
respite care for families, support increasingly expensive areas like Warwick and Leamington
for carers and accessing social care because they are paying extortionate rates in rent.”
assessments for disabled children
“New homes need more space - gardens are too small for

and adults. children to exercise in and the roads are too busy to let them
play out. New housing is undoubtedly needed but cramming
homes so close together is not going to help physical or mental
wellbeing. Homes being built next to busy roads, like the A46, or
roads that are being made bigger, like Europa Way is going to
put people's health at risk from pollution.”
“Ensuring that children with disabilities and their carers get
access to a social care assessment and ongoing support.”

Health Inequalities 11 “BLM - how this can be integrated more into health and wellbeing
agenda .”

. (3.73%)

Respondents thought it was “More support for mental health of men and women and that

important to ensure equal mens mental health is recognised and supported aswell Rights

opportunities with regard to health for people apart of the Igbtqia+ community and more support of
them to be recognized as equals.”

and wellbeing.
"Re-instating services in such a way that it does not exacerbate
existing health inequalities, but focusing on ways to deliver
services differently to ensure those who are currently less well
served have better access & outcomes in the future.”

Working together 11 “Better integration of physical health and mental health services,
with links and pathways to housing, financial, and educational

(3.73%) services.”

“It is all going to be about local engagement. With the spiraling
costs and demands on the NHS, the only way to cut costs and
demand on services but ensure a positive outcome for patients is
through commissioning local services. Take the strain off the NHS
using volunteers. This is a win win as not only are the needy
helped but the volunteers feel valued. Sadly the CCG and NHS
have a vested interest in maintaining their stranglehold on their

h

il i

il 1

38 | | ]

Page 62



Page 39 of 75

budgets, and will not entertain alternatives, even alternatives
that will ultimately save money. All of the things in the documents
supporting this survey have been said before many times. Is this
really going to be the time that change happens? | genuinely
hope so.”

“Increase number of agencies providing support to people who

Poverty 6 are under privileged.”
People talked about internet (2.03%)
L . “Most services and business now rely on people having access to
access and digital isolation, along the internet and/or exclusive use of a device ... in the real world
with services for people in poverty. the large sections of society do not have access to have the
ability to get help via on line services further, research shows
different people respond better to different types of learning
(face to face, by experience, reading, being shown etc etc) what
support is available help reduce digital isolation as it's a barrier
to accessing services.”

Geography 5 “More access to Mental Health and Adult Social Care Services for
those in the Rural Areas. The assumption that if you do not live

Respondents were keen to see (2.03%) | in Atherstone or Bedworth then you CANNOT receive assistance

parity of service provision across is a standard response from WCC.

the county and in rural/urban areas “Focus on areas where health needs are most i.e. north. Fair,
level playing field for all particularly when the CCGs align from 3
to1.”

Isolation 4 “Supported community schemes for tackling isolation and
loneliness.”

. (1.36%)

Respondents thought it was "How are we monitoring those who are isolated, ie elderly who

important to prioritise those who have no one to help them. Children who are electively home

are isolated. educated, no educational services to make sure they are ok.
Homeless."

Other 21 "There seems to be a good number of performance indicators
which are counting numbers and | accept we need those. | would

Other comments included how to | (7.12%) like to see more about measuring the impact of services provided

measure the impact, comments
around recovery from Covid-19,

and crime.

and the 'so what' being measured. More outcome focused than
output. Age UK have published an interesting report on the
Impact of COVID 19 on older people - worth a read and a
response in any Health and Wellbeing Strategy. 'Impact of Covid
19 on Older People' by AGE UK"

“Family and children’s centres and health visitor services should
be seen as essential and continue in person alongside COVID-19.
If supermarkets and soft play can be open safely then why can
new parents not receive in person support or get their baby
weighed?”

“Harassment from travellers for your dog etc and selling stolen
goods from vans.”

39 |

Page 63



Page 40 of 75

40

Page 64



Page 41 of 75

5. Responses from focus groups

Leamington Town Council

Leamington Spa Town Council’s Policy & Resources Committee recently considered the draft
Warwickshire Health & Wellbeing Strategy. On behalf of Leamington Spa Town Council, it wishes to
make the following comments in response to the consultation:

e The Town Council supports the 3 long term strategic objectives identified in the strategy,
namely:
o Healthy People
o Strong Communities
o Effective Services
e Along with the 3 priority areas identified for focus over the next 2 years:
o Help our children and young people have the best start in life
o Help people improve their mental health and wellbeing, particularly around
prevention and early intervention in our communities
o Reduce inequalities in health outcomes and the wider determinants of health
e The Town Council is particularly encouraged by the emphasis within the strategy on creating
places that contribute to health and wellbeing, including through healthy and active
environments and strong communities. The Town Council notes that this is well aligned with
its own strategic objectives.
e Specifically, the Town Council would like to see significant emphasis on the following issues:
o Supporting the wellbeing of pre-school children, particularly noting the role of health
visitors in this.
o Addressing the issue of Diabetes and its prevention.

Warwick District Council

The generic issue we have is that the document purports to be a partnership document but quite
often falls into being a WCC policy document with its references. The document will be more
effective by rectifying those slips and reflecting it much more as a real partnership document. If it
doesn’t then partners will feel excluded and won’t try to implement the Strategy. We have no issues
with the intended outcomes as they are very broad and on the measures we would suggest there
are others that can be used to measure the breadth of achievement from all organisations involved
but at the moment it is short on actions to deliver the outcomes set out in the Strategy. That may
be a deliberate exercise to strategise and measure and by a separate process work out the actions
perhaps at place level, in which case we think that process needs to be more explicit. We are
committed to improving the health and well-being of our communities and tackle inequalities and

41 .

Page 65



Page 42 of 75

we believe that our comments will strengthen the strategy and the intended outcomes. Comments
are included in Appendix 1.

SWEFT (Anne Coyle)

It is great to see it and we are excited to be part of the partnership to deliver against it. Very
supportive of it being underpinned by JSNA data and it’s recognition of the contribution of the
voluntary sector. In considering implementation of the strategy the Trust would make the following
observations; It would be good to see an overt commitment throughout linked to ‘helping people
to help themselves’ whether this be through easy access to resource, education, incentivisation etc;
Strengthening ‘the digital agenda’ for example The Trust is supportive of use of Stratford Digital hub
to test out new technologies; Recognition of PLACE as future engine room of the NHS creating an
opportunity to agree an implementation and resource plan; Connection of Hospital and Anchor
Alliance with delivery of H&W Strategy Perhaps more to be included on measurement of impact on
quality, inequalities and use of resources

Healthwatch (Chris Bain)

We have submitted our response using the online survey. Overall the ambitions in the Strategy seem to be
about right from a patient/public perspective, however | was slightly confused by it. In particular | was not
clear who the target audience was. There was a lot of language used that is in common currency within the
system but might mean little to a lot of residents, indeed they may feel excluded by it. There was also an
acceptance (for perfectly understandable and pragmatic reasons) of concepts such as 'Place’ that we all now
use regularly but might have little resonance outside the system. | could not see anywhere within the survey
to ask these sorts of questions so | thought | would raise them here. Is there going to be an easy read version
of this?

Health and Wellbeing Board (Sir Chris Ham)

It was questioned how organisations would work together to deliver the priorities, with a plea to ensure that
the voluntary and community sector was involved as much as possible and that this was referenced in the
final strategy. A comment on the need for clarity about how to make the strategy meaningful to local
communities eg through use of appropriate language and cultural references.

BAME Test & Trace Group

Ambition 1: People will lead a healthy and independent life

o Needs to reflect that we need to work with communities e.g. promoting healthy foods needs to
reflect that different communities have different dietary requirements. Need to refer to both
physical and mental health.

e Top priority is to encourage people to adopt healthy lifestyles and behaviours - this supports building
a strong community by empowering individuals and supporting preventative strategies. Focus must
also encompasses younger populations to embed throughout their lives.

42 .

Page 66



Page 43 of 75

Ambition 2: People will be part of a strong community

e The terminology around addressing some of the health inequalities is not coming through enough —
needs to be more ‘punchy’ and explicit. The statements are however quite generic which allows for
nuances across the county. This is a plus as it allows flexibility across districts and borough’s, so they
can be adapted by the H&WB Partnerships to tailor their own action plans.

e Working together to create communities with healthy environments, economic prosperity and
where the social needs of people are met is a top priority. Working together in collaboration with
communities and involving them is the key to success so need to look at how we engage and co-
produce with communities to reflect their individual needs.

Ambition 3: People will experience effective and sustainable services

e Seeking to develop accessible, responsive and high-quality services was considered to be top
priority. Two-way information sharing is important - needs to be accessible to all communities
e.g. translated into different languages. Need to ensure that we also reach communities ‘offline’,
work with them in a co-production manner and agree specific feedback processes.

Measuring success for the next 2 years

e What are measures for each ambition? How do we know these have been met? The survey refers
to different, but there are gaps in the way we collect the data. Needs to be thought out a bit
more.

e Need to monitor progress to ensure clarity. Strategy is at a very high level with action plans
feeding into but unclear how groups will feed into this? Need to give further consideration on
how this is achieved. Danger that strategy is detached from communities and therefore a
mechanism is required for filtering up and down the chain.

43 |

Page 67



Page 44 of 75

Appendix 1: Warwick District Council comments

DRAFT Warwickshire Health and Wellbeing Strategy 2020-2025

Foreword from Councillor Les Caborn, Chair of Warwickshire Health and
Wellbeing Board

Our new Health and Wellbeing Strategy presents a real opportunity to make a
difference to the health and wellbeing of everyone in Warwickshire. The Strategy has
been produced in collaboration with Health and Wellbeing Board partners in a context
of change which brings both challenges and opportunities. Much has happened since
our first Strategy in 2014. There is significant pressure in the health and care system
and the public sector more widely because of increasing demand and reducing
capacity. This has been further amplified by the Covid-19 pandemic which has radically
changed how society functions.

As we start to rebuild communities and reset services as part of our recovery from the
COVID-19 pandemic, even more importance needs to be placed on tackling inequalities
in health and creating engaged and cohesive communities that are able to thrive
despite the ongoing challenges we all face. Helping our children and young people to
get the best start in life is key to this, as is supporting people to look after their mental
health and wellbeing particularly as 1 in 3 visits to mental health services during the
pandemic were from new users. Our Covid-19 Health Impact Assessment (HIA) has
highlighted two findings which will be key drivers behind our new Strategy and its
implementation:

1. Anintegrated recovery which looks across traditional organisational boundaries
is required to understand the wider impact to services; and

2. There is a double impact of harm which disproportionately impacts on Black,
Asian and Minority Ethnic (BAME) communities, and the most vulnerable
individuals facing multiple deprivation and inequalities in health

The NHS long-term plan and Coventry and Warwickshire Five Year Health and Care
Plan both confirm a greater focus on prevention and a move to a more integrated health
and care system. We want to build on the momentum from our previous Strategy and
the Year of Wellbeing 2019 to drive further commitment around improving health and
wellbeing. We have set out high level ambitions for the next five years, as well as
specific priorities we think we should focus on over the next two years.

This Strategy sets out our commitments and vision for improving health and wellbeing
for Warwickshire. It is however the first step, and next we need to deliver on these

Page 68



Page 45 of 75

commitments. To make sure that we get this right for our communities, we are taking a
place-based approach to delivery. In Warwickshire our 3 places are:

e North — covers North Warwickshire Borough and Nuneaton and Bedworth
Borough

e Rugby — covers Rugby Borough

e South — covers Stratford on Avon District and Warwick District

Each place has a Health and Wellbeing Partnership and a Health and Care Executive
that will play a key role in delivering the Strategy locally, making sure that action plans
have been tailored to meet local needs, and build on the strengths, of each place.

1. Introduction — What is the Health and Wellbeing Strategy

The Health and Wellbeing Strategy is Warwickshire’s high-level plan for reducing health
inequalities and improving health and wellbeing for our residents. The Strategy is
owned by Warwickshire’s Health and Wellbeing Board, a collaborative partnership
bringing together senior leaders from the county, borough and district councils, the third
sector represented by Warwickshire Community and Voluntary Action (WCAVA),
Healthwatch Warwickshire, Clinical Commissioning Groups (CCG), NHS trusts,
Warwickshire Fire Service and the Police & Crime Commissioner.

The 2020-2025 Strategy is informed by data and engagement evidence from our Joint
Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) and learning from our 2014-2020 Health and
Wellbeing Strategy, as well as drawing on national research and good practice. We are
undertaking engagement and consultation with stakeholders, communities and the
public on our proposals and this feedback will be reflected in the final Strategy. The
Strategy responds to the rapidly changing context for health and social care by setting
out a five-year vision for health and wellbeing in Warwickshire. It will be used by local
health and care partners to inform plans for commissioning services and shape how we
will work together to meet health needs and address the wider determinants of health.

Our long-term strategic ambitions for Warwickshire are:

45

Page 69



Page 46 of 75

. (4
Healthy people Strong Effective services
communities

Figure 13: Coventry and Warwickshire's Strategic ambitions (HCP, 2019)

These ambitions are aligned to our shared vision for health and wellbeing across Coventry and
Warwickshire’s Health and Care Partnership (HCP). Together we want to do everything in our
power to enable everyone to pursue a happy, healthy life by putting people at the heart of
everything we do.

“One Health & Care Partnership, Two Health and Wellbeing Boards, Four Places,
Three Outcomes”

In order to deliver our ambitions, the Health and Wellbeing Board has agreed three priority
areas to focus on over the next two years. These emerged as priorities within the findings from
the JSNA and the Covid-19 health impact assessment (HIA).

e Help our children and young people have the best start in life

o Help people improve their mental health and wellbeing, particularly around
prevention and early intervention in our communities

¢ Reduce inequalities in health outcomes and the wider determinants of health

After two years, we hope to see improvements in outcomes related to these priorities. We will
then use our latest JSNA data to decide if these should remain our priorities for a further two-
year period, or if we need to focus our attention on other areas to achieve our long-term
strategic ambitions. We are shaping our priorities at ‘place’ — North, Rugby and South. Each
place has a Health and Wellbeing Partnership and a Health and Care Executive to lead on the
implementation of the Strategy, making sure local action plans are tailored to the local context.

2. Our journey — Where we are now

There has been ongoing commitment to deliver on the priorities of the 2014-2020 Strategy from
each organisation represented on the Health and Wellbeing Board and our Annual

Reviews highlight some of the achievements in delivering our ambitions of the Strategy over the
last 5 years. Over this period, the role of wider partners in health and wellbeing has been
increasingly recognised such as Housing and Planning teams in our District and Boroughs, the

46

Page 70



Page 47 of 75

Police and the Fire and Rescue Service. There has been stronger partnership working, however
it is recognised that we don’t always join up what we do and make the connections between
different areas of work.

This means we may miss opportunities to identify synergies and complementary activity and
don’t always get the best outcomes as a result. To do this better we are adopting a ‘population
health’ approach which takes a holistic view of everything that impacts on people’s health and
wellbeing and pays greater attention to the connection between the four pillars of: wider
determinants of health, our health behaviours and lifestyles, the place and communities we live
in, and with, and an integrated health and care system.

THE WIDER
DETERMINANTS
OF HEALTH

THE PLACES &
(OMMUNITIES WE
LIVE IN & WITH

Figure 14: Population health model (Kings Fund, 2019) [to be adapted]

2.1 Place-based needs assessment

To inform the development of the new Health and Wellbeing Strategy we have undertaken
research and engagement as part of the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) process.
We developed a new place-based approach to understanding the health needs of Warwickshire
residents. By undertaking this approach, we have been able to identify the needs

and priorities within each area and ensure our recommendations are tailored to the needs of
each place.

47

Page 71



Page 48 of 75

et Warwickshire JSNA Geographies Q?

Warwickshire Borough:

Catreni

b
v

-----

.........

It is recommended that this map is printed at A2 paper size

E Warwickshire County Boundary
: Warwickshire District/Borough Boundaries

Map produced by the Data lnmsvation Team,
Insight Service. Perfarmance Business Unit

1:240,000 § July, 2017,
‘ " » A
L 1 J
Kilometres N (1]
e [ | Warwickshire
& Crown Capyright and database right 2017. Ordnance Survey 100019520 ERCEECERECE County Council
p /

Figure 15: JSNA place-based approach
Over the last two years we have been building our understanding of assets and needs
across the county through analysis of evidence from a wide range of sources. We have
talked to over 2,000 residents and professionals and over 300 community organisations

48

Page 72



Page 49 of 75

about the key issues facing local communities as part of our JSNA. In light of the Covid-
19 outbreak we have undertaken further engagement and heard from over 2,500
residents on how life has changed for them since the outbreak. From this, we know
that:

e Overall health in Warwickshire is above average but varies, with residents
in more deprived parts living shorter lives and spending a greater
proportion of their lives in poor health. In less deprived parts of the county
males can expect to live over 9 years longer and females 5 years longer than
those in more deprived areas'. People are spending more of their later years in
ill-health — over 18 years for men and nearly 20 years for women'. There are
avoidable differences in health outcomes, often linked to smoking, alcohol
consumption, obesity and lack of physical activity. There is a need for better
communication and advice to help people keep lead a healthy and independent
life.

Covid-19 impact: Nationally mortality rates from Covid-19 during the first wave of
the pandemic were more than twice as high in the most deprived areas
compared to the least deprived areas for both males and females. Five areas in
Nuneaton & Bedworth Borough and one in North Warwickshire Borough are in
the 10% most deprived nationally. These are areas where residents are more
likely to be working in essential services, be from a BAME group or living in more
crowded housing and hence at increased risk of contracting Covid-19'.

e Children and younger people have increasing needs. Nearly one in three
children age 10-11 are overweight or obese". Increasing numbers of children
aged 0-14 are being admitted to hospital with injuries and hospital admissions
have also increased for alcohol specific conditions in under 18sVVi. There are
growing concerns regarding mental health issues and self-harm rates among
young people (age 10-24)Vi. With the number of school children forecast to
increase by over 4,000 by 2025 the demand on support services is likely to
increasevi,

Covid-19 impact: During the first lockdown period, referrals to RISE (the local
Child and Adolescent Mental Health Service) reduced by 52% (February to May)
despite mental health challenges increasing for many young people. Reductions
in referrals may have reflected that the primary need of patients changed. The
service often sees patients presenting with educational stressors, which were
reduced during the Covid-19 outbreak period because of school closures. An
increase in referrals for eating disorders was seen during this time.*

49

Page 73



Page 50 of 75

e Around one in four adults experience mental health problems, but the
county has seen an improvement in the suicide rate. Levels of suicide in
Warwickshire have historically been higher than the England average. However,
following a large programme of work aimed at suicide prevention, local rates are
now in line with the England average*. With awareness of mental health
increasing and changes in underlying risk factors, more adults and young people
are likely to present to health services with a mental health need by 2025.
Covid-19 impact: During the first lockdown period, the Office for National
Statistics (ONS) highlighted across Great Britain the percentage of adults with
high levels of anxiety reduced from 49.6% in the period 20th to 30th March to
33.3% in the period 24™ April to 4th May. However local mental health support
services reported seeing more people experiencing anxiety disorders®.and the
Warwickshire COVID-19 Survey found an increase in self-harming behaviours
among people with pre-existing mental health conditions.

e Warwickshire has a growing older population. There are more people over
the age of 65 than the national average (20.8% in Warwickshire and 18.4% for
England) and those over 85 are expected to almost double from 16,561 in 2020
to 30,132 in 2040. The prevalence of dementia (all ages) is higher than the
national average in South Warwickshire CCG (similar to the national average for
Coventry and Rugby CCG and below the national average for Warwickshire
North CCG)*. Across all three CCGs the estimated dementia diagnosis rate for
those aged 65 and above is below the national average*ii. These issues put
pressure on services and carers who provide support. We need to focus on
preventative health in the younger and working age population now to help
manage future demand on health and care services. Covid-19 impact: Among
people with a positive test, those who were aged 80 or over were 70 times more
likely to die when compared to those under the age of 40. In Warwickshire a fifth
of the population is aged over 65 and at an increased risk of mortality*V".

e Despite the county’s comparatively good performance on education and
skills and economic growth, pockets of deprivation limit people’s
opportunities to succeed in life. 6 Lower Super Output Areas (LSOAS) are in
the 10% most deprived nationally. A further 16 LSOAs are in the second most
deprived decile, and 26 are in the third most deprived decile. 12% of children
(11,400) live in low-income households. Social inequalities and life chances are
already established from these early years of life.

50

Page 74



Page 51 of 75

COVID-19 impact: Across Warwickshire the percentage of working age people
receiving Job Seekers Allowance plus those receiving Universal Credit was
gradually increasing since April 2019 from 1.9% to 2.2% in March 2020. Across
Warwickshire the highest rates were in Nuneaton and Bedworth Borough which
were consistently higher than the England rate, and the lowest were in Warwick
and Stratford Districts. However, since the first lockdown, claimant rates
increased significantly across the county, with each district and borough seeing at
least double the number of claimants. North Warwickshire saw the biggest
percentage increase in claimants when comparing rates between May 2019 and
May 2020%.

e Inequalities in health exist between White and Black, Asian and Minority

Ethnic communities. People from ethnic minority groups are at higher risk of
being out of work; prior to Covid-19 the rate of unemployment in some ethnic
minority communities was 6.1% compared to 3.5% for people from a white
background*V.,
Covid-19 impact: People from black and minority ethnic groups were more likely
to be at increased risk of exposure to Covid-19 than White British groups during
the first wave of the pandemic, often due to working in frontline or essential
services. Mortality rates were highest among South Asian and Black Caribbean
groups*Vi,

e The county has a higher level of homelessness than other areas. We know
that good quality housing leads to better health and wellbeing as it indirectly
affects early years outcomes, educational achievement, economic prosperity,
mental health and community safety*Vii,

Covid-19 impact: Under the ‘everyone in’ directive we supported 139 rough
sleepers to access emergency shelter who had not been assessed formerly to
be owed a statutory duty to accommodate. Wider financial impacts of the
pandemic have led to an increase in people concerned about meeting housing
costs.!"

e Poor transport links in some parts of the county contribute to loneliness and
social isolation. Nearly a third of people live in rural areas in Warwickshire, often
with poor public transport links, which can make it difficult to access services,
and over one in three of the population over 65 report they are lonely some or all
of the time*.

51

Page 75



Page 52 of 75

COVID-19 impact: Residents feel less comfortable about using public transport
due to concerns of exposure to COVID-19.1

e Road safety issues, with a higher rate of people killed and seriously injured on
roads in Warwickshire. This is compounded by rapid population growth in areas
such as Rugby resulting in pressure on services, increased road traffic, and
poorer air quality in some of our town centres.

COVID-19 impact: Warwickshire residents have walked or cycled more during the
pandemic, however the most common barrier to opting to walk or cycle more is
concern about traffic and other road users.!

e Air quality — improving air quality and taking action on climate change has
significant benefits both for our local environment and our health and wellbeing,
including reducing the risk of developing or exacerbating respiratory illnesses.
COVID-19 impact — reduced traffic during the pandemic has led to improved air
guality; there is an opportunity to harness changes in behaviour made during the
pandemic for longer-term environmental and health benefits. Additionally, when
asked residents would feel most motivated to take local action on conservation
and action on climate change within their local communities'.

e Community capacity — Our JSNA has highlighted a wealth of voluntary and
community activity. Community organisations are often best placed to address
health challenges as they have networks, understanding and legitimacy.
However, their resources are limited and the public sector must change how it
works with communities by shifting to an ‘enabling’ leadership style to join forces
and build capacity.

Covid-19 impact: The grassroots response to mobilising mutual aid during the
pandemic period has had a big impact on local volunteering, how it is perceived
and how it can be promoted in the future.

e Improvements to access and integration of services are needed, with a focus
on self-care and prevention to help people stay well and ensuring a seamless
experience of accessing care when help is needed.

Covid-19 impact: Respondents reported access to services as a top priority and
1/3 were uncertain about accessing these facilities compared to other settings
during the initial lockdown period. For some the shift to digital GP appointments
represented a more convenient way of accessing services, whilst others felt this
did not adequately replace face to face contact.*

52

Page 76



Page 53 of 75

More information about the findings from our Joint Strategic Needs Assessment can be
found at www.warwickshire.gov.uk/joint-strategic-needs-assessments-1

More information about the findings from our Covid-19 Health Impact Assessment can
be found at: www.warwickshire.gov.uk/joint-strategic-needs-assessments-1/impact-
covid-19/1

3. Where do we want to get to?

Based on this understanding of local needs, we are proposing three overarching
strategic ambitions for the health and wellbeing of our residents.

Healthy people Strong Effective services

communities

Figure 16: Coventry and Warwickshire's Strategic ambitions (HCP, 2019)

The outcomes we hope to achieve are:

1. People will lead a healthy and independent life.

By this we mean promoting healthy lifestyles and behaviours to help people stay
healthy and well. It means working together to make sure that every child had the same
opportunity to thrive and has the best start in life. If people have existing health
problems, we want to prevent them from escalating to the point where they require
significant, complex and specialist health and care interventions. It means helping
people to age well and to slow the development of frailty in older people. The focus will
be on empowering people to take action to improve their health and wellbeing and
providing effective, timely support where needed.

Direction of travel will be monitored through indicators such as:

e Children and young people: healthy weight; admissions for injuries; under
18 alcohol admissions; Child and Adolescent Mental Health Services

53

Page 77


http://www.warwickshire.gov.uk/joint-strategic-needs-assessments-1
http://www.warwickshire.gov.uk/joint-strategic-needs-assessments-1/impact-covid-19/1
http://www.warwickshire.gov.uk/joint-strategic-needs-assessments-1/impact-covid-19/1

Page 54 of 75

performance; children living in poverty; children and young people who self-
harm; school readiness

e Working-age Adults: healthy life expectancy; physically active adults;
overweight and obese; alcohol admissions; suicide

e Older people: falls; dementia diagnosis; flu immunisations

2. People will be part of a strong community.

By this we mean working together to create communities that have a healthy
environment, economic prosperity and where the social needs of people are met. We
will work together to build community resilience and where everyone has the
opportunity to thrive, with access to jobs, secure housing and feel connected to people
around them. We will co-produce services with our communities where possible to
make sure they meet people’s needs.

Direction of travel will be monitored through indicators such as:

e Economic inclusion: universal credit claimants; people in employment; gap
in employment rate between those with mental health or learning disabilities
and the overall employment rate How about gap between worst SOAs and
best? Or number of SOAs in worst quarter nationally?

e Housing and homelessness: fuel poverty Those accessing support, epc
ratings of properties in district; statutory homelessness and priority need or in
temporary housing; affordable housing What about affordable housing —
numbers built?

e Transport and air quality measures: level of air pollution; Why not use
annual measurement of CO2 emissions? active travel All districts monitoring
their levels of CO2 emissions now which one of main factors is travel.

e Road Safety: killed and seriously injured (KSI) casualties on England’s roads

e Carers support: percentage of adult carers who have as much social contact
as they would like

3. People will experience effective and sustainable services. Form the
indicators below this seems to reference only specific health service outcomes.
There are other District level measures that could be used.

These outcomes are also aligned to the Coventry and Warwickshire Health and
Wellbeing Concordat, owned by the Health and Wellbeing Boards for both
Warwickshire and Coventry. We will focus on the best way to achieve good outcomes
for people, reduce the number of interactions people have with our services, and avoid
multiple interventions. We will also focus on early intervention to prevent people from

54

Page 78



Page 55 of 75

needing to use complex and specialist services. We will work closely with the Health
and Care Partnership to do this.

Direction of travel will be monitored through indicators such as:

e Quality of services: emergency readmissions within 30 days of discharge;
excess winter deaths

e Access to services: proportion of adults in the population in contact with
secondary mental health services; proportion of patients satisfied with GP
practice appointment time What about access to open spaces? Measure of
inactive persons survey, use of leisure centres?

e Early intervention: Uptake of health checks among people with learning
difficulties and among people with serious mental illness Participation in VCS
groups tackling mental health / loneliness? Vulnerable persons seeking
assistance/referrals

e Long term conditions: people feeling supported to manage their condition

4. How will we get there

We are working on a population health framework for Warwickshire to underpin
everything we do as a health and wellbeing system to achieve our long-term vision for
change. It is taken from a model developed by the King’s Fund and is based on four
areas that impact on people’s health and wellbeing. For Warwickshire this means:

Wider determinants — working in partnership to tackle health inequalities
through addressing the social determinants of health such as education,
employment, Income? housing and a healthy environment.

Our health behaviours and lifestyles — aligning and coordinating
prevention programmes to maximise impact and tackle barriers to healthy
lifestyle choices.

The places and communities we live in and with — working together in our
places and with our communities to mobilise solutions, informed by our
understanding of local needs and assets from our place-based JSNAs. They
don’t cover everything concerned with place though

An integrated health and care system — health and social care commissioners
and providers working together to commission and deliver services in
Warwickshire.

55

Page 79


https://www.kingsfund.org.uk/publications/vision-population-health

Page 56 of 75

THE WIDER
DETERMINANTS
OF HEALTH

THE PLACES &
(OMMUNITIES WE
LIVE IN & WITH

Figure 17: Our approach to population health (Kings Fund, 2019)

We plan to invest in getting these foundations right and our plans will consider each of
these components and the connections between them. Some of the outcomes related
to our ambitions will be delivered indirectly by other strategies and plans, such as the
Economic Growth Plan Is this a WCC plan as WDC isn’'t aware? If so shouldn’t
mention be made of other economic strategies that other Councils have? which will
improve access to employment and training and therefore influence improvements in
the wider determinants of health. Similarly, the Local Transport Plan will support a shift
in transport modes to more sustainable, active travel that will provide greater
opportunity for people to be physically active. So will invest in leisure facilities, parks
and gardens, play equipment so why no mention? Is this WCC investment of where it is
perceived is district contribution? Local Plans have significant impact on all of these
issues but no mention?

The importance of whole-system approaches for promoting health and wellbeing and
strengthening the local economy is highlighted by the NHS Confederation report “NHS
Reset: The Role for Health and Care in the Economy: a five- point plan for every
system™. This identifies key areas for all systems to address covering the role of
Anchor Institutions, strengthening recruitment of local residents, building the local
supply chain, embedding health within planning frameworks and supporting civic
restoration in the recovery from the pandemic. These have relevance to each of our

56

Page 80



Page 57 of 75

strategic ambitions and our local recovery programme. Whose? | wasn’t aware that
we’d agreed a joint one.

4.1 Our ways of working

The following principles, which form part of the Coventry and Warwickshire Health and
Wellbeing Concordat, will underpin the way we work as Health and Wellbeing Board
partners:

Prioritising prevention: we will tackle the causes of health-related problems to reduce
the impact of ill-health on people’s lives, their families and communities. We will seek to
address the root causes of problems, listening to local people’s priorities and acting on
their concerns.

Strengthening communities: we will support strong and stable communities. We will
listen to residents to understand what their want from the services we provide and
encourage the, to lead change themselves where possible.

Co-ordinating services: we will work together to design service which take account of
the complexity of people’s lives and their over-lapping health and social needs. We will
focus on the best way to achieve good outcomes for people, reducing the number of
interactions people have with our services and avoiding multiple interventions from
different providers.

Sharing responsibility: we value the distinct contributions by all organisations that are
represented on the Health and Wellbeing Board. We will maintain partnerships between
the public sector, voluntary and community sector, local business and residents,
recognising that we share a responsibility to transform the health and wellbeing of our
communities. We will pool resources, budgets and accountabilities where it will improve
services for the public.

4.2 Our priorities

We have identified three initial priorities where we can make a tangible difference in
the short-term by working together in partnership. We will use these areas to test our
new ways of working and bring our population health framework to life. There is a
wealth of great work already being done in these areas and the challenge is to add
value by making connections and creating energy and momentum to upscale existing
activity. We will look at each area through the lens of the population health framework,

57

Page 81



Page 58 of 75

identifying how each component contributes to addressing the issue and links to the
others. We think that these are areas that, if we make a difference here, will impact
positively on other health and wellbeing issues and priorities for the county.

We have chosen these priorities because we know that they are areas where we could
do better. The first two priorities were identified through the JSNA findings and
workshops with senior leaders and remain relevant now. Reducing health inequalities
has long been a priority underpinning our work and now deserves more prominence
due to the ‘double-impact’ of the pandemic. Our three initial priorities are to:

e Help our children and young people have the best start in life

o Help people improve their mental health and wellbeing, particularly around
prevention and early intervention in our communities

¢ Reduce inequalities in health outcomes and the wider determinants of health

We will review our progress on these areas annually and, if necessary, change our
priority areas after two years. To make sure that these priorities reflect the need of each
place (North, Rugby and South) our place-based Health and Wellbeing Partnerships, as
well as place-based Health and Care Executives will lead on implementation.

Aligning and coordinating
prevention programs
across the system and
through each place-
based Health and
Wellbeing Partnerships
to tackle barriers to
healthy lifestyle choices.

Place-based Health and
Wellbeing Partnerships THE WIDER
will work together to DHESPKE‘I‘\TTT;
tackle health inequalities

by addressing the wider
determinants of health

Health and social care
commissioners and
providers working

Working together in our
place-based Health and
Wellbeing Partnerships

together at our place- THE PLACES & and Wlth.O.th N
based Health and Care COMMUNITIES WE communities to mobilise
Executives to LIVE IN & WITH solutions informed by

commission and deliver our understanding of
services local assets

Figure 18: How we will operate at place (adapted from the Kings Fund Population Health framework)

Priority 1 — help our children and young people have the best start in life
We know that positive early experiences are vital to make sure children are ready to

learn, ready for school, and have good life chances. Support need to start early,

58

Page 82



Page 59 of 75

including support for parents in the “1001 Critical Days” (from conception to age two)
when the foundations for development are laid.

Children and young people have experienced significant challenges throughout the
Covid-19 pandemic. For many, disruption to education and homelife may have
impacted on their mental health and wellbeing. Helping our children and young people
catch up on their education is a key priority within WCC’s Covid-19 Recovery Plan.

Between March and April 2020, we know that there was an increase in the number of
food parcels given to families with children, as well as an increase in the number of
children newly eligible for a free school meal. We Whose we? are developing a Social
Inequalities Action Plan to tackle childhood disadvantage.

Childhood vaccinations are a vital health priority to protect against a number of
diseases. Nationally and locally in Warwickshire there has been a decrease in the
numbers of children being vaccinated during the Covid-19 outbreak. Good uptake in
Warwickshire is important to avoid a resurgence of vaccine-preventable diseases,
which could have a major impact on the health of children and vulnerable groups. This
is why we have started our #Carryonvaccinating campaign and why we are committed
to improving uptake of vaccinations across Warwickshire.

Providing extra support for mothers at risk of premature birth is a key priority within the
NHS Long Term Plan. We know that the smoking status of mothers can impact on
birthweight of babies and that this can impact on health outcomes over the life course.
Rates of smoking at the time of delivery are higher in the North of Warwickshire
compared to the South. To tackle this inequality in health we are working to implement
the recommendations from our Local Maternity Services (LMS) Smoking in Pregnancy
Review and making sure that access to services is proportionate to need. We are taking
this same approach with our other services to support children and young people, such
as Health Visiting. By taking a targeted approach to earlier intervention and prevention
we will work together to give every child the best possible start in life.

Case Study: Establishing a pool of locally trained Youth support Workers

Our young people are growing up in an environment that makes securing these
vital building blocks more difficult than it was for previous generations. Today’s
young people face an unstable labour market, heightened by the economic impact

59

Page 83



Page 60 of 75

from Covid-19, and a more challenging housing market. They are reporting higher
levels of loneliness and poor mental health than previous generations,

In response to a lack of youth groups and youth-led support in North Warwickshire
borough and across south Warwickshire, Young people first, a local youth
organisation working across Warwickshire were approached by WCC and Borough
and District Council partners to run an accredited training programme to establish
pools of local youth support workers.

Once trained and having completed their portfolio based on a 6-month work-based
placement in a youth setting successful applicants were awarded a Level 2 Award
in Youth Work Practice by ABC Awards.

With a pool of accredited youth support workers in the local areas, youth projects
could be better supported and able to provide a worthwhile initiative to work with
young people.

The courses were free to join and funded through Warwickshire County Council
with contributions in the North from the Borough Council also. In

North Warwickshire 10 people took part in the course with people from all over the
borough and Nuneaton and Bedworth, whilst 15 were selected from a pool of 25 in
the south with approximately half from Warwick district and half from Stratford.
There was a range of experience within both groups with some already working in
voluntary or paid youth worker roles, whilst others looking to expand their skills to
better support the local communities and offer additional services and some
looking for a change of career.

The groups received 4 days of intensive training over 6 weeks covering topics
such as: theory of youth work; safeguarding; young people’s development;
engaging and communicating with young people. The group training was
accompanied by individual portfolios of written and practical work followed by at
least 6 months of paid or voluntary work with young people 2-3 hours per week.

Priority 2 — help people improve their mental health and wellbeing, particularly
around prevention and early intervention in our communities
Delivering an all-age mental health system that is underpinned by prevention, building

resilience, early intervention, recovery and self-care in the places people live and work
is a key priority across Coventry and Warwickshire i This is an even greater priority

60

Page 84



Page 61 of 75

now because of the impact that Covid-19 has had on mental health and wellbeing.
People have reported experiencing more feelings of loneliness and heightened anxiety
due to uncertainty about the virus and the wider implications of the outbreak*. In
Warwickshire 85,000 people were furloughed during the initial lockdown period, and
research suggests that an increase in hardship and economic recession can
exacerbate mental health illness. We also know from our Covid-19 residents survey that
respondents with a prior mental health condition were more likely to report engaging in
less healthy behaviours as coping mechanisms, such as drinking more alcohol or
making unhealthy food choices, and for a smaller proportion turning to self-harming
behaviours.

Prevention and early intervention is key to supporting people to improve their mental
health and wellbeing. Building community resilience and community capacity is crucial
to this and involves working with wider partners from the community and voluntary
sector, and not solely health. As part of this, the Working Together Partnership, led by
Coventry and Warwickshire Partnership Trust (CWPT), brings together health and care
partners and Voluntary and Community Sector organisations across Coventry and
Warwickshire to improve holistic support for people to improve positive mental health.

Following the success of our Year of Wellbeing, we are launching Wellbeing for Life to
continue with the positive action we saw during 2019. We want to ensure mental health
and wellbeing is considered within our own policies, which is why we are committed to
reviewing these to see how we can improve. Evidence shows that having a happy and
healthy workforce increases staff productivity and job satisfaction, contributing to overall
improvements in quality of life. In partnership with the WMCA we are supporting
employers to sign-up to Thrive at Work, a commitment which promotes employee
health and wellbeing by focusing on key areas such as: mental, musculoskeletal and
physical health; and promoting healthy lifestyles.V

Certain groups face inequalities in mental health and wellbeing due to existing
conditions or specific life experiences. There are a number of key strategies that will
help us achieve this priority including our Living Well with Dementia Strategy, that sets
out how we will improve outcomes for people living with dementia. Our Homelessness
Strategy aims to better address the needs of people who are homeless or sleeping
rough. Individuals experiencing homelessness are less likely to engage with traditional
services, which is why we have established a Mental Health Enhanced Care Pathway
that aims to improve mental health support for people who sleep rough and reduce the
risk of exacerbation of poor mental health, which can often result in A&E attendance.

61

Page 85



Page 62 of 75

To help reduce inequalities in mental health and wellbeing, the Health and Care
Partnership is developing a transformation plan for improving services for priority
groups, to help ensure that access is proportionate to need.

Case study: Creative Health interventions — helping residents improve their mental
health and wellbeing during the Covid-19 pandemic

Artists have been helping defeat the loneliness of lockdown thanks to a special
Covid 19 programme of activity called #creativecarecw.

Warwickshire County Council funded eight organisations across the county to
create new activities specifically designed to beat the isolation that some people
are suffering during the pandemic. The result has been a varied programme
targeted at improving the lives of lots of different groups of people both young and
old and activity in each of our District and Boroughs. The projects have reached
over 450 people directly (virtually) plus 10,000 residents received an “Arts pack” to
work on at home, and over 5,000 residents engaged with online activities.

Examples include:

e Sundragon Pottery provided clay modelling packs with a creative clay
booklet for young people in a supported housing scheme.

e Arts Uplift organised online sewing, singing and drama classes, for groups
including older people in care homes and people isolated at home

e Singer Juliet Russell provided choir practice for people with
respiratory difficulties,

e Escape Arts' 'We are One' series included a printed pack which has been
distributed widely in hospitals and the community, offering creative activities
for all ages, including street homeless people who are in temporary
accommodation.

Research shows creative activities like these can have a huge impact on people's
physical and mental health and wellbeing.** Here in Warwickshire, new links have
been forged between arts groups and groups of people at risk of isolation through
their disability, iliness, age or a host of other reasons. We believe this approach
could be a blueprint to help us develop our work with arts organisations and target
activity on those people who need our help the most, at the same time reducing
their dependency on health services.

62

Page 86



Page 63 of 75

We are working with Coventry University to evaluate the programme, the findings
of which will inform the roll-out of a Warwickshire Arts on Referral programme in
early 2021.

Priority 3 — Reduce inequalities in health outcomes and the wider determinants of
health

Reducing health inequalities has always been at the heart of the work of the Health and
Wellbeing Board and the Health and Wellbeing Strategy. Findings from national and
local data has highlighted that the Covid-19 pandemic has had a disproportionate
impact on specific groups, including those from Black, Asian, and Minority Ethnic
(BAME) communities. We have set up a system-wide health inequalities group to help
improve our response to these findings. From reports we know that BAME communities
are over-represented in social care and lower income settings, which is why a longer-
term focus on access to higher income employment is needed for these groups.*V! This
is why one of our WCC Is it the partnership or WCC? Recovery Plan priorities is to
harness the power of our communities to tackle inequality and social exclusion Vi We
are supporting this work in a number of ways for example:
e Two Connecting Communities Support Officer posts have been created to
support the local Test and Trace team
e Commissioning collaborative research project to find out more about the Covid-
19 in BAME communities
¢ Inclusive recruitment and employment policies and processes to improve
diversity in our workforce
e Health partners being asked to improve ethnic to better understand access and
outcomes of health and wellbeing

Other groups also tend to experience poorer health outcomes or access to services, including
people living with disabilities, learning difficulties, people with serious mental illness, and people
from lower socio-economic groups. We want to support people from these groups to keep fit
and healthy and reduce their risk of developing Covid-19 through “prehab” activities. Health
inequalities are multi-factorial with people with the worst health outcomes often experiencing a
combination of risk factors and living in environments less conducive to good health. We know
the environment in which we live can influence the choices we make, which is why the
Warwickshire Health and Wellbeing Board endorsed local ‘Promoting Health and Wellbeing
through Spatial Planning’ guidance in January 2020.

63

Page 87



Page 64 of 75

We have also established a system-wide group to lead on the response to address
inequalities in NHS provision and outcomes. The Health Inequalities Task and Finish
Group is identifying how best to respond to eight urgent actions on inequalities. As part
of this a Call to Action has been made, aimed at employers and organisations, to ask
them what they can do to help reduce health inequalities. Areas for action include:
developing a shared approach to social value across anchor organisations; reducing
barriers to work; and exploring the impact of Covid-19 on families with children 0-5s.

Case study: Promoting Health and Wellbeing
through Spatial Planning

The environment we live in plays a vital role in both
improving and protecting the health and wellbeing of
our communities. Good planning and well-designed
places can provide opportunities for people to be
physically active and connect with others. The
importance of our built environment has been
highlighted more during the Covid-19 pandemic as poor housing conditions, such as
overcrowding, have been associated with an increased risk of disease transmission. >V
The value of accessing good quality green spaces has also proven beneficial for people’s
mental wellbeing during this period.

We know that inequalities in health exist along the social gradient and those living in the
most deprived areas are likely to have a lack of green space, poor air quality, and poorer
housing compared to the least deprived areas. We don’t want this to be the case for
Warwickshire, which is why we have developed a Spatial Planning for Health guidance
document to support Health in All Policies (HiAP) and want to make sure that health and
wellbeing is embedded within local and joint planning policies and decisions.

Health and wellbeing is also seen as a key strategic driver behind WCC'’s place shaping
programme. Place shaping describes local governments role in creating an environment
for communities to flourish by improving infrastructure, services, connectivity and
sustainability to deliver a better quality of life. Our Promoting Health and Wellbeing
through Spatial Planning guidance document will help support this. Why no reference to
the tools that will actually deliver this — the borough and District Council Local plans and
core Strategies and the planning applications they determine will be what makes these
things happen.

5. Monitoring - How will we know when we have got there

64

Page 88



Page 65 of 75

Leadership and accountability is key to knowing if we are getting things right. The
Health and Wellbeing Board will have oversight of progress against our strategic
ambitions. The direction of travel indicators will be developed into a performance
dashboard for the Board, and the Board will receive an annual performance report on
progress.

Each place-based Health and Wellbeing Partnership in Warwickshire will develop an
action plan with clear performance measures based around the four components of the
population health framework. The Partnerships action plans will be tailored to meet the
specific needs of each place and will routinely report to the Board. We will evaluate the
overall progress we have made on our three priorities after two years and take a view
on if we should continue with these or focus our efforts on other priorities for the next
two years.

65

Page 89



Page 66 of 75

References

12016-208 https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/public-health-outcomes-
framework/data#page/0/gid/1000049/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/302/are/E08000025/cid/4/page-
options/ovw-do-0

1 https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/public-health-outcomes-
framework/data#page/0/gid/1000049/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/302/are/E08000025/cid/4/page-
options/ovw-do-0

1 https://api.warwickshire.gov.uk/documents/WCCC-1350011118-2953

1 https://ffingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/public-health-outcomes-
framework/data#page/0/gid/1000042/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/302/are/E08000025/cid/4/page-options/ovw-do-
0

1 https://ffingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/public-health-outcomes-
framework/data#page/4/gid/1000042/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/302/are/E10000031/iid/90284/age/26/sex/4/cid/4
/page-options/ovw-do-0

1

https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/sexualhealth#page/4/gid/8000037/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/302/are/E100000
31/cid/4/page-options/ovw-do-0

1 https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile-group/mental-
health/profile/cypmh/data#page/4/gid/1938133090/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/102/are/E10000031/iid/90813
lage/305/sex/4/cid/4/page-options/ovw-do-0

1 Warwickshire Education Team

1 https://api.warwickshire.gov.uk/documents/WCCC-1350011118-2946

1 https://ffingertips.phe.org.uk/profile-group/mental-health/profile/suicide/data#page/0/page-options/ovw-
do-0

1 https://api.warwickshire.gov.uk/documents/WCCC-1350011118-2946

1

https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/search/dementia#page/3/gid/1/pat/219/par/E54000018/ati/165/are/E3800003
8/iid/247/age/1/sex/4/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/ovw-do-0_car-do-0
1

https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/search/dementia#page/3/gid/1/pat/219/par/E54000018/ati/165/are/E3800003
8/iid/92949/age/27/sex/4/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/ovw-do-0_car-do-0

1 https://api.warwickshire.gov.uk/documents/WCCC-1350011118-2953

1 https://api.warwickshire.gov.uk/documents/WCCC-1350011118-2946

1 https://commonslibrary.parliament.uk/research-briefings/sn06385/

1
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/89237
6/COVID_stakeholder_engagement_synthesis_beyond_the_data.pdf

1 https://data.warwickshire.gov.uk/housing/

1 https://api.warwickshire.gov.uk/documents/WCCC-630-2139

1 WCC Covid-19 resident survey report (October 2020)

1 https://www.nhsconfed.org/resources/2020/07/the-role-of-health-and-care-in-the-economy

1 Health Foundation, 2019

1 https://www.happyhealthylives.uk/our-priorities/mental-health-and-emotional-wellbeing/improving-mental-health-and-emotional-
wellbeing-in-coventry-and-warwickshire/

1 https://lwww.wmca.org.uk/what-we-do/thrive/thrive-at-work/about-the-programme/
1 https://www.artshealthandwellbeing.org.uk/appg-
inquiry/Publications/Creative _Health Inquiry Report 2017.pdf

1 South Asian Foundation
1 WCC Recovery Plan
1 https://lwww.ageing-better.org.uk/sites/default/files/2020-09/Homes-health-and-COVID-19.pdf

66

Page 90


https://www.nhsconfed.org/resources/2020/07/the-role-of-health-and-care-in-the-economy
https://www.happyhealthylives.uk/our-priorities/mental-health-and-emotional-wellbeing/improving-mental-health-and-emotional-wellbeing-in-coventry-and-warwickshire/
https://www.happyhealthylives.uk/our-priorities/mental-health-and-emotional-wellbeing/improving-mental-health-and-emotional-wellbeing-in-coventry-and-warwickshire/
https://www.artshealthandwellbeing.org.uk/appg-inquiry/Publications/Creative_Health_Inquiry_Report_2017.pdf
https://www.artshealthandwellbeing.org.uk/appg-inquiry/Publications/Creative_Health_Inquiry_Report_2017.pdf

Page 67 of 75

1 2016-208 https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/public-health-outcomes-
framework/data#page/0/gid/1000049/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/302/are/E08000025/cid/4/page-
options/ovw-do-0

i https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/public-health-outcomes-
framework/data#page/0/gid/1000049/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/302/are/E08000025/cid/4/page-
options/ovw-do-0

i https://api.warwickshire.gov.uk/documents/WCCC-1350011118-2953

Vv https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/public-health-outcomes-
framework/data#page/0/gid/1000042/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/302/are/E08000025/cid/4/page-options/ovw-do-
0

v https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile/public-health-outcomes-
framework/data#page/4/gid/1000042/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/302/are/E10000031/iid/90284/age/26/sex/4/cid/4
/page-options/ovw-do-0
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/sexualhealth#page/4/gid/8000037/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/302/are/E100000
31/cid/4/page-options/ovw-do-0

Vi hitps://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile-group/mental-
health/profile/cypmh/data#page/4/gid/1938133090/pat/6/par/E12000005/ati/102/are/E10000031/iid/90813
lage/305/sex/4/cid/4/page-options/ovw-do-0

viil \Warwickshire Education Team

x https://api.warwickshire.gov.uk/documents/WCCC-1350011118-2946

* https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/profile-group/mental-health/profile/suicide/data#page/0/page-options/ovw-
do-0

X https://api.warwickshire.gov.uk/documents/WCCC-1350011118-2946
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/search/dementia#page/3/gid/1/pat/219/par/E54000018/ati/165/are/E3800003
8/iid/247/age/1/sex/4/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/ovw-do-0_car-do-0

Xl
https://fingertips.phe.org.uk/search/dementia#page/3/gid/1/pat/219/par/E54000018/ati/165/are/E3800003
8/iid/92949/age/27/sex/4/cid/4/tbm/1/page-options/ovw-do-0_car-do-0

xiv https://api.warwickshire.gov.uk/documents/WCCC-1350011118-2953

X https://api.warwickshire.gov.uk/documents/WCCC-1350011118-2946

¥i https://commonslibrary.parliament.uk/research-briefings/sn06385/
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/89237
6/COVID_stakeholder_engagement_synthesis_beyond_the_data.pdf

wiii https://data.warwickshire.gov.uk/housing/

xix hitps://api.warwickshire.gov.uk/documents/WCCC-630-2139

> WCC Covid-19 resident survey report (October 2020)

X hitps://www.nhsconfed.org/resources/2020/07/the-role-of-health-and-care-in-the-economy

xii Health Foundation, 2019

xxii https://www.happyhealthylives.uk/our-priorities/mental-health-and-emotional-wellbeing/improving-mental-health-and-emotional-
wellbeing-in-coventry-and-warwickshire/

XV hitps:/lwww.wmca.org.uk/what-we-do/thrive/thrive-at-work/about-the-programme/

67

Page 91


https://www.nhsconfed.org/resources/2020/07/the-role-of-health-and-care-in-the-economy
https://www.happyhealthylives.uk/our-priorities/mental-health-and-emotional-wellbeing/improving-mental-health-and-emotional-wellbeing-in-coventry-and-warwickshire/
https://www.happyhealthylives.uk/our-priorities/mental-health-and-emotional-wellbeing/improving-mental-health-and-emotional-wellbeing-in-coventry-and-warwickshire/

Page 68 of 75

xv https://www.artshealthandwellbeing.org.uk/appg-
inquiry/Publications/Creative_Health Inquiry Report 2017.pdf

xvi South Asian Foundation
xvil \WCC Recovery Plan
xviit hitps://www.ageing-better.org.uk/sites/default/files/2020-09/Homes-health-and-COVID-19.pdf

68

Page 92


https://www.artshealthandwellbeing.org.uk/appg-inquiry/Publications/Creative_Health_Inquiry_Report_2017.pdf
https://www.artshealthandwellbeing.org.uk/appg-inquiry/Publications/Creative_Health_Inquiry_Report_2017.pdf
https://www.ageing-better.org.uk/sites/default/files/2020-09/Homes-health-and-COVID-19.pdf

Page 69 of 75

Appendix 2: Any other outcomes that should be considered for the three

ambitions proposed in the consultation survey

Below are the 65 comments that respondents to the Ask Warwickshire survey made when
asked whether any other outcomes should be considered for the three ambitions. These have
been categorised into themes. Respondents were able to add which ambition they thought
their comment addressed. Comments in yellow applied to Ambition 1 (people will lead a
healthy and independent life); those in green to Ambition 2 (people will be part of a strong
community) and those in blue to Ambition 3 (people will have access to effective and
sustainable services). Those without a colour were labelled by respondents as addressing all
the ambitions.

Encouraging healthy lifestyles

e Greater support should be available for the most disadvantaged with additional
incentives to encourage healthy lifestyles.

e Support health diets in children and young people.

e Individuals know where to look to find the relevant information about services and self-
help and this is clear and easy to understand and is accessible to all

e "Create open spaces for exercise. Free from bike gangs scaring dogs and churning up
the paths rendering them unsafe to run or walk on. Create a strategy to tackle nuisance
noise and enforce fines. Create a scheme to support small businesses who provide
leisure , sport or education to the local area."

e Ensuring that infrastructure allows people to make healthy choices particularly with
regard to encouraging active travel which has been shown to improve people's physical
and mental health as well ensuring more interaction which will help build communities.

e creating neighbours and places which actively support and encourage physical activity

e look at education - the lack of basic home skills like cooking and food hygene means
that too many people rely on take aways and fast food. you need to know how to look
after yourself it you are to be indipendent and healthy at any age, i beleive a number of
the obesity isses etc is becuase peole no longer know how to cook a healthy cheap
meal.

e That young mums have access to parent centres where intervention can start early on
with the parenting courses they used to offer . Community centres for the teenagers.
Much more to keep teenagers off the streets and engaging in sports, music, arts to give

69

Page 93



Page 70 of 75

them things to do other than the drugs which are so prevalent and so easily accessed
these days.

e Promote access to health screening available.

e "Right care in the right place in the right time. People know they should be healthier. Its
difficult and it should not be a stick to beat them with."

¢ "No mention of seeking to improve any of these outcomes. So for example improving
air quality or transport links. No mention of mental well-being, thus impacts health. No
mention of considering new ideas to support the environment."

Mental health and wellbeing

e Need to prioritise mental health and support for young people including employment
opportunities.

e Mental health and well being should be on par with physical health.

e Support the young people with guidance to stay mentally healthy and fond employment
and housing.

e Provide a range of appropriate, effective, timely and targeted mental health
interventions to individuals families and groups.

e "More of a focus on positive mental wellbeing, rather than physical health (as one
impacts on the other) and the significant impact of the current climate even more so
than usual. Eg: Employers actively supporting employers to maintain positive mental
wellbeing. Employers to walk the walk, not just talk the talk. WCC to be a key lead
organisation and employer in leading by example in this respect. WCC are good at
talking the talk, not so much as walking the walk."

e Developing capacity for person-to-person Mental Health support, not just online
resources for self-help

e Ensure access to mental health services is timely and appropriate

e People need to diverse mental health support to enable them to self actualise

e There should be a much greater focus on people’s mental health. In 2020 a large
portion of the community were branded racists, locked in their houses and had things
dear to them taken away (including meeting people). The message given by the
Director of PHE for Warwickshire and published in local newspapers is that people
shouldn’t leave their houses even whilst in tier 1 and for a region with a low death rate |
think that there is a big trust issue that should be addressed. There should be events
that are organised for the whole community not just those defined as needy.

Environmental concerns

70

Page 94



Page 71 of 75

Reducing the need to use private cars; helping parents to learn to take their children in
a sustainable manner to reduce pollution and increase exercise

Addressing climate change and loss of biodiversity

Environment sustainability is critical to achieve all of these outcomes. They go hand in
hand - you will not have healthy communities without providing services, education,
goods etc in a sustainable capacity.

In terms of sustainability, this needs to include the requirement to be carbon neutral
and create a good, clean, healthy physical environment for people to live in.

Invest in and promote sustainable travel in particular cycling and walking for those who
are able to. Do this by ensuring that there is a suitable infrastructure for sustainable
travel and that all public and private organisations work together to ensure that all new
developments have this outcome at their core.

Joined-up services

Services need to be linked and share information on people they deal with-so
people/carers do not have to repeatedly explain their situation/needs.

71

Page 95



Page 72 of 75

Tie up existing services eg seamless interaction between schools, CAMHS, and
associated support services so children don’t suffer. Schools aren’t trained in mental
health issues and kids get missed and penalised.

Clear and effective communications between services to support those with dual
diagnosis and co-morbidity.

sharing of information between differnt agencis is critical if peole are not to fall through
the loop holes and be over looked. Until the NHS, Doctor practices, Social Services etc
can shre information on sime systmes which are aligned the ambitions of this
programme will not be achieved.

That agencies work together and share information eg, mental health, oa, local gp as
well as a review of a patients case by all.

Make sure services provided by different organisations are connected.

"Effective and efficient communication between services is key but there are barriers of
confidentiality which often prevent the sharing of vital information. Long term projects
should be supported so there is time to develop and grow - they should not change as
and when there is a government 'whim'. Encouraging communities to care for each
other needs the enhancing of volunteers and those who are unemployed or retired to
use their skills for the good of projects which can benefit all."

People feel listened to by health care professionals who consider their holistic needs
(mental & physical health, social and economic factors) and are empowered to access
appropriate support

"The answers | have given are not a true reflection of my opinion as the survey will not
allow me to select all the options. Allowing people access to holistic therapy may
prevent a person spiralling into psychosis and other mental disorder and save the NHS
money in caring for people with mental health issues in the long term."

Employment

Education and job finding help especially with young adults

Page 96



Page 73 of 75

Housing

Provide practical support, not directly linked to health, that enable people in older age
to maintain their homes.

Engagement

Any decisions and actions taken need to be open and shared with the community being
served

Whether people feel involved in decisions about their own care, the support that their
cares get, what happens in their communities etc.

Funding, monitoring & improving services

Reducing length of waiting times of treatable medical conditions (at the moment, no
organisation take responsibility for this issue ie GPs and hospitals need to be jointly
measured on these outcomes).

73

Page 97



Page 74 of 75

e People with long term conditions that will not improve/ be cured or even get worse
should not have to reapply for funding for various areas of their support-this is time
consuming, and stressful.

e "Not charging for essential care, especially when the carers are only given minutes
between clients. Ensure that carers speak clear English and do not talk in their native
language whilst in the presence of the client"

e Yes, invest more so as to comply with existing legal requirements

e How will WCC monitor & police effectively the performance of the care organisations
within Warwickshire.

Covid-19

e "l think you need a greater focus on building resilience early, and preventing problems
(especially mental health ones) at the earliest possible stage. And part of this - you
HAVE to make services available out of hours. There are a lot of relatively high
functioning people holding down jobs who are teetering on the edge of quite major
mental health issues - and there's really very little support for them. Until they crash
and burn and need serious health interventions. You also failed miserably with the roll
out of the flu vaccine in 2020. Pharmacies who could have been delivering the vaccine
in outdoor areas weren't able to get them, while large stores like Tesco had more than
they could use - encouraging EVEN MORE PEOPLE to walk through large, busy stores in
the middle of a pandemic. GPs ran out of doses, leaving vulnerable people - and their
carers - having to choose between not getting the vaccine they needed, and risking
covid infection. It's already been proven that the most frequently visited place prior to a
positive covid test is a supermarket - so why not get involved with the distribution of
vaccines? This really needs sorting - urgently!"

e Consider specific community needs likely to arise following COVID-19 pandemic - such
as additional mental health and drug and alcohol support.

e Voluntary and faith organisations are key means to carry messages and services and are
uniquely accepted and chredished by people. They are depleted after Covid. Please
replenish and support them.

Inequalities within Warwickshire

e Make sure you are meeting the needs of the BAME Community when it comes to care.
e With the increase of house building in my area (Weddington, Nuneaton), my local area
has almost doubled. No provision has been made for additional GP and Dentists. It is

74

Page 98



Page 75 of 75

extremely difficult to get in touch with the practice, i am often on the telephone in the
gueuing system for a minimum of 20 munites. The surgery now has patient in excess of
10 thousand. This is unacceptable for the residents and for the practice. | do not
understand why this has not been addressed

e Ensuring equality of services- so that people with learning disabilities can be supported
to understand information and access services as well as receiving ongoing support

Other

e Yes leave us to make our own decisions. Let us go to gyms & pools. Stop
scaremongering & maybe read about the globalists plan & stop it right now

e Positive support to prevent specific long term issues that are manageable with available
technology eg Diabetic Continuous Glucose Monitoring.

75

Page 99



This page is intentionally left blank



N T N e,

‘. - 4\\\_//41 /)
- . Wyl m
&. I B = | % Q : a .
4l | . "l R .
cc.cc TITT |
: St — e

a

wmﬂiﬁw
budA[OM

Puo U oo

TMUSHHNMIVN



Page 2 of 22

pIeog Bulaqjiam
pUE Uj}[eaH 811ysyalMmIBM JO Jiey)
ulogen sa7 Jojj1auno9

*80e|d yoes Jo ‘syibuais
8U1 U0 p|INg pue Spasu [BI0] }98LLI 0} PaI0|Ie} Uaaq aAey Sue|d UOIIe Jey) ains
Buiyew Ajjeao| ABajenS 8y BuliaAlap ul 8jos Aay e Aejd ||Im Jey} 8A1IN98X]
817 pue U1jesH e pue diysiaulied Buiaqjap pue yijesH e sey aoejd yoeg
10L11SI(] YOIMIBAA PUB JO11ISIQ UOAY UO PIOJBIAS SIBA0I — UIN0S e
ybnoiog Agbny sisnoo — Agbny e

ybnoiog
UUOMpag pue uolesunN pue ybnoiog aliuSYOIMIBA ULION SIBA0D — ULION e
‘8le
$398|d € IN0 ‘a1iysyoimiep uj A1aaiap 03 yaeoidde paseq-ade|d e Buiye) aie am
‘S81)IUNWWO0J 4no Jo} yB1l S1Y) 196 am Jey) 8InS 8yew 0] "SUBW}ILILLIOD 9S8y} U0
JBAI|3P 0] PAaU am 1xau pue ‘days 1S11) 8y JaAMOY SI 1| “aJIUSYIIMIBAN 10} Bulag||am
pue yijeay BuiAoidwl 10j UOISIA PUB SJUSLYILIWIOD INO INO S19S ABaIeAS SIU |

‘sleaf om)
1X8U 8U] J9A0 UO SNI0J PINOYS M YUyl am Sai1iolid 911199dS Se |[am Se ‘SIeak aAlj

1XaU 8U] 0} suoniquwe [aAs] ybiy 1no 1S ARy AN “Buiag|jam pue yieay Bulroidul
PUNOJE JUSLLYIWILIOD JaYLN} ALIP 01 6102 BUIaq||8A 10 1BaA ay) pue ABsiens
SNoIAaId IN0 W) WNJUBLLOW 8U} U0 PJINg 0] JueMm 8\ “WSISAS 81ed pue y)jesy
pajeiBaIul 810W B 0] SAOW B pUB UONUBA3Id U0 SNJ0J J81ealh B WiIJU0I Y10g Ue|d
917 PUR Y)[BoH JBSA OAI4 BJIUSYIIMIBAN PUR A1USA0Y) pue uejd Wwig)-Buo] SHN au |

yleay Ui saljijenbaul pue uoieAlidap ajdiynw Buioe} sjenpiaipul
8]BJaU|NA JSOW 8} PUB ‘SaNIUNWIWO0D (YY) 21Uyl ALIoUI\ pue UeISY yoe|g
uo sjoeduwi Ajgjeuorodoldsip yaiym waey jo Jaedwi sjgnop e siaisy] Z

PUE ‘S0IAJ3S 0] JoRdWI JOPIM 8L} pUBISISPUN 0} PaJinbal SI Saliepunoq
[eUOISIURDIO [RUONIPRI) SSOJ9R $Y00] YoIlum A1anoaal pajesbajul uy |

:uoneuaLWa|duwi Sy pue ABajeAS MBU INo pulyaq

SIaALp A8y aq [[m yatym sBuipury omy pajybiiybiy sey (H) uawssassy Joeduw|
U)[BSH 6 L-PIA0Y) INQ "S1aSN mau W0l aiem alwapued ay) Bulinp $aoiAles y)jesy
[BJUSLU 0] SNSIA € Ul | Se Ajlejnaiied Buiag|jam pue yijeay [eluawl Jiay) Jaje 4oo|
0 9|doad Buryoddns si Se ‘siy) 0] A8y SI aJ1| Ul Les 18 ay) 186 01 8jdoad BunoA
pue uaIp[Iyo Ino Buidjay -a2e) [|e am sabuajjeyd Bulobuo au) 8)1dsap aAlLIy] 0 9|qe
aJe JBy] S3IIUNWWOI 3AISaY09 pue pabebus Bullesso pue yijesy ui sanijenbaul
Bul|yae) uo pade|d aq 0] SPasu douepOdWI BJOW UBAS ‘Ollapued §L-pIA0T 8y}
woJs A19A0231 1IN0 J0 1Jed Se SaIIAIBS 19Sal pUB SANIUNWWOI P|INgal 0] 1UBIS aM Sy

'suoiouny £18190S moy pabiueyd Ajeaipes sey yorym olwapued
6L-PIA0Y 8yl Aq patjijdue Jayun} usaq Sey siy “Al1oedes Buronpal pue puewap
Buisealoul Jo 8snedaq Ajapim siow J0398s 91jgnd ay) pue WalsAs 81ea pue yjjeay

au Ul ainssaid Jurdniubis sialsy| 10z ul ABarens 1su1 ino souls pausddey
sey yonpy “saniunyoddo pue sabusjjeyd yioq sbulig yarym abueyo Jo 1xejuo9 e
Ul sJauyled pJeog Buiag|ap PUB YljeaH Ylim UOIRI0QR||09 Ul paonpoid ussq sey
ABajeng ay| “ai1ysyaIImIeA, Ul 8U0AI8A8 JO BUIBG|[BM pUB Yi[esy 8u) 0} 8ousI8}Ip
e ayew 0y Ajunyoddo [eal e syussaid ABajeng Buisq|iap puB yijesH mau InQ

Page 102



Page 3 of 22

..Sawoang aaly| ‘saaejd ino{ ‘spieog buiagiiam
pue yjjeay omj ‘diysiaupied aieg ® yjjeay aug,,

"0p am BuiyiAiana Jo Leay au) Je sjdoad Bumnd Aq ayl|

Auyeay ‘Addey e ansind 0] au0AIaa 9|qeud 0] Jamod Ino ul BulylAIans op 0] Juem
am 1ay1abo] "(d9H) diysiauiied a1eg pue yijesH S,811UySHIIMIBA\ PUB A1JUBA0Y)
$S0108 BUIaq||am pue yijeay o} UOISIA paleys Ino 0} paubije aie Suonique asay]

(6102 d9H) suoniquue 216a1eNS SAYSYIAMIBI PUB AjUBA0?) ;| 8nbi4

3IV1d LHIIY JHL NI 34VI LHOIY JHL Y3139 34V ONDIVIN 31d03d AHLIVIH

14

o o

oﬁo

:a1e a11ysyaIMIB/\ 10} Suolique 163jens wia)-buoj Ing

"U)[BaY O SjUBUILLIB)EP JAPIM BU} SS8IPPE 0] Jay1ab0) }Iom

[|IM 8M MOy adeys 0] pue $82IAJ8S BUILOISSIWIWOD 10} Sue(d Wwiojul 0] Sisuped a1ed
pue Y)[eay [eao| Aq pasn aq [|IM 1] “a11uSYoIMIBAN Ul BUIBq|[8M PUB U1[eay 10} UOISIA
1eaf-aA11 & 1n0 BuIMas Ag a1ed [I190S pue y)jeay JoJ 1xajuod Bulbueyd Ajpidel ay)

0} Spuodsas SMH 8UL "MeIp [Bul} SIUI UIYIM Pa}da|ial Uaq 8ABY UOIRNSU0D 8}
wouj sBuipui) ay| uswdojonap ABajels jo sabiels Ajiea ay) Bulinp Ylim paynsuod
BJOM ‘Bu1YSHIIMIBAA UI Buiyiom pue Bulall 8jdoad Buipnjaul ‘siapjoyayels Asy
*89119eJd poob pue Yaieasal [euoljeu uo Buimelp se |jam se ‘ABaieiiS Buiaq||am
PUB Y)BaH 0202-7 10z Jno woJj Buiules| (YNSF) 1uswssassy spaap d10ajens
JUIOM INO WOJ) 89uapIAa Juawabebua pue ejep Ag pawiojul St SMH 9202-120Z Ul

"JAUOISSIWWIOY BWILIY % 891104 BU} pUB 891AI8S 8114 AJIYSHIIMIBAN
‘S1SnJ1 SHN ‘(999) dnotg BuluoISSIWWOY [ealul]D) aJIuSYIIMIBAL PUB A1JUSAOY)
SHN ‘J1USY2IMIBA YalemuieaH ‘(YAYOM) U0ROY AJejun|oA pue Ajunwiwiod
BI1USYIIMIBA AQ pajuasaldal 10398 paIy} 8y} $|19unod 1911sIp pue ybnoiog Aunod
8U) Wouj slapes) Joluas Jayabo) Buibuliq diysiauied aAlieI0qe||09 & ‘(gMH) pJeog
Bu1aq|I8M PUE Ui[eaH S3I1YSYOIMIBA AG PAUMO S| SMH 8UL “BIIUSHIIMIBAN UILIIM
Uieay Ul ‘sanijenbaul 10 ‘saoualayip Buianpas pue Buisqjem pue yesy Buiroidwi
104 ueyd 8A8]-yb1y saI1ysYOIMIBM SI (SMH) ABBIBAS Bulag|ap Pue ylesH ayL

¢Abajens buraqiiam pue yijeaH ayi si jleym

Page 103



Page 4 of 22

"afueyo

0] SPaaU aweljawI) Jeak-om) Ino JI puesiapun o) Aieinbal seale Ajiolid Ino
1sutefe ssalfoid Bulojuow aq [|1m am ‘puitu Ui SIy) Yl Buiag)iem pue yijesy
]0 Seale ||e SS0JIB §1-PIA0T JO Joedwl ([N} 8Y) puBlSIapun 0] 194 ||11S 8Je am Jey)
9s1uB09a) S1auped GAH 8U) ‘U9ABMOH “SuoIque 21B81eAS WIa)-Buo] IN0 sAsIyIe
djay 01 UO SNJ0J PINOYS 8Mm SeaJe Jay10 ale aiay) Ji 10 ‘potad Jeak-om) Jayung

B 10} SaN1101d N0 UIBWAI PINOYS 8S8U) JI 8JeN|BAS ||IM 8M SIBSA OM) Ja)je pue
$a111101id 9S8y) 0] paje|a) SBLI0INO Ul BIUBWIOMS INO JOIUOW A[BUIN0J [|IM SN

"IIUSYOIMIBA UINOS pUR
‘fgbny ‘yuoN Jo Spaau Buisg)iem pue yeay auy) Siaaww eyl Aem e ui saijiond spim
-Aunod 1o uo snaoj |Im Asy) moy Buuijno ueyd uonoe ue BuidojsAsp St dMH
(B3 "allysyaImiep yinos pue ‘Agbny ‘yuoN 1o} (dMmH) sdiysiaulied Buiaqg)iam
PUR U)[R3H [BI0] PAUSI|QLISa SARY oM BaJe Lara 0] 1ybii sBuiyl bumab ale sm

1Ry} 81nS 9y 0] *, 1911SI UOAY UO pI0jRAS Ul Ajunod ay) Jo yinos sy} Ul BulAl|
So[eW UM pasedwod uaym Jaijies siesk 9°¢ abeisAe uo aip ybnolog yuompag
puB uoJesunp ul Aunod ayj Jo yuou ay) ul BuiAl| sajew ‘ajdwexa 104 "aAl| noA
8I8UM Juspuadap JayjIp UeI SaW0IN0 Bulaq||am pue uyijeay aliysyIIMIeA Ul

Uijesy
10 SJUBUILLLIS}AP J3PIM B} PUR SBLIOIINO L}{Ba Ul Sal)ienbaul 8onpay e

S8I)UNWILIOY INO Ul UoNUaAIaUl A|1es pue uoljuaAsid
punoJe Ajfejnaned ‘Buiaqg)iem pue yijesy [ejusi Jiay) sroidwi sjdosd djgH e

9)I] Ul 1e]s 158 a1 9Aey ajdoad BunoA pue usip(iyd Ino djgH e
:31YSYIIMIR\ 10} S0

1Bk OM] }X3U U} JAA0 U0 SNao) 0 Sease
Ayonid 831y pasibe ey gAVH U} ‘BIIUSYIIMIBA Ul SUOIJIGUIR 853U} LI J3AI8p O

Page 104



Page 5 of 22

(6102 ‘pun- sButy) japou yjfeay uoljeindod . ainbl-

"WAISAS 81ed pue U)jeay pajelbajul ue pue ‘yim

DU UI Al 9M SIIJUNLLILLI0I pue 8I8(d ay] ‘SajA1Sajl] PUB SIN0INBYaq Ljeay ‘Yijeay
JO SJUBUILLIBIAP JapIM U] aJe Seale 8sal| “(z 81nbij) Buiaq||am pue yijeay aausnjjul
1ey) SeaJe IN0J UBMIaQ LI01193uL09 8yl 0] uonuale Jajeald shed yoroidde y)jesy
uoneindod vy “Buaqjem pue yyeay sajdoad uo syoedwi Jey) Buiyifions 10 maia
211S1j0y B Saye) yalym yaroidde yijesy uoineindod, e Bundope ale am Janag Siy)

0p 0] ")|NS3J B SB $aWI0aN0 1$8q au) 190 sAemie Jou op pue AjiAloe Arejuawe|dwod
pue saibiauAs Ajnuapl 0 saniunuoddo sSiw Aeww am SUBSW SILY| "}JOM JO Seale
1UBJ3YJIP UBaM)BQ SUOIIBULOD 8] 8Yew pue op am Jeym dn uiof sAem|e 10u op am
1eu) pabpajmouyae si i Jarsmoy ‘Buiyiom diysiaupied Jabuouis usaq Sey aiay |

"891A\J9S 8NISBY PUR 8114 8U] PUB 891|0d 8y} ‘sybnoiog pue Sjouisiq

N0 Ul Swes) Buruue|d pue BuisnoH se yans ‘pasiubiodss A|Buisealoul ussq sey
Bu1aqg)iem pue yijeay ur siauped Japim Jo 8]0J 8y} ‘poitad Siy) JaAQ) "SJeak G 1se| ay)
1810 AB31BAS B} JO SUONIGUIE IN0 BulIBAIBP Ul SJUBLBASIYIE Y] Jo awos Jybiubiy
SM8IA3Y [enuuy 1IN0 pue gpH 8y} uo pajuasaidal uoljesiuebio yoes wouj Absjens
0202-71.02 8yl 10 Saiuond sy uo JaAIap 0 Justliwwod Bulobuo usaq Sey aiay |

Mou 90 dm daUp - Raurinel no

Page 105



Page 6 of 22

16 pawie yiom Jo swweiboud abie| e Buimo||o) 1sramoy “abeiane pue|fu
8} Uey) Jaybiy usaq Aj[ealioisIy sARY 811YSYIIMIBAA Ul BPIAINS JO S|8AST
*ajel apiains ayj u juawanoidwi ue uaas sey Aunod ayj jng
‘swajqoad yjjeay |eyuaw 3auaiiadxa sjnpe 1noj ui auo punody

49SBa10U1 0] AjayI|

S| $89IAJ8S Joddns o puewap ayl G20z Aq 000' J9A0 AQ 8SeaIoUl 0] 1SBI8.0]
UaIp|1y9 |00Y9s Jo Jaquinu 8yl YiM *,(¥z-01 abe) ajdoad HunoA Buowe sajel
WJBY-]|8S puUB $BNSSI L1jeay [ejuaL Buiplebal Sulaouod Buimolb aie alay|
‘958 J9pUN Ul SUOI)IPUOI 1}198dS |0Y0I|. 10} PasesIaul 0S[e dARY SUOISSIWIPE
[eldsoy pue saunful yiim [e)idsoy 03 paniwpe Bulaq aie -0 pabe uaip|iyo

10 Sisquinu Buisealou] ,859q0 10 1UBIamIan0 aie | |- | 8Bk usip|Iyd 9aiy)

U1 auo AjJeap ~spaau fuiseasaul aney ajdoad JabunoA pue uaipjiyy

*9J1] Juspuadapul

pue Auyjeay e pes| ajdoad djay 0] 821ApE PUR UOIIRIIUNWWIOD J8}1aq 10} paau B
s 818y “AAnae [eaisAyd jo ae| pue Ajissqo ‘uondwnsuod joyoaje ‘Buryows
0] PayUI| L8]0 ‘SN0 L3[eay Ul SaoUaIaIP 8|qePIOAR BIe 813y “cUaLIOM
10} SJeak oz AjJeau pue uaw Joj SJeak g1 JaA0 — Yljeay-||1 Ul Sieak Jaie| J1ay)
J0 810w Bulpuads ale 8jdoad *;Seale paAlidap alow Ul 8soy) uey) Jabuo| sieak
G Soewa) pue Jabuoj SJeak g JaA0 aAl| 0] 193dxa UeI Sajew Alunod ay) Jo Sied
paAlidap ssa) Ul “yyjeay J00d ui saaij 413y} jo uoipiodoad sajeash e
Buipuads pue saalj Japoys buial] sped paaudap alow ul sjuapisal
ypm ‘saiien jnq abeiane anoqe S| aysSyIIMIB/N Ul y)jeay ||eiang

1B} MOUY M ‘SIY) LIS

*aB1aWa 0] SanUNU09 Jlwepued

ay Jo 1oedw Bunse| ayy se pabueyd saey Aew eiep SIeak ma) 1xauU ay) J8A0 pue
W1} Ul Joysdeus e 199)Ja) sBUIpUI) 8S8Y] "YesIqIno ay) 89uls Wway) o) pabueyd pey
8J1] MOY U0 SJUBPISal 00G'Z JAA0 WOJ) pesy pue 0z0z Jaquisidag ui Juswabebua
J8UYUN Y003PUN M YBBIQINO 6 L-PIA0Y) 8} J0 Jybi| U] “Saliunwwod [eao] Bulae)
sanss! Aay ay) Jnoge suolesIueBIo Aunwwod Qg J8A0 pue S|BUOISSaj0Id

PUB SJUBPISal 0002 J9A0 0) pay|el aARY am NS N0 Jo Lied Sy "$82In0s Jo

abuel apIm B WOJj 83UapIA3 JO SIsAjeur ybnoly) A1Unod auy) SS0JJe Spasu pue
S]19SSe J0 Bulpuelsiapun Ino Bulpjing usaq aAey am Sieak OM) 1Se| 8y JaAQ

"D BIIYSPIMIEM YINOS

‘52D Aqbny 1 Alzusnod
"D YHON 2AYSHDIMIBAN

('92D) sdnoin
buruoissiwiwio) (p2uI)

Anuanod @
2IYSYIIMIEA YINOS D

Agbny g
YHON aliysydimiepy v

saip)d

1OU3ISIJ UOAY-UO-PIOJIRAS G
PLsIg pPmien ¢

} ybnoiog Agbny ¢
ybnoiog yuompag pue uojesuny ¢
ybnoiog aliysypimiep YHoN |

sauppunog ybnoiog
/ S1914351Q 3YSHIIMIDA

sauppunog
A13uano) pup anysynmipp

*89e|d 9B 0] Pai0|Ie] ik SUOIRPUBILIOIBI INO

8INSU3 PUR 811YSYIIMIBA UINOS pue ‘AgBny ‘YUON 8y} ulylim saijiond pue spasu
ay1 Anuapi 01 8|qe Uaq aney am yaroidde siy) Buiyenspun Ag (¢ ainbij) dJMH
[B20] yoea ulyjim ajdoad Jo Spasu yyeay auj uo pasnaoj Jey) yoroldde ue pasn
8/ $$8201d (YNSI) JuaWwssassy spasp 91621eiS JuIof 8y} Jo Led se juawabebus
PUB J0IBaSaI LBYRIIAPUN BARY 8M SMH MU 8] Jo JuawdojaAsp sy Wwiojul o]

Juawissassy spaap ifiajes)s juior

Page 106



Page 7 of 22

"9|qRIINS 10w aq AW Jey) SWIa) SAIleusa)(e [erusjod pue wis) ay) Jo Joedw syl ‘JNYg wAuoioe
3} JO 8sn 8y} Inoge suoissnasip Buipjoy Aq siuy ssaippe 0} shem Buiyaas AjaAiloe st 9o “sdnoib
1UY}d AJLIOUIW JBYI0 PUB UBISY YIB|g 0 S80usLIadxe 8y SaIn|Ip ‘910j8Iay} ‘PUB SaUIGWI0D Jey) W)

© S SUONe]ILLI| S} 8s1uBooal am ‘lanemop “ABajeis siu) InoyBnoly) JNYY WAUOIIR L) asn ap .

¢'S1IS09

Buisnoy Buneal Jnoge paulaouod ajdoad Ul 8SeaI9UI UR 0) P3| 9ARY JlWapued
9U] JO S1oedul [eIOURUL IBPIA "BJePOWLI0IIR 0} AN A10JNJeIS B pamo 8q 0}
AJ18WJ0) PasSasSe Uaaq Jou pey oym 19y ays Aousbiawa $saaae 0] s1adaals
ybnol gg| payoddns am aAI98IIp Ul 8UOAIAAS, 8U) Japun Jaeduwi 6 L-pino)

",/A191eS AJUNWLL0d pue yyjeay [elusw ‘Ajisdsold

9ILLIOU098 ‘JUSLIBASILJR [RUOITRINPA ‘SBWI0IINO SIeak A|Jea S109jJe Aj10aiipul

11 Se Burag|em pue yeay Japaq o0} spes| Buisnoy Ajijenb pooB Jey) mouy apn
"seaJe 139Y}0 uey) ssaussajawoy jo [an3] 13ybiy e sey Ayjunos ay|

"s,.8dnoJb

uesqqlien %ae|g pue ueisy yinos Buowe 1saybiy siem sajes A)ijeLOJ “S8dIAIeS
[BIJUSSSS 10 BUIJJUO} Ul BuI¥IOM 0] anp Ua)0 ‘dlwapued au) Jo aABM 1S11) aU)
Burinp sdnolB ysnig sNup UBY! 1-PIA0Y 01 8Ins0dxa JO ¥SII Pasealoul

16 80 0] Aj9y1| aJow aJam sdnoib J\yg wol) 8jdosd -Jaedw 61 -pinos

", puN0JB}IRq

a)ym e woJj ajdoad 1o} %G'¢ 0] pasedwiod 9% |'g SeM SaIJIUNLILLIOI AjLiouIL
91UY18 8WOS Ul JuawAojdwaun Jo 81el 8y} 6L-pIA0Y 01 Jolid Hiom Jo In0
Bu1aq 1o ysu Jaybiy 1e a1e sdnof Ayouiw d1uyle wolj 8jdoad “SjenpIAipul
ysniig a1y 01 paJedwod ssauj|l yieay [eluaw Jo salel Jajeald aney
Allenusiod o) palybl|yBly 818 punoiboeq (:3Nva) 91Uy ALoul|y pue
URISY %9B|g B WOJ} S[eNnpIAIpU| *Salunwwod aiuyyg Ayioury pue
ueISY “}ae|g pue 3}y uUaam}aq ISIxa yjjeay ui sanienbauy

210202 Ae|\ Pue 6102
e\ usamiaq sajel Buliedwoa uaym Sjuewle|d ul aseaioul abejuadlad 1sabbiq

8L} MBS 8JIUSYIIMIBA UMON "SIUBLLIRIO JO Jaquinu 8y} 8|qnop Jses] 18 Buiaas
yBnoJog pue JaLISIP Yea Yiim Aunod auy ssouoe Ajjueaijiubis pasesioul sajel
JUBLLIRJO ‘UMOPYI0] 1SI1} 8U) 80UIS ‘ISASMOH “SIOLIISIC PJOJIBIIS PUB YIIMIBA
Ul 819M JSMO] 8U) pue ‘ajes pue|fug ay) ueyy Jaybiy Aualsisuod aiam yalym

(BnoJog yuompag pue UoJesunp Ul aJam sajel 1saybiy sy} su1ySyIIMIB
$S012Y "020¢ UIBIN Ul %2'¢ 0} 6102 [HdY Ul %6 wolj Buiseasou; Ajjenpeid
Sem JIpal9 [esianiun Buiaigoas asoy) snid souemol|y Sieysas qor BuiAigdal
9|doad afie Buryiom Jo abejusaIad 8y} AIIUSYIIMIBAN SSOIOY Jaeduil 6L-PIA0Y

* 91| JO SIeak A|1pa 858U WO} PayS!|qrISa Apeal|e aie S3IURYD
8Jl| pue saiji[enbaul [e190S "SPJOYSSNOY BWOIUI-MO] Ul BAI| (0% 1) UaIp[Iyd Jo
%2 "9]199p PaAlIdap 1SOW PAIy) U} Ul a1 9z Pue ‘8|198p paAlidap JSOW puodas
89U} Ul 81 SYQST 91 Jayn}  *A|[euolieu paaidap 1SoW %01 8} Ul 818 (S¥0ST)

sealy IndinQ Jadng Jamo7 9 -ajl] ul paaaans o} saijiunpoddo s ajdoad
Hwij uonjeandap jo sjaxyaod ‘ymoah aiwouoaa pue sjjIys pue
uoreanpa uo aauew.opiad pooh Ajannesedwod s fjunoa ay) audsa(

"S89IAJI9S 91BI PUR U)[Bay U0 puBWap
a.nn) aBeuew djay o mou uoneindod abe Buiyiom pue JaBunoA au) ul yieay
aAlejuaASId U0 Snooj 0] paau ap 1oddns apiA0id OUM SI91RD puB SADIAISS O
ainssald Ind sanssI 8say | *,,80BI8AR [BUOITRU BY) MO[S] SI 8AOJE pUR Gg pabie
as0y) 10} aJeJ SISOUDRIP BIJUBLIAP PAJRWIIS 8l ‘Bj0UM U} SB 51 8U] SS0JY
", (yuoN aliysyaimiep Jo) abelane [euoileu syl mojaq pue Agbiny pue Aljuaao)
10} 80eJ3AR [BUOIJRU 8] O] JBJILUIS) BIIUSYIIMIBAN UINOS Ul 80RISAE [BUOIIEU 8}
uey} Jayby st (sabe |[e) erjuawap jo aouajeasld ayL “0¥0z Ul 21 0€ 01 0202

Ul 19G'9| WO} 8|qnop 1souw|e 0} pajoadxa ale Gg Jano asou) pue (puejbug Joj
%¥'8 L PUB BIIUSYIIMIBA UI %8 0) 80RIBAR [RUOITRU 8] UBY) G9 10 8bR 8Y) J8A0
a|doad alow aJe aiay| “uoneindod 1apjo Huimoib e sey aiysyaimie

'SU0NIpU09

Uieay [eyuaw Bunsixa-sid yiim ajdoad Buowe sinoireyaq Buiwiey-}(ss u
858aJaul Ue punoj ASAINS 61-IAQD SIIUSYIIMIBAN AU} PUB ;,SIBPIOSIP AlBIXUR
Burousiadxa sjdoad aiow Buleas pajiodal sa0IAIeS Joddns yijeay [rlusw
[2207 "asu0dsa d1wapued 8y} Jo 1nsal e Se pajoedwi Aj9Aiebau Usaq Sey
Buiaqg|iem pue yyjesy [euaw sjdoad Auew 10} 1ey) mouy ap\ -Jaedwi 6L -pInos

'G20¢ Aq paau u[eay [ejuaLL
B UJIM S32IAJSS L3[eay 0] Juasaid 0 A1l a1e 8jdoad BunoA pue synpe alow

‘s10198) %S BulAispun Ul sabueyd pue BuiSessoul yijesy [RIULL JO SSUIEM.
Ul “s00e1aAR puB|BUT BY) Y)IM 8UI| Ul MOU 8J. S3Jed [BI0] ‘UoIjuarald apiains

Page 107



Page 8 of 22

o.JOR1UOY 308] 0] 89} 89R|dal Ajajenbape Jou pIp SIy1 18] SIayl0

1S1IUM ‘S89IAI8S BUISSAIIL JO ABM JUBIUBALOD BJOW B pajussaidal Sjuawjuiodde
d9 [eNBIp 0} 11ys 8y} 8wos 104 popsad umopxao| [enul 8y} Butinp sBupes
18130 01 pasedwoa Saii|Ioe) 9S8y} BUISS3IIL IN0GR UIRLISIUN 8J8M PIIY) B pUB
fyiond doy e Se $89I1AI8S 0 $S8I0R pajiodal sjuspuodsay aeduw 6L-piAosy

‘papasu si
djay uaym aied Buissaaae jo agualiadxa ssajweas e Hurnsua pue
l18m Ae}s ajdoad djay o} uoljuanaid pue aied-j|as uo sSnJo} & YHm
‘papasu aie sadIAI3S J0 uoljeifiaul pue ssadae o0} sjuawanoiduy

"84MN} U} Ul pajowold 8q Ued 1 Moy pue paAladiad
SI'11 Moy ‘Buiasiun|oA [eao] uo 1oedwi Big e pey sey pollad oiwspued ay)
Buninp pre [emnw Buisijigow 0} asuodsas sjo0isselb ay | -jaedw 61-pinoy

*Aj10eded pjIng pue $92.0]

utol 01 9|41 diysiapes| Huijqeus, ue 01 Buiiys AQ SaiIUNWLLOD YlIM SYIOM ]I
Moy abueyd 1SN 10393S 911qnd 8y} pue ‘pajili| 8Je S8IIN0S8I 118U} ‘J9AIMOH
*foewiBa] pue Buipueisiapun ‘sylomiau aney Aay se sabus||eyd yyjesy
$SaIppe 0} pade|d 1Saq UsY0 ale Suoljesiuefio Aunwiwio) “AAnde Aunwwod

pue AJejunjoA Jo Ueam e pajubiubiy sey YNSP 4no — Apaedes Ajunwiwos

¢S8IIUNWWO0D
[B90] 418U} UIy)m 8BUBYD 81BWI|I U0 UONJR PUB LUOIBAIBSUOI U0 UONJR

[B90| 8B) 0} PSIBAIJOWL 1SOUI [38) PINOM SJUBPISAI PaYSe uaym ‘Ajjeuonippy
"S)IJaUaq Yl[eay pue [BlUBLUUOIIAUS WIB}-i8Buo) 1o diwspued sy} Bulinp
apew InoiAeYaq Ul sabueya ssauley o) Aliunyoddo ue si aiay) ‘Aljenb Jie
panoduwi 0} pa| Sey diwapued ay) Buunp aiyel} paonpay Jaeduwi 61-pIAog

"$98SaU||l A10jelidsal

Buneqglaoexs 10 Buidojanap Jo ¥si ay) Buranpal Buipn|our ‘Buaq||am pue
U1[eay Ino pue JUSLUUOIIAUS [BI0] INO 10} Yl0q S)ijauaq Jueaijiubis sey
abUBY 91eWI|9 U0 uonae Buiey pue Ajenb e Buirosdwi — Ayijenb iy

¢S13SN PLOJ J8YJ0 PUR J1}jel} INOQE UIsIU03 SI 810w 8|99
10 Yem 03 Bundo 01 Jal1ieq UOWILLIOD JSOW 8y} Jaramoy ‘dlwspued ay) Burinp
810W PaJaAd 10 pay[em aAeY SJUSPISal IIUSKIIMIBA -Jaedw 6L-pInog

"$8IJUSI UMO] INO

10 8Wos ul Ayijenb e Ja100d pue ‘djjel} peo. pasealoul ‘saolAIas Uuo ainssald
ur Bunnsal Agbny se yans seale ul yimoih uoneyndod pides Aq pspunoduwod
S| SIy] “afelane pue|Bu3 sy} 0} pasedw 0 Uaym aIIYSYIIMIBAA Ul SPROJ UO
painful Ajsnollas pue paj|iy ale sjdoad Jo ajel 1aybiy e — A}ajes peoy

.6 1-QIAQ2 0} 81ns0dx8 Jo SUIIU0J 0} anp Lodsuely
91|1gnd BuIsn JnOge 8|qBLOJWIOD SSB| |88} SIUBPISAY -Jaeduwi 61 -PIA0Y

*,,8WI1 8y} 1O ||e 10 awos Ajauoj ale Asy) Jodal Gg J18A0

uonendod 8y} J0 881U} Ul 8UO JBAQ PUB ‘S3IIAIBS S8R 01 NP 1l 8)eW
URD Yalym ‘syui| odsuesy a1jgnd 100d yyim UsYO ‘allySYIIMIBAN Ul SSIR
[eAn Ul 9l 8doad Jo piiy} e A|/eaN "uoI}e|0s] [e190S pue Ssauljauoj

0} 3)nquuod Ajuno3 ay) Jo sped awos ul Syulj Modsuel) Jood

Page 108



Page 9 of 22

"801APR SUaz1119 ybnoly) 1oddns Buissagoe

asoy) ‘saiuadoid Jo sbulies (943) 81eainiag souewiopad ABisus jing Buiag
sawloy a|qepuoye Jo uonlodold :Buisnoy Ariodws) ui 1o pasu Aond pue
ssaussa|awoy Aionels ‘Ausaod |an; :ssaussajawoy pue Buisnoy
"SINSEALL UOISN|UI [IOURUIL PUR [R)IBIP S[RaW [00U9S 83J) :UOIjeAlIdap
a|diynw Jo xapul :SyuBq poo] Jo asn ‘ajes JuswAo|dwa [[eIaA0 8yl pue
Salll|1qesip Burules) Jo Ui[eay [ejusw Y)m asoy) usamiaq ajes JuawiAolduws ul
def ‘JuswAojdwa ur ajdoad ‘SjuBWIRD 1P3ID [BSISAIUN :UOISN[IUI IIWIOUOIT

'SB 1JONS SI0JeaIpUI PUR SAIHIUNLILLIOD
N0 Y)IM S3IIAI9e Juswabefus YyBnoiy) paIoluow aq [[IM [aAR1) JO UOI98II(

"Spaau s,9|doad

199W A8y} 8INS )RW 0] 8|qISSOd 81aUM SaINIUNLWWOD INO YJIM S8IIAJSS 89npoid
-09 ||IM B\ "SBLOAN0 PaJ-AUNWILIOD PUR JUBIDIS 810U ‘PajelBajul 81ndes

0 Sayoeo.dde mau JJoddns pue ajgeus 01 SOA 8yl Yiim sdiysuorejsl Buons
BuI)SIXa N0 UO P|ING 0] BNUILOD [|IM PUB ‘UOIIR [BI20S pUB BULISBIUN|OA JO S|OAS|
asealoul ‘A1oedes Ajjunwwod pjing o) yoeoidde paseq-syibualls e ayel ||Im ap\
"SUO0IJ98UU0I [190S pue Buisnoy 81ndas ‘sqol 0] $$8998 UiIm ‘aAlIy) 01 Ayunpoddo
8] Sey au0AJaAs a1ayMm JUBLLLOIIAUS AU)eay B 818310 0] (SHA) 10198S AIUNWWo9
pue Alejun|oA ay) pue SaIUNLWILIOY Y)M JayleBo) Buiyiom ueaw am siy) Ag

‘Aunwwod Huosys e jo ped aq |jim 3jdoad “g
"SALLOY 8J8d BUISINU pUB [eIUBPISAl 0} UOISSIWPR AQ 1aW spasu oddns
'UOI}B|0SI [B120S ‘SUONRSIUNWLWI N} ‘sisoubeip enuswap ‘s|je) :ajdoad 1ap|Q

'sniels Bupjows :ssaujjam/ssaurddey ‘$498yd
U8y J0 Jaquunu ‘ajes 8pIains ‘sUOISSILIP. [0Y0I|e :8$8q0 pue Jybismisno
's)inpe aAnoe AjeaisAyd ‘Aoueyoadxa | Ayeay :synpe abe-Buiyiom

"SY99M XIS Je Salel BuIpas) 1Seaiq ‘G JeaA 1e Buiag|iem
pUR Y)[eay [e1usw ‘aAnoe Aj[eaisAyd ualp|iyo ‘SauIpeal [00YdS :W.ey-1[aS Oym

8]doad BunoA pue ualpjiya :Ausaod ui BuiAl usipjiyo ‘aauewiopad (SHINYD)
S8OIAJAS U}[Bay [BIUSL JUSISB|OPE PUR PlIYJ ‘SUOISSIWPR Bnip pue joyodle g}
Japun :saun(ur Joj suoissiwpe ‘ubiam Auijesy :ajdoad BunoA pue uaipjiyg

'SB 1JONS $10JeaIpuUl PUB SAIIUNWWOI
N0 YlIM SaI1IAIN9E JuaLwabeBus YyBnoiyl paloliuow aq [|IM [aAR1) JO UOI98II(]

"papasu
aJaym poddns Ajaun ‘anjoale Buipiaold pue Bulaq|jam pue yijeay Jiay) sroidul
0] U098 aye) 01 9|doad Bullamoduws uo aq |jim Snaoj ay| “ajdoad Jap|o ul Ayjiel

10 Juawido|anap syl mojs 0 pue ||am abie 0] 8jdoad Buid|ay suesw }| ‘suclUsAIB)UI

9180 pUe U)jeay Jsi[e10ads pue xa|dwod uediIubis alinbal Asy) alaym juiod ay)

0 Burie[easa woJs wayl JusAaid 01 Juem am ‘swiajqoid yeay Bunsixs aaey ajdosd

J| "8I Ul 18IS 1880 U Sey pue aAlly} 0] Ajunjoddo awes au) sey pliya A1ana 1ey)

INs ayew 01 Jayyabo) Buiyiom sueaw 1| “Bulag|em pue yijesy elusw pue [eaisAyd

10 9)e1s poof e ur Bulag uesw am Auyleay, Ag “jjam pue Ayyeay Aeis ajdoad djay 0y

sinoiAeyaq pue sajfisal| Ayyeay Jusiadwod Ajjesnynoa Bunowoid ueaw am siy) Ag

*8J1] Juapuadapui pue Ayjjeay e peaj |jim 3jdoad |

:0Je 9A3119e 0] 9d0oy am S8LW0aIN0 3y} pue Juspuadaplalul ie suoniguue asay |

LERINUERENTINEEEE] SAILINNININOD INOYLS 31d03d AHLTV3H

/

v

"SJUapIsal Ino Jo Buiagiem pue yyeay ay) 1o} suonique aibajess
BuiyoIeIan0 931y} Buisodoud aJe am ‘spasu [e20] o BuIpuR)SIapUN SIL) UO Paseg

Page 109



Page 10 of 22

1]}

y .

"U01IpU09 113y} abeuew 0 payjoddns Buljes) ajdoad :suol1jpuod w.a) huo

"9ALIY | 01 dn paubis $assauIsNg pue Sj00YIS JO Jaquinu :Buigriosald
[B120S JO UOIBN|RAS S|B1IB)al/30uR)SISSE BuIyess Suosiad a|qelaunA
'SSaul|auo|/y)(eay [ejuaw Buryoe) sdnoib SOA Ul uoljediolied ‘sainsesu

Buiguasald [e190s ‘sSau|l [BluawW Snolias Yyim ajdoad Buowe pue sannaip

Buiuies| yyim ajdoad Buowe $493y2 yijeay jo ayeldn :uonuanidjul Al ey «

"syled A1junod Jo asn
'sa)noJ Buijoho pue Buiyiem :uoisnjoul [eybip ssimny Janij 01 [eiislal ((SHINYD)
SO9IAIAS U)[RAH [BIUJA 1UBISBIOPY PUB PJIY7) 10 Sawl} Buljiem ‘Saijuad
2INsI9| J0 asn :a0eds uado 01 SS8IJR ‘|aARI) BAIIJR AL} Juswwulodde gonoeld
d9 yum paijsijes sjusijed jo uoiodold ‘$801AI8S Yljeay [elusw A1epuodas

U)Im 19e1U09 Ul uoleindod ayy ur synpe Jo uonjodold :S39IAI3S 0} SS3IIY

|e)dsoy WOl 8Jed JO SIajSuUeI) Pake|ap ‘SUIRap JaJUIM SS80X8
:80.1e40sIp JO SABP Q€ UIYIM SuoIsSIwpeas Aousbiswa :S391IAI3S Jo Ajijenp «

SE (JONS SI0JeaIpUl PUB S3IIUNLILIOD
1IN0 )M SaNIAR JuaLuaBieBua YBnoJy) paIojiLow aq || [9ABI} JO LORYAIIQ

‘sanljigesip Buruses) yym sjdoad Buipnjour spasu Jo abuel e 1oj A)N|1QISSa09R pue
S[eLajew Jo 99U8JadWO0d [RINYNI BINSUS 0} SIBSN 8IIAIAS UJIM ¥IOM pUB 8]qIssod
JaUM S1ap|0yaxeIS A8 Y)im SBOIAIBS 8aNPOIA-09 [|IM SAA “U1[eay Ul Sallijenbaul
99NpaJ 0] $498S Jey) Aem e Ul paubisap ale Jey) saalaas Ajljenb-ybiy pue
‘8AISUOASB ‘3](ISSAI0 AO[BABD 01 ¥88S [|IM B\ “S80IAIBS 1SI[BI10adS pue Xa|dwod
asn 0] Buipaau woj 8jdoad JusAald 0] uouaAislul A|Jea uo Snaoy 0} siauped d9H
PUB SHA Ul J8U1aB0] YI0M |[1M BN “SUOIUSAISIUI B|dI}|NW PIOAR PUR ‘SBIIAISS
N0 Y1im aAey a1doad Suondelaul Jo Jaquinu sy} 8anpal ‘ajdoad 1o} $8LI0JIN0
po0B 8A31ye 0} ABM 1S3 B} UO SNAOJ ||IM BN “AIIUBAOT) PUB BIIYSHIIMIBAN

Uj0q Joj spaeog Buisqy|ap pue yijesH aul Aq paumo ‘jep1odauo?) Buisqjisp pue
Ul[BaH 8J1USHIIMIBAN PUB A1JUBAOY) BU} 0} paufi|e 0S| a1k SaW0IN0 8say |

"S3IINI3S 3|qeuleSNS pue aAI}Iaya asualiadxa [|im ajdoad "¢
"$8INSBALL 891AJ3S Buiag)am s1a1ed ‘ay1| pjnom Aay) se
1OBIU0J [RIJ0S YINLL SB 8ARY OUM S81ed )npe Jo abejuadlad :poddns siaieg «

"Speo)

s,puelBu3 uo sanjenses (1SYy) painful Ajsnowias pue paj|iy :Alajesg peoy o
"1odsuel) 91jgnd J0 SN ‘SUOISSIWA Z07) ‘SPOyIaW [aAR1) 8A19R Buisn apew

sdu Jo Jaquinu :uonnyjod Jie Jo |9As) :saanseaw Ajjenb 1ie pue podsues) o

Page 110



Page 11 of 22

L

BU119A0D SSaIPPE 0] SWAISAS [[e 10 Seale Aay SaIjluap! SIY| g, WaISAS A1aAs J0)
ue(djuiod - aAlf  :AWOU093 8Y) Ul 818 pue Y)eaH 10} 8]0y 8y :18S8Y SHN,, Hodau
UOI1eIapaju0n) SHN aus Ag pajybijubiy si Awouoos [edo] ay) Buluayibualls pue
Buiaqg|iam pue yijeay Bunowo.d Joj seyoroidde waysAs-sjoym Jo souelodwl ay |

"8A119R 93y 0] aU0AIaAs 1oddns 0] Juswdinbs Aejd pue
‘syJed ‘sal)l|1oe) (20| aA0IdWI ||1M SaI03RAS 99RAS UBBIH PUB LOIRaINA] ‘BINsIg|

(6102 ‘pun4 sbuiy) yieay uoneindod oy yoeoidde ing -G ainbi4

pue ‘aA1oe AjjeaisAyd aq 0y ajdoad 1o} Ajunyioddo Jajealf apiAoid ||Im Jey) [9AR1)
BAI0R 9|(BUIRISNS 8I0WW 0) SAPOW Jodsuel) Ul 11ys & poddns |jim ueld Lodsuel
(8207 8y} “AjJejIWIS “pasu [BI0] 198w 0} Buisnoy pue ainjonlisesjul Asy apiao.d
[|IM PUR S1I1YSHIIMIBAA SSOJR UOIjRIaUaBaI pue JuswdojsAap 10} UOISIA 8] 18S [|IM
1ey) sa109)e.1S 8109 pue suejd uswdojsAap B0 “U1[eay JO SIUBUILLIBIBP JapIm
8} Ul SjuawaAo.dwi aausn|jul aJojeisy) pue Bulurel) pue JuswAo|duws 0} $Saade
anoudur |1m yaiym suejd yimolb pue saifislells 21LI0U0I8 Se yans ‘suejd pue
sai0a1e1S J8U10 Aq Ajoalipul paIsAl|ap aq ||IM SUONIGWE INO 0} Paje|al SL0IIN0
8] 10 8WOS "WBY) UsBM]3Q SUOI1I8UL0I 8y pue Sjuauoduiod 8say) |0 yoes
1ApISu0d |(1m suejd uno pue jybu suonepunoy asayl Bursb ur seAul o) uejd s

"BIIUSHIIMIBAA Ul SBIIAISS
JBAI[SP PUB UOISSILWOI 0} Jay1aBo) Buiyiom Si8piA0id pue SI8uoISSILILLI0D
9180 |RI190S PUR U)[eay — wa)sAs alea pue yjjeay pajesbajui uy o

*89U901(|8)U1 PUB BJBP [BIO| WO} SI9SSE PUR SPasu [edo)
10 BuipueSIapuUN 1IN0 AQ paLIojul ‘SUOIIN|OS 8SIIGOW 0] SANIUNLWLWIOI INO Y)IM
18U1900] BUIYJOM — ylIM pue ul 8AI| am S3ljlunwiwod pue sasejd ay] -«

"$921049 9|A1S9)|
Ayyjeay 03 SIaliIRQ 8]YIE) puB JoRdWI 8SIWIXeW 0] SawweiBold uonuanald
Buireuiplood pue Buiubije — sajAysayl| pue sinoiaeyaq yyeaying o

“JuawuolIAU Ayljesy e pue odsues ‘Buisnoy ‘awodul ‘JuswAojdwa
‘U01BINPA SE YINS U1[eay JO SJueUILLIBIeP [B190S 8y} Bulssalppe ybno.y)
sallijenbaul yeay apyae) 03 diysiauiied ul Buiyiom — sjueuIwad}ap 13pIM o

'SueaWW SIy)
alIySYaIMIBA 104 *(G 8unbiy) Buiaq|jam pue yyjeay s8doad uo joedui Jey) Seale inoj
U0 paseq SI pue pun4 s,6uty ayy Aq pado|ansp [apou B WoJ) usyel SI )| -abueyd 1oj
UOISIA WJ8)-Buo| IN0 8A3IYIR 0) WA)SAS Bulaq|iam pue Uijeay e Se op am Buiyif1ana
urdiapun 01 a11uSYIIMIBAN J0] YJomawel) yijeay uolendod e uo Buiyiom ale sp)

372Ut 190 aM M Motk

Page 111



Page 12 of 22

¢l

‘(Unos ‘Agbny ‘yuioN) saeyd yoes ur uorendod ay

10 Y3jeay ay) Jo Bulpurisiapun ay} Ul pajoo. aie Jey) suejd uoljejuawa|dui (20|
dojanap |11m Ay} Jayiabo] “japow Yljeay uonendod syl UIYIM Seale Inoj ay) 1o
1yB1S18A0 21081R11S BARY ||IM PUB SMH 8U1 10 AIBAIISp 8} Ul 8|04 [e1onid e Agjd ||Im
(39H) SaAIINJ9X] 81e)) pUB UI[BaH PUB dMH 98U} InQ A1esSa0aU | SIeak om) Joye
seale A1io1d 1no abueyd pue Ajjenuue seale asay) uo $seifiold 1IN0 MBIAI ||IM B

“J}[B8Y JO SJUBUILLIBIOP JAPIM SU} PUB SALIOINO Y}[Bay Ul Sanjijenbaul 8onpay

"SAIIUNWILIOD INO Ul UonusAJaiuIl AjJes pue uonusAald
punoJe Alenaiyed ‘Buiaqg|iam pue ujjeay [ejuaw iay) saosdwi ajdoad djsH

"91] Ul RIS 1594 8y} aney ajdoad BunoA pue ualp|iyo Ino djaH

:0] aJe salyiold

[BIUl 981y1 INQ -olwapued ay) Jo Jordwi-8jgnop, 8y 0} 8np ddusuiwoid siow
S$HAJ9SEP MOU pue yiom Ino Buiuuidispun Aiond e usaq Buoj sey sanijenbaul
yjeay Buronpay "mMou JUeAS|aI UlBWIal pUe S1apes| 101uas Uiim sdoysyiom pue
sbulpuly YNSI U3 ybnoJu paljuap! a1am Saftolid omy isily 8y “1a§ag op pinod
M 818UM Seale a1k A3U) Jey) MOy am asneaaq Sallliond asay] U0y aAey S

"Aunoa ay) 1o} saniold pue sanssl

Bulaq||am pue yijeay Jayio uo Aaaiysod joedw ||Im ‘aJay 8IUBIBLIP B SYeW aMm J|
‘JeU] Seale 8. 853U 1By YUIU) BN “SIBLI0 8U) 0] SYUI| PUR anssI au) Buissaippe 0]
$9)NQLIU09 Jusuodwod yoea moy BulAjuap! ‘yiomawel) yijeay uoljendod auyj Jo
Sua| 8y} ytinouy) eale Yyaea Je 400 ||1m ap\ “AlIAIOR Buiisixe 8jeasdn 0] wnjuswouw
pue ABJaua Bueald pue SUOINYBUL0I Bulyew Ag anjeA ppe o) I abusjjeyd ay) pue
SeaJe 8Say) Ul suop Buiaq Apeale yiom Jesid o yieam &SI alay] (9 ainby) ajif 0]
}JomaLel) Uyyjeay uoneindod no Bulig pue Buiiom jo SAem mau Ino 1$9) 0] Seale
959U asn |11m apA “diystaunied ul JayiaBio) BuiIom Ag WIB)-LIOUS BY) Ul 99UBIBYIP
8]q16u.) B 8YeW UL 8Mm 8i8um SaIpI0LId JeIjIUL 334U} PaIJIUSPI BARY BN

saijiond ing

||
*01/qnd 8y} 10J S8DIAIBS
BA0JWI |1IM 11 813UM S8111|1GeIUN0IR pUe S18BpNQ ‘$801n0Sal [00d |[1M BN
"$OINIUNWILWOY INo Jo Bulag|jam pue yesy sy} wiojsuel) o) Aljiqisuodsal e
9Ieys am Jey) Buisiubooal ‘SjuspIsal pue $assauIsng (e90] 10198S AUNWILIOD
pue AIRJUN|OA “10]93S 21jgnd 8y} usamiaq sdiysiauiied urejuRW ||IM SN
"pie0g Buisq|ap pPUe yijesH syl U0 pajuasaldal ale Jey) suoijesiueblo
|[e Ag SuonnqLIu0g JounsIp ay} anjea am :Ayjiqisuodsal furieys

"S19PIA0IA JUBILIP WOI) SuonuaAglul adiynw BuiploAe pue

$99IAJ9S 1IN0 YlIm aAey 8jdoad suonoelaiul o Jaquinu sy Buronpal ‘ajdoad Joj
$ALW09IN0 POOD 9ABIYIR 0] ABM 1S8(Q 8U) UO SNJOJ [|IM B\ "SPaauUl [el1a0S pue
U1jeay Buidde-1ano 118y) pue saAl| s,9)doad Jo Ajixa|dwo auy) Jo JUN0IIR 8Y.)
UoIym saoiAias ubisap 0] Jay1abio) YoM ||im am :S33IAIS Huljeuipio-09

"91q1ss0d a1aym Sanjaswiay) abueyd peaj 0] ‘way) afeinooua pue apirod

M S8DIAJ3S BU] WOJ) JUBM ABU] JeuM pPUBISISPUN 0] SJUBPISaI O] US| |[1M S0
"$9IIUNWIWIOI 8|ge)s pue Buons poddns 0] 10123S ARJUNjOA PUB AUNWWIOD
38U PUB S8IIUNWWIOD UIIM YIOM [|IM M :S3Ipunwwod fuiuayjbualyg

"SUI9U09 1yl uo Bunoe pue sanond sajdoad [eooj 01 Buluals!|
‘SWa|qoud 10 $asned 100 8} SSAIPP. 0] %38 [|IM N “SaIIUNWILLIOI pue
Sal|ILey J18y) ‘SaAl| 5,81doad uo yijeay-|i1 Jo 1oedwl sy} 8anpal 0} swajqoid
P3e[8I-U[ay 10 SBSNLI 8U} 9|YIe] ||IM am :uonjuanaad Buisiiond

'Siauyled paeog Buiagiap pue
U)eaH Se yJom am Aem ay) uidispun |jim ‘1eploaun?) Buisq)apn pue yijesH
BIIUSHIIMIBA PUB A1UBA0Y) 8y} J0 1ed wio) yorym ‘sajdiourid Buimojo) sy

Buiyjiom jo shem ing

"suejd A18A0981 pue
sa1j1ionid paseq-aded (B0 N0 pue suonique 2163jes)s IN0 |0 YILs 0} 8IUBAS|3)
9ABY 953y | "dIlWapued 8yl Wwoj A18A0281 8} Ul U01eI01sa) 91AID Bulioddns pue

syJomauel) Butuueld uiynm uijesy Buippaquis ‘ureyd Ajddns [eaoj sy Buipjing
‘SJUBPISAI [BI0] JO JuBWINIB Bujuaylbuals ‘SuonnIIsu| 10yauy Jo 8|01 ay)

Page 112



Page 13 of 22

€l

NOIMIBA WOJJ Jey Aj@iewixoldde yiim yinos ay) ul Gz Jo jood e wolj
P3]99[8S aJam G| 1S|IUM ‘UlIompag pue uojeauny pue ybnoioq ay) Jano ||e
woJj ajdoad ym 8sIn02 8y} Ul 1ed ¥00) 8jdoad (| aIIUSYIIMIBAN ULION U

"0S[e [19un09) ybnoiog 8y} WoJ) YLON 8y} Ul SUOINGLIUOD UYlIM [19UN0Y)
Auno? aiysyaimiep ubnolyy papuny pue ulol 0] 881} 81em $asSIN0J ay |

'8]doad BunoA yiim Y1om 0] aAlRIIUI
9]IyMULIOM B apIA0.d 0] 8|qe pue papoddns Janaq aq pinoa s19aloid
UINoA ‘seale [B20] 8y} Ul SIayiom Loddns yinoA payipaidde Jo [00d B Y

"SpIemy gy Aq 89119814 XJOM YINOA Ul PIBMY 2 |9A97 B PapIemMe
aJam Sjuealjdde [nyssaaons Buias YinoA e ul Juswaoe|d paseq-yiom
yjuow-9 e uo paseq o1joj0d Jiay) paje|dwiod BuiAey pue paulel} aduQ

"sJayJom Joddns yinoA eaoj 1o sjood yst|qeiss 01 awweiboid Buiuren
P3)I1paI99k Ue unJ 0] S1aued |19un02 1911sIq pue ybnolog pue Hom Aq
payoeoldde alam alIySYIImIBAN SSOIIR Bulyiom uoresiuebio yinoA [eaoj e
18114 8]doad BunoA ‘ai1ysyaIMIBA\ UINOS SS0JJR pue ybnoloq aliysyoImien
YUoN U1 oddns psj-yinoA pue sdnoif yinoA Jo ¥oe| e 01 asuodsal Uj

"o:SUOIBIBUSD snoisid ury) uieay [ejusw Jood pue

$SaUIaU0| Jo S|9A3| Jaubiy Buiodas aie Aay| -19xsew Buisnoy Buibus)ieyd
810W B PUB ‘6 |-PIA0Y WO} Joedwi o1wiou0ds ayy Aq pausybiay ‘jeyew
noqe| a|qeisun ue aoe} ajdoad BunoA sAepoj “suoijessusbd snoiasid

10} SeM 11 UBY JNdILIP 810w $¥90|q Bulp|ing [e)A 8say} Bulindas

S8YeW Jey) JustiuoilAus ue ul dn Buimolb ale ajdoad BunoA inQ

siayio poddns
yinoj pauiel) Ajjeaoj jo jood e Buiysijqelsy :Apnjg aseq

*aJ1| ul peys ajqissod 1saq ay} pjiya A1ana anib o} 1ayjahoy y1om [jim
am uoluanaild pue uopuaniadlui Jaijaea o} yaeoidde pajabie) e Hunjel
Ag ‘Bunisip uyieay se yans ‘ajdoad BunoA pue uaip|iyd 1oddns Jey) S0IAISS J8Y10
N0 YNM yaro.dde awes Siy) Buie) ale ap “pasu 0] ajeuoljiodold s $32IALSS 0]
$$8998 Jey) 8Ins Buiyew pue mainay Aaueubaid ur Bupjows (S|\T) S9IAIBS

Ajuigie\ €907 1IN0 WOI) SUCIRPUBLLILLI0DA 8U) JuaLa|duul 0} Bulyiom aie am
y)eay ur Ayifenbaul Siyj 81498} 0] "YInos 8y} 0} pasedwod Ajunod suj Jo YLON

U] Ul Jaybiy ase A1A119p |0 LI 8y Je BuIYOLWS JO Sajey "8SIn09 all| 8u) J9A0
$WO09IN0 Y}jeay uo Joedwi Ued siyj ey pue saigeq Jo 1ybramyyig sy} uo joedw!
UBJ SI3YJ0W JO Sniejs Buiyows ay) 1eyl mouy ap\ “Ueld Wis] Buo SHN aul uiylim
Aionid A8y e S1yuig alnjewsald Jo %S 1 siayiow 1o} oddns eixa Buipirold

"811USHIIMIBAN
$S0J0B SUOIRUIIIRA JO axeldn Buiroidwl 0) pajiwLOo ale am Aym pue ubiedwes
Burjeuraaeauohiie)# 1o paliels aAey am Aym si siy| “sdnolb s|gessujnA pue
UaJp|1ya 10 Yeay 8y} uo 19eduwi Jofew e 8ABY PIN0I YIIYM ‘Saseasip a|qejuanaid
-3U190BA J0 89us0INSal B PIOAR 0] JuBLOAWI SI BIIYSYIIMIBAN UI 8Ye1dN Po0Y)
")BaIgIN0 6 L-PIA0Y 8yl Bulinp pajeulddeA Buiaq usip|iyd Jo sisquuinu ay) ul
9SB2198P B USSJ SeY 818y} 8JIYSIIMIBAN Ul A|[B90] PUR Aj[BUOIBN "S8SE8SIp O
Jaquinu e JsureBe 198101d 0) Aj101id yyjeay [BJIA B 816 SUOIJBUIIIBA POOUP|IY)

"abeIUBAPRSIP POOYP|IYD

8])9e) 0] %99S pue ABajels ay) Juswa|dwi 0} sisuped SOA pue Sisquaw gMH
Yum diyssauped ui yiom im pue ABayesys Apanod Ajrwed syl padojanap sey
J9M "$198dsoud s,usipiyd uo AjgaiieBau 1oedwi Ued diyspiey [eioueul ‘[eaw
|00U9S 881} B 10} 8]q16119 AMaU UBIP|IYD JO JBQUINU 8] Ul 8SB3JJUI UR SE ||9m Se
‘UBIP|IYD Yl Saljiey 0] uaAlb Sjaased pooj JO JaquInU 8y} Ul aSeaJaul LB Sem
811 1BUI MOUY aM ‘0Z0z |1idy pue yoJe|A Usamiaq ‘ajduiexs 104 -olwspued

6 1L-PIA0Y) 8y} Buimoj|o) diyspley [eloueulj Ul SIA|BSWBY) PUNO) BARY Sal|ILLR) IO\

"Buiag)am pue yijesy [elusw Jiay} uo pajaeduul aAeY ||1m 8jijawoy

pue uoieanpa 03 uondnisip sjdoad BunoA pue uaip|iyo Auew 104 -olwaspued
6L-PIA0Y) ay1 Inoybnouy) sabus|ieyd Jurdliiubis paouatiadxs arey ajdoad

BunoA pue uaip|iyy pie| ale Juswdo|aAsp 10} SUOIIEPUNO] By} Uaym (om] abe 0}
uo13daouod woly) sAeq [eanuy 100, 8y ur syualed Joj yoddns Buipnjoul ‘Ajies
11e1s 0] spasu Joddng $aaueya 8yl] pooh aAey pue ‘|ooyas 1o} Apeal ‘ules| 0}
Apea a1e UBIP|IYD 8INS BBW 0] [BIIA 816 $3UBLIBAXS A|Jea 8AIS0d Jey) mouy S\

ajll
ul pejs 1saq ay) aney ajdoad HunoA pue uaipjiya ino djay - | Ayiod

Page 113



Page 14 of 22

148
siakojdwsa Buryoddns aie am (YOINM) ALIoyINy paulgquion SpUBPIA IS8 Ul UM
diysiaupied uj 81| Jo Aljenb ul sjuswaAcidwi [[RJaA0 0] BUNNQLIU0D ‘UOIRSIIES
ol pue AjIAionpoud Jjels $asealoul aJoiom Aujjesy pue Addey e Buirey ey
SMOYS 39UBPIAT “8A0.dWI UBD 8M MOY 83S 0} 858U} BUIMBIASI 0] PAJJILULLIOD 818 BM
AUM SI YIIYM ‘$819110d UMO INO UIYIIM PaJapISU0 S| Buiag|jam pue yiesy [eyusw
8INSUd 0] JUBM 8\ "6 102 Dulinp mes am UO119e 8AI}ISOd 8y} Y)im anuijuod o} aji
1o} Buiaqqia Huiyoune| aie am ‘Buisqya Jo Jes Ino Jo $$839NS 8y} Buimoj|o4

"U1jeay [ewuaw aAnIsod anoiduwi 0) ajdoad Joj poddns ansijoy

BA0.dWI 0] BIYSHIIMIBA PUB A1JUBAOY) SSOJIOR SUOINESIUBBI0 SOA pUB SIauled 81ed
pue yijeay Jayaboy sbutig ‘(1 dMD) 1sniL diysiauied aiysyoimiep pue Aljusao)
Aq pa| ‘diysiauyied 1ayjahog Bumpiop oy ‘siy) jo Led sy “yieay Ajs|os j10u pue
‘SO 8Y} WoJj siaupted Japim Yim Buryom S8Aj0AUI PUR SIU) 0] [e1anid si Ajioeded
Arunwwod pue soual|isas Ayunwwod Buip|ing "Buiag|jem pue yijesy |eiusw

19U anoudwi o) ajdoad Buiioddns o) Aay aJe uonuaAIglUl AjJes pue LUOIUSASI

"$901AI8S BUIaq|[8m pue Lijeay [eluaw ul Bunsaaul
anuIU0d 0] PAYILLWOI aJe am Aym pue ganH 8yl 1o Aiond doy e i Buiaqg)iem
pUR UJ[eay [ejuawl Aym SI SIy| “sinolAeysq Buiiey-4es 0} buiuiny uorodoud
18|[BWS B 10} PUB ‘$321049 P00} Ayyeayun Buiyew 10 [oyod|e s1ow Bupjulp se

1ons ‘swisiueyoaw Buidoa se sinolaeyaq Auyjjeay ssa| ul Buibebua jodal 0y Ajay1
8I0W 819M UOI)IPUOI U[eay [ejuaww Jord e yyim sjuspuodsal jeys AsAINs Sjuapisal
61-PIADTD) INO WOL) MOUY 0S| M\ "SSBU|! Uljeay [elusL 8}eqIadexa Ued U0ISSadal
91WW0ou023 pue diyspley uj asealoul Ue ey sisabins yaJeasal pue ‘poliad umopyo|
[eiiur 8y} Buninp paybnoyiny aiem 81doad 0O0'G8 BIIYSHIIMIBA U] “6z4B8IGIN0 8y}
10 Suoealjdur JapIm ay) pue snJIA 8y} Inoge Aurelsaaun o) anp Ajaixue pausjybiay
pue $Saul|auo| Jo sbuljas) atow Bulousliadxa payiodal aaey a|doad “Buiag|jom pue
U1[eay [eluswW Uo pey Sey 61-pIA07 1ey) 1oeduil ay) Jo asneasq mou Ayionid iajesid
U3A3 UB SI SIU] 7 81ysyaImIep pue A1uano) ssouoe Ajiolid Ay e Si yI0m pue aal|
a|doad sade|d 8y} Ul 81e9-}|aS puR A18A0J8I ‘UONUBAIBIUI A]JRa ‘B0ual|Isal Bulp|ing
‘uonuanaid Ag pauuldiapun si Jeu) WasAs uijeay [ejuswl abe-|je ue Bulaalaq

saljunwwod
Ino ui uoipuaniadlul Aaea pue uonuanaid punose ApJenaipied
‘Buiagyam pue yjjeay jeyuaw 113y} anosdwi ajdoad djay — gz Aiiond

"¥9am Jad sinoy g-z 9jdoad

BunoA yam yiom Areyunjoa Jo pred Jo syuow 9 1Ses| 1e Aq pamoj|o) }10m
[eanaeld pue usylm Jo soljoplod [enpiaipul Ag paiuediiodoe sem Buiuies
dnoub ay| -sjdoad BunoA yum Bunesunwwod pue Huibebus Juswdojsasp
s9|doad BunoA :Buipienbajes yjom yinoA Jo A10ay) :se yoans saido)
BULIBA0D SYaM 9 JBA0 BUIUIRI) SAISUSIUI |0 SABD ¢ PaAIgdal sdnolb auy |

193189 |0

abueya © 10j BuI¥00| BWOS PUB S8IIAISS [BUOINIPPR J3J0 PUR SAIHIUNWILLIOD
[R20] 8U3 1loddns 18)38q 0] S||INS J1aU) puedxa 0] BuI¥00| SIBYI0 IS|IYM ‘S8]|0J
Jay1om uinoA pred 1o Arejunjoa Ui Buiyiom Apealfe awos yiim sdnoub uioq
UIY}IM 89Ua11adxa Jo abuel B Sem 818y | "PJOJIBNS WOJ} Jey pue JoLIsIp

Page 114



Page 15 of 22

Gl

"1 202 Alses Ul swweibold
[B118J9Y UO SHY SJIYSHIIMIBAA B JO IN0-]|0J B} WIOJUI []IM YIYm Jo sBulpul)
8y} ‘siwesboid 8y} 8jenjes 0} AjsIaaiun AUsA0Y Uim Buiyiom aie o

"$89IAIBS Y)[eay uo Aouspuadap Jiay) Buionpas awi) swes ay) 1e 1sow
au} djay Jno paau oym ajdoad asoy) uo Aok 1a61e) pue Suoljesiueblo syue
Uyim yJom Ino dojaaap sn djay 01 Juiidaniq e g pjnod yoeosdde Siy) analjaq

8\ "SUOSEa] Jay10 J0 13S0y B 10 ‘8 ‘ssauj|l ‘Alljiqesip J1ay) ybnolyl uoie|os! Jo
yS1 1e 9jdoad Jo sdnoib pue sdnoib Sue usamaq pabio) Uaaq aABY Syul| Mau
‘B11USHIIMIBAN Ul 8JBH ¢, Buiag|jam pue yeay [eiusw pue [eaishyd sajdoad

U0 Jaeduwi 86Ny B 8ARY URD 8S3U) 91| SAINIAIIOR SAIIRSIO SMOYS UIIRaSaY

"uoIjepowwodde Arejodwsal

ur aJe oym a|doad ssajawloy 19a1)s Buipnjour ‘sabe |[e 10} S8IIAI9R

8AI1e8.9 Buliayjo ‘Aunwwod ay) pue sjeydsoy ul Ajapim painguisip
U93q Sey yalym %aed pajurid e papnjoul $aliss 8uQ) ale ap, Sy 8deasy e

“SalNAIYIP
Aioelidsal yiim ajdoad Joj 8a19eId J10yd papiaoid ||assny 181nr JebulS e

"8W0Y Je pae|os| ajdoad pue sawoy aied Ul 8jdoad 4apjo Buipnjoul
sdnoJB 1o} ‘sasseja ewelp pue Buibuis ‘Buimas auljuo pasiueblo yijdn suy e

"aLWayas Buisnoy payoddns e ul 9jdoad BunoA 1oj 184004
Ae)2 8AIjea10 B Yiim Syoed Burjjspow Aejd papiacid Aisjod uobelpung e

‘apnjoul sajduexg

"SBI)IAIIOR
UIuO Ynm pabebua SjuspIsal 000 G JBAO PUR ‘BLOY 18 U0 YI0Mm 0] Yaed
SUY, UB PaAIadal Ssjuspisal 000‘0 L snjd (Ajjenuia) Ajoalip 8jdoad oGy 1ano
payaeal aney Syoaloid 8y “sybnoiog pue Ja1IsIg IO JO YIea Ul AYIAIIR pue
p|o pue BunoA yjoq 8jdoad Jo sdnoib JualalIp Jo S10| JO SBAI| 8U) BulAoidwl
1e pajafie) swwelbo.d palieA e Usaq Sey Jjnsal ay | -olwspued ayy Buunp
Bullalins ale ajdoad awWos Jey) UOIRJOSI 8y) 18aq 0] paubisap Ajjearioads
S3I}IAI}0B MAU 818319 0] AJUN0J 3y} SS0.Je suotesiuedio 1ybia papuny HIM

"MI31BIBAINRAI# Pa|[ed AYIANIR |0 swwelboid 6-pIA0Y) [e1oads
B 0] SYURY) UMOPX20] JO SSauIjauo| ay) Jeajep Buid|ay Usaq aAry SISILY

olwapued gL-p1ro9 ayy burnp
Buiaqiiam pue yjjeay jejuaw 113y} anosdwi syuapisal
Buidjay — suonjuaniajul yjyjeay anneald :Apnys asen

"80UBPUS]IE IRV Ul JINsal Usljo ued ‘papoddnsun ya| )i yarym ‘ybnos desis

oym a|doad 1o yeay [eiusw pue [ealsAyd sy} sroidwi 01 wie jey) Aemyed aien
P3JUBYUT Y1|eaH [BIUS|Al B PUR 82IAJSS UIealnQ YijesH [ealsAud & paysi|geiss aAey
am AUM SI aIym ‘saalAas [euoniiped] yiim abebus 0] AjayI| SSa| aJe SSaussa|aLioy
Buroualiadxa sjenpiaipu| "ybnol Buidas|s 10 ssajawoy aie oym 9jdoad Jo

SpasU ay) ssauppe Jayaq 0 swie Alajes)S SSaussajawoy InQ "eluswap

Uiim Bulall 8jdoad 1o} SaW02IN0 sA0dwWI [[1m am Moy Ino S1es Jey) ‘Alajes
eliuawaqg yyum 113 Buiary no Buipnjoul Aiond siyl aAsiyde sn djay [jim

1ey) sa1091e.1S A8Y JO JaquINU B 8ie 8lay "Saaualiadxa ajl] 1J199dS J0 SUOIIPUOD
Bunsixa 01 anp Buiaq|jam pue y)eay |elusw Ul saljijenbaul 89e} sdnoib uiela?

22'$91A159)1] Aupeay Burowoud pue :yyeay [eaisAyd
PUB ‘[B18]9YSOINISNL ‘[BJUSLL SR yINS Seale Agy uo Buisnoo) Aq Buiaq|jem pue
y|eay s8Aojdwa s810wold yaiym JuswIWwWod e ‘Yo Je aAly L 0} dn-ubis 0

Page 115



Page 16 of 22

91

uaa1b Ayijenb poof Buissaade o anjeA 8y o UOISSIWSURI) 8SEaSIP JO YSI
Pasealoul Ue U)im pajeldosse Usaq aAey ‘Buipmoi0Ian0 Se 1yans ‘suoiiipuod
Buisnoy Jood se ojwapued 6}-piA0g sy} Buunp ajow pajybijybiy usaq sey
JUBIUOJIAUS }{ING INO JO 83uBlOdWI 8y "SI8UI0 UIIM 193ULOI pUB 8AIJOB
A1ea1sAyd aq o} ajdoad Joj saijiunyoddo apiAoid ued sadejd paubisap-|jam
pue Buiuue|d pooy) "SanuNWW0d INo Jo Bursqjjam pue yeay syl bunasjold
pue Buiroldwi yloq ui 8]0J [eyIA B sAe|d Ul 8AI| 9M JUSLLLOJIAUS 8U |

fuluueld jeneds
ybnouy} buiaqam pue yyesH bunowoid :Apnjs ases

"$I8SN 804N0SAI PUB SISUMO J3SSE pUB PUE

‘siaseyaund ‘siafojdws se — punod aliySYIIMIBAN PUB A1JUBAOY) 8] UO UINJ8I 1S3
8U} 9A31yJe pue ajdoad [B90| 11jausq 0} 8aUBN|JUI JO SIAA3| BB 31U} 818yMm Jay1aho)
}I0M 0] SI uonualul Y] “(d31M9) diysiauiied asiidisiug [2a07 aIUSYIIMIBA

pue A1UBA0Y) PUB SBIJISIBAIUN BU) ‘| JMD PUB SISNJ] 81NJL 8} ‘S|19UNOI OM] 8L}

10 90UBI|[B [eWIOJUI UB ‘Bauel||Y Joyauy aJ1ysyaimiep pue Ajuanog ay|

"WA)SAS 818D pUB UY1[BaH 8IUSHIIMIBA PUB A1JUSAOY) BU)

$S0.98 Bulyiom Jo sAem mau Joj Buiutes) Buiig [jim yaiym swwelboud layyaboy
saljunwwon Ayyjeay auy) Si Siy) Jo ajduwexs Uy ‘1ay1abol welsAs sjoym

U} Butig 01 sayoroudde paiuad-AjuNWWOD 9ye] YaIym Yiom Jo Sawwelboid
Buipoddns ale am Aym si yorym ‘siaupsed SO yim Ajjeaibarels pue Ajnjbuiueaw
810w Buibebus a1e am aIns ayew 0] JUBM am a1IUSYIIMIBAN PuB A1JUSADY)

$S0.J08 pue y1jeay Ul sanifenbaul Buionpal 0) Asy i diysiaunied ul Buiyiop

"801010M UMO 118U} UILIIM Y1jeay Ul saijijenbaul

80NnpaJ 0] 0p UeI A3y) Jeym uo snaoj o) siakojdwsa 20| BuIySe ‘uo1}ay o} |1e9
e Bujuoidweyo os(e ale am gAH 8yl SY "SG-0 UaIP|IYd UlIm Sal|iLLe) Uo 61-pIA0)
10 10edwi ay) Bullojdxa pue ‘yiom 0 Siallieq Buionpal ‘suolesiuebio joyoue
$S0.9B 3N|eA [e100s 0] Yoeosdde paseys e Buidojaasp :8pnjoul UOIIL 10} Sealy
"Saljijenbaul uo suoljoe Juabin Jybia o) puodsal 0} 1sag moy BuiAjnuapi si dnoag
saljjenbau] y)jeaH 49H 2y 'Sawwo2No pue uoisiAoid SHN Ul Sanijenbaul
SSaIppe 0} asu0dsal ay} uo pes| 0} dnolb apim-LBlSAS B PaySI|qeISe aABY S|

"U1[B8y JO SURUILLIAIAP JBPIM
a1} $S0J98 (1Y3H) 21001 JUaLISSasSy Ainb3J yieaH au) Jo asn au) BuiieaoApy

‘Bu1ag)|am puB U}eay Jo Sawoano
pUB SS320 PUB)SIAPUN Jayaq 0 eiep Ajaiuya Jo Buipiodal no Buiaoidul

"8010410M N0 Ul AISIBAIP BA0.dLLI
01 $9$$890.d pue $a101j0d JuswAo|dwa pue Juswyinioal aAisnjaul Bundopy

"S8I)UNWWO09 JNVY
U0 pajoedwl Sey §1-pIA0Y MOY JNOGR 810W IO pulj 0] SPUNoIByoeq JNVE
woJjy ajdoad yym yIom |jim 1ey) s1o8f0.d yoeasal aAllRI0qe||09 BUILOISSIWIWOY
"WBa] 90BJ| puUB

158] 8 |0 Jed se sJaduy) uoddng sapunwwo) Bundsuuon omy unuloddy

:apnjoul yJom siy) Bunioddns aie am SAem 8y |0 SWIOS “YIOM

SIy1 anunuoa 0y sdnolb ey (20| pue Slauped SHA INO YIIM YI0M 0] 8NUILOD
IM pue spunoibyoeq J\Yg wodl 8jdoad Joj sanijenbaul Buionpal pasniond
9ARY 9\ "Spunoubyarg JNYg WoJ) ajdoad uo jaedwi sjeuoriodoidsip e pey sey
dlwapued 6-pIA0d auj 1ey} pajybl|ubiy Sey elep [e20] pue [euofeu woyj sbuipuld

'590e|d 9|qe1nba Ayyjeay Jo Juswdoaaap ay) Loddns 0] gzoz Aenuep

ur aouepinb Buluueld jenedg ybnoay) buiaqiam pue yijeay bujowoud,
[B20| PaSIOpUa GAH 8l AUM SI UDIUM ‘BYeLU 9M S3210UD 8 83Uan|jul Ued 9Al| oM
UOIUM Ul JUSLLUOJIAUS 8U) MOUY S\ "Uljeay poob 01 8AIONPUOD $S8] SIUBWIUOJIAUS
Ul BUIAI| pue SJ0)98) ¥SIJ 10 UOIRUIQIOD © Bulousliadxa Us)o SaLiodno L)jesy
1S10M 3] ym ajdoad Uyim [e1I01dRI-1NNW 1. Sallijenbaul y)jeay "SalliAoe  qeyaid,
ybnoiyl 61-p1ron Buidojansp 10 %SH 118y} 8onpal pue Ayjeay pue Jij dasy 0]
sdnoib asay) wouj ajdoad poddns o) Juem apy “sdnoub 21LIOU0IF-0190S JaMO|

woJj ajdoad pue ‘ssnunWwWod g Wwolj ajdoad ‘ssaul|l [elUBL SNOLIBS YJIM
9|doad ‘sannaiyip Buiules| ‘sanijiqesip yim Buial] sjdoad Buipnjoul ‘sadIAIeS 0)
$S3908 JO SAW0IIN0 Yljeay Jalood aouaniadxa 01 pus) sdnoib ureusn “SMH 8yl pue
gMH 8U) J0 %Jom 8] JO Leay ay) e Usaq sAeme Sey sanijenbaul yijesy buionpay

yijeay Jo sjueulwIa)ap
13pIM 3y} pue Sawo9yno yieay ui sanijenhaul 3npay - ¢ Aiioud

Page 116



Page 17 of 22

L1

"SSBUSSA[ALOY JO %SIJ Je 8S0U) 10} SAIIAISS
yoddns paje|al pue Buisnoy pasnaoj-Iajaq BullaAlisp AQ Se ||am Se ‘Wsine
yim ajdoad pue eruawap yim Buiall ajdoad o} Ajpuaii) way Bunyew Aq
9|dwexa Joj sdnoJB 8)qeIau|nA 91J198dS 10J JUSLIUOIIAUS [BINJeU PUB Jjing By}
BuiAoJdwi Uo pasnao] aie am Jey) aIns axyew 0] Juem 0S|e ap\ AlljIqeureIsns
pue AJIAI98uLU02 Burinsus pue Ajfenb Jie Buircidwi ‘Buisnoy Ajijenb pooh
Buip|ing ‘aimonuiseul Buraosdwi AQ ysLnoj) 1Byl SJUBLWUOIIAUS Buljesid

0] yaroudde 1no uayibuains djay |jim Jayiabo) Buryiopy “swiwesbold
Buideys-a9e|d AJunod Ino Se |jam Se ‘saifalels 8109 pue Sueld Juswdojaasp
[B90] S19UN07) 1911181 PUR YBnoiog no uiylim Buiag|jom pue yijesy

PaAQLB am Jey) aIns ayew 0 djay ||1m Juawnaop aouepinb sy “Buluueld
[eieds ybnoJyy Buisqiiam pue yijesH Bunowoid padojansp aaey am

AUm SI 4aIuM ‘B11USYIIMIBAA JOJ 9SBD 8] 8Q 0] SIU) JUBM JOU Op 9/ "Seale
PaAlIdap 1ses| ay) 01 pasedwod Buisnoy Jasood pue ‘Ayijenb Jie jood ‘aoeds
19216 J0 %a.| B 9ARY 0] A|9YI| 818 SeaIe PaALIdapP JSOW 8y Ul BulAl] asou)
pue JuaIpelb [R190S 8y Buoe 1SIXa Ui[eay Ul Saljifenbaul Jeyl mouy s\

"poLiad
sy Bunnp Buiaq)am [ejuaw s;81doad Joj [eIa1jauaq usAoid 0S|e sey $8oeds

Page 117



Page 18 of 22

JUBLBA|0AUI SOA PUB ‘599 ‘AllIoyIne (B0 YiIM ‘8s8y) Jo Juawdojaasp ay)

0] U8Ye] 8 ||Im yaroidde diysisuped v "SHIANYD Pue BUnISIA yleay ‘JUsLSsasse
Spaau U[eay [ejuswl e Buipnjaul ‘saijuionid 1no Jo A1aA1ep au) wiojul djay |jim
UOIUM SIeaA OM] 1X8U 8U} JaA0 pauue|d SJUBLISSaSSe SpaaUl |0 Jaquunu e ale alay|

'siseq Ajiaptenb e uo Ajgunnol seae

Aionud ino jsurete ssaifold BurioluoWw g (1M am ‘puiw Ul Iyl Yl “Bulag|jem
PUB U1[eay JO SeaJe |[e SSOIOB G L-PIA0Y) UO 19edUWI [N} 8y} pueISIBpun 0] 194 ||1S
816 8M 1ey] 8S1uB098I Sisuled gAH By “SiesA om] Jxsu 8y} Joj saniiolid Jayio uo
S10JJ IN0 SNJ0J 10 S8 YIIM BNUIUOD PINOYS 8M JI LIO M3IA B 3Xe) PUR SIeak oM
Ja)Je $81111011d 881} N0 UO 8PeW 8ABY M $$8.160.d |[RIBA0 BU) 81BN[BAS ||IM B\

‘SHN
'S3aRILULIOT AUNNIIS PUB MOIAISAQ SIIUSYOIMIBAL O} SUe|d 8y} 10 Woou au1bua a1nnj sy} 8q 0} sade|d 8y} 8|qeua ||Im SIY] “WaISAS 8y o)
UOIJO8 J0 UOISSIWGNS PIROg BUIAG|[M\ PUB Ul{ESH BU} O} MAIAGI [enULe LY e UOISIA |[BJBA0 8U} 0} BUIINQLIUOD IS|IUM [8A3] [B90] B JB A|3AI}08]|00 PasSaIppe ale

S89IAJS 0] SS8IIR PUB SJUBUILLISIAP JBPIM 8INSUS 0] ANOJL) J3DIH(0) 9AINIEXT GMH
U1 Y1IM YIOM ||IM SdMH [BI0T'gMH 8yl 01 1odas Ajsunnol fjim pue sde|d yoes
"|lang] ybnolog pue 19141S1(] © 1. Sejepdn souewopad Ajieao| jenbsy e 10 Spaau 911199dS 8y) 193LL 0] PalojIe] aq [[IM Suejd UoNIR JA\H 8U ] “Homawel)
Uyjeay uoneindod ay) Jo SusLOAWIOD INOJ AU} PUNOJR PASeq SaINSeall 8dueLLIokad
123]0 Y)M Uejd uonejuawa|dul ue dojaasp ||IM aIySYIIMIBA Ul MH UJeT

‘[an8] § 7 e s)odal (820 e

‘U1im $Sa1604d maIABI ||IM pIrog Bulag||9p PUB UI[BaH SaIUSYIIMIBAN
"SJ01RIIPUI 9S8 Ul SjuawwaAosdwi [enpeld Buiyaas aq ||1m am 0S ‘WUBIUIBA0
uaddey Jou |j1m abueyd Jolew jeyy sebpajmouyae pieog Buiaqg|ispn pue uijesH '$sa1601d U0 110da) 8oueLI0)ad [BNUUR UR 8AI908 ||IM GMH 8U)

B11USYIMIBA BU | “ABB1eNS SIu1 10 awWsl| 8y} J8A0 $Salboid Ino ainseaw sn djgy  pue ‘gAH 8yl J0) pJRoqUSEP SaW0aIN0 Uk 0lul PadojaAap 8q ||IM SI01RIIPUI [9AR]] JO

IM JRU} SI0]BIPUI BSO0UD [|IM Peog BuIaq|ap PUB UieaH 8u] “SaAlj sojdoad U0 uoNaalip 8y “suoljiquie o1f8jens Ino jsurebe ssaifioid Jo Jybisiano aney |jim GMH

aney [Im ABa1ens 8y ey 1oeduwi ay) uo Buisnao) Aq ssaifold Ino ainseaw [|IM apy  8u | 1ybu sBuiyy Buimab ale am Ji Buimouy o) Asy aie A)ljiqeiunoaae pue diysiapesT

DU} 100 DAY M UDUM MOUs| DM M MOt

Page 118



Page 19 of 22

61

Jawwelboud
-3U)-1N0Qe/Y10M-1R-8A11U1/aALIL1/OP-8M-JeuMm/YN" 010" BIWM MMM//:SANY

/aIIUSYOIMIBM
-pue-A1usA09-uI-bu13q||am-|BUOI0Ws-puUR-L}|eay-[elusw-Bulroidwl/Bulaq)|am
-|BUOI0Wa-PUB-U1[eay-[ejuaw/saniiold-Inosn-saal|AuijesyAddey mmm//:sdny |,

610¢ "U0IEPUNOS 1[esH o,

AWou09s-ay)
-UI-8JB9-pUB-)[B3Y-}0-8]0J-8U1//0/0202/S891N0S81/6.10°Paju0ISYU MMM//:SANY ¢,

(0202 18G0300) Hodal AsAINS JUBpISal 61-PIA0D JOM g
6€ 12-0€9-09JM/SIuswnaop/yn'aob-alysyomien’ide//:sdny ,,
/Buisnoy/qn'Aob-airysyaImiem erep//:sdny o,

1pd-ejep~ay]puofaq
" sisayjusjuawiabebua1ap|ouyaXeIS~(IAQ0D/9.E268/311)/BIepIUBLILIENE
/speojdn/waisAs/speojdn/iuswiuianobqnAob-a0iA1as Buiystignd-s1asse//:sdny ¢,

/G8£90US/SBUIja1IG-Ua1easal )N JuaLelied AreiqlSuowWwod//:sdny 4,
9%62-8} 11 L00GE -0 JM/SIUBWNI0P/4N°A0D 811ysyaImIeM |de//: SRy ¢

(0-0p-JB2™()-0p-MAO/SU0Ndo
-a0ed/ | /way/y/p19/y/xas/,2/908/616¢6/P!1/8€00008€3/2.8/591/118/81.0000753
/1ed/6 L.¢/ved/ | /p1b/c/abrd#RnUSWAP/YdIeas/MN"B10"8yd sdiaBuUll//:SdNY 4

0-0p-JB2™()-0p-MAO/SU0Ndo

-o0ed/ | /way/y/p1o/y/x8s/ | /30®/ /172/P11/8E00008€/018/G91/11B/8 10000 ST
/1ed/61.g/1ed/|/p1b/¢/aBed#enuswap/yasess/mn Bio-ayd-sdiebuly//:sdiy |,

9¥62-81 L1 L00GE -0DIM/SIUBLINo0p/4n°A0B a11ysyoImiemde//:sdny o,

0-0p-mAo/suonjdo-abed/g/abedseiep
/ap1ains/a|1j01d/y)eay-|eiusw/dnolb-aj1joid/yn-Bio-ayd-sdipabuly//:sdny o

Wea| UO1RINPT SlIUSHOIMIB

0-0p-mAo/suolido-abedy/y/p1o/y/xas/G0E/e08/€ | 806/PI!
/1£00000}3/218/201/118/5000002 |- 3//8/9/1d/060€€ 1 8€6 |/P1D/7/00Rd#E1ED
JywdAa/a|ijo1d/yyeay-jeiusw/dnoib-sjijoid/yn-bio-ayd-sdiusbull//:sdny ,

0-0p-mao/suondo-abied/y/p1o/1.£00000 13/818/20€/118/S000002 13
/1ed/9/1ed/,£00008/P16//86ed Ul B8 BNX8S/MN"B10"8yd"SdIpabull//:SANY o

0-0p-mao/suondo-abied/y/pio/y/xas/9¢/abe/8206/p!!
/1£0000013/318/20€/118/S00000¢ 1 3/8d/9/1ed/2400001/P16/4/30Rd#R1RD
/MI0MBLLRI-SaWL09IN0-Y)|eay-a1jgnd/ajijoid/yn-bio-ayd-sdiusbull//:sdny ¢

0-0p-mAo/suondo-abed
/¥/P19/G20000803/918/20¢€/1¥/S00000¢ - 3/18d/9/180/2¥0000 1/P16/0/a0ed#E1ED
/MI0maWel}-SawooIno-yyeay-aljgnd/ajijoid/yn-bio-ayd-sdiysbuil//:sdny ,

0-0p-mAo/suondo-abed
/7/P19/620000803/218/20€/1¥8/S00000¢ 1 3//8d/9/¥8d/6,0000 | /P16/0/308d #1RD
/MI0MaWRJ-SaWL09)N0-Y)|eay-a1jgnd/ajijoid/yn-bio-ayd-sdiusbuil//:sdny ¢

0-0p-mAo/suopdo-aBed/y/p19/Gz0000803
/818/20€/1¥8/500000¢ 1-3/16d/9/1ed/6:0000 /P16/0/20Bd#e1RDMIOMBLIRY)
-$3W09In0-U[eay-a1|qndyajijoidn-bio-ayd-sdipabull//:sdny 80z-9102 .

0-0p-mAo/suoijdo-abed
17/P19/81.2000203/218/1.0¢/1¥/ 1. £000001 3//8d/20€/%60/#¥0000 1 /P16/0/80ed#E1ED
/MI0MBLLIBIJ-SAWO0IN0-)Bay-21jqnd/ayiyoid/mn 610 syd-sdipabuly//:sdny

Page 119



Page 20 of 22

Jpd'61-QIAOD
-PU-U}|eaY-SaLOH/60-020¢/S8l14/}Inejop/salis/An"B10:18)ag-bulabe mmm//:sdiy o

1’02691 HZOWHIN'60.L'8Y k2= WP'RSZ L0 1202 GMH
TISMIN™ 126€60 | =UDredUBYUINTR|[BLA=WUNIPALL™ WIN'REZ%UN0IJ.

02%UIBWZ %02 %SI8H3|SMBUOZ %PUN402 %S 2% DUIN0Z %8U ] =89In0S
~wngiay1ab01-saniunwwod-Ay)eay/s1oalosd/yn 610 punisbuy mmm//:sdny o

leay
-|00)-]uaLSSasSe-AlINbs-y)|eay/suonealjgnd/uswuisAob/Mn Ao mmm//:sdny 4,

Jpd-/ L0z~ Hoday~Alnbul~yyeeH

~aAljealn/suoleal|gnd/Alnbul-tdde/sn-Bi0°Buiaqempueyieaysye-mmm//:Sdny ¢

Page 120



Page 21 of 22

Ajiqisuodsal Hurieys e $a391A13s Huneuipio-09 e saniunwiwod HuiuayibuallS e uonuanaid Huisijuiold e :Humjiom jo shem ing

Uyieay

JO SlURUIWIA)EP
J9PIM 8] pue
S3W09IN0 Y)eay Ul
saljiienbaul 8onpay

S9IlIUNWWOo9
N0 Ul UoIjusAIBUI
AjJea pue uonusaald
punoJe Apenaiued
‘Bulagom pue
Ulfeay [ejuaw Jiayl
anoJdwi ajdoad djaH

o}l

Ul 1JB1S 159q 3yl aney
9|doad BunoA pue
uaip|iya 4no djaH

:SN20J
ajeipawul InQ

Sallepunoq
[euoljesiueflo jeuolnipely
SS0J0. SY00| YaIym
K1anooal pajesbajul uy

S19SSE [BI0|

10 Bulpuelsiapun Jno

Aq paw.ojul suonnjos
9S1]1qoW 01 S8IIUNWLWOI YyHum
R Ul 3AI| 3M
saljunwwo’
pue saaejd ay]

wajsAs ales

pue yjjeay
pajesbajul uy

1no yum pue
sdiysiauned buiaq|iopn
pue y1jeaH paseq aoe(d
Ino u1 Jayaboi Buopn

'$921049 9]A159)I|
Ayieay 01 sialileq
9|)9e} 0] sdiysiaupied

Bulag|iap pue yijeay jo
U1jesH paseq-aoe|d yoes sjueulw.iajap
ybnoJyl pue wWalsAs 13pim 3yl

91 $so0Joe swelboud
uonuanaid Buieulpi009
pue Bulubiy

Ujeay ul sanljenbaul pue uoneAldsp

a|diynw Buloey S|enpIAIpUl 8]geIaU|NA JSOW

9y} pue ‘sapunwiLiod (JNv4) dluyl3 Auouly
pue ueIsy Yoe|g uo syoedwi Ajpreuolrodoidsip
YaIym waey Jo 19edwi ajgnop ay L

:uonejudwdjdwi sy pue AGajel}S mau Ino puiyaq siaaLp Aay

"$99IAJBS JOAI3p
pue UuoISSIWLWOI 01
SOAIIN9XJ aJeq pue
UljeaH peseq-aoe(d
1no 1e Jay1ahol
Buiyiom siapinoid
puUe SIUOISSIWLLWIOID
9Je9d |RI20S pUuR Y1|esH

"S90IAI9S

9|qeureIsns uﬁ
9A1199))9 90UalIaCk

‘Hieay Jo
SIURUIWLIDIDP J9PIM
9y} buissalppe

Aq sanijenbaui
yieay spoel

0} 19Y32603 y1oMm
[IMm sdiysiauyied
Buiaqam pue
yi|eaH paseq-ade|d

I m_%@

‘AunwwBa
fuoJis e Jo
ued aq ||1m ajdoad

"8J1| uspuadapul
pue Ayesy
e peg| ||Im 8jdoad

suonique aibajel)s
wua)-buoj ang

yiomauwelj yjeay

uoneindod s alysyaimie



Page 22 of 22

DIMSHOIMIEM

Piemiireay

. = 11ONNOD
1Ord1sIa

ADIMUVM

LNMT LINNW

,K<><o

FUIHSHIIMYYM

IsnJ] uonepunod SHN
D41YSHPIMIBAN YINOS

SHN

11YS)OIMIBAA 10}

A
J8UoISSILIWO) Vi
awiI) pue ad110d %
aqwoooag dijiyd

Er...nv

Isnil SHN
diysiaupied aays)ydimiepn
pue Aiuano)

SHN

1snil SHN
|eyidsoH jo01|3 abioap

SHN|

9A1IYdYy 03 pajiun

@ [)I0MpIg
FRuojeouny

J2UOISSILLILWIOD
awiD pup 221jod

SPUD|pPIW }SaM

0
L ,\.ﬂm
pas

[1ounon ybnoiog
aJ1ysxoImie | YLON

isnil SHN
alysypimiepn pue Aipusnod
sjexdsoH Aysianiun

SHN

dnoup Bujuoissiwwo) [esuld
2UIYSHIIMICAA YINOS

SHN

[IoUNOD AJUNOD
SIYSHIIMIDM

119NN0D z
¥r Honouosg

dnoip Buluojssiwwo) [esruld

Agbny pue Anpuanod

SHN

dnoig Buluoissiwwo) [ea1ulpd

YMON 31YSIIMIBAN

SHN

Page 122



c2T abed

ok

funt

Warwickshire County Council Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) Form

The purpose of an EIA is to ensure WCC is as inclusive as possible, both as a service deliverer and as an employer. It also

demonstrates our compliance with Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED).

This document is a planning tool, designed to help you improve programmes of work by considering the implications for different

groups of people. A guidance document is available here.

Please note that, once approved, this document will be made public, unless you have indicated that it contains sensitive information.
Please ensure that the form is clear and easy to understand. If you would like any support or advice on completing this document,

please contact the Equality, Diversity and Inclusion (EDI) team on 01926 412370 or equalities@warwickshire.gov.uk

Service / policy / strategy / practice / plan being assessed

Health and Wellbeing Strategy refresh 2020 — 2025

Business Unit / Service Area

Public Health (on behalf of the Warwickshire Health and
Wellbeing Board)

Is this a new or existing service / policy / strategy /
practice / plan? If an existing service / policy / strategy /
practice / plan please state date of last assessment

Existing Strategy (refresh)

EIA Review team - list of members

Gemma McKinnon, Ashley Simpson

Do any other Business Units / Service Areas need to be
included?

Business Intelligence, Communications, wider Health and
Wellbeing Board partners

Does this EIA contain personal and / or sensitive
information?

No

bslire~

6 J0 T abed


https://warwickshiregovuk.sharepoint.com/SitePages/Equality-Impact-Assessments.aspx
mailto:equalities@warwickshire.gov.uk

y2T abed

s

b

funt

Are any of the outcomes from this assessment likely to No
result in complaints from existing services users,
members of the public and / or employees? If yes please let your Assistant Director and the Customer

Relations Team know as soon as possible

b

1. Please explain the background to your proposed activity and the reasons for it.

The Health and Wellbeing Board has a statutory duty to produce and deliver a Health and Wellbeing Strategy for Warwickshire to
help improve health and wellbeing in the local population and reduce health inequalities. The strategy outlines the vision,
objectives and priorities based on the findings of the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA) including performance

data and feedback from communities and senior leaders across the health and care system. The objectives of the refreshed

strategy need to be reflected in the commissioning plans of Warwickshire County Council (WCC) and the wider Health and Care
Partnership.

Generally, health in Warwickshire is good overall but it varies widely across the county and we are facing significant challenges

over the next five years with an aging population and rising demand for services. We are proposing a vision of ‘Living Well in
Warwickshire’ and three high level strategic outcomes:

e People will lead a healthy and independent life.
e People will be part of a strong community.
e People will experience effective and sustainable services.
We are also proposing two short term areas of focus in the next 12-18 months:

e Help our children have the best start in life

e Help people improve their mental health and wellbeing, particularly around prevention and early intervention in our
communities.

Jire”

6 10 Z afied



2. Please outline your proposed activity including a summary of the main actions.

6 10 € afied

The Strategy has been produced in collaboration with Health and Wellbeing Board partners in a context of change which brings
both challenges and opportunities. Much has happened since our first Strategy in 2014. There is significant pressure in the health
and care system and the public sector more widely because of increasing demand and reducing capacity. This has been further
amplified by the Covid-19 pandemic which has radically changed how society functions.

As we start to rebuild communities and reset services as part of our recovery from the Covid-19-19 pandemic, even more
importance needs to be placed on tackling inequalities in health and creating engaged and cohesive communities that are able to
thrive despite the ongoing challenges we all face. Helping our children and young people to get the best start in life is key to this,
as is supporting people to look after their mental health and wellbeing particularly as 1 in 3 visits to mental health services during
the pandemic were from new users. Our Covid-19 Health Impact Assessment (HIA) has highlighted two findings which will be key
drivers behind our new Strategy and its implementation:

1. An integrated recovery which looks across traditional organisational boundaries is required to understand the wider impact
to services; and

2. There is a double impact of harm which disproportionately impacts on Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic (BAME)
communities, and the most vulnerable individuals facing multiple deprivation and inequalities in health

The NHS long-term plan and Coventry and Warwickshire Five Year Health and Care Plan both confirm a greater focus on
prevention and a move to a more integrated health and care system. We want to build on the momentum from our previous
Strategy and the Year of Wellbeing 2019 to drive further commitment around improving health and wellbeing. We have set out
high level ambitions for the next five years, as well as specific priorities we think we should focus on over the next two years.

This Strategy sets out our commitments and vision for improving health and wellbeing for Warwickshire. It is however the first
step, and next we need to deliver on these commitments. To make sure that we get this right for our communities, we are taking
a place-based approach to delivery. In Warwickshire our 3 places are:

GZT abed

. North — covers North Warwickshire Borough and Nuneaton and Bedworth Borough
. Rugby — covers Rugby Borough
. South — covers Stratford on Avon District and Warwick District

Each place has a Health and Wellbeing Partnership and a Health and Care Executive that will play a key role in delivering the
Strategy locally, making sure that action plans have been tailored to meet local needs, and build on the strengths, of each place.

e



3. Who is this going to impact and how? (customers, service users, public and staff)

It is good practice to seek the views of your stakeholders and for these to influence your proposed activity. Please list anything
you have already found out. If you still need to talk to stakeholders, include this as an ‘action’ at the end of your EIA. Note that
in some cases, there is a duty to consult, see more.

6 10 7 afed

This Strategy will have an impact on residents and local communities in Warwickshire. Views on the draft Strategy were sought
using an online survey on Ask Warwickshire between 23rd November 2020 and 5th January 2021. An easy-read version, created
by Grapevine, was live between 16th December 2020 and 5th January 2021. Paper copies were also available, although none
were requested.

Key Messages
There were 355 responses to the survey on Ask Warwickshire and 207 responses to the easy-read survey.
Most respondents to both surveys lived in Warwick District (Ask Warwickshire = 116 (32.67%); easy-read = 59 (28.50%)). The

second highest districts for responses was Stratford-on-Avon for the Ask Warwickshire survey (n = 48; 13.52%) and North
Warwickshire for the easy-read survey (n = 38; 18.35%).

o¢T abed

Ambition 1: People will lead a healthy and independent life.

e The majority of respondents (91.50% of Ask Warwickshire respondents (n = 323 out of 353 responses) and 94.59% of
easy-read respondents (n = 175 out of 185 responses) agreed with Ambition 1.

e Respondents ranked the outcome Encourage people to adopt healthy lifestyles and behaviours as most important for this
ambition.

Ambition 2: People will be part of a strong community.

e The majority of respondents (84.90% of Ask Warwickshire respondents (n = 298 out of 351 responses) and 89.84% of
easy-read respondents (n = 168 out of 187 responses) agreed with Ambition 2.

&Ww


https://warwickshiregovuk.sharepoint.com/SitePages/Consultation,-engagement-and-survey-resources.aspx

/2T abed

e The outcome Help build strong communities, recognising the importance of education, employment, quality housing and
leisure to provide good quality of life was ranked most important out of the four options.

Ambition 3: People will have access to effective and sustainable services

e The majority of respondents (89.20% of Ask Warwickshire respondents (n = 314 out of 352) and 91.26% of easy-read
respondents (n = 167 out of 183) agreed with Ambition 3.

e The outcome Seek to develop accessible, responsive and high-quality services. was ranked most important out of the
three options.

What should we concentrate on specifically?
e 387 respondents (68.86%) said that the Health and Wellbeing Board should prioritise helping people improve their mental

health and wellbeing in 2020-2025, whilst 354 (62.99%) agreed with the priority helping children and young people have
the best start in life and 294 (52.31%) agreed with the priority health inequalities (particularly in respect to Covid-19).

6 10 G afied

bslire



Please analyse the potential impact of your proposed activity against the protected characteristics.

N.B Think about what actions you might take to mitigate / remove the negative impacts and maximize on the positive ones.

This will form part of your action plan at question 7.

What information do you
have? What information do
you still need to get?

Positive impacts

Negative impacts

e Physical disabilities

e Sensory impairments

¢ Neurodiverse conditions
(e.g. dyslexia)

e Mental health conditions
(e.g. depression)

e Medical conditions (e.g.
diabetes)

experiencing poor health and
social isolation

engage a wide range

of residents and members of
the community,

including people with a range
of disabilities

Age The number of people aged Increased preventative and Some older people may not
over 65 is increasing early intervention solutions to | have the opportunity to
significantly across develop resources and engage in this process due to
Warwickshire. People are assets to meet the needs of transport and accessibility
living longer but live with poor | an ageing population iIssues. There may also be
health for longer. Public issues with accessing virtual

o services are struggling to appointments/services that
Q meet the increase in require technology.
«Q :
o) demand. Services for older
= people is an overarching
e theme
identified in the consultation.
Disability Living with a disability may This consultation sought to Ensuring that those with
Consider increase the chances of disabilities can access

the consultation process may
be challenging.

Gender Reassignment

No information available

e

6 10 9 afied




Marriage and Civil
Partnership

No information available

Pregnancy and Maternity

No information available

Race

BAME communities may
have a greater chance of
experiencing poverty and or
social isolation.

The consultation sought

to engage these
communities to help to
identify mechanisms

to overcome these barriers.

BAME communities engaged
and given greater
opportunities to address
health and wellbeing issues
specific to their needs.

Inadvertently excluding
minority communities and
therefore not meeting their
needs.

Religion or Belief

Consultation data is available

Sex

62T 9bed

Women are generally living
longer than men. This in itself
creates challenges. As

a result women may
experience more poor health
conditions associated with old
age. There is an increased
prevalence of men
experiencing poor mental
health.

Women have shown a
greater interest in

the consultation. This has
helped to gain a

greater understanding of the
needs of women.

Ensuring the needs of both
men and women are

met equally. Exploring
mechanisms to overcome the
gender bias in the
consultation and engage
equal numbers of both
genders.

Sexual Orientation

Consultation data is available

&Ww

6 10 , afied



0ST abed

b

funt

What could the impact of your proposed activity be on other vulnerable groups e.g. deprivation, looked after
children, carers?

There will be a positive impact as there are priorities identified in the Strategy to support vulnerable groups. People from poorer
socioeconomic backgrounds and those with long-term health conditions and disabilities may experience more barriers to social
inclusion and are at greater risk of experiencing inequalities in health.

How does / could your proposed activity fulfil the three aims of PSED, giving due regard to:

the elimination of discrimination, harassment and victimisation

creating equality of opportunity between those who share a protected characteristic and those who do not
fostering good relationships between those who share a protected characteristic and those who do not

The public consultation on the draft Health and Wellbeing Strategy has provided the opportunity to engage further with protected

equality groups wherever possible, utilising the expertise and networks of organisations such as Pride and EQuiP (Equality and
Inclusion Partnership).

6.

Actions —what do you need to do next?

Consider:

bslire

Who else do you need to talk to? Do you need to engage or consult?
How you will ensure your activity is clearly communicated

Whether you could mitigate any negative impacts for protected groups
Whether you could do more to fulfil the aims of PSED

Anything else you can think of!

6 10 8 afied



TEST abed

b

funt

Action

Timescale

Name of person responsible

Strategy to be adopted by the Health
and Wellbeing Board

March 2001

Gemma McKinnon

7. Sign off.

Name of person/s completing EIA

Gemma McKinnon

person/s responsible

Name and signature of Assistant Shade Agboola
Director

Date January 2020
Date of next review and name of September 2020

6 40 6 abed



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 4 Agenda Item 4

Health and Wellbeing Board
3rd March 2021

Preventing Homelessness in Warwickshire: a multiagency
approach

Recommendation(s)

1. Note the contents of this report.

2. Agree to the strategic vision and recommendations within the strategy;
Preventing Homelessness in Warwickshire: a multiagency approach.

3. Support the Homelessness Strategic Group to develop the action plan
underpinning these recommendations and continue to work towards
preventing homelessness in 2021/22.

1. Key Issues

1.1 InJanuary 2019, Warwickshire’s Housing Board sought approval from
Warwickshire’s Health and Wellbeing Board to:

e Form a Homelessness Strategic Group that reports directly to the
Warwickshire Health and Wellbeing Board

e The Homelessness Strategic Group begins to work on a countywide strategy
on Tackling and Reducing Homelessness

1.2  Since then, the Warwickshire Homeless Strategic Group has been formed
and has been working collaboratively across a wide range of partners, writing a
countywide strategy on preventing homelessness.

1.3 The development of the strategy has been delayed for several months during
2020 due to COVID-19, however since wave 1, partners have made a concerted
effort to continue work on the strategy, to bring it to fruition.

1.4  Since the strategy is countywide, District and Borough Council’s have taken
the completed strategy through their own governance processes in
January/February 2021, with the final version going to the Health and Wellbeing
Board in March 2021.

lof4
Page 133



Page 2 of 4

2. Development of the strategy

2.1  Since the Homelessness Strategic Board was formed, it has held five board
meetings to progress the countywide strategy. Broad chapters were agreed
following feedback from the homeless conference in 2018. Each chapter had a
nominated lead and has worked in smaller task and finish groups to collate the
evidence and work up the chapter content and strategic recommendations
collaboratively.

2.2  The strategic vision for the strategy is:

“statutory, voluntary and community organisations working together for the
benefit of our residents to promote and deliver the changes expected by the
government in the Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 with particular reference to the
prevention duty and the Duty to Refer.”

2.3 Within the strategy, there are five strategic priorities, each with their own
detailed chapters, which include: what we know (the evidence to support the
inclusion of that strategic priority), what are we currently doing to tackle
homelessness within that chapter theme, what opportunities are there to improve
services — including recommendations for each chapter.

2.4  Strategic priorities include:

e Health — to reduce the inequalities and improve the health of people at risk of
homelessness, homeless or sleeping rough.

e Financial inclusion — to ensure that a wide range of appropriate services are
available to support those at risk of homelessness due to financial difficulties.

e Young people —to enhance and improve services that prevent homelessness
among young people.

e Domestic abuse — to prevent domestic abuse and the crisis homelessness
resulting from it wherever possible.

e Offending — to deliver better-focused housing and related support services for
those at risk of homelessness when leaving prison.

3. Strategy Engagement

3.1  Following the collaborative approach to develop the strategy, a formal
countywide online engagement was launched in October, this gave partners and
members of the public the opportunity to comment on the high-level strategic vision
and recommendations. The recommendations and content have been refined
following the engagement, to ensure relevant comments have been reflected within
the strategy.

3.2 A webinar was held with members of the community and voluntary sector to
obtain their views and shape the strategic vison and recommendations. Due to
COVID having a wide impact, in particular on health partners, an additional webinar

20f4
Page 134



Page 3 0of 4

was held to discuss the health recommendations to determine if any changes
needed to be reflected as a result of COVID.

3.3

Thanks to Warwickshire County Council Business Intelligence colleagues,

feedback was analysed and presented in a detailed report (Appendix 2). Overall,
respondents either agreed or agreed to some extent that the recommendations
proposed for each strategic priority are the correct ones to focus on for 2021/22:

3.4

Priority 1 — Health: 62% agreed, 31% agreed to some extent

Priority 2 — Young People: 60% agreed, 24% agreed to some extent
Priority 3 — Domestic Abuse: 73% agreed, 15.6% agreed to some extent
Priority 4 — Offending: 57.8% agreed, 24.4% agreed to some extent

Priority 5 - Financial inclusion: 64.4% agreed, 22.2% agreed to some extent

Many of the qualitative comments fed back featured in the existing draft of the

strategy, however there were some additional changes made as a result of the
engagement:

Education — more focus was given to education in the context of offending
and preparing people for release, one of the existing recommendations was
updated to specifically include education to help people reacclimatise,
integrate into society and find suitable employment.

Veterans — whilst veterans were mentioned in the strategy, following
engagement feedback, services to support veterans with their mental health
was included within the health chapter. The matter of the military covenant
requiring housing authorities to prioritise veterans was also raised. After
discussions with Heads of Housing, it was determined that this was a housing
allocations and policy matter and that there was work happening elsewhere to
progress this and therefore considered linked, but out of scope for this
strategy.

Digital inclusion — little focus was given to this within the draft strategy,
however following helpful feedback on this within the engagement, this has
been strengthened within the financial inclusion chapter, specifically around
financial support for customers in digital formats.

Service user involvement — COVID restrictions have prevented meaningful
service user involvement. This was raised both in the engagement feedback
and webinar with the community and voluntary sector. To keep within COVID
secure guidelines and avoid tokenistic engagement, a commitment has since
been made to involve service users in parts of the action planning, where
appropriate and to establish a service user involvement feedback mechanism,
to gain their unique and integral perspective into the delivery of the strategy
recommendations.

4. Options and Proposal

4.1

That Warwickshire’s Health and Wellbeing Board adopt the strategy,

Preventing Homelessness in Warwickshire: a multiagency approach.

3of4
Page 135



Page 4 of 4

5. Financial Implications

None

6. Environmental Implications

None

7. Timescales associated with the decision and next steps

7.1  District and Borough Council’s have taken the strategy through their
governance processes in January/February 2021, before the Warwickshire Health
and Wellbeing Board receives the final version for consideration and sign off in
March 2021.

7.2  The homelessness strategic group will reconvene in 2021 and continue to
work collaboratively with partners, developing the action plan that will underpin the
strategic recommendations. This will result in the development of different
workstreams around homelessness, in order to achieve the strategic vision.
Updates on progress will be provided to the Health and Wellbeing Board and other
boards as requested.

Background papers
Appendix 1 — Preventing Homelessness in Warwickshire: a multiagency approach

Appendix 2 — Draft Countywide Homeless Strategy — Survey Results
Appendix 3 — Equality Impact Assessment

Name Contact Information
Report Author Emily Fernandez Emilyfernandez@warwickshire.gov.uk
Assistant Director Shade Agboola Shadeagboola@warwickshire.gov.uk
Strategic Director Nigel Minns Nigelminns@warwickshire.gov.uk
Portfolio Holder Clir Les Caborn Lescaborn@warwickshire.gov.uk

The report was circulated to the following members prior to publication:
Local Member(s): N/A

Other members: Councillor Caborn, Councillor Redford, Councillor Roodhouse,
Councillor Bell, Councillor Adkins, Councillor Kondakor

4 of 4
Page 136



mailto:Emilyfernandez@warwickshire.gov.uk
mailto:Shadeagboola@warwickshire.gov.uk
mailto:Nigelminns@warwickshire.gov.uk
mailto:Lescaborn@warwickshire.gov.uk

Preventing Homelessness
in Warwickshire:
d mulil-agency approach

@

& il <

Page 137



Contents

Page 138



Foreword

We are delighted to introduce the first ever
Warwickshire-wide homelessness strategy, which
has been produced by the county, district and
borough councils of Warwickshire working in
partnership together and liaising and engaging
with the widest range of statutory and voluntary
organisations operating across the county.

A place to live is a basic human need and the
lack of a home blights the lives of too many
individuals and families in our community. While
housing itself will always be the cornerstone

of any solution, homelessness is often a multi-
dimensional issue that is impacted by, and
impacts upon, many other social policy areas.
That is why this strategy is so important: because
it seeks to prevent and tackle homelessness by
addressing the broader underlying issues and
because it brings together the organisations
working in those other policy areas to help to
define and develop the way forward to reduce
homelessness in Warwickshire.

Our vision for the next two years is of statutory,
voluntary and community organisations working
together for the benefit of our residents to
promote and deliver the changes expected by
the government in the Homelessness Reduction
Act 2017 with particular reference to the
prevention duty and the Duty to Refer, both of
which are explained in depth in this document.

We have identified five equally important priorities
for the strategy:

e Health - to reduce the inequalities and
improve the health of people at risk of
homelessness, homeless or sleeping rough.

e Financial inclusion — to ensure that a wide
range of appropriate services are available to
support those at risk of homelessness due to
financial difficulties.

¢ Young people — to enhance and improve
services that prevent homelessness among
young people.

Page 139

e Domestic abuse - to prevent domestic
abuse and the crisis homelessness resulting
from it wherever possible.

e Offending — to deliver better-focussed
housing and related support services for those
at risk of homelessness when leaving prison.

In this strategy you will see each of these
priorities addressed in turn, with an analysis of
what we know about the issue, a description of
some of the excellent projects that are already
underway and a set of recommendations

for further work that will help to improve the
situation.

Writing this foreword at a time when the country
is still grappling with the Coronavirus pandemic,
it seems clear to us that now, more than ever,

a joint approach is essential to preventing
homelessness in all its complexity and we

are confident that this strategy will help to
substantially deliver the changes needed over the
coming years.

Councillor Les Caborn, Portfolio Holder for
Adult Social Care & Health, Warwickshire
County Council

Councillor Caroline Symonds, Chair of
Resources Board, North Warwickshire Borough
Council

Councillor Chris Watkins, Portfolio Holder for
Housing and Communities, Nuneaton and
Bedworth Borough Council

Councillor Emma Crane, Portfolio Holder
for Communities and Homes, Rugby Borough
Council

Councillor Jan Matecki, Portfolio Holder for
Housing and Property, Warwick District Council

Councillor Jo Barker, Portfolio Holder for
People, Stratford on Avon District Council



Introduction

Warwickshire is a county covering approximately
760 square miles in the West Midlands region of
England and is home to 570,000 people. It has
a two-tier structure of local government, with
Warwickshire County Council (WCC) delivering
upper-tier services across the whole county

and five district and borough councils (D&Bs)
providing services over smaller geographic areas
within the county: North Warwickshire Borough
Council (NWBC); Nuneaton and Bedworth
Borough Council (NBBC); Rugby Borough
Council (RBCO); Stratford-on-Avon District Council
(SDC); and Warwick District Council (WDC).

Ever since the first national legislation on
homelessness in 1977 the D&Bs, as local
housing authorities, have had the primary
responsibility for helping homeless people in their
area. In April 2018 the Homelessness Reduction
Act 2017 (HRA17) came into force bringing
sweeping changes in how councils should
respond to homelessness. Further details on the
act are included elsewhere in this document,
but one of the most significant changes was the
introduction of a “Duty to Refer” which required
other public bodies to become more involved in
homelessness service provision.

This new obligation intensified conversations
that were already ongoing between the D&Bs
and WCC culminating in a conference on
homelessness in the autumn of 2018 that
involved a wide range of statutory and voluntary
organisations with remits connected with
homelessness. Following the conference all

six councils agreed to develop a countywide
strategy and this document is the result. The
process has included full engagement with other
relevant agencies, along with a period of open

public engagement, inviting the widest possible
cross-section of views. The key messages from
this engagement are included as appendix one.

The document begins by giving more details on
the background to the strategy, followed by key
data on homelessness across Warwickshire.

It then sets out specific information and
recommendations in five key social policy areas
where co-ordinated action can have the greatest
impact in preventing and tackling homelessness:

e Chapter three - Health.

e Chapter four - Financial inclusion.

e Chapter five - Young people.

e Chapter six - Domestic abuse.

e Chapter seven - Offending.

There are many operational interventions that

are already underway across the county to help
prevent and tackle homelessness. Many of these
are relevant to tackling the issues set out in

each of the policy areas so, to avoid excessive
repetition, they are detailed in section 1.3 and
then a list of the most pertinent is included at

the beginning of the second section of each
policy chapter. The same applies to system-wide
actions needed that cut across every area: these
are explained in section 1.4 and referenced briefly
at the start of the third section of each policy
chapter.

This strategy is intentionally written so that it
will continue to be relevant over a two-year
period. The recommendations will be taken
forward through partnership working between

Page 140



the most relevant agencies in each case, with where the need for amendments and additions
a lead identified for each work-stream. Detailed to the strategy will be considered. The Board
action plans will be drawn up for each chapter will also receive updates on the key datasets,

theme and service user involvement incorporated  the baseline information for which is included in
wherever appropriate. Progress will be monitored  chapter two and appendix three of this strategy.
annually by the Health and Wellbeing Board,

Page 141



i za

Chapter 1

The context for the strategy

1.1 Homelessness

The causes of homelessness can be complex
and have links to several factors that can broadly
be divided into “structural” and “individual”.
However, it is acknowledged that structural
factors create the conditions within which
homelessness occurs, and people with individual
complex problems are more vulnerable to

social and economic factors than the general
population (Alma Economics, 2019). The wide
range of causes and their classification are
shown in the following depiction.

It is important to note that not all causes of
homelessness are complex and early intervention
by relevant services can ensure homelessness

(2

Q,

&

o) (@)

is prevented so that consequent issues do not
arise. While D&Bs are responsible for tackling
homelessness, many of the public services
that support people with these wider needs are
provided by other organisations.

The Government’s ambition is to promote a
holistic approach to addressing housing needs in
order to reduce some of the consequent effects
at the same time as resolving an individual’s
homelessness. This approach was made all the
more urgent by the specific set of challenges of
the COVID-19 pandemic, which required partners
to act in collaboration to prevent health risks

due to homelessness. This has promoted strong
working relationships to deliver agreed actions
which will underpin future work as directed by

THE CAUSES OF HOMELESSNESS AND ROUGH SLEEPING

The causes of rough sleeping are typically described as either structural or individual factors.
These can be interrelated and reinforced by one another.

STRUCTURAL FACTORS INCLUDE:

INDIVIDUAL FACTORS INCLUDE:

® poverty

e inequality

e housing supply and affordability

e unemployment or insecure employment
e access to social security

/N

e poor physical health

e mental health problems

e experience of violence, abuse and neglect
e drug and alcohol problems

e relationship breakdown

e experience of care or prison

e bereavement
e refugees

Page 142



this strategy. Joint COVID-19 recovery planning
includes anticipating further challenges from a
period of recession in which households may find
themselves in financial difficulty due to periods of
unemployment.

1.2 The new legislative
framework

For many years local housing authorities have
had defined statutory responsibilities towards
homeless people in their area, the principal
legislation being the Housing Act 1996. To
address an increase in homelessness nationally,
and the prevalence of rough sleeping particularly,
the Government enacted changes to the 1996
Act through the HRA17 (see appendix two) which
came into force on 3 April 2018.

The broad aim of the HRA17 is to reduce
homelessness by introducing systems to

ensure early intervention and prevention and by
changing an over-emphasis in the old system on
technical decisions about priority need categories
and intentional homelessness judgements. This
is achieved by requiring that all households who
seek assistance have a full needs assessment
and a Personal Housing Plan.

The HRA17 also confers new duties on other
statutory agencies through the Duty to Refer
(introduced from October 2018) bringing a wide
range of other statutory organisations into firm
collaboration with local housing authorities to
implement the legislation. This demands joint
action; it recognises that early intervention and
prevention cannot be achieved by the housing
authority alone because other organisations are
likely to see early indications or triggers which
could lead to homelessness before a household
makes contact with the housing authority.

The Personal Housing Plan and Duty to Refer
together underpin a legislative requirement to
provide a holistic assessment of the households
needs which results in a joint, multi-agency
approach to achieving a positive outcome.

Implementation of this new legislation brings a
number of challenges:

e All councils must make a fundamental shift

in the way that they deal with homelessness,
from a safety net of last resort to proactive,
joined up services which are able to deliver
early intervention and prevent homelessness.

e Other statutory organisations need
to collaborate and act to ensure early
intervention and prevention in order to avoid
crisis.

e Housing options services must be promoted
in a positive manner to encourage households
to seek assistance as early as possible.

This requires a shift away from demand
management (encouraged by the previous
legislation) towards a more proactive, open
door approach.

® |n order to address the issues drawn out in
needs assessments and actions agreed in
Personal Housing Plans, positive collaborative
systems of work must be developed between
statutory agencies and support providers.

e Strategically, all housing authorities must act
to increase the supply of affordable housing in
their area.

e This new approach should ultimately prevent
households falling into crisis and needing
to rely on statutory and voluntary support
services. However until that shift is achieved
the reduction in available resources for
both statutory and voluntary agencies is a
challenge in meeting needs.

1.3 What are we doing in
Warwickshire?

HRA17 has been implemented operationally by
all of the D&Bs. To aid prevention: households at
risk of homelessness are being assessed much
earlier; all applicants have a needs assessment
and are provided with a Personal Housing Plan;
and the Duty to Refer is in operation. In addition
there are a number of initiatives underpinning
the shift to early intervention and a more holistic
approach:

A wide range of interventions are available
for all applicants to access in order to prevent
homelessness, such as: grants to support people

Page 143



to sustain their tenancies or find an alternative
before homelessness occurs; mediation and
early intervention with parents or friends no
longer willing to accommodate; rent deposit and
guarantee schemes.

Community and voluntary sector support.
Whilst in Warwickshire there are many statutory
and commissioned services to prevent and
tackle homelessness, Warwickshire’s homeless
communities are fortunate to have excellent
support from the third sector. There are a variety
of hardworking and dedicated voluntary groups
who provide integral support, particularly to those
people who find themselves with no home, street
homeless and need to rely on shelters or soup
kitchens. The voluntary sector support for this
population is a valued resource in Warwickshire.
Going forward, we will work closely with the
community and voluntary sector providers to
establish a service user involvement feedback
mechanism, to gain their unique and integral
perspective into the delivery of the strategy
recommendations.

p-h.i.l. (Preventing Homelessness Improving
Lives) is a service that actively seeks early
referrals about, and direct contact from, people
who are concerned that they may become
homeless. The service provides a holistic and
tailored approach and focusses on prevention
and well-being. It was funded by government
trailblazer funding from 2017 to 2021 and
operated across the county. From April 2021
p.h.i.l. will continue to operate in NWBC, RBC
and SDC, with other preventative services
operating in NBBC and WDC.

Mental health first aid training has been
commissioned by Warwickshire Public Health,
specifically focussed on housing officers and
front line workers whose clients include people
vulnerable to homelessness.

Housing-related support services
commissioned by WCC. Providers work with
clients with needs that place them on the
edge of care, supporting them to maintain a
tenancy and helping with issues that could
lead to homelessness. Some of the services
include short-term accommodation to support
households who are homeless.

Research undertaken by Doorway considered
working practices in statutory services for

young people and care leavers and delivered

clear recommendations for action to improve joint
working.

A Domestic Abuse Strategy for the County
is being developed to set out how agencies will
work together to tackle domestic abuse and its
consequences.

Rough sleeping initiatives are being developed
in partnership across the county. These include
the delivery of specific mental health services and
action to provide more accommodation for this
particular group.

Financial inclusion is being proactively
promoted by D&Bs. This includes a focus

on financial inclusion as a driver to provide
sustainable housing, using Discretionary Housing
Payments to prevent homelessness and
addressing broader issues around budgeting
skills, education, training and employment
opportunities.

Support services for armed forces veterans
have been developed and promoted across the
County.

Supporting hospitals by working with
Warwickshire’s Hospital Liaison Officers across
our main acute trusts, to support safe and
positive discharge arrangements for patients
where homelessness, housing need or property
condition is an issue.

Improved access to affordable housing is
being promoted by D&Bs using their Local Plans
and Lettings Schemes as well as by intervening
to shape the private sector market. This includes
the need for specialised housing and extra-care
housing schemes.

1.4 System wide actions to be
taken to tackle and reduce
homelessness

The legislation requires statutory agencies

to act to promote positive outcomes for
applicants. The inclusion of the Duty to Refer in
the HRA17 indicates Government awareness

Page 144



that better partnership working is needed

to resolve homelessness when it occurs. In
addition, a recent consultation paper, “Tackling
Homelessness Together”, set out Government
concerns that partners are not engaging
positively to resolve homelessness and are not
co-operating. As a result, Government is now
proposing statutory requirements to provide
for specific structures which could include a
duty to co-operate and the establishment of
Homelessness Reduction Boards.

System changes are needed to prevent
homelessness, with the councils that are party to
this strategy acting together to prevent crisis by
promoting the importance of the Duty to Refer in
our partnership work. We need new and robust
pathways enabling early notice of a threat of
homelessness and the opportunity to intervene at
an early stage.

In Warwickshire, a Strategic Homelessness
Board has already been established. This

supports the legislative changes, anticipates the
Government’s further proposals and provides a
strategic framework to reduce the prevalence
of homelessness in the county. Actions are
concerned with how statutory agencies in
Warwickshire will work together to promote and
deliver the changes required by Government

for the benefit of our residents. These actions
are intended to define a strong culture of
collaboration and joint working arrangements.

In promoting collaborative working the board
will also welcome challenge to existing systems
of work in order to develop more effective
interventions. To provide for an informed
network of agencies that can assist front line
services to prevent homelessness the board will
encourage a culture of professional curiosity,
ensure professionals know that acting to prevent
homelessness, is everybody’s business and
create clear referral pathways. The effectiveness
of the board’s actions to strengthen joint working
will be monitored formally at its meetings.

Page 145



i za

Chapter 2

Facts and figures about homelessness in Warwickshire

The purpose of this chapter is to draw a picture
of homelessness in Warwickshire, comparing it
to the national situation where relevant, and to
provide baseline information for monitoring as
this strategy is implemented.

As part of the new set of duties introduced by the
HRA17, local housing authorities send case level
data to the Ministry of Housing, Communities
and Local Government (MHCLG) quarterly
through the Homeless Case Level Information
Collection system (H-CLIC). The data is collated
and analysed by MHCLG and they publish a
quarterly report.

“Homeless” covers a broad range of living
circumstances but H-CLIC data covers
statutory homelessness, i.e. the homelessness
applications taken and decisions made by local
authorities according to their legal duties. This
means that not all homelessness is included

in the data as it is concerned with reported
homelessness only. Nonetheless, H-CLIC data
is useful in helping to understand homelessness
nationally and locally.

H-CLIC data includes information about the new
duties owed for prevention and relief as well as
the long standing main homelessness duty, the
reasons for homelessness and the support needs
of applicants. Critically it also includes information
about the use of temporary accommodation
which should reduce over time if the new
prevention duty is effective. The new duty to

refer, given to other statutory agencies, is also
monitored as part of the H-CLIC return.

Appendix three sets out the detailed data

for Warwickshire but a summary of the most
important points is included below. Some
detailed contextual information about the health
of the population in Warwickshire is shown in
an extract from the 2019 annual report of the
Director of Public Health in appendix four.

(2

& (5 101 &

In 2018/19, the first year of implementation of
the HRA17, D&Bs received 2,476 approaches
across Warwickshire. This increased to 2,853 in
2019/20, an increase of almost 15% compared
to an increase of only 5% for England over the
same period.

In 2019/20 the duty owed to applicants was split
fairly evenly between prevention (46%) and relief
(48%) with around 5% owed no duty. Table one
(appendix one) shows how these applications
were split across the five D&Bs according to duty
owed.

For those owed the prevention duty in
Warwickshire (appendix one: table two):

e The two main reasons were “End of an
assured shorthold tenancy” and “Family or
friends no longer being willing or able to
accommodate” (together accounting for more
than 50% of applicants). This was the same
for the West Midlands and England.

e The profile of reasons for the applicant losing
their home, or being threatened with losing
it, was broadly similar to the regional and
national picture with two notable differences:
a much higher proportion of applications were
caused by the end of a social rented tenancy
or by a non-violent relationship breakdown.

For those owed the relief duty there is a different
profile (appendix one: table three):

e There is a much smaller proportion than is true
for prevention cases, of applications due to
“End of an assured shorthold tenancy” (11%
at all three geographic levels).

e The main reason for application is “Family
or friends being no longer willing or able to
accommodate” at roughly 30% across all
three areas.

Page 146



e Warwickshire has a significantly higher
proportion of applications due to “Non-violent
relationship breakdown” and this is offset by
fewer “Other” reasons.

When looking at the support needs of
households (appendix one: table four):

e The profile is broadly similar to the West
Midlands region as a whole with the three
most common reasons in both cases being:
“A history of mental health problems”;
“Physical ill health and disability”; and “At risk
of / has experienced domestic abuse”. These
three reasons accounted for roughly half of all
cases (53% in Warwickshire and 49% in the
West Midlands).

e |n Warwickshire no other support need
accounted for more than 5% of needs
whereas in the West Midlands there were
two such needs: “Young person aged 18-25
requiring support to manage independently”
at 8% and “Access to education, employment
or training” at 6%.

As regards the Duty to Refer (appendix one:
table five):

e This was widely used in 2018/19, the first
year of operation, with 617 cases referred in
this way. However, there was a huge drop to
only 95 cases the following year and every
organisation subject to the duty made fewer
referrals in 2019/20 than they did in 2018/19.

e The profile of referrals also changed between
the two years: in 2018/19 the biggest referrer
was Jobcentre Plus at 41% but this fell to
17% in 2019/20 while Children’s Social
Services increased from 12% to 24% and
Adult Social Services increased from 3% to
15%. As indicated above, this was not due
to an increase in the number of referrals from
those agencies.

Tables six and seven (appendix one) show

the number of households in temporary
accommodation by type of accommodation and
by type of household, for each D&B as at 31st
March 2020. There is no clear pattern as regards
the nature of accommodation being used. Single
adults are by far the most common household

type in temporary accommodation, as was the
case at the end of each quarter in 2019/20.
However, the total number as at 31st March
2020 will have been inflated by the “Everyone
In” initiative in response to the Coronavirus
pandemic.

Rough sleeping numbers countywide (appendix
one: table eight) have gone from 39 in 2016 to
49 in 2017 and 78 in 2018 before falling back to
47 in 2019.

Warwickshire had a proportion of “White”
applicants at 85% that was significantly higher
than either the West Midlands (65%) or England
(70%). This was offset by lower proportions in
Warwickshire of “Black/African/Caribbean/Black
British” and “Asian/Asian British” applicants
(appendix one: table nine).

The age profile of applicants in Warwickshire was
broadly similar to both the West Midlands and
England with relatively small differences between
the three regional distributions (appendix one:
table ten).

In Warwickshire and England 14% of applicants
contained more than one adult (in the West
Midlands the figure was a little higher at 17%)
so that the gender of the main applicant was
not specified. Gender analysis is therefore only
provided for the remaining 86% of applicants,
of which 60% were single adults and 26% were
single parents.

The gender profile of single parents (appendix
one: table 11) is broadly similar across all three
geographic profiles with the split being 89%
“Female” and 11% “Male” in Warwickshire. The
West Midlands is slightly different as it has a
much higher proportion (6%) of “Other/gender
not known” cases.

For single people (appendix one: table 12) there
is a higher proportion of “Male” (62%) than
“Female” (37%) in Warwickshire, very similar to
England and the West Midlands, though the
latter again has a slightly higher proportion of
“Other/gender not known”.

Page 147



©

i za

Chapter 3

Homelessness and health

(2

& (6 101 &

Our objective is to reduce the inequalities and improve
the health of people at risk of homelessness, homeless or

sleeping rough.

3.1 What do we know?

There is a wealth of research into the health
and well-being of the homeless population, in
particular around health inequalities, mental
health, and use of drugs and alcohal. It is
important to note that someone can be
officially homeless while living in temporary
accommaodation with a roof over their heads.
This will have a different impact on their health,
compared to someone who is street homeless
and sleeping rough, but much of the published
research does not differentiate between being
homeless in temporary accommodation and
rough sleeping.

Data from 27 Health Needs Audits across
England in 2019 showed that an estimated 44%
of homeless people had a diagnosed mental
health condition; 86% had reported a mental
health difficulty (the most common issue being
depression); 27% had an alcohol problem;

78% smoked; and 41% used drugs or were in
recovery.'’

The physical and emotional health of homeless
people is generally worse when compared to
that of the wider population, including the most
deprived in the wider population.? Poor health

is exacerbated by poor access to health services
and lack of adherence to prescribed medication.?

There are two particularly significant
consequences of this poor health that have
implications for health and social care services:

e Homeless people aged 50 have the
same age-related health conditions as
people in the general population at 70,

such as falls, cognitive impairments and
incontinence. Consequently, researchers have
recommended that homeless people should
be eligible for older adult services at 50.?

e Homeless people die younger compared
to the general population. People who
experience rough sleeping over a long period
have an average age of death of 45 years
for men and 43 years for women, compared
to 76 and 81 years respectively within the
general population.® Causes of this include
infections, such as tuberculosis and HIV, heart
disease and a host of external factors such as
unintentional injuries, suicide and poisoning.
In recent decades however, the causes of this
early mortality have shifted from infections to
drug overdoses, substance misuse disorders
and mental health problems.?

While estimates of alcohol and drug use rates
among homeless people vary, there is an
acknowledgement that rates of substance
misuse are much higher than they are within the
general population. In 2008, a systematic review
was undertaken to examine the prevalence of
mental disorders among homeless people in
western countries* and there were two main
conclusions:

e The most common mental disorders were
alcohol and drug dependence with an
estimated prevalence of 37.9% and 24.4%
respectively.

e The prevalence estimates for psychosis were
at least as high as those for depression, which
is in marked contrast to the general population
estimates of these conditions.

Page 148



Conversely, among those with drug and

alcohol issues, the number of people without
adequate and secure housing is also high.

The links between drug and alcohol use and
homelessness are widely acknowledged, and

in the majority of research, this association is
recognised as an established fact. It is, however,
important to note that not everyone who has an
issue with drugs or alcohol becomes homeless
and not everyone who is homeless has a drug or
alcohol issue.

Autism and learning disability are another
important consideration in health and
homelessness. Autism is a lifelong condition
that affects how people perceive the world
and interact with others. Autistic people can
experience challenges in communicating

and interacting with others which can lead to
relationship breakdown and social isolation,
creating difficulties in accessing support and/
or maintaining education and employment. For
autistic adults in employment, more than one
third consider workplace adjustments for their
condition to be poor or very poor.®

One study found that 12% of a group of people
experiencing homelessness showed strong signs
of autism.® It is likely that autistic people are not
only more at risk of becoming homeless, but also
more vulnerable once they are on the streets and
they may find it more difficult to move into new
accommaodation.

A 2018 systematic review of cognitive impairment
and homelessness (including learning disability
and autism) found that cognitive impairment was
over-represented in the homeless population,
with some groups of individuals with specific
conditions having higher rates of experiences of
homelessness than in the general population.”

The review noted differences in the needs

and experiences of homeless individuals with
cognitive impairment compared to the needs of
homeless individuals without a learning disability.
The needs of people with cognitive impairment
tend to be enduring as opposed to temporary.
In addition, services do not tend to be adapted
or adjusted to meet the needs of people with
cognitive impairment and so struggle to meet

Page 149

such needs. Issues include a lack of awareness
of learning disability and autism amongst
practitioners, lack of accessible programmes and
inappropriate and low-quality housing which is
unsustainable in the long term.

Difficulties in accessing support were also
experienced by individuals with mild autism or
learning disability, or “high-functioning” autism
who are either undiagnosed, experiencing long
delays during the diagnostic process, or do not
meet the threshold for social care or mental
health services.

An Autism and Homelessness Toolkit has been
created by a multi-agency group including
Resources for Autism, Westminster City Council,
St Mungo’s, National Autistic Society and
Homeless Link, to help staff in homelessness
services understand:

e \What autism is and how it can present.

e How autism might change the way that
people engage with services and support.

e How they can tailor their responses to better
meet the needs of autistic people.

Workforce upskilling in understanding autism
and how it may impact on a person’s behaviour
is crucial to the provision of support which is
responsive to their needs.

Among young people, the causes of
homelessness include family conflict,
victimisation, non-heterosexual sexual identity
and having been in the child welfare system.?
Shelter, in collaboration with policy experts,
undertook a comprehensive evidence review
of the impact bad housing has on children’s life
chances and found that:

e Experience of multiple housing problems
increases children’s risk of ill-health and
disability by up to 25 per cent during
childhood and early adulthood.

e Children who are homeless are three to
four times more likely to have mental health
problems than other children. Mental health
issues such as anxiety and depression have
also been linked to overcrowded and unfit
housing.

©



e Children who are homeless are two to three
times more likely to be absent from school
than other children due to the disruption
caused by moving into and between
temporary accommodation.

e Children who are homeless are more likely
to have behavioural problems such as
aggression, hyperactivity and impulsivity:
factors that compromise academic
achievement and relationships with peers and
teachers.

e Children who are homeless have lower levels
of academic achievement that cannot be
explained by differences in their levels of
ability.®

Adults who are homeless are high users of
acute health services, according to the evidence,
including emergency visits to Accident &
Emergency (A&E) and in-patient admissions. This
is often compounded by the high risk factors of
substance misuse and mental health disorders
which increase their use of these services.?

The cost of hospital use by homeless people is
estimated to be four times higher than for the
general population and eight times higher for in-
patient services.®

There is also evidence that a high proportion of
homeless people are discharged from health
services onto the street without their underlying
health problems being addressed. Appropriate
and timely discharge planning is crucial in terms
of supporting homeless patients: a randomised
control trial tested the success of intervention
with people at risk of homelessness from a
psychiatric unit. It found that those who were
offered immediate assistance with housing still
had that accommodation, both three and six
months later. However for those without such
an intervention, all but one participant remained
homeless after three and six months.

The COVID-19 pandemic may be expected

to have longer term impacts on the health of
Warwickshire’s homeless population, but whilst
it is too early to tell what this might be there
have been some anecdotal benefits. In particular
the government’s “Everyone In” directive

brought a focussed effort to offer temporary
accommodation to anyone sleeping rough. Not
only did this give some people who were sleeping
rough the opportunity to take up the offer of
accommodation, it also gave some people in
unsuitable accommodation the same opportunity,
e.g. people who had been sofa surfing were now
able to reside in temporary accommodation.

As a result some individuals became known to
services for perhaps the first time. This presented
an opportunity to work with these individuals and
link them into health-related services such as:
registering with a GP; reviewing prescriptions;
general health checks; being linked into drug
and alcohol services; and mental health outreach
services.

3.2 What are we currently
doing to tackle homelessness
and health issues?

There are a number of initiatives set out in
chapter one that are being undertaken towards
preventing and tackling homelessness generally
across Warwickshire. The following are of
particular relevance to health (and are explained
in more detail in section 1.3 above):

e Ph.i.l./prevention work.

e Mental health first aid training.

e Housing-related support services.

e A Domestic Abuse Strategy.

¢ Rough sleeping initiatives.

¢ Financial inclusion.

e Support services for armed forces veterans.

¢ Hospital discharge pilot.

* |Improving access to affordable housing,
including specialist and extra-care schemes.

There are also specific initiatives underway that
tackle homelessness and health issues and these
are explained in the following paragraphs.

Change Grow Live, Drugs and Alcohol
Services offer free and confidential support

to adults, young people, carers and families
across Warwickshire. A range of treatments and

Page 150



interventions are provided that are designed to
support people to take control of their recovery
journey and achieve their goals. Services include:
harm reduction; prescribing; detoxification;
training; housing and employment advice.

Mental Health Enhanced Care Pathway -
WCC have worked in partnership with Coventry
and Warwickshire Partnership Trust (CWPT)

to second two Advanced Nurse Practitioners

into the P3 Street Outreach Service (part of
Warwickshire’s floating support service, within the
housing-related support portfolio). The Mental
Health Enhanced Care Pathway in Warwickshire
works proactively to engage people who sleep
rough and people who reside in local hostels,

to encourage them to seek support with their
mental health. The aim is to support more

people who sleep rough with their mental health
challenges and reduce the risk of exacerbation of
their mental health, which can often result in A&E
attendance.

A Physical Health Outreach Service is being
piloted by WCC with funding from MHCLG’s
2019 Cold Weather Fund, in collaboration with
the Out of Hospital Team. The Physical Health
Outreach Pilot conducts outreach and visits
people who are sleeping rough, either on the
streets or in a location convenient to them e.g. a
local hostel, drop-in centre or café. The aims of
this pilot are to:

e |ncrease access to health services for people
who sleep rough in Warwickshire.

e Work with people sleeping rough, who
may have physical health problems, in a
preventative way to help them to manage their
health and avoid inappropriate use of A&E and
emergency admissions.

e Facilitate and foster a positive relationship
between people sleeping rough and health
services; support them to have confidence
in becoming responsible for their own health;
and increase their confidence in accessing
primary care.

Pathway needs assessments are being
conducted by Public Health Warwickshire
working with Pathway in Warwickshire’s

Page 151

acute trusts. In order to determine the most
appropriate Pathway model for an acute trust,

it is important to understand current practice
and assess local levels of need and demand on
current services. A Pathway hospital team puts
the patient at the centre of his or her own care
and works to transform health outcomes for one
of the most vulnerable and deprived groups in
our society. The model of healthcare, developed
for and with homeless people, can also benefit
other multiply excluded groups.

Warwickshire’s physical health outreach
service for people sleeping rough was launched
in January 2020, just before lockdown measures
were introduced as a result of the Coronavirus
pandemic. The “Everyone In” directive presented
an opportunity for the nurses to carry out patient
assessments of individuals not previously

known to the health service that were placed
into temporary accommodation. Patient data
was captured on the NHS secure system and
will be anonymously collated for evaluation
purposes, thereby offering an opportunity to
examine the prospective health of this cohort

of individuals “post-COVID”, as they move on
through temporary accommodation, into more
sustainable accommodation.

Veterans Mental Health Transition,
Intervention and Liaison Service (Midlands
and East) is a partnership between CWPT,
Lincolnshire Partnership NHS Foundation

Trust, North Essex Partnership University NHS
Foundation Trust, Walking with the Veterans’
Wounded and Mental Health Matters, established
to achieve joined up care pathways for veterans
across the Midlands and East regions. Staff
include veterans and civilians with a range of
highly relevant and professional experience. The
service will provide a responsive, innovative and
high quality service user mental health service
operating as one team, delivering local care
through three geographically well-placed hubs.
Each hub is attached to its nearest Ministry

of Defence Department of Community Mental
Health for a direct in-reach link for those veterans
in transition, to ensure they receive the best
transition possible into civilian life. The team is
based in Rugby, Warwickshire.

©



CWPT is also offering a new NHS High Intensity
Veterans mental health service to complement
existing mainstream NHS services, ensuring a
military sensitivity and understanding is there
for veterans and families at points of mental
health crisis. It is one of a number of pathfinders,
essentially different pilots across England, that
run until March 2022 in order to inform NHS
England on what works best, in time for the
re-procurement of all NHS specialist veterans
mental health services thereafter.

3.3 What opportunities
will be taken to improve
services?

A number of system-wide actions have been
referred to in section 1.4 above that the Strategic
Homelessness Board is proposing. In addition
the following opportunities have been identified
that will improve services for those with health
issues that are at risk of homelessness. These
will be taken forward as recommendations from
this strategy.

1. Supporting the development and
mobilisation of the Mental Health
Enhanced Care Pathway in Warwickshire.
This targeted mental health and wellbeing
service for people who are street homeless/
sleeping rough is explained in section 3.2
above. There are opportunities to develop this
further and to work with the system to realise
the benefits and sustain this service into the
future.

2. Holding collaborative discussions with
CWPT around options for prioritisation of
mental health support for people who are
homeless/rough sleeping.

Currently there are no specialised mental
health services for people who are homeless
or sleeping rough in Warwickshire. This
population often have multiple, complex
needs and do not access services in the same
way that the general population do, often
presenting when situations or symptoms have
reached a point where they need emergency
care and support. Further discussions

are needed as to whether prioritising this

vulnerable population’s access to such
services is achievable.

3. Supporting the development and
embedding of the Dual Diagnosis
protocol and pathways into mental
health/drugs and alcohol services.

Dual Diagnosis covers a broad spectrum

of substance misuse and mental health
challenges that individuals may face at the
same time. The protocol describes a joint
approach that will be taken by organisations
involved to support these individuals.
Understanding how this protocol can be
used to support people who are homeless is
crucial.

4. Considering system-wide options to
address the physical health needs of
people who are homeless/sleeping rough.
Due to this population having multiple,
complex needs, physical health is often not
prioritised or accessible in the same way,
compared to the general population. System-
wide discussions and actions are required
in order to determine how to best meet
the physical health needs of this vulnerable
population.

5. Ensuring access to pharmacies.
It is necessary to explore the use of behaviour
policies with local pharmacies and the Local
Pharmaceutical Council, to ensure that access
to pharmacies does not become a barrier to
engaging with treatment services for people
who are homeless.

6. Maintaining good dental health.
People who are homeless and/or rough
sleeping may struggle to access dental
treatment so it is important to ensure that
there is availability of such treatment and
clear pathways for people to follow in order to
access it.

7. Facilitating entry into residential
rehabilitation and inpatient detoxification
services.

Organisations need to work together to
explore opportunities for people who are
homeless or sleeping rough to access both
commissioned and privately funded detox

Page 152



and rehabilitation services, ensuring a quality health and social care practitioners; and
assured approach to both. increasing access to advocacy services to
ensure individuals are not inappropriately
excluded from accessing suitable housing.

In addition, specific considerations about the
Suitability of accommodation for people who
are homeless with learning disability and/or
autism is required due to social, information
processing or sensory needs which may make
it difficult for these individuals to live in certain
environments.

8. Improving the accessibility of services
available for homeless individuals who
may have a learning disability or autism.
This can be achieved by: increasing
awareness of autism and learning disability
issues amongst practitioners; providing
accessible and easy-read documentation;
ensuring reasonable adjustments to services
are made by improving links with relevant

Page 153 G



Chapter 4

Homelessnhess and financial inclusion

(2

= G 1O | &

Our objective is to ensure that a wide range of appropriate
services are avdailable to support those at risk of
homelessness due to financial difficulties.

4.1 What do we know?

Stable finance underpins a stable home:

without being financially secure, one cannot
have access to sustainable housing. There are
many people who have at best limited access to
somewhere warm, safe and secure to live. They
have often been in and out of various types of
accommodation due to short term arrangements
because financial exclusion has undermined
sustainability. The quality of accommodation is
invariably at the lower end of the market. This
insecurity of tenure and access to inferior housing
means that basic safety and physiological needs
are not met. This then feeds into poor wellbeing.

The cost of obtaining and maintaining
accommodation requires constant financial
discipline, especially for those on low incomes.
Household costs such as rent, Council Tax, gas,
electricity, water, telephone, mobile phone and
broadband are all subject to regular increases.
Mortgage costs, fluctuate with interest rates,
which have been at historic low levels since

the “credit crunch” in 2008/09 but there is no
guarantee that this will continue and if rates
were to begin rising then so too would mortgage
repayments.

People on low incomes are particularly vulnerable
to these cost increases which can easily push
people who were “just about managing” into
difficulties. Once financial security is lost it is a
spiral that is difficult to escape, leading to debt
which can mean that housing costs go unpaid
and ultimately the home is at risk. This can be a
gradual process but sometimes homelessness

can be triggered by a financial crisis such as
losing a job, or having problems with claiming or
receiving benefit.

Financial exclusion is closely linked with both fuel
poverty and food poverty. Broadly speaking fuel
poverty has three influencing factors: household
income; energy prices; and home energy
efficiency. Those on low incomes are often
unable to access the best energy tariffs as they
have pay as you use meter arrangements applied
to them by utility companies, the unit costs of
which are among the highest on the market. This
is then compounded by the household living

in the least energy efficient accommodation
resulting in a higher proportion of limited funds
being spent on high-cost energy. If money is
being exhausted by energy costs this leads

to impossible choices between spending on
rent, utilities or food which leads to reliance on
foodbanks.

Lack of financial security may also increase

the risk of other issues such as mental health,
worklessness and social isolation. A 2010 study
found that half of UK adults in problem debt were
also living with mental health issues.

As with many of the other priorities in this
strategy the shortage of affordable housing is
both a contributor to the issues arising and a
constraint upon finding solutions. This applies
as much to those looking to buy a home as it
does to those seeking to rent. Financial issues
therefore present challenges both to preventing
and to tackling homelessness.

People may lack budgeting skills leading to debt.

Page 154



Those on limited incomes but with access to
mainstream credit are more likely to turn towards
short-term/high interest credit and do not take
advantage of options to reduce utility costs etc.
A 2014 report found that where clients struggled
to repay their debt, 84% reported that they were
not warned of the risks of extending their loan
further."

People on lower incomes and people who are
street homeless in particular, can find it difficult
to open a basic bank account. Those that do
may only be able to obtain accounts with high
charges and high interest rates on overdraft
facilities. Around 1.2 million people in the UK
did not have access to a bank account in
2017."2 Some people may prefer to use cash
to keep control of their limited finances but
many transactions can be more expensive or
impossible without a bank account as many
organisations (including local authorities) move to
cashless transactions. Dealing in cash will also
prevent a credit rating being established.

For those on fixed or limited incomes pressure

is increased by welfare reform changes, the
most significant being: removing the spare room
subsidy; freezing Local Housing Allowance (LHA)
rates until 2020; and reducing LHA rates from
50th percentile to 30th percentile (effectively
reducing affordable rented accommodation in
the private sector from five in 10 to three in 10
properties). One analysis found that 65% of non-
working households have a shortfall between
their rent and the housing support levels, with
over 170,000 households having a shortfall of
more than £100 per month.'

Wage growth has generally been below inflation
for a number of years and when added to the
freeze on welfare benefits this has resulted in a
real terms reduction in income. An analysis of the
cheapest 25% of private rents compared to the
lowest paid 25% of employees found that rent is
more than a third of full-time pay in over half of
English local authorities. '

Once people are homeless financial problems, for
example housing-related debts or county court
judgements, can be a major barrier to regaining

a stable home. There are often restrictions in

Page 155

social housing allocations policies of both council
and housing association landlords about offering
a home to, or even admitting onto the housing
register, someone with these kinds of debt.

When it comes to gaining access to private
rented housing many people do not have funds
to make upfront payments of deposits and rent
in advance, borrowing in order to do so and
therefore starting their tenancy in high levels of
debt.™ Many local authorities offer support with
these payments but this is not always sufficient
for a landlord, with a common question being
“what will happen at the end of the payment”.
Landlords may also look to the local authority to
be a guarantor for the life of the tenancy.

The underlying problem is a scarcity of
affordable/sustainable accommodation. There are
more people chasing fewer affordable properties.
In a survey of 2,500 residential landlords, 25%
were looking to reduce their housing portfolio.'®
In the social housing sector the Right To Buy
continues to outstrip the building rate so that
overall numbers continue to decline. This
enables landlords to be selective in accepting
more financially secure tenants to reduce their
exposure to risk. When allocating tenancies,
social housing providers are increasingly risk
averse to prospective tenants with financial
problems.!”

The national response to COVID-19 is likely

to have a significant impact on financial well-
peing. While many of the factors contributing to
financial exclusion remain constant, the scale of
the issue will be increased due to fallout from the
economic shock caused by lockdown measures.
Within the first six weeks of lockdown there were
an additional 1.8 million claims for Universal
Credit. By the end of May 2020 over 8 million UK
employees were being paid via the government’s
furlough scheme. A survey conducted by Make
UK, a manufacturing industry lobby group,
revealed that 25% of companies questioned
were drawing up plans for redundancies. A
decline in job vacancies across key sectors such
as hospitality will disproportionately affect lower-
income workers.

Economically challenging times mean that many

O



households fall back on the support of voluntary
providers to augment statutory provision.
However, charitable giving usually decreases
during times of economic hardship.

There may also be new endeavours and
initiatives which agencies and partners must
understand quickly in order to harness benefits to
their customers in a timely manner.

4.2 What are we currently
doing to tackle issues of
homelessness and financial
inclusion?

There are a number of initiatives that are being
undertaken towards preventing and tackling
homelessness generally across Warwickshire set
out in chapter one. The following are of particular
relevance to financial inclusion (and are explained
in more detail in section 1.3 above):

e Through the HRA17, making referrals for
financial and budgeting advice to ensure
that income is maximised and expenditure
is proportionate and utilising Flexible
Homelessness Support Grant where
appropriate.

e Housing-related support services include
helping customers with financial issues.

e p.h.i.l. and other preventative services. These
provide a holistic and proactive approach to

ADDRESSING POVERTY NOW

homelessness prevention enabling people
to stay in their own home or be assisted in
moving to a new home, including looking at
the financial security of the individual.

¢ Financial interventions such as grants to
sustain tenancies and rent deposit and
guarantee schemes.

¢ Financial inclusion initiatives using
Discretionary Housing Payments.

e Improving access to affordable housing to
ensure a good supply of suitably priced, high
quality accommodation.

There are several other initiatives aimed at
mitigating or tackling the challenges and risks
around homelessness and financial inclusion,
some of which are listed below.

Citizens Advice has a network of bureaux
offering financial advice and debt management
across Warwickshire. In addition it has a national
contract to support clients applying for Universal
Credit. This support is available from the point of
application up to receipt of the first payment and
includes help with requesting advance payments
or alternative payment arrangements.

The Warwickshire County Financial Inclusion
Partnership brings together activities regarding
financial inclusion across the county including
both local authorities and partner agencies. It is
currently adopting two overarching priorities:

BREAKING THE CYCLE OF POVERTY

¢ Debt advice

® Income maximisation
¢ Affordable credit

e Fuel poverty

* Food poverty

e Educational attendance and attainment
e Pathways to employment

® Health

* Money management/financial resilience

A new Family Poverty Strategy is being
created by WCC to support the partnership.

Charities specifically for Armed Forces
veterans (like the Royal British Legion and

the Soldiers, Sailors, Airmen and Families
Association) have been set up to help with
financial difficulties, securing a home, discharging
bills or even furnishing a home with basic
necessities such as white goods.

Page 156



4.3 What opportunities
will be taken to improve
services?

A number of system-wide actions have been
referred to in section 1.4 above that the Strategic
Homelessness Board is proposing. In addition
the following opportunities have been identified
that will improve services for those who are at
risk of homelessness due to financial exclusion.
These will be taken forward as recommendations
from this strategy.

1. Making a collective effort to lobby
government over required national policy
changes.

There are some changes that would help

to tackle financial inclusion that can only

be achieved by action at national level:
reintroducing LHA at the 50th percentile

to increase the amount of affordable
accommodation; allowing Universal Credit
claimants the choice to have the housing
element paid direct to the landlord; increasing
the provision of new-build affordable housing;
and providing sustainable funding for all
activity around homelessness. In the latter
case, funding at present is sporadic and short
term. A consolidated grant guaranteed in the
medium term would allow service planning to
be sustainable and more coherent.

2. Ensuring homelessness is seen as a more
broadly-based problem than simply a
“housing issue”.

This involves developing agreements and
protocols around joint working across the
various services such as health, social care,
criminal justice and housing in order to enable
support to be provided on a coordinated
basis and in a concerted fashion. This is
important because placing homeless people
into accommodation without appropriate,
coordinated support is setting them up to fail.

3. Learning from the Community Financial
Inclusion Officer scheme.
WCC provided financial support to councils
for the provision of Community Financial
Inclusion Support Officers in 2019/20. These

officers worked with clients to ensure that
they received help and support around debt
management and budgeting advice. Although
this project has now ended learning from the
activity needs to be embedded across D&Bs
to ensure close working relationships with
external partners such as Citizens Advice.

. Undertaking a financial support gap

analysis across the county, identifying
target audiences, geographical

areas covered and areas of potential
duplication.

This analysis can be used for service planning
to ensure financial support is available across
the whole of the county and that the quality
of the service provided is assured. It is also
essential that financial support is delivered in
locations where it can be utilised by clients
(e.g. the provision of additional support and
advice at foodbank locations to try and
reduce the need for future food vouchers by
resolving underlying issues) and in appropriate
digital formats (to access bank accounts and
Universal Credit).

5. Making the most of available funds

by reviewing activities within local
authorities to ensure best use of
resources.

This should include:

e Making best use of prevention funding and
discretionary housing payments.

e Creating a package of incentives for
landlords to rent accommodation to those
who would otherwise find these solutions
unaffordable.

e Reviewing relationships with external
agencies such as foodbanks, community
advice and other support agencies to
ensure close working relationships, avoid
duplication of service delivery, and aim for
the best placed service to deliver support
in every case.

6. Encouraging engagement with financial

inclusion services as a condition within
support provided under the HRA17.
A key part of this legislation is that local

Page 157 @



authorities are able to set out actions that a housing solution they must first commit to
homeless applicants must take as part of attending the course.
the process to resolve homelessness or

the threat of homelessness. There could be 7. Promoting the use of schemes such as

a condition that anyone at risk of financial Housing First and the Rugby Housing
exclusion must engage with financial advice. Pathway to enable engagement with
If courses around life skills, financial skills and financial inclusion services.

housing skills were available (the provision These specialist schemes can allow the
of which would involve some joined-up accommodation provider to insist on
working between partners) there could be engagement with financial support as a
conditionality around this also i.e. to realise condition of accessing their services.

@ Page 158



iz

Chapter 5

Homelessness and young people

()

= (&1 1O

Our objective is to enhance and improve services that
prevent homelessness among young people.

5.1 What do we know?

For the purposes of this strategy Young People
covers single people aged 16 and 17, young
people in care, and care leavers. This chapter will
also include young parents, up to and including
25 years of age.

The importance of collaboration to prevent
homelessness for 16 and 17 year olds is
underpinned by the specific statutory guidance
which was published by MHCLG and the
Department for Education in April 2018.

Self-evidently the supply and availability

of suitable accommodation will be a key
determinant of the level of homelessness among
young people. For the most part young people
with no children only need shared or bedsit/
one-bedroom self-contained accommodation
and unfortunately there is a significant shortage
of this in both the public and private sectors in
Warwickshire.

Over the twenty year period from 2011 to 2031,
across the housing market area as a whole, the
largest requirement for affordable housing to deal
with both the backlog of need and newly arising
need has been found to be for one bedroom
dwellings. This was also true of five of the six
councils covered by the assessment (the D&Bs
and Coventry). The sole exception was Stratford-
on-Avon where the one bedroom need was
second to two bedroom need.'®

Social and affordable housing is in high demand
from all types of household and single people
place the greatest demand on all the D&B
housing registers in terms of housing need.

It is important to stress that even when such
accommodation does become available young
people are in competition with other households
with a one bedroom need thus exacerbating the
problem.

Given the shortage of, and high demand for,
social and affordable housing, young people will
often need to look to the private rented sector
but this also presents challenges.

Often landlords require references, deposits and
rent in advance, all of which may be difficult for
some young people to provide. Some landlords
are reluctant to take on young tenants, who have
no experience of managing their own home and
paying bills and who may need welfare benefits
to assist them to pay their rent. The Residential
Landlords Association found that “The majority
of landlords are willing to let to tenants who are
under 35 (87%). Of those who are not, the largest
group of under 35’s who landlords are not willing
to let to are single people who claim housing
benefit/universal credit (79% of landlords).”?

As well as housing supply and demand, there
are non-housing factors in early life that can
contribute to homelessness among this age
group. There are several issues identified

by partners that work with young people to
prevent homelessness and enable planned

and sustainable accommodation options.
Young people in general may lack the financial
resources, the awareness and knowledge of
the reality of “having your own place” and all the
obligations and expectations that this entails.
National Research by Homeless Link states that:

“Explanations of the causes of homelessness

Page 159

Q,



tend to focus on either structural or personal
factors. Structural factors include social and
economic issues such as poverty, the welfare
safety net, unemployment, housing supply
and housing cost issues. Personal factors
cover issues such as mental health, substance
dependency, lack of social support, or family
breakdown.” %°

Graph 11 in the report®® showed that, of the
young people accessing services in August 2017,
the top 10 reasons for needing accommaodation
(with multiple responses permitted) were:

e Parents/carers no longer willing to
accommodate (49%).

e Drug or alcohol problems (31%).

e Mental or physical health problems (26%).
e | eaving care (17%).

e Anti-social behaviour or crime (17%).

e QOvercrowded housing (12%).

e QOther debt-related issues (12%).

e Unemployment (11%).

e Domestic abuse (11%).

e Financial problems caused by benefit
reduction (9%).

This suggests that homelessness is more
likely among young people affected by such
circumstances than among young people who
do not face similar challenges in life.

Where any of these vulnerabilities exist they
add to the difficulty of sourcing appropriate
accommodation and support created by the
supply problems referred to above. Other
challenges include:

e The shortage of specialised accommodation
with support for people with particular
vulnerabilities (for example mental health,
learning difficulties, autism, complex needs,
young parents and care leavers).

e Mental health services are not easily
accessible or responsive in a timely manner
and therefore mental health support isn’t
readily available when, or how, it is needed.

Again, the Homeless Link report states: “83%

of providers said the number of young people
presenting with multiple and complex needs had
increased in the last year due to limited capacity
and resources in the homelessness sector, a
lack of specialist mental health services and
inadequate early intervention initiatives.”?°

As regards young people leaving the care of the
social services authority, WCC data shows that
across the county over 100 children aged 16 to
18 leave care every year. Over 80% are looked
after until their 18th birthday.

Across Warwickshire, according to D&B
statistics, there were 86 homelessness
applications from young people in 2018/19 and
129 in 2019/20. Of these, just over half (55% in
2018/19 and 51% in 2019/20) were from people
leaving care.

5.2 What are we currently
doing to tackle young
people’s homelessness
issues?

There are a number of initiatives that are being
undertaken towards preventing and tackling
homelessness generally across Warwickshire set
out in chapter one. The following are of particular
relevance to young people (and are explained in
more detail in section 1.3 above):

e p.h.i.l. and other preventative services.

e Support services providing accommodation-
based and floating support for 16 -25 year olds.

¢ Research undertaken by Doorway on working
practices in statutory services for young
people and care leavers.

e Rough sleeping initiatives.
e Financial inclusion being proactively promoted
by D&Bs.

e |Improving access to affordable housing.

There are several other initiatives aimed at young
people to mitigate or tackle the challenges and
risks mentioned above, and in turn reduce the
impact of homelessness, some of which are
listed below.

Page 160



Two dedicated Leaving Care
Accommodation Personal Advisers have
been appointed. One of these officers works with
18 year old care leavers who are homeless or at
risk of homelessness. The second officer works
with 17 year olds in care who are considering
their housing options when they reach 18. These
two posts were initiated with government funding
up to March 2021. However, they have now been
made permanent.

A pilot House Project for care leavers has
been run by NBBC, who committed to providing
a quota of three one bedroom flats to be let

as Equitable Tenancies (ET) to young people in
care aged 17. An ET runs for 12 months, with
WCC acting as a guarantor for the tenant. If

the tenancy is conducted satisfactorily, the care
leaver becomes an introductory tenant in their
own right at the end of the ET, with the prospect
of becoming a full secure tenant after a further
12 months. Once a care leaver becomes an
introductory tenant, NBBC will release a further 1
bed flat for another care leaver so that there are
always 3 units being used by The House Project.

The Warwickshire Young Persons Protocol,
originally developed over 10 years ago and
reviewed in 2017, sets out the way WCC and
the D&Bs wiill respond if and when approached
by a young person under 18 that is homeless or
potentially homeless.

An Independence Training project to

provide care leavers with the skills needed for
independent living was commissioned by WCC
and run by Doorway. This ran from 1st August
2018, initially for one year but with options to
extend, which were taken up, for two further
years. An internal WCC service is being set up to
run from when the Doorway project concludes in
July 2021.

WCC reorganisation of its team structure for
children in care led to the development of a team
specifically for those aged 14-18 years. This new
team is able to begin working with young people
at an earlier age and can prioritise preparing
them to become more independent and to plan
for the longer term. The team was established
following feedback from young people that the

Page 161

previous situation where they transferred at 16
years of age to the Leaving Care Team was
not appropriate as this was a key stage in their
life; sitting exams and leaving school so that a
change of worker at that stage was unhelpful.

WCC engaged with the MHCLG
Homelessness Advice and Support Team
(HAST) in 2019 regarding preventing and
reducing youth homelessness in the county,
with HAST putting forward a number of
recommendations. In response, WCC has
undertaken a review of the arrangements

for supporting 16 and 17 year olds who are
homeless or threatened with homelessness in
Warwickshire.

5.3 What opportunities
will be taken to improve
services?

A number of system-wide actions have been
referred to in section 1.4 above that the Strategic
Homelessness Board is proposing. In addition
the following opportunities have been identified
that will improve services for young people at risk
of homelessness. These will be taken forward as
recommendations from this strategy.

1. Expanding pre-tenancy training.
With the success of the Doorway
Independence Training project referred to
above, WCC and D&Bs will consider whether
this could be offered more widely, to all young
people at risk of homelessness.

It could also be considered for young people
more widely by seeking to establish working
arrangements alongside schools and colleges
around life skills, financial skills and housing
skills. While many young people pick up the
basic skills from their parents and others, those
from more dysfunctional backgrounds do not
and the school setting is an opportunity

for some targeted work around these

essential skills.

2. Maximising opportunities for joint working
for officers and roles between partner
agencies.

The opportunities that present themselves to

25



those statutory and third sector organisations
involved with young people are varied.

WCC and the D&Bs, though working in
isolation in some respects, are now more
than ever working collaboratively and closely
to support young people experiencing
homelessness. Many of these young people
have vulnerabilities and these issues cannot
be resolved by one single agency. The links
established through some of the initiatives
mentioned in this chapter mean that
professionals can explore options and support
individual young people to make informed
choices about their lives in a holistic way. This
can involve third sector organisations too,
especially if the individual has a better rapport
with, and more trust in, such an organisation.

3. Considering expanding the House project

across the county.

The House project has been explained in 5.2
above. This was a pilot scheme and so, as the
findings and learning from it become clearer,
D&Bs will consider with WCC whether it is
appropriate to initiate the service in other parts
of the county.

4. Embedding Duty to Refer processes at a

county level.

Opportunities exist through the statutory
Duty to Refer, which may generate greater
knowledge of housing obligations and
limitations among other agencies. It is
envisaged that this will enhance the focus on

earlier interventions, for example more robust
pathway planning earlier in the pre-leaving
care stage.

5. Reviewing the long standing Young

Persons Protocol in Warwickshire.

The last refresh of the protocol preceded the
HRA17 so it requires a further review, in part
to take account of the new legislation, but
also in light of recommendations by Doorway
who conducted an operational review of how
the protocol is actually working on the ground.
In October 2020 the government published
good practice advice on joint housing
protocols for care leavers that will also be
used to inform the review. A revised protocol
will give a renewed commitment to stop the
passing of 16/17 year olds between housing
and social care services.

6. Moving forward with the WCC review of

support arrangements for young people.
This review was explained in section 5.2
above. The recommended approach arising
from the review is to develop a hybrid model,
introducing housing expertise into the Initial
Response Service and working across family
information services, early help, front line
social care teams and leaving care. This would
build upon and strengthen existing service
delivery models, whilst responding to all the
recommendations made in the 2019 report
from HAST.

Page 162



iz

Chapter 6

Homelessness and domestic abuse

()

o= (&1 1O

Our objective is to prevent domestic abuse and the crisis
homelessness resulting from it wherever possible.

6.1 What do we know?

The Government definition of domestic violence
and abuse is “Any incident or pattern of incidents
of controlling, coercive or threatening behaviour,
violence or abuse between those aged 16 or
over who are or have been intimate partners

or family members regardless of gender or
sexuality. This can encompass, but is not limited
to, the following types of abuse: Psychological,
Physical; Sexual; Financial; Emotional.” Further
information about this definition can be found on
the government’s website.?!

National research shows that domestic abuse
accounts for 16% of all violent crime and one
in four women will experience domestic abuse
in their lifetime. Domestic abuse also has more
repeat victims than any other crime and, on
average two women in England and Wales are
killed every week by a current or former male
partner. However, the prevalence of domestic
abuse has reduced from 7% in 2011/12 to 6%
in 2017/18 indicating a gradual, longer term
downward trend.??

Around one in every 20 women has experienced
extensive physical and sexual violence and
abuse. Of these women: more than half have

a common mental health condition; over a

third have made a suicide attempt; a fifth

have self-harmed; one in five has experienced
homelessness; half have a disability that means
they need help with everyday activities; and one
in three has an alcohol problem.??

Women in poverty are particularly likely to

experience the most extensive violence and
abuse in their lives: 14% of women in poverty
have faced extensive violence and abuse,
compared to 6% of women not in poverty.?*

There is a significant toll on the health of those
experiencing domestic abuse: 36% of women
in the “Extensive physical and sexual violence”
group of the Adult Psychiatric Morbidity Survey
had attempted suicide. In the same group,
women were more than twice as likely to have
an alcohol problem and eight times more likely
to be drug dependent than women with little
experience of violence and abuse.?

Financial abuse often sits beside physical and
emotional abuse and is demonstrated to lead

to increased debt problems, a lessening of
financial capability, and rent and utilities arrears
which may become a barrier to future rehousing.
Thus, financial abuse can contribute to a cycle of
poverty and dependence that can result in repeat
and chronic homelessness.?®

International research found that children who
live with, and are aware of, violence in the home
face many challenges and risks that can last
throughout their lives, including:

e Anincreased risk of children becoming victims
of abuse themselves.

e Significant risk of ever-increasing harm to
the child’s physical, emotional and social
development.

e A strong likelihood that this will become
a continuing cycle of violence for the next
generation.?®

Page 163

Q,



Many children do cope with and survive abuse,
displaying extraordinary resilience. However, the
physical, psychological and emotional effects of
domestic violence on children can also be severe
and long-lasting. Some children may become
withdrawn and find it difficult to communicate;
others may blame themselves for the abuse. All
children living with abuse are under stress that
may lead to a wide range of problems.?”

Under-reporting is a major challenge in the
identification and prevention of domestic abuse.
Research identified six main reasons as to why
people chose not to contact the police (the first
three being the most significant):

e (Concerns related to the perpetrator.

e Concerns related to the Police and Criminal
Justice System.

e Concerns about children and the involvement
of social services.

e Practical barriers such as housing and/or
financial concerns.

e The abuse being normalised.

e Cultural or community barriers.

The fear of not being believed or taken seriously
was also a major contributing factor.?®

Across Warwickshire the most recent police data
reveals that there were 1,895 domestic abuse
offences and crime incidents recorded in March
2019 and that the percentage of “violence with
an injury” incidents that have a domestic abuse
marker has risen from 27.9% in April 2014 to
35.5% in March 2019.22

National statistics demonstrate a near doubling
in the number of domestic abuse related crimes
for Warwickshire recorded by the police in the
past four years from 3,498 in 2015/16 to 6,825
in 2018/19. As a percentage of all crimes the
figure for Warwickshire, at 16%, is now higher
than both regional and national prevalence rates
(which are 15% and 14% respectively).?

There are clear links between domestic abuse
and homelessness, with domestic abuse
being both a cause and consequence of
homelessness. A charity found that a third of

their female clients said that domestic violence had
contributed to their homelessness, as did 8% of
male clients.®°

Domestic abuse, as a cause of homelessness,
is different from the other primary causes of
homelessness. The levels of harm the survivor
and their children are exposed to are potentially
and directly life threatening. It is often the

case that the survivor will have a range of
additional needs including substance misuse
or mental health related challenges, resultant

in part from many years of abuse. Further
compounding the difficulties experienced is the
often unplanned nature of the event triggering
crisis homelessness, necessitating emergency
responses that are not always well matched to
the household’s needs and preferences.

Secure, affordable, decent housing, both
temporary and permanent, is a key determinant
of the ability of a survivor and their family to
escape abuse and avoid future risk. The supply
of such accommodation is limited, which can
lead to delays in moving, both into and on from,
temporary or refuge accommodation. Delays
can also be caused by local authority housing
allocation scheme constraints which can hold
up, or even prevent, allocation of social housing
to those without local connections, with a history
of anti-social behaviour, with rent arrears or
with any housing related debt that may have
been incurred as a result of abusive behaviour.
The end result can be survivors either staying

in the abusive home or staying at unsuitable,
unsafe accommodation. The pressures of such
unsuitable accommodation can also push the
survivors into returning to the abuser, which is
rarely a safe option.

H-CLIC data shows that between April 2018
and March 2019 around one in ten of all
presentations to local authorities in Warwickshire
for assistance with emergency accommodation
under homelessness legislation were a result

of domestic abuse, some 219 households.

This is roughly 90 per 100,000 households in
Warwickshire, higher than for the West Midlands
region (80 per 100,000) but lower than for
England (96 per 100,000).

Page 164



Countywide there are four refuges for survivors
of domestic abuse provided by Refuge Domestic
Violence Service Warwickshire (RDVSW). In the
2018/19 financial year it received 342 referrals.

The need for services for women and girls is
well established, however it is important to note
that within Warwickshire there is no specific
male-only accommodation for domestic abuse
survivors. Whilst women are around twice as
likely to have experienced domestic abuse as
men (7.9% compared with 4.2%), the figure for
men still represents a large number of crimes.®’
Furthermore, it is understood there is no
provision regionally and there are only 20 beds of
this nature in the whole of England.

6.2 What are we currently
doing to tackle homelessness
and domestic abuse?

The prevention of homelessness resulting from
domestic abuse may be achieved in two ways:
by (preferably) preventing the domestic abuse
from occurring at all, or by preventing the crisis
homelessness that arises as a consequence.

There are a number of initiatives that are being
undertaken towards preventing and tackling
homelessness generally across Warwickshire set
out in chapter one. The following are of particular
relevance to domestic abuse (and are explained
in more detail in section 1.3 above):

e p.h.i.l. and other preventative services which
actively seek early contact with people who
may become homeless.

e Housing-related support services which
include: training and awareness raising of
front line professional/voluntary sector staff
to recognise those at risk of or experiencing
domestic abuse; and signposting and support
to access specialist services.

e Refuge provision for survivors.
e Developing a Domestic Abuse Strategy.
® |mproving access to affordable housing.

There are several other initiatives aimed at
mitigating or tackling the challenges and risks

Page 165

around homelessness and domestic abuse,
some of which are listed below.

An Independent Strategic Review of
Domestic Abuse Services and Support
Across Warwickshire?? was recently completed
by WCC. This detailed examination of the existing
provision and approach provides examples of
some of the good work underway aimed at
preventing domestic abuse.

Five Domestic Homicide Reviews have
taken place from which agencies have been
implementing the learning. Amongst other things
this included the roll-out of additional training for
the housing sector and support for a successful
multi-agency bid for increased Independent
Domestic Violence Adviser (IDVA) capacity
around housing, health and rural outreach, with
the Housing IDVA hosted by RDVSW and co-
located with p.h.i.l.

As regards preventing crisis homelessness,
there is a variety of services specifically targeted
towards the reduction of harm to survivors of
domestic abuse that can also be seen, to some
extent, as tools in homelessness prevention.
These include: the Sanctuary Scheme; the IDVA
work; the support of Civil Protection Orders;

the Refuge Rural Outreach Workers; the police
focus on enforcement and prevention; and close
working with the Crown Prosecution Service to
improve the judiciary system.

WCC commissions four refuges across
Warwickshire that are part of a wider national
network of supported schemes. This ensures
that those who have lived through domestic
abuse are enabled to rebuild their lives in a
setting where they are protected and have
specialist support on hand. Whilst these
schemes operate within Warwickshire it is critical
that they are considered as an element of a
national resource/network of facilities because
those experiencing domestic abuse will often
need to distance themselves from the abuse to
ensure their family’s safety.

Within one borough the existing refuge building
is limited in terms of its facilities and layout and
this has prevented the current service from
providing a more client focussed premises

29



20,

equivalent to other purpose-built refuges in the
county. To date, partners have been unable to
identify new affordable premises that would be
suitable for a domestic abuse refuge so work is
continuing with local planning departments and
local Registered Providers to investigate other
potential alternatives.

6.3 What opportunities
will be taken to improve
services?

A number of system-wide actions have been
referred to in section 1.4 above that the Strategic
Homelessness Board is proposing. In addition
the following opportunities have been identified
that will improve services for those who are
suffering domestic abuse and are at risk of
homelessness. These will be taken forward as
recommendations from this strategy.

1. Taking forward the Independent Strategic
Review of Domestic Abuse Services and
Support Across Warwickshire.

This detailed review?? provides examples of
some of the excellent work undertaken that
is aimed at preventing domestic abuse. The
Violence Against Women and Girls Board
will consider it as part of their future strategic
planning and commissioning and will:

e Explore whether domestic abuse can be
considered by social landlords as a breach
of tenancy conditions so that perpetrators
can be held accountable and potentially

evicted as part of a multi-agency response.

e (Consider whether a mechanism can
be introduced to facilitate the early
identification of properties where property
damage and repairs indicate that abuse
is present.

e Work with agencies such as the police
to ensure the safety of survivors so that
staying at home is a safe and realistic
option for more survivors.

2. Catering for multiple disadvantage.
Commissioners of new domestic abuse
services can ensure that services are able to

cater for multiple disadvantage and address
issues around poor mental health and
substance misuse alongside the core service
provision.

Within Warwickshire, a Dual Diagnosis policy
operates between the providers of substance
misuse and adult mental health services

to ensure that appropriate, collaborative
interventions are provided to those who have
a dual diagnosis. There is an opportunity to
expand this to incorporate those who are also
experiencing or perpetrating domestic abuse.

3. Treating all survivors of domestic
abuse as having a priority need for
accommodation.
The HRA17 requires that local housing
authorities provide meaningful support to
everyone who approaches them as homeless
or at risk of homelessness within 56 days.
However, the government’s Domestic Abuse
Bill proposes to change this so that people
fleeing domestic abuse will be automatically
considered in priority need and therefore
benefit from the statutory homelessness
process and receive an offer of settled
housing. If the bill fails to go forward and
become law a countywide agreement to treat
all survivors of domestic abuse as having a
priority need for accommodation under the
legislation (and therefore avoid risk of return
to the abuser) should be evaluated and
implemented if appropriate.

4. Creating women-only spaces in
temporary accommodation.
It is reported that mixed shared
accommodation can be detrimental to
recovery for some at risk of domestic abuse.
Therefore D&Bs and other commissioners of
supported and similar accommodation should
improve the existing provision of temporary
and supported accommodation by providing
some women-only spaces in temporary
accommodation where these do not
currently exist.

5. Increasing outreach work.
Reducing crisis homelessness resulting
from domestic abuse is contingent on

Page 166



the early identification and reduction of
domestic abuse. A key measure in the

early identification of domestic abuse is

the existence of a network able to identify
domestic abuse and intervene to reduce

the impact. Outreach work across the
landscape is an important element of this
work but Warwickshire has recently lost two
outreach workers funded by MHCLG, leaving
noticeable gaps in this service, including in
the rural south of Warwickshire. This should
therefore be considered as a priority alongside
more significant interventions taking place for
higher risk households.

6. Promoting and encouraging early contact
with D&Bs and domestic abuse support
services.

Early intervention is crucial to preventing crisis
homelessness. The Duty to Refer is a simple
mechanism for public sector organisations

to refer those at risk of homelessness to local
authorities so promotion of this should be
undertaken within the wider public sector:
health, social care, police and probation
services.

In addition to the Duty to Refer, and for cases
where homelessness may be more than 56
days away, p.h.i.l. and other preventative
services can be contacted for support, advice
and signposting. Promotion of the Duty to
Refer should be accompanied by details of
those services.

There are also other specialist domestic
abuse support services available across
Warwickshire. To increase the quantity of early
referrals to p.h.i.l. and the domestic abuse
support services, a series of promotional
events for public sector professionals should
be delivered highlighting: the benefits of early
intervention; the Duty to Refer; p.h.i.l.; other
prevention services; and specialist domestic
abuse support services.

7. Specialist training to ensure early
identification.
Specialist training has been demonstrated
to be effective in equipping other front
line workers (e.g. housing, benefits, rents,
property maintenance and repairs) with the

skills to identify and report the signs of abuse
with a particular focus on: the identification
and impact of coercive control; identifying
young people (aged 16 to 24) at risk through
domestic abuse; and having a psychologically
informed approach. The training would ensure
routine professional curiosity when supporting
residents, tenants and homeless applicants
S0 as to identify early domestic abuse support
needs and implement safety planning.

The recent independent strategic review??
found that health services provide a significant
opportunity, including extra capacity within
the Hospital IDVA role, for routinely screening
for domestic abuse at mental health services
access-points. Therefore, to achieve
increased prevention of crisis homelessness
we should seek to maintain the Hospital IDVA
presence and expand this where evidence
suggests that the greatest levels of early
identification can be achieved.

In addition screening for domestic abuse
should be mandatory where vulnerable
households are accessing support services
commissioned by the public sector. This
would include all support and outreach
services funded through schemes such as the
Rough Sleeper Initiative, Cold Weather Fund
and Housing-Related Support, or services
with charitable and other public funding.
Contracts should be amended and developed
to require providers, where appropriate, to
screen clients for vulnerability to, or current
experience of, domestic abuse. Training
plans, policies and procedures should also be
required to provide staff with appropriate skills
to safeguard those at risk of, or experiencing,
domestic abuse.

8. Addressing “Move On” challenges.
Housing allocation schemes in all five D&Bs
should be reviewed to ensure that arrears,
debts, anti-social behaviour and other factors
that may limit rehousing options always
require an evaluation of whether these may
have arisen from, or be a consequence of,
domestic abuse. Where this is the case these
factors should not be regarded as behaviour
of choice but as a consequence of the
domestic abuse.

Page 167

@



Chapter 7

Homelessness and offending

(2

o= G 1O | &

Our objective is to deliver better focussed housing and other
support services for those at risk of homelessness when

leaving prison.

7.1 What do we know?

Several research studies have found that having
a stable home following release from prison
reduces the risk of re-offending.®> However

a high proportion of prisoners require help
with housing upon their release. According to
the government’s Rough Sleeping Strategy®®
“In 2016-17 30% of adult prisoners under
supervision from Community Rehabilitation
Companies (CRC) (excluding London)

were discharged to unsettled or unknown
accommodation on their first night of release.”

Local data on offenders is collected and
managed through the Integrated Offender
Management system (IOM), which covers those
deemed to pose the greatest threat, risk and
harm to communities. This shows that, as at
October 2020, there were 180 IOM offenders
across Warwickshire, of which 91 were in
custody and 89 were in the community. Of those
in the community, 10 were street homeless, nine
were either in bed and breakfast accommodation
or living with friends/sofa surfing and 18 were
living in approved premises. That equates to 42%
of IOM offenders in the community who were not
in permanent and settled accommodation.

The National Probation Service (NPS) had 379
cases “in the community” as at October 2020,
of which fewer than five were recorded as No
Fixed Abode (NFA). However, there were 59
cases (15.5%) that were not in permanent,
settled and suitable accommodation and had
accommodation needs.

For children that are leaving custody the best

way to help them to make a positive shift is to
change their view of themselves and their identity.
Research on adverse childhood experiences
recognises stable accommodation as a key
factor in helping offenders to abstain from
committing further crimes and children that have
no stable accommodation identified as part of
their resettlement planning are at higher risk of re-
offending upon release.** Government guidelines
set out clear responsibilities for statutory strategic
partners around the resettlement of children in
the youth justice system.®®

While housing is extremely important, support
services can also be crucial for ex-offenders
with specific needs. Suitable accommodation
and support can provide the foundations for

an offender to leave behind a chaotic lifestyle,
offering a platform for change, opening up
opportunities to employment and training, whilst
also enabling access to health and social care.
Unfortunately however, both suitable housing and
support services are in high demand and access
is constrained by supply and eligibility rules that
it may be difficult for offenders to satisfy. This
provides the strategic context for preventing and
tackling homelessness among offenders.

The vast majority of offenders at risk of
immediate homelessness are single people
(because those with families can move back

in with their family) therefore one bedroom
accommodation is the main housing need of this
group. As has already been explained in chapter
five above, this is the type of accommodation
for which there is the greatest need. As regards
supply of mainstream housing therefore many of

Page 168



the comments set out in chapter five about the
shortage of one bedroom accommodation apply
equally to offenders. However there are several
additional factors that can affect an offender’s
ability to access such housing as is available,
including the appropriate support.

For an offender that will be homeless upon
release, planning is required well in advance

of the discharge date. However, there may be
communication issues between prison/probation
authorities and D&Bs and lack of understanding
and clarity as to the relative responsibilities of,
and restrictions upon, each organisation that
hamper such planning. For example, being

an offender, of itself, may not be a sufficient
vulnerability for them to be considered a priority
under homelessness legislation even if a referral
is made under the Duty to Refer.

The licence conditions that an offender may have
to comply with following release can constrain
the ability to meet housing needs. If for example
an offender is required to remain in, or indeed

be prohibited from entering, a prescribed area
then this will further reduce the amount of
accommodation that D&Bs can look to provide.

Standard landlord requirements may be difficult
for offenders to meet, such as the need for
references, deposits, rent-in-advance and a full
housing history. In addition, some landlords may
be cautious about accepting someone with a
criminal record as a tenant.

Offenders are less likely than the general
population to have employment upon leaving
prison.®¢ As a result they are more likely to
encounter problems of affordability with housing,
needing to resort to welfare benefits to help pay
their rent. Recent research found that 87% of
private sector tenants were only entitled to a level
of Local Housing Allowance that was lower than
their actual rent.®’

Some offenders will have other specific needs
that a landlord may not be able or willing to
provide support for, such as a need for drug
and alcohol support services. Research by the
Revolving Doors Agency stated that:

“Evidence illustrates that as a group, those
who have or are at risk of offending frequently

Page 169

suffer from multiple and complex health issues,
including mental and physical health problems,
learning difficulties, substance misuse and
increased risk of premature mortality. These
underlying health issues are often exacerbated
by difficulties in accessing the full range of health
and social care services available in the local
community.”s®

As indicated earlier these needs can be met
either by purpose-built supported housing
schemes or by support services provided to
occupiers of mainstream housing.

Obviously the latter option is inhibited by the
supply issues with mainstream housing but also
by the availability of support services. Purpose-
built schemes are also very limited in number.

There are other challenges in ensuring the right
support: offenders often lead a chaotic lifestyle,
which adds a layer of complexity, which is
important to consider in terms of their ability to
successfully negotiate hurdles. The services that
the offender wants may be different from the
services that are, or can be made, available. Data
protection regulations may make information
exchange more complicated and, as with many
public sector bodies, organisational capacity may
be under pressure. As every case is different it

is important to understand the specific needs

in relation to each individual, to determine and
manage the risks and to seek to address all of
this holistically when housing individual offenders.

Taken together the issues surrounding the
housing of offenders create a range of direct
and indirect impacts upon the wellbeing of the
individuals concerned, including impacts upon:
physical health; mental health; the ability to
rehabilitate from a life of crime; the ability to gain
employment; the ability to gain support from
recognised professionals; and the ability to form
meaningful and valuable personal relationships.

7.2 What are we currently
doing to tackle homelessness
and offending?

There are a number of initiatives that are being
undertaken towards preventing and tackling

o



homelessness generally across Warwickshire set
out in chapter one. The following are of particular
relevance to offending (and are explained in more
detail in section 1.3 above):

e |Implementing the Duty to Refer following
the HRA17. This applies to prisons, youth
offender institutions, youth offending teams
and probation services (including CRCs).

e p.h.i.l. and other preventative services.
e Rent and deposit guarantees.

* Rough sleeping initiatives.

e Housing-related support.

e |mproving access to affordable housing.

There are several other initiatives aimed at
mitigating or tackling the challenges and risks
around homelessness and offending, some of
which are listed below.

There is a clear strategic local
understanding of the problem in terms of
demand and risk. This is discussed at Reducing
Reoffending Board meetings and the importance
of this area has resulted in the formation of a
Housing Task and Finish Group.

Police and Probation staff involved with IOM
and multi-agency public protection arrangements
(MAPPA) regularly report on activity and
performance in managing IOM offenders. This
includes the risk that offenders are likely to cause
criminal behaviour. As such, data is available to
understand housing needs and the challenges
that exist regarding the IOM/MAPPA cohort and
offenders in general. This position is regularly
reviewed at local and force level meetings and
the challenges that exist have been escalated to
the Office of the Police and Crime Commissioner
and the Safer Warwickshire Partnership Board,
but progress is slow. The challenges are
replicated across the whole country: this is a
national rather than a local problem.

The restorative approach to children leaving
custody as set out in 7.1 above, facilitating an
identity shift whereby children are motivated

and ready to change for themselves, is widely
endorsed in Warwickshire as an effective
approach to working with children and families.

It is therefore crucial that resettlement services
involve children as the primary agents in their
own resettlement, rather than defining problems
or solutions on their behalf.

The Bail Remand, Intensive Care & Support
service is run by Barnardo’s. It is a fostering
service working in partnership with Warwickshire
Youth Justice Service (WYJS) to provide children
supervised by WYJS with an alternative to
custody placements for remand, sentence, and
rehabilitation into the community from custody.

WYJS works closely with colleagues in WCC
Children Services so that stable accommodation
can be identified at the beginning of a child’s
custodial sentence. Where there are placement
difficulties there is a clear escalation process in
place to address this.

7.3 What opportunities
will be taken to improve
services?

A number of system-wide actions have been
referred to in section 1.4 above that the Strategic
Homelessness Board is proposing. In addition
the following opportunities have been identified
that will improve services for offenders at risk of
homelessness. These will be taken forward as
recommendations from this strategy.

1. Achieving greater housing opportunities
for offenders.
The underlying problem is understood as a
lack of housing options for offenders and the
requirements for this can be quantified. The
solution is to better understand the need and
to identify and facilitate access to adequate
housing stock across all tenures that is
suitable for offenders who are homeless.
Affordable housing will not be available in
every case so while D&Bs should gather and
assess the available data to determine the
overall shortfall in housing provision in their
areas and seek to deliver more affordable
accommodation, the criminal justice agencies
should consider adopting policies that help
offenders to meet their housing needs in the
private rented sector especially when the
offender is not owed a duty by the D&Bs.

Page 170



2. Planning support services for offenders
that need them.
There are increasing numbers of people
being released from prison with housing and
support needs. Support services from a range
of commissioners and providers can help to
support offenders on release and address
some of the chaotic behaviours that can be
a barrier to obtaining more settled housing.
Such services are also valuable in helping
offenders to stay long term in accommodation
once they have found somewhere to live.

A review of the nature and extent of support
services required to meet future need would
help to inform planning by organisations
involved in the provision of such services.

3. Enhancing strategic leadership
There are specific strategic challenges
explained in this chapter. Partners should seek
to agree strategic leadership around housing
and offending across Warwickshire to ensure
that challenges and issues can be escalated
and resolved.

One option is for the Community Safety
Partnership Boards and the Office of the
Police and Crime Commissioner to lead in
co-ordinating interaction to raise the national
profile of the issues involved and to seek to
secure additional resources for Warwickshire
for the housing and support services identified
as being required under recommendations
one and two above.

4. Preparing offenders for release.
Support organisations should work together
to seek to understand what opportunities
exist, prior to release, to prepare people
leaving prison with new and different life skills,
including education, that will help them to re-
acclimatise and integrate into society and to
find employment.

5. Working better together.
Police and probation staff can provide details

of IOM offenders who are homeless and
require suitable housing. Well-established
police and partnership processes and
procedures are in place to refer offenders.
However, system-wide actions should be
reviewed and considered post-referral by
relevant local authorities and agencies.

There is a clear need for better understanding
among the agencies involved with offenders
as they leave prison, of the relevant
responsibilities but also the constraints

upon each other. The Duty to Refer is now

a legal duty but could be improved in terms
of information exchange, timing, and better
understanding of roles and responsibilities.
Consideration should therefore be given to:

e A training programme for staff in all
of the relevant agencies to cover the
Duty to Refer and also the wider roles
and responsibilities of all of the various
agencies.

¢ Relaunching the Housing Task and Finish
Group, led by the NPS.

6. Considering reciprocal rehousing

arrangements between D&Bs.

There are occasions when it can be
inappropriate for offenders to live in the area
with which they have a local connection so
that there is a need for rehousing in the area
of a different local housing authority. However
local allocation policies often require a local
connection for an applicant to be admitted

to the local housing register, or higher priority
may be given to those with a local connection.
D&Bs should explore whether there is

the potential for some form of reciprocal
arrangement for assistance with regard to the
rehousing of offenders across the county.

Page 171 @



Appendices

Appendix one — Key
messages from public
engagement

The Draft Countywide Homeless Strategy survey
received 45 responses. Of these, 28 were from
members of the general public and the remainder
from other groups (business, statutory partner,
local Councillor/elected member, voluntary
community sector).

In total, 91.1% (n=41) of all respondents stated
that they agreed (either agree or strongly agree)
with the vision set out for this strategy. Just
6.8% (n=3) disagreed (either disagree or strongly
disagree) with the vision.

Respondents generally agreed with each of the
strategic priorities.

e Priority 3 (domestic abuse) had the greatest
agreement — 93.3% (n=42) of all respondents
stated they agreed or strongly agreed with this
priority.

e A small percentage, 8.9% (n=4), of all
respondents disagreed (disagree or strongly
disagree) with Priority 1 (health).

Respondents were asked whether there were
any other priorities, issues, drivers, policies or
strategies that they felt should be considered and
addressed. In total, almost half of all respondents
(48.9%, n=22) stated that there were other
priorities to consider. A wide variety of themes
and issues were mentioned, with concerns
regarding health (including mental health) and the
need to consider specific groups (e.g. asylum
seekers, those with a disability or long-term
health condition, single parents with children)
featuring in multiple comments.

Overall, respondents either agreed or agreed
to some extent that the recommendations

proposed for each strategic priority are the
correct ones to focus on for 2021/22:

e Priority 1 — Health: 62% agreed, 31% agreed
to some extent

e Priority 2 — Young People: 60% agreed, 24%
agreed to some extent

e Priority 3 — Domestic Abuse: 73% agreed,
15.6% agreed to some extent

¢ Priority 4 — Offending: 57.8% agreed, 24.4%
agreed to some extent

e Priority 5 - Financial inclusion: 64.4% agreed,
22.2% agreed to some extent

For each priority a small number of respondents
(n=1-3) said the recommendations were not the
correct recommendations to focus on. Proposed
recommendations under the financial inclusion
priority had the most negative responses

with 6.7% (n=3) of all respondents stating

that the recommendations were not the right
recommendations to focus on.

Appendix two - Summary of
the Homelessness Reduction
Act 2017

The Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 (HRA17)
reforms homelessness legislation so that support
is offered to all eligible people who are threatened
with homelessness or who are homeless,
providing support to a broader range of people
than ever before. It does this through five key
measures.

1 New prevention duty
HRA17 shifts the focus of services from crisis
intervention to prevention, meaning that
services will intervene earlier and help more
people to avert crisis.

Page 172



Local housing authorities must take
reasonable steps to prevent homelessness for
any eligible applicant at risk of homelessness
within 56 days, regardless of priority need.
This can involve assisting them to stay in their
current accommodation, or helping them to
find a new place to live.

2 New relief duty
Local authorities must take reasonable
steps to help an applicant to secure suitable
accommaodation. Help could be, for example,
providing a bond guarantee, funding a rent
deposit or working with a private landlord to
make properties available.

3 Personal Housing Plans
Local authorities must carry out a holistic
assessment of the applicant’s housing
needs, support needs and the circumstances
that led to them becoming homeless. This
assessment will result in developing a
Personal Housing Plan with the applicant that
sets out the reasonable steps that the housing
authority, the applicant and, if applicable,
other professionals will take in order to prevent
or relieve their homelessness.

4 Information
HRA17 strengthens the duty on local
housing authorities to provide free advice
and information designed to meet the needs
of certain vulnerable groups, including those
who are not eligible for further assistance. This
means that people at risk of homelessness will
receive more meaningful information earlier, to
help prevent their homelessness.

The Act requires local authorities to give free
information and advice on:

¢ Preventing homelessness and securing
accommodation when homeless.

e The rights of people who are homeless or
threatened with homelessness.

e How to get help.

e Information on tenants’ rights; rights
to benefits; advice on debt; rent and
mortgage arrears; help for people at risk of
violence and abuse; and advice on how to
obtain accommodation in the social sector
and private rented sector.

5 Duty to Refer
By placing duties on public bodies other than
housing authorities HRA17 aims to reduce
homelessness by joining up services to
provide better support for people, especially
those leaving prison/hospital and other groups
at increased risk of homelessness, such as
people fleeing domestic abuse and care
leavers.

Certain named public authorities must refer
users of their service, who they have reason
to believe are homeless or threatened with
homelessness, to a local housing authority of
the service user’s choice.

Appendix three - Data
about homelessness in
Warwickshire

All data in this appendix is taken from MHCLG,
which compiles information from H-CLIC returns
from all local housing authorities. The full dataset,
including a wide range of other information, can
be found on the gov.uk website.*

In 2018/19, the first year of implementation of
the HRA17, D&Bs received 2,476 approaches
across Warwickshire. This increased to 2,853 in
2019/20, an increase of aimost 15% compared
to an increase of only 5% for England over the
same period.

In 2019/20 the duty owed to applicants was split
fairly evenly between prevention (46%) and relief
(48%) with around 5% owed no duty.

Tables one to eight show the following key
information for 2019/20:

e Homelessness assessments in Warwickshire
by local authority and duty owed.

¢ The reason for the loss, or threat of loss, of
the last settled home of households owed the
prevention duty.

e The reason for the loss, or threat of loss, of
the last settled home of households owed the
relief duty.

e The support needs of households owed a
homelessness duty.

Page 173



e Referrals made under the Duty to Refer by the e The number of households in temporary
various referring bodies. accommodation as at 31st March 2020 by
household composition.

e The number of households in temporary

accommodation as at 31st March 2020 by the e Official numbers of people sleeping rough by
type of accommodation occupied. local authority for 2016 to 2019.

TABLE 1

Homelessness assessments in Warwickshire in 2019-20 by local authority and duty owed.

100%

90%

80%

70%

60%

50%

40%

30%

20%

10%

0%

37%
o — »
uso
Prevention duty owed Relief duty owed No duty owed
1,324 cases 1,373 cases 156 cases

® North Warwickshire © Nuneaton and Bedworth m Rugby m Stratford-on-Avon B Warwick

Page 174




TABLE 2
Households owed a prevention duty by reason for loss, or threat of loss,
of last settled home 2019-20

England (%)

West Midlands (%)

Warwickshire (%) I

0% 10% 20% 30% 40% 50% 60% 70% 80% 90% 100%
B Assured shorthold tenancy ended H Family/friends no longer willing to accommodate
= Other = End of social rented tenancy
B Non violent relationship ended B Eviction from supported housing
= Domestic abuse = Non-assured shorthold private tenancy ended

TABLE 3
Households owed a relief duty by reason for loss, or threat of loss,
of last settled home 2019-20

England (%)

WeSt Midlands (%) _-
Warwickshire (%) -

M Assured shorthold tenancy ended B Family/friends no longer willing to accommodate
m Other ® End of social rented tenancy

= Non violent relationship ended u Eviction from supported housing

= Domestic abuse = Non-assured shorthold private tenancy ended

Page 175 @



TABLE 4
Support needs of households owed a homelessness duty 2019-20
(Where one household has multiple needs all needs are counted.)

SUPPORT NEEDS OF HOUSEHOLD WARWICKSHIRE ‘I<IIVIEDSI:I-ANDS
COUNT PERCENT PERCENT

History of mental health problems 714 27 23
Physical ill health and disability 423 16 14
At risk of / has experienced domestic abuse 277 10 12
Drug dependency needs 127 5 5
Young person aged 18-25 requiring support to manage 141 5 8
independently

Offending history 139 5 5
History of repeat homelessness 125 5 4
Learning disability 98 4 4
Alcohol dependency needs 110 4 4
History of rough sleeping 89 3 3
At risk of / has experienced sexual abuse / exploitation 40 2 1
At risk of / has experienced abuse (non-domestic abuse) 64 2 2
Care leaver aged 18-20 years 41 2 2
Old age 41 2 1
Access to education, employment or training 62 2 6
Young person aged 16-17 years 49 2 2
Young parent requiring support to manage independently 38 1 2
Care leaver aged 21+ years 26 1 1
Served in HM Forces 31 1 0.6
Former asylum seeker 5 0.2 1

TOTAL*

* Percentages do not add up to 100 due to rounding.

Page 176




TABLE 5

Referrals made under the Duty to Refer by referring body 2018-19 & 2019-20

2018/19 (%)

617 cases

2%

B National Probation Service

= Community Rehabilitation

= Jobcentre Plus

B Children Social Services

m Adult Social Services

m Hospital, A&E, Urgent Treatment

Centre or in-patient care

= Adult Secure Estate (Prison)

= Mental Health in patient care

2019/20 (%)
95 cases

1%

TABLE 6

Number of households in temporary accommodation as at 31st March 2020
by type of accommodation

100

90

93

80

70

60
50

40

39

43

30

20

10

1

0 00O
|

North Warwickshire Nuneaton and Bedworth

® Bed and breakfast
= Hostels
m LA/HA stock

9 10 1

Rugby

59
21

‘1 O o

Stratford-on-Avon

Warwick

® Privately managed self-contained accommodation

® Private sector leased accommodation
m Other

Page 177




TABLE 7

Number of households in temporary accommodation as at 31st March 2020

by household composition

70

64

60

62

50

40

30

29

20

North Warwickshire Nuneaton and Bedworth Rugby

= Couple with dependent children = Single parent with dependent children

= Single adult

3

3

Stratford-on-Avon

1

1 1

Warwick

u All other household types

TABLE 8
Rough sleeping counts 2016-2019 by local authority

35

30

25
20
15

10
I
0

2016 2017 2018 2019
- North Warwickshire 6 0 2 0
—— Nuneaton & Bedworth 2 5 22 8
—— Rugby 0 6 32 12
= Stratford-on-Avon 13 17 10 6
= \Warwick 18 21 12 21

Page 178




EQUALITIES INFORMATION so the tables do not include those where it was

For applicants seeking assistance under home- found that no duty was owed.
lessness legislation the following tables show
information on various characteristics that are
protected under the Equalities Act 2010. This

As regards information about households that
include someone with a support need due to a

information is drawn from the MHCLG data- disability, the data is included in table four above.
base referred to earlier. It should be noted that If any other protected characteristic is not cov-
the information is only collected for those owed ered below it is because the information is not

a prevention or relief duty under the legislation collected through the H-CLIC data returns.
TABLE 9

Ethnicity distribution of main applicant 2019/20

m White B Black / African / Caribbean / Black British
= Asian / Asian British = Mixed / Multiple ethnic groups
H Other ethnic group ¥ Not known

Page 179 @



TABLE 10
Age distribution of main applicant 2019/20

West Midlands (%)

England (%)

Warwickshire (%)

m16-17 m18-24 m25-34 m35-44 m45-54 m55-64 mG5-74 m75+

TABLE 11
Gender of single parent applicant with dependent children 2019/20

= Other / gender not known
= Female

= Male

Warwickshire (%) England West Midlands
(%) (%)

@ Page 180



TABLE 12
Gender of single person applicant 2019/20

= Other / gender not known

HFemale

m Male

Warwickshire (%) England West Midlands
(%) (%)

Page 181 @



Appendix four - Extract from
the Annual Report 2019 of the
Director of Public Health for
Warwickshire.

Warwickshire Health Profile 2019

® Better @ Similar @ Worse

ENGLAND
WARWICKSHIRE
NORTH
WARWICKSHIRE
NUNEATON &
BEDWORTH
STRATFORD-
ON-AVON
WARWICK

)
R
o

Under 18 conceptions

Low birth weight of term
: . 24
babies

>
o)}

Not

Breastfeeding initiation 5 iy 61 . . . 2 2016/17

issues

Smoking prevalence in

adults % : 14.1 ; : . . . 2018

New sexually transmitted per
infections 100,000 248 2018

5 year olds free from dental

0,
decay % . 78.4 . : : . : 2016/17

(Cr)g’gé‘gt?c'%';t & obese % 4 223 . . . . 7 2017/18

Overweight & obese (Year 6) % . 31.7 . . . . . 2017/18

Hospital admissions for
unintentional and deliberate
injuries in children (aged
0-14 years)

2017/18

g‘éirl‘t’g‘;'ght and obese % : : : : . 8  2017/18

Incidence of TB 5’86 ave | & . : . . : . 2016-18

Suicide rate (aged 10+) ?86 000 ¥ . ; . . . . 2015-17

@ Page 182



® Better @ Similar @ Worse

ENGLAND
WARWICKSHIRE
NORTH
WARWICKSHIRE
NUNEATON &
BEDWORTH
STRATFORD-
ON-AVON
WARWICK

per

Infant mortality (under 1 1,000

year) live
births

<
©

Mortality rate from causes

considered preventable (all '1086 000 2015-17
ages) /

Under 75 mortality rate: per .
cardiovascular 100,000 : : : - . 5 . 2015-17

Under 75 mortality rate: per

cancer 100,000 2015-17

Hip fractures in people aged DSR per

65 and over 100,000 A

Emergency hospital or
admissions for intentional ?OO 000 2017/18
self-harm (all ages) /

Killed or seriously injured on  per

the roads* 100,000 2015=17

Hospital admissions for or
alcohal-related conditions F1)00 000 . . : . . : : 2015/18
(under 18 years) /

Sickness absence - the

percentage of working .
days lost due to sickness ! : : : : : : 2015-17
absence

The values are coloured Red, Amber and Green (RAG) to indicate statistical significance compared to England. RAG
ratings are affected by small numbers for some indicators.

* This includes all people (residents and non-residents) killed or seriously injured on Warwickshire roads.

Page 183




Appendix five - Glossary of

abbreviations
A&E Accident and Emergency
CRC Community Rehabilitation Companies

CWPT Coventry and Warwickshire Partnership Trust

D&Bs The five District and Borough Councils of Warwickshire collectively

ET Equitable Tenancy

H-CLIC | Homeless Case Level Information Collection system

HAST Homelessness Advice and Support Team at MHCLG

HRA17 The Homelessness Reduction Act 2017

IDVA Independent Domestic Violence Adviser
IOM Integrated Offender Management system
LHA Local Housing Allowance

MAPPA | Multi-agency public protection arrangements

MHCLG | The Ministry of Housing, Communities and local Government

NBBC Nuneaton and Bedworth Borough Council

NFA No Fixed Abode
NHS National Health Service
NPS National Probation Service

NWBC North Warwickshire Borough Council

p-h.i.l. Preventing Homelessness Improving Lives

RBC Rugby Borough Council

RDVSW | Refuge Domestic Violence Service Warwickshire

SDC Stratford-on Avon District Council

wcCcC Warwickshire County Council

WDC Warwick District Council

WYJS Warwickshire Youth Justice Service

@ Page 184



Appendix six - References

A W N =

o N O O

11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21

22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
36
37
38

39

Homeless Health Needs Audit, Homeless Link, 2019
The health of homeless people in high-income countries, Fazel et al, 2014
Office for National Statistics, 2018

The prevalence of mental disorders among the homeless in western countries: Systematic review and
meta-regression analysis, Fazel et al, 2008

The Autism Employment Gap, National Autistic Society, 2016

The prevalence of autistic traits in a homeless population, Churchard et al, 2018

Cognitive impairment and homelessness: A scoping review. Stone, Dowling & Cameron, 2018
Chance of a lifetime: the impact of bad housing on children’s lives, Shelter, 2006

Preventing homelessness to improve health and wellbeing, Public Health England, 2015

Mental Health Foundation website

Citzens Advice press release, 2014

Financial Inclusion Report 2018-19, HM Treasury & Department for Work and Pensions, March 2019
From the frontline, Shelter, August 2019

Joseph Rowntree Foundation website, February 2018

Access to rent: deposit loan scheme, JRF, April 2018

National Residential Landlords Association, May 2019

The homelessness monitor: England 2019, Crisis, May 2019

Coventry and Warwickshire Joint Strategic Housing Market Assessment, Table 71, GL Hearn, 2013
State of the PRS (Q1 2019). A survey of private landlords and the impact of welfare reforms, RLA, 2019
Young and Homeless 2018, Homeless Link

Information for Local Areas on the change to the Definition of Domestic Violence and Abuse, Home Office,
March 2013

An Independent Strategic Review of Domestic Abuse Services and Support Across Warwickshire, July 2019
Hidden Hurt, Violence, Abuse and Disadvantage in the Lives of Women Scott and McManus, Agenda, 2016
Joining the dots, McManus and Scott with Sosenko, Agenda, September 2016

Women'’s Aid (2019) The Domestic Abuse Report 2019: The Economics of Abuse. Bristol: Women’s Aid.
Behind Closed Doors, Unicef, 2006

Women'’s Aid, Survivors Handbook

Survivor’s Justice, Mayes, Moroz and Frolunde, Victim Support, December 2017

Domestic abuse prevalence and trends, England and Wales: year ending March 2019, ONS

Rebuilding Shattered Lives, Hutchinson, Page and Sample, St Mungo’s

Domestic abuse in England and Wales year ending March 2018, ONS

Housing support for ex-offenders (England and Wales), Bellis and Wilson, 2017

Rough Sleeping Strategy, MHCLG, 2018

Now all | care about is my future, Beyond Youth Custody partnership, 2017

Standards for children in the youth justice system 2019, Ministry of Justice, 2019

Prison: the facts Bromley Briefings Summer 2019, Prison Reform Trust, 2019

Evidencing the link between the Local Housing Allowance freeze and homelessness, LGA, 2020

Balancing Act: Addressing health inequalities among people in contact with the criminal justice system,
Revolving Doors Agency, 2013

https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/homelessness-statistics#fhomelessness-prevention-and-relief

Page 185 @


https://www.homeless.org.uk/our-work/resources/homeless-health-needs-audit
https://www.thelancet.com/journals/lancet/article/PIIS0140-6736(14)61132-6/fulltext
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/birthsdeathsandmarriages/deaths/bulletins/deathsofhomelesspeopleinenglandandwales/2018#deaths-of-homeless-people-have-increased-significantly-since-2017
https://www.researchgate.net/publication/312153091_The_prevalence_of_mental_disorders_among_the_homeless_in_western_countries_Systematic_review_and_meta-regression_analysis
https://www.researchgate.net/publication/312153091_The_prevalence_of_mental_disorders_among_the_homeless_in_western_countries_Systematic_review_and_meta-regression_analysis
https://pubmed.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/29633853/
https://www.ncbi.nlm.nih.gov/pmc/articles/PMC6849546/
https://england.shelter.org.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0016/39202/Chance_of_a_Lifetime.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/preventing-homelessness-to-improve-health-and-wellbeing
https://www.mentalhealth.org.uk/a-to-z/d/debt-and-mental-health
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/financial-inclusion-report-2018-to-2019
https://england.shelter.org.uk/__data/assets/pdf_file/0003/1827021/From_the_frontline_Universal_Credit_and_the_broken_housing_safety_net.pdf
https://www.jrf.org.uk/report/housing-costs-and-poverty-private-rents-compared-local-earnings
https://www.jrf.org.uk/report/access-rent-deposit-loan-scheme
https://thenegotiator.co.uk/eviction-reforms-landlord-porfolio-reduction/
https://www.crisis.org.uk/ending-homelessness/homelessness-knowledge-hub/homelessness-monitor/england/the-homelessness-monitor-england-2019/
https://www.warwickdc.gov.uk/downloads/file/1642/coventry_and_warwickshire_joint_strategic_housing_market_assessment_-_november_2013
https://www.nrla.org.uk/research/data-observatory-growth-and-the-prs
https://www.homeless.org.uk/sites/default/files/site-attachments/Young%20and%20Homeless%202018.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/142701/guide-on-definition-of-dv.pdf
https://weareagenda.org/wp-content/uploads/2015/11/Hidden-Hurt-full-report1.pdf
https://weareagenda.org/wp-content/uploads/2015/11/Joining-The-Dots-Report_Final_b_Exec-Summary.pdf
https://www.womensaid.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/12/Economics-of-Abuse-Report-2019.pdf
https://www.womensaid.org.uk/the-survivors-handbook/children-and-domestic-abuse/
https://www.victimsupport.org.uk/sites/default/files/VS_Survivor’s%20justice.pdf
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/crimeandjustice/articles/domesticabuseprevalenceandtrendsenglandandwales/yearendingmarch2019
https://www.mungos.org/publication/rebuilding-shattered-lives-final-report/
https://www.ons.gov.uk/peoplepopulationandcommunity/crimeandjustice/bulletins/domesticabuseinenglandandwales/yearendingmarch2018
https://commonslibrary.parliament.uk/research-briefings/sn02989/
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/the-rough-sleeping-strategy
http://www.beyondyouthcustody.net/wp-content/uploads/Now-all-I-care-about-is-my-future-Supporting-the-shift-a-summary.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/780504/Standards_for_children_in_youth_justice_services_2019.doc.pdf
http://www.prisonreformtrust.org.uk/Portals/0/Documents/Bromley%20Briefings/Prison%20the%20facts%20Summer%202019.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/local-housing-allowance-freeze-and-homelessness
http://www.revolving-doors.org.uk/file/1820/download%3Ftoken%3DeVvaFNW3
http://www.revolving-doors.org.uk/file/1820/download%3Ftoken%3DeVvaFNW3
https://www.gov.uk/government/collections/homelessness-statistics#homelessness-prevention-and-relief
https://s3.chorus-mk.thirdlight.com/file/1573224908/63516243370/width=-1/height=-1/format=-1/fit=scale/t=444848/e=never/k=59f99727/TMI%20Employment%20Report%2024pp%20WEB.pdf

%4 ) £

HM Prison & Nuneaton ik ' 2. Warwickshire

Probation Service E‘?ﬂﬁvﬁrﬂﬁ

Commissioner & West Mercia : homelessness
for Warwickshire Community Rehabilitation Company PROBATION 1 g North Warwickshire improving
% Borough Council lives

Philip Seccombe ) i .
‘ } Police and Crime Warwickshire :! ‘ preventing

A
v

Warwickshire South Warwickshire £ 3: WKSHIRE

County Council NHS Foundation Trust

Page 186




Page 1 of 19

DRAFT COUNTYWIDE HOMELESS STRATEGY

SURVEY RESULTS

Author: Chloe Kinton
Date published: November 2020

Report produced by Business Intelligence, Commissioning Support Unit

Page 187



Page 2 of 19

BACKGROUND

Warwickshire County Council, North Warwickshire Borough Council, Nuneaton and Bedworth Borough Council,
Rugby Borough Council, Warwick District Council and Stratford-on-Avon District Council recognise the
importance of tackling and preventing homelessness in Warwickshire. In developing the draft countywide
strategy on homelessness, joint working and collaboration has taken place with a wide range of stakeholders,
including; health, police, probation, county and district and borough councils, the voluntary and community
sector.

The Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 came in to force on 3 April 2018. It introduced fundamental changes to
how Local Authorities assess and assist homeless applicants. The intention of the Act is to give a greater focus
on prevention. The aim of the changes is to reduce homelessness by introducing systems to ensure early
intervention and prevention. In October 2018, the Duty to Refer brought a wide range of other statutory
organisations into firm collaboration with local authorities to implement the legislation.

The legislation requires statutory agencies to act to promote positive outcomes for applicants. The inclusion of
the Duty to Refer in the Act indicates Government awareness that better partnership working is needed to
resolve homelessness when it occurs. In addition, a recent consultation paper — ‘Tackling Homelessness
Together’ set out Government concerns that partners are not engaging positively to resolve homelessness and
not co-operating. As a result, Government is now proposing statutory requirements to provide for specific
structures which could include a duty to co-operate and the establishment of Homelessness Reduction Boards.
The development of the Strategic Homelessness Board in Warwickshire supports the legislative changes and
anticipates the Government’s further proposals.

The Board is developing a Warwickshire-wide Homeless Strategy, proposing recommendations for consideration
by partners which are concerned with how statutory agencies in Warwickshire will work together to promote
and deliver the changes expected by Government and which will benefit
residents. These objectives are intended to define a new culture of collaboration and effective joint working
arrangements. They include:

e Supporting and fully utilising the Homelessness Strategic Board to promote collaboration, challenge
systems of work, develop new initiatives and deliver joint training.

e Evolving the strong partnership working built during the COVID-19 pandemic to anticipate challenges to
residents from a recession — particularly in connection with their financial circumstances, unemployment
and the actions of private landlords to evict tenants.

e Enabling front line teams to act in partnership to intervene early where there is a housing issue — to
encourage a culture of professional curiosity and ensure teams know that homeless is everybody’s
business.

e Developing agreed pathways for referrals which underpin a culture of collaboration

e Agreeing formal monitoring systems to provide information to the Board about the effectiveness of joint
working.

e Setting out specific actions to include joint working with regard to tackling domestic abuse, working with

businessintelligence@warwickshire.gov.uk P age 1882



Page 3 of 19

young people and offenders, health and financial inclusion.
e Using Local Plans, Lettings Schemes and intervention in the private sector housing market to deliver a
sufficient range of affordable housing options to meet housing needs in Warwickshire.

Views were sought on the Draft Countywide Homeless Strategy using an online survey that was available
between 5" October and 1% November 2020. Responses were invited from the general public, businesses,
statutory partners, local councillors/elected members, and voluntary and community sector. The results and
feedback will assist in getting the strategy right for those who are at risk of homelessness, currently homeless or
sleeping rough on Warwickshire streets. It will inform the priorities and recommendations of the final version of
the strategy being presented to the Health and Wellbeing Board in March 2021.

METHODOLOGY

In order to gather views, an online survey was available on Ask Warwickshire using Citizen Space (a paper-based
version of the standard online survey could be requested by telephone or email and alternative formats and
languages could also be requested). Respondents were also able to respond directly via email or in writing to
Public Health Warwickshire.

This report is structured in three main sections. First, the key messages of the analysis on the Draft Countywide
Homeless Strategy. The main section of the report presents the results from the survey which includes: about
respondents, our vision, strategic priorities, recommendations, further comments and Housing Related Support.
This is followed by a section that presents the equality and diversity analysis.

3
businessintelligence@warwickshire.gov.uk Pag e 189



Page 4 of 19

KEY MESSAGES

e The Draft Countywide Homeless Strategy survey received 45 responses. Of these, 28 were from members
of the general public and the remainder from other groups (business, statutory partner, local
Councillor/elected member, voluntary community sector).

e Intotal, 91.1% (n=41) of all respondents stated that they agreed (either agree or strongly agree) with the
vision set out for this strategy. Just 6.8% (n=3) disagreed (either disagree or strongly disagree) with the
vision.

e Respondents generally agreed with each of the strategic priorities.

o Priority 3 (domestic abuse) had the greatest agreement —93.3% (n=42) of all respondents stated
they agreed or strongly agreed with this priority.

o Asmall percentage, 8.9% (n=4), of all respondents disagreed (disagree or strongly disagree) with
Priority 1 (health).

e Respondents were asked whether there were any other priorities, issues, drivers, policies or strategies
that they felt should be considered and addressed. In total, almost half of all respondents (48.9%, n=22)
stated that there were other priorities to consider. A wide variety of themes and issues were mentioned,
with concerns regarding health (including mental health) and the need to consider specific groups (e.g.
asylum seekers, those with a disability or long-term health condition, single parents with children)
featuring in multiple comments.

e Qverall, respondents either agreed or agreed to some extent that the recommendations proposed for
each strategic priority are the correct ones to focus on for 2021/22:

Priority 1 — Health: 62% agreed, 31% agreed to some extent

Priority 2 — Young People: 60% agreed, 24% agreed to some extent

Priority 3 — Domestic Abuse: 73% agreed, 15.6% agreed to some extent

Priority 4 — Offending: 57.8% agreed, 24.4% agreed to some extent

o Priority 5 - Financial inclusion: 64.4% agreed, 22.2% agreed to some extent

O O O O

e For each priority a small number of respondents (n=1-3) said the recommendations were not the correct
recommendations to focus on. Proposed recommendations under the financial inclusion priority had the
most negative responses with 6.7% (n=3) of all respondents stating that the recommendations were not
the right recommendations to focus on.

e The final section of the survey focused on eligibility criteria for Housing Related Support (HRS). The
majority of respondents felt that all of the statements provided should be included as a criteria that
makes a person eligible for HRS. In particular, 93.3% (n=42) considered ‘Their health needs impacting
their ability to maintain their tenancy (disability/mental health/substance misuse)’ should be eligible. A
large amount of debt which may affect their tenancy was the only eligibility criteria that received less
than 75% support (71.1%, n=32).

4
businessintelligence@warwickshire.gov.uk Pag e 190



Page 5 of 19

DRAFT COUNTYWIDE HOMELESSNESS STRATEGY RESULTS —SURVEY ANALYSIS

ABOUT RESPONDENTS

In total, the online survey received 45 responses. At the beginning of the survey, respondents were asked to
state in what capacity they were responding to this questionnaire. Depending on how a respondent answered,
they were then asked which Warwickshire district or borough they live in, work in or represent. The results of
this are presented in Table 1 below.

Table 1. Respondent background and Warwickshire borough/district

Local Voluntary
Genefal Business Statutory = Councillor and ' Other
public partner / elected community
member sector

North
Warwickshire ! 0 0 0 0 0 1
Nuneaton &
Bedworth 2 1 0 0 0 3 6
Rugby 5 0 1 1 0 0 7
Stratford-on-Avon 9 0 0 1 0 1 11
Warwick 11 0 0 0 3 2 16
Countywide N/A 0 1 0 3 0 4
Outside of
Warwickshire N/A 0 0 0 0 0 0
Not answered N/A 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total 28 1 2 2 6 6 45

The figures in Table 1 indicate that the majority of respondents who completed the survey were members of the
public (62.2%, n=28), with 11 residing in Warwick District and 10 in Stratford-on-Avon District. There were six
respondents who answered in their voluntary and community sector capacity, two local councillors/elected
members (WCC, District/Borough, Town Council) and just one business. Of those who stated ‘other’, there were
two householders/landlords, a housing solutions team member, a health/nursing service and an adult social care
practitioner. Indeed, 60% (n=27) of all respondents stated they live, work or represent either Stratford-on-Avon
District or Warwick District (see Table 1).

5
businessintelligence@warwickshire.gov.uk P age 191



Page 6 of 19

OUR VISION

The first section of the survey focused on Our Vision (that statutory agencies in Warwickshire will work together
to promote and deliver the changes expected by the Government in the Homelessness Reduction Act 2017, for
the benefit of our Warwickshire residents). Respondents were asked to what extent they agree or disagree with
the vision set out for this strategy. The results of this are presented in Figure 1.

Figure 1. How strongly do you agree or disagree with the vision set out for this strategy?

2% 5%

47%

44%

Stongly agree Agree Neither agree nor disagree Disagree = Strongly disagree

As Figure 1 shows, 91.1% (n=41) of all respondents stated that they agreed (either agree or strongly agree) with
the vision set out for this strategy. Just 6.8% (n=3) disagreed (either disagree or strongly disagree) with the vision.

Those respondents who stated they disagreed or strongly disagreed with the vision were asked to explain their
answer in the open text box. However, only two of the three respondents who disagreed with the vision chose
to comment. A further five respondents (who answered strongly agree, agree or neither agree nor disagree) also
made a comment. All seven comments are presented below along with the capacity in which the respondent
answered the survey:

e “Ayoung girl and her partner that | know who have fallen on hard times and have had to sleep on people’s
sofa’s for the last two months were told by RBC that they wouldn’t be housed as this young girl wasn’t
pregnant so they didn’t meet the criteria for housing these two young people are only 20 years old so
why is the council promoting young adults who have no job or place to live to create a life to get someone
to help them. Absolutely disgusting. Especially when there are several properties flats and houses sat
empty in the town” (General Public; disagree with vision).

e “There is a need to get to the root of the problem with homelessness and the cause. The problem does
not necessarily stop with providing a roof over someone' head. It may have complied with a ‘duty’ but,
there needs to be intensive work needed for some of our counties most vulnerable. Also, a 'hidden
homeless' and vulnerably housed community need to be better supported” (General Public; disagree with
vision).

e “It’s too long and wordy to be a vision. A simple statement of what you’re aiming to do is required” (Local
Councillor/elected member; neither agree nor disagree with vision).

6
businessintelligence@warwickshire.gov.uk Pag e 192



Page 7 of 19

o “Ensuring early intervention and prevention is the best way to try and reduce homelessness. Now,
particularly, with COVID-19, agencies across Warwickshire need to work together to ensure nobody is at
risk of being homeless. Joined up thinking and working will be crucial” (General Public, agree with vision).

e “Anything that benefits the residents is good” (Business; strongly agree with vision).

o ‘] believe we all want to achieve the best possible outcome & this will only be reached by working
together, and highlighting any barriers we feel we face” (Statutory partner, strongly agree with vision).

e “l agree there needs to be promotion of working together between statutory agencies, and feel it is also
imperative there is clarity regarding roles and responsibilities e.g. we often find Housing Dept's state
someone is vulnerable as they are homeless and therefore require residential care to be provided when
the individual has no care and support needs. By virtue of being homeless, any individual could be
considered to be vulnerable, but that does not mean residential care should be provided when the need
is for accommodation NOT care and support” (Other respondent; strongly agree with vision).

STRATEGIC PRIORITIES

The next section of the survey focused on the five strategic priorities. Respondents were asked how strongly they
agreed or disagreed with each of the strategic priorities — health, young people, domestic abuse, offending, and
financial inclusion. The results of each of these are presented in Figure 2 below.

Figure 2. How strongly do you agree or disagree with the five strategic priorities?

Priority 1 - Health - To reduce the inequalities and improve the
health of people at risk of homelessness, homeless or sleeping 68.9% 17.8%
rough in Warwickshire

Priority 2 - Young people - To enhance and improve services that

66.7% 26.7%
prevent homelessness among young people

Priority 3 - Domestic Abuse —to prevent domestic abuse and the

0 0,
crisis homelessness resulting from it wherever possible UG 222

Priority 4 - Offending — to deliver better-focussed housing and
related support services for those at risk of homelessness on 53.3% 33.3%
leaving prison

Priority 5 - Financial inclusion — to ensure that a wide range of
appropriate services are available to support those at risk of 57.8% 31.1%
homelessness due to financial difficulties

Stongly agree Agree Neither agree nor disagree Disagree  m Strongly disagree

As Figure 2 shows, respondents generally agreed with each of the strategic priorities. For Priority 3 (domestic
abuse), 93.3% (n=42) of all respondents stated they agree or strongly agree with this priority. Further to this,
both Priority 4 (offending) and Priority 5 (financial inclusion) saw 8.9% (n=4) and 6.7% (n=3) of respondents
respectively state that they neither agreed nor disagreed with these priorities. Interestingly, 8.9% (n=4) of all

7
businessintelligence@warwickshire.gov.uk Pag e 193



Page 8 of 19

respondents disagreed (disagree or strongly disagree) with Priority 1 (health). In terms of the capacity in which
they were responding to the survey, there was no statistical significance in the way respondents answered.

Following this, respondents who disagreed or strongly disagreed with any of the five priorities were asked to
explain why. In total, five respondents made a comment, and these are presented below. Two of the comments
related specifically to the health priority:

e “Health - needs to be clear on the lack of mental health support availability and drug and alcohol services.
Where an individual has a mental health issue and a substance addiction, Mental Health decline to
support unless the individual will engage with substance misuse support services such as Change, Grow,
Live, even where the individual is misusing substances as a form of self medication and/or feel unable to
begin to address addiction issues, and/or has a long standing serious mental health condition. Mental
Health services overall are seriously lacking and needs are not being addressed across the board.
Financial inclusion - should consider whether this is because for example an individual is not claiming the
correct benefits or needs to be supported to manage their money as they have mental capacity issues. |
think it is more difficult in situations where addiction is at play and an individual is spending all money on
substances to feed their addiction, therefore placing their tenancy at risk” (Adult Social Care practitioner).

e “I don’t agree with the Health priority - if you can identify who's at risk of being homeless you should be
offering appropriate support to prevent it rather than improving their health. I’'m guessing that this
priority was included at the request of your health partners. Strongly agree with assisting young people
and offenders from drifting into homelessness” (Local Councillor/elected member).

o “I'think people hitting poverty is more of a priority than single people coming out of custody due to people
having children and living in poor conditions” (Business).

e “| see no mention of support for homeless veterans who have put their lives on the line for this Country
(General Public).

o “Please refer to previous statement as telling young couple who have lost their home and job through no
fault of their own to get pregnant to get houses is disqgusting” (General Public).

27

The final question in this section asked respondents whether there were any other priorities, issues, drivers,
policies or strategies that they felt should be considered and addressed. In total, almost half of all respondents
(48.9%, n=22) stated that there were other priorities to consider. Similarly, 46.7% (n=21) said no. Just two
respondents did not answer this question (see Figure 3).

In terms of the capacity in which they were responding to the survey, 17 (60.7%) respondents who identified as

members of the general public felt there were other policies or strategies to consider compared to 5 (29.4%)
from the other groups. This is a statistically significant difference in response to this question.

8
businessintelligence @warwickshire.gov.uk Pag e 194



Page 9 of 19

Figure 3. Are there any other, priorities, issues, drivers, policies or strategies that should be considered and
addressed?

49%

Yes = No Not answered

Those respondents who stated ‘yes’ were asked to explain their answer in more detail. In total, 21 respondents
left a comment to this question and these are presented below. A wide variety of themes and issues were
mentioned, with concerns regarding health (including mental health) and the need to consider specific groups
(e.g. asylum seekers, those with a disability or long-term health condition, single parents with children) featuring
in multiple comments:

9
businessintelligence @warwickshire.gov.uk Pag e 195

“1 - Health - homeless people are less likely to want to or comply with health services for fear being sent
into the hospital or because they have bad experiences with authority. Community-led nursing services
should be increased. 2 - Young people - there are good initiatives from St Basils and other charitable
organisations but, young people are more likely to 'sofa surf' or enter into risky and dangerous situations
to keep from being homeless. Also, the transition from being a ‘looked after child' to becoming
independent is a fraught one and additional steps need to be in place to make sure a stable home life is
in place. There needs to be a wrap-around and holistic approach to reducing homelessness. Sadly, it is
not one size fits all - people often have had chaotic lives and traumatic experiences. All agencies need to
be involved. We might be able to house people but, if they cannot read to pay bills, manage a bank
account or have basic cooking skills being able to manage a tenancy successfully becomes untenable”
(General Public).

“Mental Health, substance misuse” (Adult Social Care practitioner).

“Asylum seekers/refugees” (General Public).

“Consider issue of companion animals being allowed in shelters/housing. Consider idea of community
and sense of belonging. Consider employment and communities/projects offering housing for
work/labour” (General Public).

“Digital inclusion - with more and more services mainly accessed online (UC with its journals), all the
housing bidding services etc it does disadvantage those that struggle with technology or literacy. | guess
you are including disabilities in with health but learning difficulties may not be a medical issue as such”
(Voluntary and community sector).

“Disability should be explicitly referenced, not just health” (General Public).

“Greater account to be taken of the fact that many people need support to access the help that is often
out there and available to them, they just cannot access it. They are not being lazy or feckless but
genuinely are unable to access help they are entitled to without support” (General Public).



Page 10 of 19

o “How staff respond to each case and being forthcoming with all information of all help available to these
young people who have never had dealings with the councils before so are not aware of what help is
available such as your discretionary funds” (General Public).

e “Interdependencies of drug and alcohol being a barrier to people being able to secure or sustain
tenancies” (General Public).

e “It would be good to see mental health more called out specifically in the listed priorities, perhaps
including it in Priority 1” (Local Councillor / elected member).

o “Mental health issues such as schizophrenia” (General Public).

e “More work needs to be done to ensure that all agencies working with those who are homeless do so in
a trauma informed way. Also, more needs to be done to address the trauma suffered by those who
become homeless. Counselling those who have suffered trauma in their lives is essential if the hard work
to house such individuals is to be sustained” (General Public).

e  “Need to ensure alcohols drug related homelessness addressed i.e. If not already covered by 'health’
priority” (General Public).

e  “Old people who are homeless should also be included” (General Public).

e “Referral of those already homeless” (General Public).

e “Single parent families with children” (General Public).

e “Support our veterans!” (General Public).

e “The issues associated with COVID-19 (furlough and job losses, health etc). Also, more longer-term, how
Brexit may need to be considered” (General Public).

e “There is a very big gap in service provision in this area, for patients who are alcohol dependent. Although
they can get help at CGL for this addiction, for those patients who want to continue drinking and who are
homeless, who may or may not have mental health issues on top of their dependency, there is little
provision for them. Often they slip through the gap of all services and the only alternative presently, is to
end up rough sleeping. This area needs a supported "wet house" or equivalent for a certain, small number,
of patients” (Health / nursing service).

e “There is evidence that the number of homeless people is higher than official/reported statistics. Any
scheme to tackle homelessness needs to ensure that we can include ALL of the homeless. We need to
ensure that children in homeless families or children leaving care services do not fall into homelessness
by giving more focused support in their teenage years” (General Public).

e “Yes - you’re only looking at the demand side - you should also be looking at supply, i.e. affordable
housing. Unfortunately the whole strategy seems to be light on data - how many people are genuinely
homeless now, how many are expected to become homeless in future, how many appropriate units of
affordable housing are available now, how many are needed in future, what are you doing to ensure their
provision” (Local Councillor / elected member).

RECOMMENDATIONS

The next section of the survey focused on recommendations. The draft Strategy outlines
recommendations under each strategic priority for actions to focus on for 2021/22 and the survey sought to
understand respondents’ thoughts about the recommendations they would like to see being undertaken under
each of the five strategic priorities.

For each strategic priority, respondents were asked whether the proposed recommendations were the right
recommendations to focus on for 2021/22. The results of this are presented in Figure 4 below. As the chart
shows, there is general agreement that each of the recommendations are the correct ones to focus on for
2021/22, wholly or to some extent. In particular, 73.3% (n=33) of all respondents suggested that the

10
businessintelligence@warwickshire.gov.uk Pag e 196 .= .
] ] 1]
[ | [ 11 [ [ ]



Page 11 of 19

recommendations regarding Priority 3 (Domestic Abuse) are the right ones to focus on. However, 6.7% (n=3) of
all respondents stated that the recommendations put forward regarding Priority 5 (financial inclusion) were not
the right recommendations to focus on. There was no statistical significance in responses based on the capacity
in which they were responding (general public v all other groups) to the recommendations.

Figure 4. Are these the right recommendations to focus on for 2021/22?

Priority 1 - Health - Proposed recommendations 62.2% 31.1% ZI% 4.4%
Priority 2 - Young people - Proposed
¥ &p p. P 60.0% 24.4% 8.9%
recommendations
Priority 3 - Domestic Abuse — Proposed
. 73.3% 15.6% 2.2% 6.7%
recommendations
Priority 4 - Offending — Proposed recommendations 57.8% 24.4% l 8.9%

Priority 5 - Financial inclusion - Proposed
. 64.4% 22.2% 6.7%
recommendations

Yes To some extent M No Don't know

If a respondent answered ‘no’ or ‘to some extent’ to any of the five proposed recommendations, they were then
asked to explain why.

For Priority 1, fifteen respondents made a comment on the recommendations regarding health. These are
presented below. A wide variety of themes and issues were mentioned, with concerns regarding mental health
featuring in multiple comments:

e “Add help to overcome communication barriers to the issues to cover” (General Public).

e  “COVID-19 and its implications need to be present (this may be linked to mental health)” (General Public).

e “It would be good to see something here that recognises the impact of trauma on those who are
homeless. Trauma counselling needs to be offered to enable traumatised individuals to work on putting
their lives back together. If the trauma is not addressed, we just see a continuing revolving door of
homelessness and addiction” (General Public).

e “Mental health services are severely stretched and some effort needs to be made to ensure that people
do not drift into homelessness by ensuring a preventative policy is closely linked to existing mental health
services” (General Public).

o “Need to focus on mental health for those at risk of homelessness, not just for those who are already
street homeless/rough sleeping. Prevention is better than cure! This would take into account the
preventative agenda/approach” (Adult Social Care practitioner).

e “Not sure all alcohol/drug uses recognise or would describe their condition as mental health issue - so
need to ensure 'pathways' are not restricted to mental health labels. Are all homeless people in the
system? Do you need to think about establishing outreach services?” (General Public).

e “Priority One should be to quantify, address and eradicate homelessness. The whole strategy is
predicated on an assumption that we will always have homeless people. You’re addressing symptoms not
the cause” (Local Councillor / elected member).

e “Promote awareness of the right to access a GP when homeless” (General Public).

11
businessintelligence @warwickshire.gov.uk Pag e 197 .= .
] ]
[ | [ | | [ | |



Page 12 of 19

“Should also include better access to GPs services” (General Public).

“The dual diagnosis work needs to be very robust since most of these patients have drug or alcohol issues
and presently fall through the gap of mental health service support- if they are using they cannot be
treated by M Health services. It is very frustrating as they cannot stop using to get their mental health
treatment- the 2 things are inextricably linked” (Health/nursing service).

“There is a great deal in these recommendations which is aspirational - | would like to see more focus on
action and less: - "development" - "consideration" etc.” (General Public).

“These pathways and interventions should not be restricted to those that are street homeless/rough
sleeping. Many people who are at risk of becoming homeless or are sofa surfing will also have these
needs, surely it is better to help them before they end up sleeping rough” (Voluntary and community
Sector).

“These points sound good but, in an overworked, under-resourced service | would like to see this in action
before | pass judgment. Needle exchange, homeless women to be able to access free sanitary products,
sexual/ domestic violence support. This needs to be conducted in a non-judgmental way” (General Public)
“They appear to be the right focus from a lay person’s perspective” (General Public).

“We must remember that some people choose to be homeless. The fact that they have chosen an
alternative lifestyle to most of us doesn't give us the right to impose our lifestyle on them” (General
Public).

For Priority 2, twelve respondents made a comment on the recommendations regarding young people. These
are presented below. A variety of themes and issues, with support, communication and joined-up thinking
featuring in multiple comments:

“I think you need also to consider more substantially funding to Doorway, they are an important
partnership and provide more support than the house project. | also think WCC should consider rent
guarantor schemes for people on UC and benefits major stumbling block in private renting” (Housing
Solutions team member).

“I would like to see the Housing First model used across the county in its original form, provide
accommodation quickly and make sure that the wrap around collaborative support is set up to then tackle
the problems and issues. At the moment it is hard to house people unless they are tenancy ready, this is
very hard to achieve while someone is homeless whether they are rough sleeping or sofa surfing”
(Voluntary and community sector).

“There needs to be emphasis on developing a cross county protocol for care leavers -
- Local connection - as WCC care leavers can apply to all 5 district/boroughs but some district/boroughs
are not accepting care leavers that do not have a local connection. This is not in line with government
guidelines. - Care leavers should not have to go through the homeless route to gain priority - it should be
automatic care leaver priority across all 5 councils - special agency referral for all care leavers that are
tenancy ready. - An emphasis on pre-tenancy training standardised across the county for all care
leavers...almost a passport for independent living - this could be introduced into schools for all young
people not just care leavers” (Statutory partner).

“To free up accommodation on the housing register for young people. Not acceptable for young people
to be in supported accommodation for 2-3 years. Young people become very disillusioned and
demoralised negative impact on their recovery” (Voluntary and community sector).

“Very young people i.e. 18-21, do not have a need for, or the resources to deal with conventional
accommodation. Something like Halls of Residence would be more appropriate” (Local Councillor /
elected member).

“Add - overcome any communication barriers” (General Public).

“Are three flats per year sufficient for the number of care leavers?” (General Public).

12
businessintelligence@warwickshire.gov.uk Pag e 198 .= .
] ] 1]
[ | [ 11 [ [ ]



Page 13 of 19

“Consider outreach services and develop pilot schemes to explore fostering of homeless people; with
appropriate training and support” (General Public).

“Engage with charities such as St Basils who have a reputation of providing a good standard of supported
accommodation for all levels of homeless young people. Again wrap around help and support, to be able
to keep and manage their tenancy it is likely they will have to work therefore, having access to education
support and training opportunities is important. Young homeless people can often be NEET or estranged
from their family due to broken relationships, abuse or broken foster/adoption placements. Therefore, it
is important not to just focus on the housing as without all the other strands of support offered the young
person may fail to thrive” (General Public).

“If young people are old enough to vote then they are old enough to start accepting some personal
responsibility” (General Public).

“More work needs to be done to ensure that Children’s Services teams operate in line with the Countywide
protocol. At present the imperative appears to be to reduce or restrict the number of young people in
foster care rather than ensuring the best outcome possible for young people” (General Public).

“What about other support for young people e.g. developing their life skills, e.qg. how to manage a budget,
cook etc... developing employability skills” (General Public).

For Priority 3, seven respondents made a comment on the recommendations regarding domestic abuse. These
are presented below. The themes of communication and support were mentioned in multiple comments, and
the consideration of domestic violence in relation to other groups (such as the LGBTQ+ community) was also
mentioned:

“Need more rooms in local Refuges, we are currently having to place too far away” (Housing Solutions
team member)

Need to consider domestic abuse from an inclusive perspective eg: by stating 'women only spaces'is there
an assumption domestic abuse happens to women? What about men, transgender, children and young
people, etc?” (Adult Social Care practitioner)

“Add - overcome any communication barriers” (General Public).

“More work to be done to ensure that those experiencing domestic abuse do not need to flee their homes,
local areas and support networks” (General Public).

“Provision of intensive psychological support to engender positive relationships going forward and a
process of healing. Access to justice - legal advice or improving legal aid to allow perpetrators to be
brought to justice or apply for non-molestation orders. Increasing funding for more refuges. During
lockdown, it was reported that up to 5 women a week were being murdered by their partner however, if
there was access to a safe place for women this would not such a stain on our nation. Improving domestic
violence services for LGBTQ+ community. It is often this community that suffers the most due to stigma
firstly attached to being part of the LGBTQ+ community and the stereotype of what a domestic violence
survivor is meant to be” (General Public).

“Raise awareness of what domestic abuse is - often victims don't recognise/acknowledge the abuse.
Establish victim abuse help line on similar lines to 'child line' - many 5 year olds | meet now quote what is
acceptable and not acceptable behaviour from adults and this is a great success in terms of educating
victims so they can refer themselves” (General Public).

“There's nothing around long term support for counselling and development/learning opportunities.
Women are usually at a disadvantage when it comes to their career options so a part of this should be
around empowering women to be able to be financially independent. When you need two wages to be
able to live then you set the system up to fail, people won't leave if they can't see a way out” (General
Public).

13
businessintelligence@warwickshire.gov.uk Pag e 199 .= .
] ] 1]
[ | [ 11 [ [ ]



Page 14 of 19

For Priority 4, eleven respondents made a comment on the recommendations regarding offending. A variety of
different themes and issues were mentioned and these are presented below:

“DTR, need to give local housing teams more notice, very often people are released from detention and
DTR are received the same day” (Housing Solutions team member).

“These people also need more support post offending re job opportunities. A lot of boredom is involved
and there are very limited opportunities to have a future once offended” (Health / nursing service).
“Really need to improve the notice periods for prison release and possibly improve the communication
options for prisoners and support workers prior to release. | know that at the moment referrals are made
maybe a week before release and that is the first thought about housing after release. If more
assessments and interviews can be done by councils and the voluntary sector while the prisoner is still in
prison it would make the transition so much smoother” (Voluntary and community sector).

“Add - overcome any communication barriers. Additionally, focus on encouraging change of
setting/relocation - so previous unhelpful 'friendships' can be addressed” (General Public).

“Agreements to be sought with housing providers that they will provide suitable and affordable housing
to ex-offenders” (General Public).

“Don't work in isolation with this one - set up collaborative project with Nacro or similar organisation
they have the expertise and have already done plenty of research on this issue. They are nationwide and
already work closely with prisons, offenders, local authorities, probation etc etc” (General Public).
“Seem good but don't understand who is involved in the joint working - is that probation & housing”
(General Public).

“There is a tendency to push ex-offenders to the back of the queue for funding. This is why it is important
that when an offender is released from prison it must be to an address. Also, improving the quality and
standard of hostels and halfway houses and understanding the nature of offender on release. Having a
stable, safe home with intensive support whilst expensive at the outset when balanced against the costs
of the justice system reconvicting and imprisoning offenders it is fiscally irresponsible to allow these
placements to breakdown with no other support provided, leading to reconviction and further
imprisonment” (General Public).

“They offended and must not be ranked above veterans” (General Public).

“Why do services have to be re-tendered so frequently? It must be difficult for providers to really develop
and embed services which could end before implementation and makes everything feel so 'temporary"”
(General Public).

“Work with colleagues who re supporting offenders before they are released to put in place
accommodation provision to avoid last minute referrals. Understand the needs of ex-offenders better to
enable suitable wrap around support to be considered and delivered locally” (General Public).

For Priority 5, twelve respondents made a comment on the recommendations regarding financial inclusion.
These are presented below. There was a stronger negative sentiment regarding this recommendation than the
other four, and this comes across in several of the comments:

“CFISO, who are they? Where are they based?, how do LA refer to the house project, money better spent
with the LA team or already established providers i.e. Doorway, P3. More floating support needed”
(Housing Solutions team member).

“I haven't seen (maybe | missed it) any proposals to involve the private rented sector in the various
schemes. As a landlord with two two bed low rent (£450/month) properties, | do not rent to persons on
UC, and in fact my agent, a well-known Estate Agent doesn't either. The apparent discrimination occurs
for financial reasons - the need for a deposit and a month's rent in advance and failure to prove adequate
income to maintain the lease. Landlords, especially small ones may be relying on the income for a pension,
live in fear of having to evict a tenant or for that matter having to find a new tenant. The costs plus lost

14
businessintelligence@warwickshire.gov.uk Pag e 200 .= .
] ] 1]
[ | [ 11 [ [ ]



Page 15 of 19

income and delays for eviction are horrendous. The costs to find a new tenant are not insignificant. My
agent charges me £560 a time and the Council charges me full council tax while it's empty. If private
landlords could be supported to take on 'high risk' tenants, there would a noticeable increase in available
accommodation” (Private landlord).

o “None of this actually provides homeless people with a sustainable income. Why is there nothing about
employment - trains and supporting homeless people to get jobs? The whole strategy seems based on
low level state support which will do nothing other than maintain a dependency culture amongst the
homeless” (Local Councillor / elected member).

e “See previous comments relating to financial inclusion” (Adult Social Care practitioner).

e “Add - overcome any communication barriers” (General Public).

o “Clarify expectations in commissioning of services such as CAB, what their role will be to support referrals
from HRS providers as there is often a suggestion that there is duplication and confusion about who is
paid to deliver the service. (General Public).

e “consideration of the impacts of COVID-19 (furlough, job losses) and the potential impact of Brexit
(funding cuts) (General Public).

e “Fully support” (General Public).

e “Housing First needs to include work on the impact of trauma on the homeless and rough sleepers.
Provision of housing on its own without suitable support and counselling will not be sufficient to prevent
such individuals from becoming homeless again in the future. (General Public).

o “This all smacks of jobs for the boys syndrome - lots of words and minimal action. We know the financial
factors that lead to homelessness. Work more closely with job centre plus. Set up system of short and
long term interest free loans to help people who have lost their jobs and also consider grant scheme -
develop similar approach to furlough/ grant scheme that govt produced to help with impact of COVID-
19. Offer training on household budget and house maintenance management to those facing eviction”
(General Public).

e  “What a load of waffle” (General Public).

o “What are financial inclusion services, is this benefits or job opportunities? Focus surely needs to be on
preventing homelessness where at all possible as so much harder to climb out of the whole/start from
nothing than have shelter and a safe space from which to get your life back on track. When people
become homeless it sounds like a 'housing first' approach is a good way to go. People need basic needs
met before they can get their head above water & swim” (General Public).

FURTHER COMMENTS

Following the section on recommendations, respondents were asked if they had any additional comments that
they would like to share in relation to the Draft Countywide Homeless Strategy. In total, 16 respondents gave a
comment to this question. These included general comments in relation to the Draft Countywide Homeless
Strategy, with many respondents returning to issues and themes raised earlier in the survey:

e “Council cutbacks on supported housing have frustrated the needs and causes of homelessness. WCC
need to stop naval gazing and get back to basics - focus on front line services, stop indulging in pointless
ventures such as 'WOW' awards and trim down tall management structures. Too much time spent
conducting internal reviews and re-structuring and not enough attention given to service delivery”
(General Public).

e “Encourage a culture within the general population wherein people know how to inform the relevant
services of a person in need of help/intervention. This could be done through ads/posters online and in

15
businessintelligence@warwickshire.gov.uk Pag e 201 .= .
] ] 1]
[ | [ 11 [ [ ]



Page 16 of 19

public places with high numbers of foot traffic. Use the community to help the vulnerable” (General
Public).

e  “lam impressed with the strategies that are being put in place for 2020/2021” (Business).

o “| believe the strategy needs to take a more preventative proactive approach as currently appears to be
focussed on those who are street homeless/rough sleepers, rather than those whose tenancy is at risk.
Need to consider how the needs of those with mental health issues and substance/alcohol misuse can be
supported to prevent loss of tenancy. Need more clarity around roles and responsibilities of lead agencies
e.g. Housing Dept's, Adult Social Care, etc. Housing tend to take the stance when they evict from
accommodation, this then becomes a Social Care responsibility and they no longer have a duty to house
(e.g. where there is substance misuse issues and challenging behaviours as a result, etc) even where the
individual has no social care needs” (General Public).

e “It’s a bit wordy and could maybe be simplified somewhat?” (General Public).

e  “More work needs to be done to have a coherent strategy in relation to begging in the area. Most
members of the public assume beggars are homeless when in fact most beggars are doing so to fuel drug
and alcohol addictions and have their own accommodation. Countywide support and promotion of the
Meaningful Change campaign could act to educate the public in this area. More work to combat
loneliness and social isolation. Some rough sleepers and homeless individuals are reluctant to take on
their own tenancies as they rely on the street community for their social interactions. More opportunities
should be provided for positive social interaction in order to break the street links that result in a
continuation of negative habitual behaviour. More work to be done on peer mentoring for homeless and
former rough sleepers. Those with lived experience who have turned their lives around can deliver a
powerful message that change is possible and achievable. More survey work to be undertaken to
understand the causes of rough sleeping and the motivations and aspirations of those who sleep rough”
(General Public).

e “Multi-agency working is defiantly necessary sharing proportionate and lawful risk information
supporting individuals with homelessness and staff with safety” (Other, not specified).

e “Need to look at ways to encourage private LL to rent to social housing tenants” (Housing Solutions team
member).

e “Not at this time, but would like to see the actions and benefits that arise from this initiative on a regular
basis” (General Public).

e “Prevention is better than cure - there is nothing in the strategy that overtly looks at the reason people
become homeless - to build in any preventative work that could be done prior to becoming homeless. You
almost need an 'at risk of becoming homeless' strategy to run alongside this strategy -that various
services could tap into as they see someone at risk of becoming homeless” (General Public).

e “Stop advising people to ha e children they can’t afford so that they can get somewhere to live. Work
closely with the job Centre and place where people can train for a career so you can all work in conjunction
with each other to get these people back on their feet” (General Public).

e “Targeted prevention is always crucial. More consideration to the draft around COVID-19 and it's direct
and indirect impact on homelessness” (General Public).

e “The impacts of the pandemic must make reducing and addressing homeless a higher priority than ever.
Not only in the short term to get people of the street while the virus is out there but to help reduce people
slipping into trouble as financial & job losses hit. Fear of losing your home places massive strain on mental
health, relationships, families and individuals” (General Public).

e “The objectives are admirable, but implementation is the key” (General Public).

e “The strategy is negative and reactive and based on the assumption that we’ll always have homeless
people who will be dependent on the state. From my experience there are all sorts of categories of
homeless people. Those who find themselves on the street because of unfortunate circumstances -
coming out of prison, family break up, job loss etc. These people need a short-term support to get them
back functioning in society. There are people with mental health issues - they will probably always need

16
businessintelligence@warwickshire.gov.uk Pag e 202 .= .
] ] 1]
[ | [ 11 [ [ ]



Page 17 of 19

state support. There are some who are temporarily homeless - falling out with parents, domestic abuse
etc. Again, short term, bespoke support. And there are some who make a deliberate lifestyle choice - the
homeless ‘industry’ doesn’t like to recognise this preferring to categorise all homeless people as victims
of an uncaring society. The strategy seems more aimed at perpetuating the homeless industry than in
doing something about it. There’s no analysis of numbers, no data, nothing about solving the problem,
nothing about employment, very little about housing supply. Have you actually taken the trouble to
involve homeless people? No, | thought not” (Local Councillor / elected member).

e  “What awareness raising and preventative work will be undertaken with schools and colleges to support
and help young people? Can you link with existing groups working with young people eg: princes trust,
groundwork, Prospects?” (General Public).

HOUSING RELATED SUPPORT

The final section of the survey focused on Housing Related Support (HRS). Warwickshire County Council is
preparing to re-tender HRS services in 2021. Since Housing Related Support services are considered a
preventative service for homelessness across Warwickshire, the survey sought respondents’ views on the
eligibility criteria.

A person is eligible for an HRS Support assessment if one or more of the statements (listed below) is true.
Respondents were asked to select all of the statements that they felt should be included as eligibility criteria
(and could therefore select multiple options). The results of this are presented in Figure 5 below.

Figure 5. A person is eligible for an HRS Support assessment if one or more of these statements is true. Please
tick all the ones you feel should be included

Their health needs are impacting their ability to maintain their

0,
tenancy — disability / mental health / substance misuse R

They don’t feel safe where they live / Are being harassed / Are 88.9%
experiencing harm =0
They are sleeping rough 88.9%

They have difficulties talking or understanding what is said to 82.2%
them / struggle to understand and process information and... 0
They are homeless / sofa surfing 80.0%

They are at risk of eviction and or repossession and becoming

77.8%
homeless

They have a large amount of debt which may affect their tenancy 71.1%

0.0% 25.0% 50.0% 75.0% 100.0%

As Figure 5 shows, the majority of respondents considered each of the statements should be included as an
eligibility criteria for housing-related support. In particular, 93.3% (n=42) considered ‘Their health needs are
impacting their ability to maintain their tenancy (disability/mental health/substance misuse)’ should be eligible.
A large amount of debt which may affect their tenancy was the only statement that received less than 75%
support (71.1%, n=32). There was no statistical significance in responses based on the capacity in which they
were responding (general public v all other groups) to the statements.

17
businessintelligence@warwickshire.gov.uk Page 203 .= .
ENEENE ER
BOBRERCEEER



Page 18 of 19

EQUALITY AND DIVERSITY ANALYSIS

The online survey asked respondents to complete information regarding equality and diversity. The results are
set out in Table 2 below.

Table 2. Overall online respondent profile

Gender Female 31
Male 12
Non-binary 0
Prefer to self-describe
Prefer not to say 1
Not answered 1

Gender identity Yes 43
No 0
Prefer not to say 1
Not answered 1

Age in years Under 18 0
18-29 1
30-44 14
45-59 16
60-74 10
75+ 2

Prefer not to say

Not answered

Long standing illness or disability | Yes 7

No 34

Prefer not to answer

Not answered

w
LDHUJ

Ethnicity White-English/Welsh/Scottish/Northern Irish/ British

White - Irish

White - Gypsy or Irish Traveller

Other White background

Black or Black British - African

Black or Black British - Caribbean

Other Black background

Asian or Asian British — Bangladeshi

Asian or Asian British — Indian

Asian or Asian British - Pakistani

Chinese

Other Asian Background

Mixed — White and Asian

Mixed — White and Black African

Mixed — White and Black Caribbean

Other Mixed background

Arab

Other Ethnic background

Prefer not to say

Not answered

o [(NVN]|O|O|O|O|O|O|O|O|O|O|O|O|O|O|R|O]|N

Religion Buddhist

18
businessintelligence@warwickshire.gov.uk Pag e 204



Page 19 of 19

Christian

Jewish

Muslim

Hindu

Sikh

Spiritual

Any other religion or belief

No religion

Prefer not to say

Not answered

Sexual orientation

Heterosexual or straight

Gay man

Gay woman / lesbian

Bi / bisexual

Other

Prefer not to say

Not answered

RlWO(O|—|O

businessintelligence@warwickshire.gov.uk

19

Page 205




This page is intentionally left blank



Warwickshire County Council Equality Impact Assessment (EIA) Form

The purpose of an EIA is to ensure WCC is as inclusive as possible, both as a service deliverer and as an employer. It also
demonstrates our compliance with Public Sector Equality Duty (PSED).

This document is a planning tool, designed to help you improve programmes of work by considering the implications for different
groups of people. A guidance document is available here.

Please note that, once approved, this document will be made public, unless you have indicated that it contains sensitive information.
Please ensure that the form is clear and easy to understand. If you would like any support or advice on completing this document,
please contact the Equality, Diversity and Inclusion (EDI) team on 01926 412370 or equalities@warwickshire.gov.uk

Service / policy / strategy / practice / plan being assessed | Preventing Homelessness in Warwickshire: a multiagency
approach 2021-2023

Business Unit / Service Area People Group / Public Health

Is this a new or existing service / policy / strategy /
practice / plan? If an existing service / policy / strategy / New
practice / plan please state date of last assessment

/0¢ abed

EIA Review team - list of members Emily Fernandez / Minakshee Patel

Do any other Business Units / Service Areas need to be No
included?

Does this EIA contain personal and / or sensitive No
information?

Are any of the outcomes from this assessment likely to No
result in complaints from existing services users, If yes please let your Assistant Director and the Customer
members of the public and / or employees? Relations Team know as soon as possible

e

. 10 T abed


https://warwickshiregovuk.sharepoint.com/SitePages/Equality-Impact-Assessments.aspx
mailto:equalities@warwickshire.gov.uk

1. Please explain the background to your proposed activity and the reasons for it.

80¢ abed

g

In April 2018 the Homelessness Reduction Act 2017 (HRA17) came into force bringing sweeping changes in how councils
should respond to homelessness and one of the most significant changes was the introduction of a “Duty to Refer” which
required other public bodies to become more involved in homelessness service provision. The broad aim of HRA17 is to reduce
homelessness by introducing systems to ensure early intervention and prevention.

Even though the District and Boroughs are responsible for implementing HRA17, the legislation is underpinned by a
requirement to provide a holistic assessment of the households needs which results in a joint, multi-agency approach to
achieving a positive outcome.

A recent consultation paper, “Tackling Homelessness Together”, set out the Government’s concerns that partners were not
engaging positively to resolve homelessness and are not co-operating. As such they are proposing statutory requirements to
provide for specific structures which could include a duty to co-operate and the establishment of Homelessness Reduction
Boards.

However, Warwickshire already has an established Strategic Housing Board.

The new obligation highlighted in HRA 17, intensified conversations that were already ongoing between the District &
Boroughs and WCC culminating in a conference on homelessness in the autumn of 2018 that involved a wide range of
statutory and voluntary organisations who were working in the field of homelessness. Following the conference all six councils
agreed to develop a countywide strategy.

In order for Warwickshire County Council and District / Borough Councils to deliver on the actions identified in HRA 17, a
Countywide Homelessness Strategy — ‘Preventing Homelessness in Warwickshire: a multiagency approach 2021 -2023’ has
been developed and this Equality Impact Assessment is related to that Strategy.

. Please outline your proposed activity including a summary of the main actions.

Public Health has been working with the Heads of Housing from the 5 District and Borough Councils in developing the Strategy.
The strategy provides details on the background, key data on homelessness across Warwickshire, specific information and
recommendations in five key social policy areas where co-ordinated action can have the greatest impact in preventing and
tackling homelessness. The five areas are:

e Health.
Young people.
Domestic abuse.
Offending.
Financial inclusion.

Mwﬁ‘w

/10 Z abed



3. Who is this going to impact and how? (customers, service users, public and staff)

It is good practice to seek the views of your stakeholders and for these to influence your proposed activity. Please list anything
you have already found out. If you still need to talk to stakeholders, include this as an ‘action’ at the end of your EIA. Note that
in some cases, there is a duty to consult, see more.

. 1o ¢ abed

This Strategy will have an impact on staff, customers, service users and the wider community.

Views were sought on the Draft Countywide Homeless Strategy using an online survey that was available between 5th October
and 1st November 2020. Responses were invited from the general public, businesses, statutory partners, local
councillors/elected members, and voluntary and community sector. The results and feedback will assist in getting the strategy
right for those who are at risk of homelessness, currently homeless or sleeping rough on Warwickshire streets. It will inform the
priorities and recommendations of the final version of the strategy being presented to the Health and Wellbeing Board in March
2021.

A summary of the findings from the survey are listed below, however the full consultation report is available as an Appendix to
the Strategy.

e The Draft Countywide Homeless Strategy survey received 45 responses. Of these, 28 were from members of the
general public and the remainder from other groups (business, statutory partner, local Councillor/elected member,
voluntary community sector).

e Intotal, 91.1% of all respondents stated that they agreed (either agree or strongly agree) with the vision set out for this
strategy. Just 6.8% disagreed (either disagree or strongly disagree) with the vision.

e Respondents generally agreed with each of the strategic priorities; Priority 3 (domestic abuse) had the greatest
agreement — 93.3% of all respondents stated they agreed or strongly agreed with this priority.

o A small percentage, 8.9% of the respondents disagreed (disagree or strongly disagree) with Priority 1 (health).
o Overall, respondents either agreed or agreed to some extent that the recommendations proposed for each
strategic priority are the correct ones to focus on for 2021/22:
Priority 1 — Health: 62% agreed, 31% agreed to some extent
Priority 2 — Young People: 60% agreed, 24% agreed to some extent
Priority 3 — Domestic Abuse: 73% agreed, 15.6% agreed to some extent
Priority 4 — Offending: 57.8% agreed, 24.4% agreed to some extent
o Priority 5 - Financial inclusion: 64.4% agreed, 22.2% agreed to some extent
An equality analysis of the respondents is also included in the consultation report.
Data on homelessness in Warwickshire is taken from Ministry of Housing, Communities and Local Government, which compiles
information from H-CLIC returns from all local housing authorities. Full information is available as an Appendix to the Strategy.

60¢ abed

0 O O O

e


https://warwickshiregovuk.sharepoint.com/SitePages/Consultation%2C-engagement-and-survey-resources.aspx

4. Please analyse the potential impact of your proposed activity against the protected characteristics.
N.B Think about what actions you might take to mitigate / remove the negative impacts and maximize on the positive ones.
This will form part of your action plan at question 7.

What information do you have? Positive impacts Negative impacts
What information do
you still need to get?

Age Consultation data and service user dataThe service is open to
is both available. everyone from the age of 16+

Disability Consultation data is available; however,The service is open to
Consider it is not broken down into the different |everyone irrespective of what
e Physical disabilities categories. disability they present with. The
: E‘Z:fggv';?s:g?n‘ij’;tt; . Service user data is not collected service provision is based on

(e.g. dyslexia) through th_e H_—CLIC data returns. individual needs.
¢ Mental health conditions However, is picked up as part of the

(e.g. depression) support needs of household.
¢ Medical conditions (e.g.

diabetes)

Gender Reassignment Consultation data is available, however.The service provision is based
Service user data is not collected on individual needs.
through the H-CLIC data returns

0TZ abed

Marriage and Data not collected either as part of The service provision is based
Civil consultation monitoring or the H-CLIC |on individual needs.
Partnership data returns.

However, not required.

Pregnancy and Maternity |Data not collected either as part of The service provision is based
consultation monitoring or the H-CLIC |on individual needs.
data returns.
However, not required.

g

ka‘w

. 10 ¢ afed



Race Consultation data and service user dataThe service is open to

is both available. everyone irrespective of their
ethnicity. The service provision
is based on individual needs.

/10 G afed

Religion or Belief Consultation data is available, however.The service provision is based
Service user data is not collected on individual needs.
through the H-CLIC data returns

Sex Consultation data and service user dataThe service is open to

is both available. everyone irrespective of their
gender. The service provision is
based on individual needs. A
specific priority relating to
Domestic Abuse has been
identified within the Strategy.

TT¢ abed

Sexual Orientation Consultation data is available, however.The service is open to
Service user data is not collected everyone irrespective of their
through the H-CLIC data returns sexual orientation. The service
provision is based on individual
needs.

5. What could the impact of your proposed activity be on other vulnerable groups e.g. deprivation, looked after
children, carers?

There will be a positive impact as there are priorities identified within the Strategy to support vulnerable groups. They are:
e Young people, which includes looked after children, care leavers

e Domestic Abuse

e Financial Inclusion

o Offending

e



6. How does / could your proposed activity fulfil the three aims of PSED, giving due regard to:

¢ the elimination of discrimination, harassment and victimisation

e creating equality of opportunity between those who share a protected characteristic and those who do not
o fostering good relationships between those who share a protected characteristic and those who do not

The service is available to anyone who presents as homeless and are owed a duty under HRA17 irrespective of their specific
protected characteristic. The service provision is based on individual needs.

7. Actions —what do you need to do next?

Consider:

e Who else do you need to talk to? Do you need to engage or consult?
e How you will ensure your activity is clearly communicated

e Whether you could mitigate any negative impacts for protected groups
e Whether you could do more to fulfil the aims of PSED

T
g e Anything else you can think of!
D
N
K‘J Action Timescale Name of person responsible
Strategy to be adopted by Health & March 2021 Emily Fernandez, WCC
Wellbeing Board
Strategy to be adopted by District & February 2021 District & Boroughs Heads of Housing
Boroughs

g

Mmak‘w

/ 10 9 afied



8. Sign off.

Name of person/s completing EIA

Emily Fernandez / Minakshee Patel

Name and signhature of Assistant
Director

Date

Date of next review and name of
person/s responsible

cT¢ abed

ﬂ%ﬁ

/10 ) abed



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1 of 2 Agenda ltem 5

Health and Wellbeing Board
3 March 2021

Health and Wellbeing Board Sub-Committee

Recommendation(s)

1. That the Board notes the decisions taken by the Health and Wellbeing Board
Sub-Committee at its meeting on 29 January 2021.

1.0 KeylIssues

1.1  This item provides a report back to the Health and Wellbeing Board (HWBB)
on a decision taken by the Sub-Committee since the last Board meeting.

2.0 Options and Proposal

2.1 Atits meeting on 23 September 2015, the HWBB agreed proposals for a Sub-
Committee to meet where a decision is required within a time frame which
does not fall within the cycle of scheduled meetings of the Board.

2.2  Atits meeting on 6 January 2021, the Board received an update on the Better
Care Fund (BCF) Plan and delegated authority to a sub-committee to give
final consideration to the BCF Plan for 2020/21. The sub-committee met for
this purpose on 29 January 2021. A copy of the meeting documents were

publicised to all members of the HWBB. The Minutes of the meeting are
attached at Appendix ‘A’.

3.0 Financial Implications

3.1 None.

4.0 Environmental Implications

4.1 None.

Background Papers

None

Page 215



Page 2 of 2

Name

Contact Information

Report Author

Paul Spencer

paulspencer@warwickshire.gov.uk
Tel: 01926 418615

Assistant Director

Sarah Duxbury

Strategic Director

Rob Powell

Portfolio Holder

Councillor Caborn

The report was circulated to the following members prior to publication:

Local Member(s): None
Other members: None

Page 216



mailto:paulspencer@warwickshire.gov.uk

Page 1 of 3

Health and Wellbeing Board

Friday 29 January 2021

Minutes

Attendance

Committee Members

Councillor Les Caborn, Warwickshire County Council (WCC)
Councillor Jo Barker, Stratford-upon-Avon District Council (SDC)
Nigel Minns, WCC Strategic Director, People Group

Officers

Rachel Briden, Carl Hipkiss, Gemma McKinnon and Paul Spencer (WCC Officers).

1. General
(1) Appointment of Chair for the meeting
Resolved:
That Councillor Les Caborn be appointed Chair for the meeting.
(2) Apologies
None.
(3) Members' Disclosures of Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests
None.

2. Better Care Fund Plan 2020/21

At its meeting on 6 January, the Health and Wellbeing Board received an update on the Better
Care Fund (BCF) Plan and delegated authority to a sub-committee to give final consideration to
the BCF Plan for 2020/21. A report was introduced by Rachel Briden, WCC Integrated
Partnerships Manager. The BCF provided significant additional funding to councils in order to
protect adult social care and for Warwickshire, this was £14.688m in 2020/21. For this year the
sum included the support for winter funding, which had previously been a separate grant. Disabled
facilities grant funding continued to be allocated through the BCF. The funding conditions meant

that this money must be used to support social care in a number of specified ways.

Background was provided on the delays to publication of the policy and planning requirements,
due to the response to the Covid-19 pandemic. Councils were directed to prioritise continuity of

Page 217



Page 2 of 3

provision, social care capacity and system resilience and spend from ringfenced BCF pots based
on existing local agreements, pending further guidance. That guidance was subsequently received
on 3 December 2020. NHS England and NHS Improvement had agreed that formal BCF plans
would not have to be submitted for approval. Instead, the requirement was to ensure that use of
the mandatory funding contributions was agreed in writing, that the national conditions were met
and that an end of year reconciliation was submitted in a prescribed format. Further background
was provided on the content of the BCF policy statement for 2020/21 and associated national
conditions.

Locally, the BCF plan continued to be focussed on the long-term vision, building on progress made
previously and seeking further improvements in key areas. The Warwickshire plan had been
developed following meetings with partners and met the requirements set out in the BCF policy
statement published in December. Each of the partners had signed-off the plan through their own
governance arrangements ahead of this meeting.

Further sections of the report outlined the monitoring and reporting arrangements, together with
the financial implications.

The following questions and comments were submitted:

e Reference to the disabled facilities grants and Home Environment Assessment & Response
Team (HEART) Board. Councillor Barker raised concerns which had been reported to the
SDC overview and scrutiny committee about the position on HEART.

¢ Nigel Minns acknowledged the concerns raised, which led to an independent review being
undertaken. The HEART Board was now chaired by Becky Hale an assistant director of
WCC. The aim was to support the implementation of improvements for this managed
service. Covid-19 had impacted on the achievement of the associated action plan.
However, there were indications of improvements and a necessity for continued monitoring.
In time, a review would be required of the long-term future of HEART.

e |t was confirmed that additional support had been provided, with endeavours to reduce
duplication and there was a far-reaching improvement plan.

e The Chair provided additional context on the involvement of partners.

e |t was confirmed that the proposals had been approved by the WCC Cabinet and all clinical
commissioning groups.

¢ Nigel Minns corrected an error in paragraph 1.8 of the report on the levels of expenditure,
where commas implied the amounts of money were greater than the actual spend levels.
The correct amounts were confirmed.

The Chair sought confirmation from the Sub-Committee members of the recommendations as
submitted.

Resolved:
That the Health and Wellbeing Board Sub-Committee:

1. Approves the Better Care Fund (BCF) Plan for 2020/21, known locally as the Better
Together Programme, including the plan for resources made available through the
additional social care monies, Disabled Facilities Grant and Clinical Commissioning Group
contributions.

Page 2
Health and Wellbeing Board

29.01.21
Page 218



Page 3 of 3

2. Notes that formal BCF plans do not have to be submitted to NHS England and NHS
Improvement for approval in 2020 to 2021 and that instead Health and Wellbeing Boards
must ensure that use of the mandatory funding contributions has been agreed and that the
national conditions are met.

3. Recommends Warwickshire County Council entering into a new Section 75 Partnership
Agreement with Coventry and Rugby Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG), South
Warwickshire CCG and Warwickshire North CCG for the delivery of the BCF Plan once
completed. This will include the alignment of Out of Hospital service provision and funding
across all partners as a step towards closer integration and risk sharing.

4. Recommends the County Council continuing as the pooled budget holder for the fund.

The meeting rose at 1.20pm

Page 3
Health and Wellbeing Board

29.01.21
Page 219



This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	1(3) Minutes of the Meeting of the Warwickshire Health and Wellbeing Board on 6 January and Matters Arising
	2 Director of Public Health's Annual Report
	3 Health and Wellbeing Strategy
	Appendix 1 for Health and Wellbeing Strategy
	Appendix 2 for Health and Wellbeing Strategy
	Appendix 3 for Health and Wellbeing Strategy

	4 Homelessness Strategy
	Appendix 1 for Homelessness Strategy
	Appendix 2 for Homelessness Strategy
	Appendix 3 for Homelessness Strategy

	5 Health and Wellbeing Board Sub-Committee
	Minutes , 29/01/2021 Health and Wellbeing Board


